
AGENDA 
RIO DELL CITY COUNCIL 

CLOSED SESSION - 5:30 P.M. 
REGULAR MEETING - 6:30 P.M. 

TUESDAY, APRIL 21, 2015 
CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

675 WILDWOOD A VENUE, RIO DELL 

WELCOME . .. By your presence in the Cih) Council Chambers, you are participating in the process of 
representative government. Copies of this agenda, staff reports and other material available to the Cih) 
Council are available at the City Clerk's office in City Hall, 675 Wildwood Avenue. Your City 
Government welcomes your interest and hopes you will attend and participate in Rio Dell Cih) Coullcil 
meetings often. 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need special assistance to participate in 
this meeting, please contact the Office of the City Clerk at (707) 764-3532. Notificatioll 48 hours prior 
to the meeting will enable the Cih) to make reasonable arrangements to assure accessibility to this 
meeting. 

THE TYPE OF COUNCIL BUSINESS IS IDENTIFIED IMMEDIATELY AFTER EACH 
TITLE IN BOLD CAPITAL LETTERS 

A. CALL TO ORDER 

B. ROLLCALL 

C. ANNOUNCEMENT OF ITEMS TO BE DISCUSSED IN CLOSED SESSION AS 
FOLLOWS: 

1) 2015/0421.01 - Conference with Legal Counsel- Existing Litigation 
Name of Case: City of Rio Dell v. SHN Consulting Engineers 
and Geologists, Inc. a California Corp. Case No. DR130745 
(Pursuant to Gov't Code Section 54956.9(a) 

2) 2015/0421.02 - Conference with Legal Counsel- Anticipated Ligitation 
Consider initiation oflitigation pursuant to paragraph (4) of 
Subdivision (d) of Section 54956.9: (One potential case, facts and 
circumstances known to adverse parties): Access dispute, quiet 
title and prescriptive easement related to waterline maintenance 
and vehicular access along Old Ranch Road to City of Rio Dell 
Monument Springs Parcel (APN: 205-041-014). Potential adverse 
property owners along Old Ranch Road, include, without limitation, 
Cidoni, Coleman, Lewis and Humboldt Redwood Company. 





D. PUBLIC COMMENT REGARDING CLOSED SESSION 

E. RECESS INTO CLOSED SESSION 

F. RECONVENUE INTO OPEN SESSION - 6:30 P.M. 

G. ORAL ANNOUNCEMENTS 

H. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

1. CEREMONIAL MA TIERS 

J. PUBLIC PRESENTATIONS 

This time is for persons who wish to address the Council on any matter not on tlris agenda and over 
wlriclr tire Council/ms jurisdiction. As suclr, a dialogue witlr tire Councilor staff is not intended. Items 
requiring Council action not listed on this agenda llIay be placed on tire next regular agenda for 
consideration if tire Council directs, unless a finding is made by at least 2/3rds of tire COllncilmembers 
present that tire item came up after the agenda was posted and is of an urgenClJ natilre requiring 
immediate action. Please limit comments to a maximum of 3 minutes. 

K. CONSENT CALENDAR 

Tire Consent Calendar adopting the printed recommended Council action will be enacted with one vote. 
TI,e Mayor will first ask the staff, the public, and the Council members if tlrere is anyone who wislres to 
address any matter on tire Consent Calendar. TI,e matters removed from the Consent Calendar will be 
considered individually in tire next section, "SPECIAL CALL ITEMS". 

1) 2015/0421.03- Approve Minutes of the April 7, 2015 CDBG Study Session (ACTION) 1 

2) 2015/0421.04 - Approve Minutes of the April 7, 2015 Regular Meeting (ACTION) 8 

3) 2015/0421.05 - Approve and Authorize Mayor to Sign Letter of Support for SB 16 
(Transportation) (ACTION) 16 

4) 2015/0421.06 - Authorize the City Manager to Sign Memorandum of Understanding 
(MOU) Extending the City of Rio Dell's Green Waste Curbside 
Collection Program (ACTION) 21 

L. SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS/STUDY SESSIONS 

M. SPECIAL CALL ITEMS/COMMUNITY AFFAIRS 
1) "SPECIAL CALL ITEMS" from Consent Calendar 

2) 2015/0421.07 - Appointment of One (1) Public Member to Serve on the 
Nuisance Committee (ACTION) 29 





3) 2015/0421.08 - Draft Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) Between 
Humboldt Waste Management Authority and City of Rio Dell 
with Further Consideration of Related Request for Proposal 
and Authorization of a Related Letter 
(DISCUSSIONjPOSSIBLE ACTION) 34 

4) 2015/0421.09 - Contracts for Services at the Metropolitan Well Site 
(DISCUSSIONjPOSSIBLE ACTION) 75 

5) 2015/0421.10 - Authorization for Progress Payment to Groundwater Pump & 
Well, Inc. for Work on the Metropolitan Well Rehabilitation 
Project (DISCUSSIONjPOSSIBLE ACTION) 88 

6) 2015/0421.11- Review of City Council Protocols and Possible Adoption of new 
Rules of Order (DISCUSSIONjPOSSIBLE ACTION) 89 

N. ORDINANCES/SPECIAL RESOLUTIONS/PUBLIC HEARINGS 

1) 2015/0421.12 Adopt Resolution No. 1262-2015 Authorizing the Examination 
of Transactions (Sales) and Use Tax Records (DISCUSSION/ 
POSSIBLE ACTION) 181 

2) 2015/0421.13 - Second Reading (by title only) and Adoption of Ordinance No. 
335-2015 Amending Section 13.10.241 of the Rio Dell Municipal 
Code Related to Property Lien Assessments for Delinquent Sewer 
Accounts (ACTION) 193 

O. REPORTS/ST AFF COMMUNICATIONS 

1. City Manager 
2. Chief of Police 
3. Finance Director - Check Register for March, 2015 
4. Community Development Director 

P. COUNCIL REPORTS/COMMUNICATIONS 

Q. ADJOURNMENT 

The next reglliar meeting will be on May 5, 2015 
at 6:30 p.m. in City Hall COlli/cit Chambers 

205 







• 



RIO DELL CITY COUNCIL 
STUDY SESSION 
APRIL 7.2015 
MINUTES 

A study session of the Rio Dell City Council was called to order at 4:30 p.m. by Mayor Wilson 

ROLL CALL: Present: 

Absent: 

Others Present: 

Mayor Wilson, Councilmembers Games, Johnson and Marks 

Councilmember Thompson (arrived at 5:15 p.m.) 

City Manager Knopp, Finance Director Woodcox, Community 
Development Director Caldwell, Accountant I Farley, and Cit)' 
Clerk Dunham 

STUDY SESSION MATTERS 

Discussion and Review of the Citv's Community Development Block Grant (CDBo) Program 
City Manager Knopp stated the purpose of the study session is to discuss the CDBG program and 
look at ways to get more involved in improving the overall condition of the City. He noted that 
the City has been very successful over the last 10 years or so in obtaining grants for 
improvements, particularly in the gateway and to the City'S infrastructure and the idea is to find 
ways to continue and expand this program. He said one of the tools the City can potentially 
utilize is the CDBG Program although the activities of that program have primarily been related 
to housing, it can be utilized for more economic development related activities. 

He said staffis asking that the Council listen to the information and ask questions so they can get 
a good, clear understanding of the program and provide staff some basic direction in developing 
the CDBG Program. He added that a strong, consistent program over the next 10 years is what 
will make it successful 25 years do\~n the road. He said what we have today is a set of obstacles 
that we have to overcome in order to apply for the next round of CDBG funds in 2016 and do 
some regularized programs. 

He added that the exciting news is that there will ultimately be some competitive money 
available for downtO\\n fa~ade improvements as well as micro-enterprise assistance for the 
business incubator program with the Chamber of Commerce so there art! all kinds of exciting 
programs the City can do outside of housing. He pointed out that the CDBG Program is a 
complex program and will require everyone to work together as a team including staff, council 
and the chamber of commerce to come up with a unified vision for the City. 

He then introduced Thomas Brandeberry and Karen Patterson from the Department of Housing 
and Community Development Department CDBG Program. 

Community Development Director Caldwell provided a brief overview of the CDBG Program 
and what the City has been doing with the Housing Rehab Program to give the Council a little bit 
of context. He said the program has been in place for over 25 and until 2012 was administered 

1 



CDBG STUDY SESSION 
APRIL 7, 2015 
Page 2 

by Redwood Community Action Agency. He explained the rehab loans are currently funded by 
Program Income (PI) which is the money that is paid back to the City from other COBO loans. 
He reported a current Program Income balance of $172,000 with 33 loans which are all due and 
payable to the City at the time of sale or transfer of property. He also reported that 2 of the loans 
are behind on property taxes and I property was foreclosed. He said the City expects to receive 
an additional $82,000 over the next couple of months which will raise the Program Income 
balance to approximately $250.000. 

He provided a handout on the City's CDBG Homebuyer Program/or Low-Income Homebuyers ; 
CDBG Program Owner-Occupied HOllie Relwbilitation Loans and Fact Sheet and provided a 
summary of the programs. 

He explained the new program is the Homebuyer Program which essentially provides gap 
financing to help pay the difference between the loan amount a borrower can qualify for from 
a financial institution and the purchase price of a home which increases a borrower's buying 
power and reduces initial out-of-pocket expenses and monthly costs by providing additional 
funds for a dO\m payment with no monthly payment. 

lIe further explained that according to the American Community Survey. 38% of Rio Dell's 
population falls under the low-Moderate Income (lMI) and in order to be an eligible 
community without having to do any kind of survey it has to be above 50% lMI. 

Thomas Brandeberry continued with review of the COB a Program and provided a 10 page 
handout on 2015 CDBG App/katioll FUllding Limits ami Eligible Activities Chart. 

He explained the CDBO Program is in its 40th year and comes out of the Housing and Urban 
Development (HUD) Oepartment which consists of 4 programs; with CDBO bcing I ofthc 4. 
He also notcd that the State's CDBO Program only operates in rural communities and currently 
has around 160 eligible jurisdictions. He then reviewed the activities they can fund as described 
on page 2 of the handout. 

He also pointed out that the program activities vary but the big itcms are housing including 
multi-family housing projects. public infrastructure and public facilities. He noted that the 
program is almost a replacement for those communities that lost their redevelopment agencies. 

He explained public services are where funding is provided directly to a non-profit who might be 
providing things such as a senior service. food bank, substance abuse service or mental health 
services. as well as planning activities, provided the planning activity results in a future COBO 
project. 

He then reviewed the economic development aspect and said it is broken into a number of 
categories and said there are Business/Developers Assistance (BA) loans ranging from 

2 



CDBG STUDY SESSION 
APRIL 7, 2015 
Page 3 

$500,000-$1 million. He noted that Microenterprise (ME) loans can be done in 3 different ways: 
I) technical assistance training such as computer training; 2) general support services such as 
transportation and day care; and 3) loans and grants directly to businesses. He commented that 
the City has the ability to put aside 17% of every dollar that comes in to the City for the 
administration of the program. 

He noted the repayment of these loans under Program Income (PI) can then be used for new 
loans. He said they will also be allowing a fa9ade improvement program under the small 
business program which is ideal for Rio Dell's downtown. He said it has to be a "for profit"' 
business and be the owner of the property to qualify. He noted that the funding can be in the 
form of a grant or loan but loans would be preferred because the money would come back to the 
City for new loans. 

City Manager Knopp referred to the first page of the handout and said this is essentially 
the CDBO program the City needs to be running. He said in order to get this program 
implemented and to sustain it for the next \ 0 or 20 years there are some obstacles to overcome 
He reviewed the 2 options for use of the Program Income (PI) as: \) reinvest it into the 
Revolving Loan Fund (RLF) which will benefit housing activity (rehabilitation and homebuyer 
programs); or 2) take the PI and place it into supplemental activities (the series of options on 
page 2 of the handout). He said there is benefit to the first option however; the City cannot 
collect any administration fees so would essentially be starting up a program without the ability 
to fund it. As such, he said staff cannot recommend this as the preferred option. 

He said with option 2, administration fees can be reimbursed which is critical to the City in order 
to contain costs that it can' t really afford. 

Discussion continued regarding supplemental activities and the option of utilizing $172,000 to 
fund necessary ADA improvements to City Hall described as "removal of architectural 
barriers" which is an allowable use of program income. City Manager Knopp noted that this is 
an easy option and requires no income survey since the project will benefit the entire 
community. He pointed out that there are some political considerations such as the perception 
that Measure U monies are funding the project when the streets are in disrepair although there is 
no connection. He said the other possibility is a senior center but once it is constructed, it has 
to be staffed and maintained. 

City Manager Knopp said one of the other programs coming on for 2016 is fa9ade 
improvements and said there is an opportunity here to prepare and make application for that 
purpose. He said staff is asking for input from the Council on the direction they would like to 
go with regard to spending down the program income. 

3 



CDBG STUDY SESSION 
APRIL 7, 2015 
Page 4 

Thomas Brandeberry explained the Notice of Funding Availability (NOF A) will be going out in 
January 2016 with a due date for applications by the second Friday in April. As of that date. the 
City will need to have spent 50% of the present $100,000 planning grant however; can't spend 
that $50,000 until the Program Income (PI) is spent. He said what that means is that between 
now and April 2016 the City needs to find a project to spend the $172,000 PI. $50,000 of the 
planning grant and whatever else comes back to the City in loan payments which is potentially 
another $80,000. 

He continued with a brief review of eligibility codes and definitions. He said by removing the 
architectural barriers the City will have met the national objective. lie pointed out that this 
project is not risky whereas certain other projects are such as providing for infrastructure 
improvements for a planned development that does not result in a future CDBG project. 

Community Development Director Caldwell said the planning grant for the drainage study the 
City got was for $100.000 and he anticipates the cost to be around $80.000. He asked if that 
is going to have any bearing on spending 50% of the $100.000. 

Mr. Brandeberry explained that it does not because it is more than $50,000 but it does mean that 
it will be disencumbered. He pointed out that the 13 contracts were non-competitive so if the 
City wants to do a second study that represents the remaining $20.000 it could be allowed and 
would need to be included as part of the amendment under supplemental acth'ities . 

City Clerk Dunham asked if the facade improvements will be in the form of a grant or loan to the 
business owners. 

Mr. Brandeberry stated that it is optional and one way is to provide 50% loan and 50% grant. 

Councilmember Johnson questioned the possibility of using a portion of the funds on the 
Metropolitan Well Project. 

Mr. Brandeberry explained the problem is that the project benefits the whole community so it 
would have to be done under a LMA which is a Low/Mod Area Benefit and for some reason. 
according to census data. Rio Dell is at 38% not 51 % which is the minimum to meet the 
national objective and be eligible to do these kinds of activities. He said if street improvements 
are done in an area that qualifies as 51 % LMA the project could be selected. 

He stated that one of the biggest dilemmas is the area benefit issue and for some reason the 
census actually said that between last year and this year the LMA numbers for Rio Dell went 
dO\~n. He explained the method used to compile the data and said the overall question is what is 
the number of individuals in the community and how man v of those are low to moderate income . . 
based on family income. He said that's why a survey is needed to see if that is an accurate 
reflection of income levels in the City. 

4 



Councilmember Tbompson arriHd at this time, 5:15 p.m. 

CDBG STUDY SESSION 
APRIL 7,2015 
PageS 

Community Development Director Caldwell pointed out that in 2013 the City did a survey as 
part of the PTA grant and those numbers showed the City was at 60.3% LMI so Mr. Brandeberry 
said he would look into it to see if there is some way that survey can be used. 

Mr. Brandeberry stated that the issue now is that the census changed the way they collect data 
and went away from the 10 year census for some things and went to ACS in order to collect on a 
more regular basis and to do a smaller sampling. 

Council member Johnson asked if Program Income can be used to do a community survey. 

Mr. Brandeberry said only under administration because it is CDBG related. 

Discussion ensued regarding the procedures for doing an income survey and whether it can be 
done in- house and charged against the 17% for administration. 

Community Development Director Caldwell suggested it be broken down into neighborhood 
areas in the event the City as a whole does not qualify particular neighborhoods could be 
targeted. 

Councilmember Garnes asked if the City parking lot is eligible for upgrade. 

Thomas explained it would be limited to a low/mod area benefit because it is open to everyone to 
use therefore; the entire community would need to be designated at Low/Mod. 

Community Development Director Caldwell asked if the City were to acquire a residential 
property next to the parking lot if it would be subject to permanent relocation of the tenants. 

Mr. Brandeberry said it would be subject to permanent tenant relocation just like a business. 

Councilmember Johnson asked how long the survey is good for and if the 2013 survey qualifies. 

Mr. Brandeberry said under the new requirements surveys are good for 5 years and the 2013 
survey is still good provided it meets those new standards and that there needs to be 400 surveys 
for it to qualify. 

Council member Johnson asked if the City has 1.400 water customers and an additional 35 or so 
out of city limits and the City wants to do water infrastructure improvement if all of those 
customers would need to be surveyed. 

5 



CDBG STUDY SESSION 
APRIL 7, 2015 
Page 6 

Mr. Brandeberry explained it is not based on who is connected or using the service but who is in 
the service area even if they have a well. He said if 400 plus surveys were done then the extra 35 
customers are not statistically important. 

City Manager Knopp pointed out that if Program Income is used for gap financing on the 
Metropolitan Well Project it federalizes it and becomes subject to prevailing wage requirements. 

Councilmember Games asked what other projects aside from the removal of architectural 
barriers don't require a survey. 

Mr. Brandeberry stated projects such as a senior center would not require a survey. 

Nick Angeloff referred to the Economic: Development Over-The-Counter Allocation Activities 
and asked if they require a survey. 

Mr. Brandeberry stated no survey is required and $300,000 to $5 million is available year round 
and is not connected to the 50% rule. 

City Manager Knopp said the choice is to either put the $172,000 of Program Income into the 
Revolving Fund Loan with no provisions for reimbursement of administration costs; or into a 
supplemental program and get 17% administrative costs. He said it seems the consensus of the 
Council is to conduct a survey but asked for input about ADA improvements to City Hall. 
Housing Rehab and the First Time Homebuyer Program. 

Mayor Wilson said he would like the City Manager to put together a viable list of potential 
CDBG projects and bring it back to the Council. 

Councilmember Garnes commented that she would like to move forward with the ADA 
improvements because of the potential liability to the City and said it is straight forward and 
allows the project to begin without going out and doing an income survey. 

Mayor Wilson agreed and suggested it be made clear in the next City Newsletter that the 
improvements are funded by CDBG and not by Measure U monies. It was suggested a sign to 
that effect be posted at the job site. 

Thomas explained that all 3 items can be included in the contract and the City can move forward 
on whichever one is ready first. He said that something has to be put into the contract in order 
to have access to grant funding. 

Consensus of the Council was for staff to return to Council with a more in-depth list of 
options and work on clarifying income levels. 

6 



CDBG STUDY SESSION 
APRIL 7, 2015 
Page 7 

City Manager Knopp thanked them for coming and helping staff work through the City' s CDBG 
issues. 

Mr. Brandeberry commented that he will review the City's 2013 survey to see ifit can be used to 
avoid having to go back out to do a new income survey. 

ADJOURNMENT 

There being no further business to discuss, the meeting adjourned at 6:0 I p.m. to the 6:30 p.m. 
April 7, 2015 regular meeting. 

Frank Wilson, Mayor 
Attest: 

Karen Dunham, City Clerk 

7 



RIO DELL CITY COUNCIL 
REGULAR MEETING 
APRIL 7,2015 
MINUTES 

The regular meeting of the Rio Dell City Council was called to order at 6:30 p.m. by Mayor 
Wilson 

ROLL CALL: Present: 

Others Present: 

Absent: 

Mayor Wilson, Councilmembers Garnes, Johnson. Marks and 
Thompson 

City Manager Knopp, Finance Director Woodcox, and City 
Clerk Dunham 

Chief of Police Hill, Community Development Director Caldwell. 
WaterlRoadways Superintendent Jensen and Wastewater 
Superintendent Chicora (excused) 

PUBLIC PRESENTATIONS 

There were no public comments at this time. 

CONSENT CALENDAR 

Councilmember Garnes asked that Item #3 be removed from the consent calendar for separate 
discussion. 

Motion was made by JohnsonlThompson to approve the consent calendar including approval of 
minutes of the March 17.2015 regular meeting: and authorizing the city manager to sign a 
Professional Services Agreement with North Valley Labor Compliance Services (NVLCS). 
Motion carried 5-0. 

Approve Conceptual Site Plan and Direct Staff to Proceed with Modifications to the Citv's 
Downto\\TI Parking Lot to meet ADA Standards and Authorize City Manager to Sign the MOU 
with Redwood Coast Energv Authority for three (3) Electric Vehicle Charging Stations 
Councilmember Garnes stated that she had a constituent ask if the decision to place the EV 
charging station at the City parking lot was definite and said the parking lot is not the most 
inviting location in the City and with the social media the way it is today someone could post a 
bad comment and it could spread through the internet and have negative effects on the City. She 
said in lieu of potential economic development opportunities in connection with the CDBG 
Program. it may be a dis-service to put in an EV charging station at that location. She said 
regardless of how inconvenient it may be to bring this up at the last minute. perhaps the Council 
should reconsider placing the EV charging station in the City Hall parking lot as originally 
proposed. She added that she understands why it makes sense to have it dO\\TItown but if it 
actually distracts people rather than attracts them to town, nothing is accomplished. 

8 



APRIL 7, 2015 MINUTES 
Page 2 

City Manager Knopp explained that one of the changes that occurred since the last council 
meeting is the need to move the EV charging space back and what that will allow in the future 
will be to install fencing and shrubbery. He said he thinks this is the right way to go and noted 
that the ADA parking will be upgraded and perhaps will include a slurry seal on the parking lot 
which will make a big difference in the appearance of the lot. He said ultimately the long term 
solution is to acquire the adjoining parcel and extend the parking area which could be a 5 to 10 
year process. He noted that because of the project timeline and the project going out to bid in 
May, if changes are made now it could kill the project. He reiterated that staffs 
recommendation is to move forward with the project as proposed. 

Councilmember Thompson said in reading the staff report and supplemental material he didn't 
see any reference to any lighting and asked for a consensus of the Council regarding 
commitment of additional funds for lighting. He proposed the idea of contacting Redwood Coast 
Energy Authority (RCEA) for assistance with solar lighting. 

Mayor Wilson called for public comment on the issue. 

Nick Angeloff, Chamber of Commerce President stated that the project is too far down the path 
to change it now but agreed that there is some risk regarding negative social media. He thanked 
Councilmember Games for bringing those points up. 

Motion was made by lohnson/Games to approve the conceptual site plan and direct staff to 
proceed with modifications to the City's downtown parking lot to meet ADA standards and 
authorize the City Manager to sign the MOU with Redwood Coast Energy Authority (RCEA) 
for three (3) electric vehicle charging stations. Motion carried 5-0. 

SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS 

Presentations from Rio Dell-Scotia Chamber of Commerce 
a. Proposed Signage - Nick Angeloff 
b. Draft Rio Dell Community Survey - Tracy O'Connell 

Nick Angeloff and Amy Embree addressed the Council about signage and said they took the 
recommendation from the Council at the last meeting and focused on Visitor Center signage and 
presented an example of one of the signs directing people to the visitor center. Nick said the 
idea \yith tourist season approaching is to place one sign coming into Rio Dell from the north, the 
south, at the Davis St. off ramp, and the Davis St. Park. He said the Council had asked that the 
signs be compatible with existing Rio Dell signage and that they coordinate with the City on the 
location and placement of the signs. 

He commented that they will be working on some sign modifications and will be working with 
staff on placement of the sign at the north end of town with regard to how it is to be anchored on 

9 



APRIL 7,2015 MINUTES 
Page 3 

the posts. He said they are asking for conceptual approval so they can move forward and get the 
posts in the ground. 

Councilmember Johnson asked if the signs will be on wood or metal ; the response was that they 
will be on wood similar to the sign in front of the library. 

Motion was made by OarneslMarks to conceptually approve the design of Visitor Center signs as 
proposed and allow placement of four (4) signs in the areas as designated. Motion carried 5-0. 

Tracy O' Connell then addressed the Council regarding the idea of a community survey, how she 
sees it being executed, and possible benefits. She commented that there will be no cost for 
putting out the survey and said she basically would like to do a "needs assessment" of the Rio 
Dell community. She said the thought came to her while working with the Chamber and said a 
lot of time and effort is put into projects to promote the community but the question is whether it 
is what the community wants. She added that the business community typically doesn't come to 
meetings and she came up with the idea of a business survey to poll those members and the city 
as a whole. 

She further stated that the City Manager and Councilmember Marks were in attendance at the 
last Chamber meeting when she asked for permission to do a community and business survey 
which she then put together and sent out to various stakeholders for input of what questions they 
would like to see in the survey. She referred to the draft form presented to Council and invited 
staff and council's input. 

She pointed out that the survey could be useful to show research that a certain number of citizens 
are interested in a particular grant or existing need so it would serve as a way of prioritizing the 
needs of the community and at the same time allows citizens to be heard. She said another 
question might be related to Measure U and suggestions for how that sales tax should be used. 
She indicated the survey will be done online to alleviate costs and said the data will be compiled 
as people respond. The goal was to get 300 responses. 

She said in talking with the City Manager she learned that the City may be sending out a CDBO 
income survey and expressed concern about sending too many surveys and possibly asking the 
same questions and said she is committed to holding off to avoid any confusion if that is the 
desire of the Council. 

Councilmember Johnson asked ifshe intended to canvass 100% of the City. She responded that 
the survey would be done online so only 75 copies will be needed and in order to encourage a 
robust response she would be using a variety of means including the library to offer the use of a 
computer for those that don't have one and through the Fire Department, Chamber of Commerce, 
the Community Resource Center and churches to help encourage people to complete the survey. 

10 



APRIL 7,2015 MINUTES 
Page 4 

Councilmember Thompson encouraged her to continue working with the community and said he 
thinks anything the City may be doing as far as a survey would be down the road a ways. 

City Manager Knopp stated that it is unknown at this time whether a CDBG income survey will 
be necessary and said that staff did take a look at the draft survey which seems to be well thought 
out. He said he did recommend that the question regarding household income be taken out to 
avoid duplication with the CDBG income survey, and also to add a question regarding how they 
heard about the survey. 

Ms. O'Connell said she is eager to comply but was reluctant to remove the income question as 
she felt it is important to get demographic profiles. 

City Manager Knopp commented that he was unaware that the survey was strictly voluntary so 
it's not really an issue. 

Councilmember Games said she thinks it is an excellent idea and it is the Council's job to listen 
to constituents and give them a voice. She said she is providing a vehicle to achieve that. 

Mayor Wilson asked for public comment. 

Athena Egan commented that there are a lot of seniors that don't have computers so there needs 
to be a means for them to participate perhaps through the Senior Resource Center or a doctor's 
office. 

Motion was made by Marks/Johnson to approve the idea of a community/business survey as 
proposed. Motion carried 5-0. 

SPECIAL CALL ITEMS/COMMUNITY AFFAIRS 

Approve Bid Award to ABC Liovin Drilling Inc. in the Amount of$1 9.800 for the Metropolitan 
Well Site Monitoring Wells and lauthorize the City Manager to Sign the Notice of Award and 
Contract Agreement 
City Manager Knopp provided a staff report and said work on the well site is proceeding and at 
the last meeting the Council authorized staff to proceed with the Request for Proposal (RFP) for 
the Metropolitan Well Site Project for rehabilitation of the wells and three monitoring wells. He 
said at the recommendation of the City Engineer, the project was broken into two RFP' to try and 
attract better and more responsive bids. 

He said the bid opening for the monitoring wells was on April 2nd and the only bid received was 
from ABC Liovin Drilling Inc. of Signal Hills, CA in the amount of $19,800; $ 1 ,800 over the 
engineer's estimate. 

11 



APRIL 7, 2015 MINUTES 
Page 5 

Councilmember Johnson asked if staff or the consultants talked to any of the local well drillers 10 
see why they didn'l bid. 

Cily Manager Knopp said he was aware that staff did talk to one of the well drillers who 
indicated they were not satisfied with the proposal for one reason or another. He also pointed out 
that well drillers are pretty booked up drilling wells for other municipalities as well as private 
individuals. 

Counci l member Johnson expressed his appreciation to Dennis Wendt for his cooperation with 
the City to place one of the monitoring wells on his parcel and asked if the city attorney is 
recommending the City enter into an easement agreement. 

City Manager Knopp said an easement agreement will be prepared and he will get together with 
Mr. Wendt next week to execute the documents. 

Councilmember Games referred to bid proposal and questioned the project completion date of 
April 27lh. 

City Engineer Willor explained the terms of the contract allow them 21 days for completion of 
the project however; they are estimating it will only take 7 days from the time the notice to 
proceed is received which is April 201h. He indicated that they are not held to the 7 days but 
rather to the terms of the contract which is 21 days. 

Motion was made by JohnsonlThompson to award the Metropolilan Well Site Monitoring Wells 
Project to ABC Liovin Drilling, Inc. of Signal Hill, California in the amount of$19,800 and 
aUlhorize the City Manager to sign the Notice of Award and Contract Agreement once the 
contractor has provided the required bonds and insurance, and establ ish a construction budget 0 f 
$19,800. Motion carried 5-0. 

Authorize the/Citv Manager to Select a Well Developing Contractor for the Metropolitan Well 
Site Rehabilitation Project 
City Manager Knopp provided a staff report and said this is the other half of the project and is 
for the rehabilitation of the wells. He stated that the bid opening was held on April 2nd but 
unfortunately no bids were received for the project. He said the project was advertised per the 
Rio Dell Municipal Code and Public Contracting Code and followed all of the legal requirements 
and since no bids were received the City has the authority to select a contractor to complete the 
work. He said the recommendation is to authorize the City Manager to select a well developing 
contractor 10 rehabilitate the wells at the Metropolitan Well Site. 

Councilmember Johnson asked if staff had talked with ABC Liovin Drilling regarding the 
additional bid. 

12 



APRIL 7, 2015 MINUTES 
Page 6 

City Engineer Willor responded that he did contact them and they indicated they were not aware 
of the second bid but they do have well development rigs and perform that kind of work. He 
suggested the Council authorize the City Manager to reach out to them for a bid. 

City Manager Knopp commented that mobilization of both projects at the same time would save 
costs. 

Council member Johnson asked if the contract price will be based on time and materials or based 
on bid. 

City Manager Knopp said it will likely be based on the bid amount. 

Motion was made by Thompson/Johnson to authorize the City Manager to select a well 
development contractor to rehabilitate the wells at the Metropolitan Well Site. Motion carried 
5-0. 

ORDINANCES/SPECIAL RESOLUTIONSIPUBLIC HEARINGS 

Introduction and First Reading (by title only) of Ordinance No. 332-2015 Amending Section 
13.10.241 of the Rio Dell Municipal Code (ROMe) Related to Property Lien Assessments for 
Delinquent Sewer Accounts 
Finance Director Woodcox provided a staff report and said at the February 3, 2015 meeting the 
Council adopted Ordinance No. 332-2015 permitting lien assessments for delinquent sewer 
accounts. She said the ordinance was drafted with the provision to allow the City to initiate 
proceedings to have delinquent charges, roll change costs, and the next 12 months of sewer 
service applied as a lien against the property based on information she believed to be reliable. 
She said as a precaution she contacted legal counsel prior to issuing liens and the conclusion was 
that liens can only be assessed to the extent of delinquent charges and penalties, and cannot be 
assessed for twelve months advance charges. As such, an ordinance amendment is necessary to 
remove the language "and the next 12 months service" as originally adopted and adds language 
to say that property liens for sewer accounts are to be placed only to the extent of delinquent 
charges, penalties, and roll change costs. 

Mayor Wilson opened the public hearing receive public comment on the proposed ordinance. 

Athena Egan asked for clarification on whether it relates to all delinquent water and sewer bills. 

Finance Director Woodcox explained that it only applies to delinquent sewer accounts that don't 
subscribe to water service as the City had no leverage to collect on those accounts. 

There being no further public comment. the public hearing closed. 

13 



APRIL 7,2015 MINUTES 
Page 7 

Motion was made by Johnson/Games to introduce Ordinance No. 335-2015 Amending Section 
13.10.241 of the Rio Dell Municipal Code Related to Property Lien Assessments for Delinquent 
Sewer Accounts and continue the second reading and adoption to the April 21,2015 meeting. 
Motion carried 5-0. 

Approve Resolution No. 1260-2015 Transferring $850.00 from the General Fund Contingencies 
Line Item to the City's Anniversarv Fund for Celebration of the City's 50lh Anniversary during 
the Annual Wildwood Days Celebration 
City Manager Knopp provided a staff report and said the City formed an Ad Hoc committee 
composed of Mayor Wilson and Council member Games to develop some goals for the City's 
50lh anniversary celebration possibly including an open house during Wildwood Days, food and 
beverages, plaques for the City's founding fathers and other materials related to the 50lh 

anniversary. He said staff received a written proposal from Councilmember Games on behalf of 
the committee requesting $850.00 to help fund the events. He said he referred the matter to the 
City Attorney for a legal opinion regarding the use of City funds and he advised that as long as 
the events or activities benefit the community and the City does not charge for the food or 
activities then it is an allowable expense. 

Mayor Wilson reported that the committee had a meeting and assigned tasks for the celebratory 
events to take place at City Hall on the same day of the Wildwood Days Show & Shine that takes 
place in front of City Hall which will help to attract more people. He said the plan is to have 
cake and beverages wi th plaques of the City's founding fathers on display as well as the Scotia 
Band. He said they talked about other ideas but needed a dollar amount to start. He said the 
committee will continue to solicit donations from other sources. 

Motion was made by Games/Johnson to approve Resolution No. 1260-2015 AlIIlwrizing a 
Transferji-om the General Fund Contingency Line Item to the City Anniversmy Fund in the 
Amount of 58 50. 00 for the Anniversary Celebration During the Annual Wildwood Days £WIII. 

Motion carried 5-0. 

REPORTSjST AFF COMMUNICA nONS 

City Manager Knopp provided a written City Manager Update of recent activities and events and 
advised the Council of a new Executive Order issued by Governor Brown proclaiming a 
statewide drought emergency and delivering a series of statewide orders including the State 
Water Resources Control Board to impose a 25% mandatory reduction in Urban water use. He 
noted that it does not directly impact Rio Dell. as urban suppliers are classified as those systems 
with 3,000 or more connections however; it is only a matter of time that it will likely extend to 
the smaller municipalities throughout the state. 

14 



APRIL 7, 2015 MINUTES 
PageS 

He presented graphs representing a 30-year water history of the main stem of the Eel River, the 
Eel River at Scotia stream gage, and water consumption for Rio Dell on a monthly basis from 
January 2013 to present. He noted that using 2013 as a baseline, the City is on target and will 
continue to monitor consumption. 

He said the statewide drought will open up avenues for grant opportunities for replacement of 
public medians with artificial turf. He noted that if the Council is interested, staff can shut down 
the watering of all lawns to help achieve a 25% reduction. 

Mayor Wilson pointed out that water consumption was reduced Citywide by 50% last summer 
and has confidence in the citizens that they will continue to conserve. 

City Manager Knopp said they won't be a problem reducing consumption by 25% by simply 
curtailing all outdoor watering. He said staff will continue to monitor the situation so in the 
event the state imposes additional restrictions, we will be prepared to comply. 

Discussion ensued regarding the effects of the drought with regard to water and sewer revenues 
and the possibility of going back to a flat rate sewer charge. 

Finance Director Woodcox reported on recent activities in the finance department and said she 
will be providing department heads with draft budgets for review and comment and said she will 
be requesting a budget study sometime after the next regular meeting. 

COUNCIL REPORTS/COMMUNICA TIONS 

Councilmember Thompson reported on HWMA and said they continue to be very busy and he 
will have some announcements to make once soon as the information becomes public; and 
reported that he attended the last HCAOG in Councilmember Johnson's absence at such time he 
volunteered him to serve on a committee related to a new Joint Powers Agreement (JPA) that 
will be coming forward. 

Councilmember Johnson stated the next meeting is in Crescent City in May and is anticipated to 
be a 6 hour meeting 

ADJOURNMENT 

There being no further business to discuss, the meeting adjourned at 8: I 0 p.m. to the 
April 21, 2015 regular meeting. 

Frank Wilson. Mayor 

Attest: 

Karen Dunham. City Clerk 

1S 



Rio Dell City Hall 
675 Wildwood Avenue 
Rio Dell, CA 95562 
(707) 764-3532 
riodellcit),.com 

April 21, 2015 

TO: Rio Dell City Council 

FROM: Kyle Knopp, City Manag~ 

CITY Of 

J~ DELL 
c..:AL.Oft~ 

SUBJECT: Discussion and Possible ~n Related to a Letter of Support for SB 16 
(Transportation) 

IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT THE CITY COUNCIL: 

Approve the letter of support for SB 16, authorizing the Mayor to sign and directing staff to send 
the attached letter. 

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 

This item comes at the request of staff via the League of California Cities. 

A plan to restore California's crumbling roads and bridges infrastructure to make them durable 
and safe for the 21 st century was unveiled on April 15th by Sen. Jim Beall, chairman of the 
Senate transportation committee. 

"Senate Bill 16 solves a crisis that threatens our deteriorating streets and highways," Beall said. 
"California faces a $59 billion backlog in deferred maintenance that will grow by billions every 
year. Our cities and counties have a backlog of $40 billion in repairs. We must take action now. 

"SB 16 will provide more resources for the state to repair the infrastructure under its jurisdiction 
and it also distributes millions to the local level. Counties and cities will get much-needed 
revenues to fix their roads. ,. 

The state's failure to keep pace with repairs is due to several factors, including the diversion of 
road maintenance revenues for other uses and the failure of the gas tax revenue, a key source of 
funding for repairs, to keep pace with the mounting maintenance costs. The gas tax revenue has 
dwindled over the years due to the proliferation of fuel-efficient vehicles and all-electric cars, 
which do not contribute to the gas tax. The tax also has not been adjusted for inflation since 
1994. 

Under SB 16 everyone who uses the roads will share in paying for the cost of these essential 
repairs. The bill is projected to raise $3 billion or more annually over its five-year life, which 
allows time for the state to work out a long-term funding solution. 

16 



The bill proposes to take the truck weight fee, which raises about $1 billion a year, from the 
general fund and return it to its intended purpose: mitigating the damage to roads caused by 
heavy commercial trucks. The per gaBon excise fuel tax would be increased by 10 cents to make 
up for the decline in value lost to inflation. The vehicle license fee would be increased by 0.07 
percent annually over five years. The vehicle registration fee would be increased by $35. Zero
emission vehicles would be subject to an annual $100 fee. 

The bill also guarantees that the revenue will be used exclusively for road, street, bridge repairs, 
and improving freight mobility at ports. 
Besides funding repairs for state roads, the bill also sets aside money for counties and cities to 
each get a share for local street and road repairs. - See more at: 
http://sdI5.senate.ca.gov/newsl20 15-04-15-beall-s-sb-16-paves-way-califomia-s
future#sthash.p9zGjOfi.dpuf 

Attached is an estimated revenue breakdown for the redwood coast region. 
/II 

17 



Rio Dell City Hall 
675 Wildwooc/ AI'ellue 
Rio Dell, CA 95562 
(707) 764-3532 
riodellcity.colll 

April 21 , 2015 

Honorable Jim Beall 
Member, California State Senate 
State Capitol, Room 2209 
Sacramento, CA 95814 
Via FAX: (916) 651-4915 

RE: SB 16 (Beall). Transportation Funding. (as amellded April] j , 20] j) 

Notice of Support 

Dear Senator Beall: 

CITY Of 

J"I\V!.\ 
(RIB ) [JELL 

The City of Rio Dell supports SB 16, which would provide much needed funding to the state and 
local roadway system over a period of five years to address the overwhelming backlog of 
preservation and maintenance. 

Our local streets and roads we all rely on are literally crumbling beneath our feet. The conditions 
are getting so bad that if California doesn' t commit to prioritizing funding to fix them, we could 
be facing a catastrophe. Without this additional funding, 25% of local streets and roads will be 
in failed condition in a very short 10 years. 

If regular maintenance is neglected, the costs of repairs increase exponentially. Senate Bill 16 
would expressly address the backlog of maintenance needs, and is estimated to generate between 
$2.8 and $3.6 billion annually. In addition, five percent of the revenues would be set aside to 
incentivize counties currently without a local transportation funding measure to approve such a 
measure. 

Our streets are in such poor condition the city is considering permanently converting many of 
them in town to gravel. These streets are not on the periphery, or seldom traveled routes, they are 
in our urban core and they link the city to its suburbs. With declining gas tax revenues, this year 
our streets department had a budget allocation of just $5,000.00 to perform aU surface 
maintenance work. The next budget year looks even worse. 

18 



We cannot stress enough the importance of acting on the transportation funding shortfall. Thank 
you for your leadership on this critical issue. For these reasons, the City of Rio Dell supports SB 
16 (Beall). 

Sincerely, 

Frank Wilson 
Mayor 
City of Rio Dell 

cc: Assembly Member Wood and Senator McGuire 
Sara Rounds, League of California Cities, sroundsrmcacities.org 
Meg Desmond, League of California Cities, mdesmond@cacities.org 

19 



Proposed New Local 5treets&Roads Fundingpreimllalyestim_ 
Estimated Allocations of $1.33 billion and $1.71 billion 

Estimated 21 Hardt 29'S Allocation If 
$1.33 million 

Allocation If 
51.71 million 

Sara Rounds 

21 Man:h 2015 
Ca{iforniaCit~Fi"a"ce.coW\ 

20 



Rio Dell City Hall 
675 Wildwood Avellue 
Rio Dell, CA 95562 
(707) 764-3532 
riodellcity.colII 

April 21, 2015 

TO: Rio Dell City Council 

FROM: Kyle Knopp, City Manage 

SUBJECT: Discussion and Possi ction Authorizing the City Manager to Sign 
Memorandum of Understanding Extending the City of Rio Dell's Green Waste Curbside 
Collection Program 

IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT THE CITY COUNCIL: 

Authorize the City Manager to sign the MOU. 

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 

The City of Rio Dell and Eel River Disposal (ERD) entered into an MOU on June 17, 2014 to 
provide voluntary green waste curbside collection throughout the city. The program costs $3 .00 
per month per subscriber and utilizes sixty-eight (68) gallon totes that are picked up biweekly. 
Residents can deposit organic yard wastes such as lawn clippings, leaves, soil and similar 
materials. The City and ERD entered into a I-year agreement to gauge and generate interest in 
the program, understand the costs of the program better, and judge the value of ERD's approach 
to collecting green waste. Currently, the arrangement satisfies ERD and City staff. 

Staff met with representatives of Eel River Disposal who indicated interest in continuing the 
program. Staff has drafted a new MOU extending the current arrangement to the termination of 
our existing Solid Waste Franchise agreement with ERD in December of 2016. This allows the 
green waste program to be incorporated into any new long-term contract with ERD or any new 
RFP for solid waste franchise services. 

Attachments: 

III 

1.) Current MOU 
2.) Track Changes MOU 
3.) Revised Proposed MOU 

21 



.' 

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN 

THE CITY OF RIO DELL AND EEL RIVER DISPOSAL 

COMPANY,INC. TO ESTABLISH THE CITY'S GREEN 

WASTE CURBSIDE COLLECTION PROGRAM 

This Memorandum of Understanding Is entered into as of June 17,2014 between Eel River Disposal 
Company,lnc.I"ERD") and the City of Rio Delll"Crty"), 

RECITALS 

A. WHEREAS, ERD holds the exclusive franchise from the City for the collection of solid waste 
and the exclusive right to collect recyclable materials placed at curbside (the "Franchise 
Agreement') and 

B. WHEREAS, the Franchise Agreement defines recyclable materials to include yard 
trimminp ("Green Waste") and 

C. WHEREAS, ERD and the City are interested in (1) gauging and generating interest in, (2) 
understanding the extent of the expected costs and (3) judging the value of the particular 
approaches of collecting Green Waste, and 

NOW, THEREFORE, the City and ERO agree to this Memorandum of Understanding to 
create a trial program for the collection of Green Waste within the City: 

1. From as soon after such date as the City executes this Agreement that ERO can 
proceed to June 30, 2015, there will be a program for the collection and reuse of 
Green Waste. 

2. Tbe program willlnvoJve the use of supplied specially designated sixty eight gallon 
Green Waste toters which wRI be picked up every other week during the Program. 
ERD will estabrlSh rules governing the location and placement of toters for pick up and 
the non-contamination of material. The Green Waste will be transported to the City 

of Fortuna's corporation 'f.!'rd. If this use of the material becomes unavailable or not 
fully available, the Program shall be suspended until ERD and the City can agree on a 
new delivery point and any other needed changes to the terms of the Program. 

3. The participants in the Program must specially siCn up for the participation In the 
Program. Participants will pay $ 3.00 per month for the service during the Procram. 
The cost of the service will be added to the participant's current garbage or recycling 
service bill and is available to private residents, multifamily housing and businesses. 

22 



4. The City, with the advice and review of ERO will provide Procram publicity in a similar 

manner as the Single Stream Recycling Collection Procram under the Franchise 

Agreement and ERO will also provide Green Waste publicity tD its current custDmers 

along with its billing for service. 

S. Three months befDre the Dne-year anniversary of the Program, the City and ERO will 
meet tD discuss the level Df customer interest, what opportunIties exist to enhance 

customer interest, what the per customer CDSt to provide this service was, the future 

prospects for Green Waste disposal and the level of contaminated materials in the 

Green Waste stream, all in connectiDn with mutually drafting an appropriate 

Franchise Agreement amendment and serving an appropriate rate fDr Green Waste 

cDllectiDn as part of the Franchise Agreement. The Franchise Agreement amendment 

may include a vehicle to changing rates as costs escalate or if the IDcatiDn or cost Df 

disposal should change. 

6. If the Program is net sufficiently used to reasonably sustain Dperations, ERD and the 

City may agree to terminate the Program early upon giving subscribers thirty days' 

nDtice. 

7. ERO shall save, keep, hold harmless, defend (with independent attorneys selected by 

the City) and indemnify the City, its officers, agents, employees, and volunteers frDm 

and against any and all claims, damaces, costs, fees and liabilities, Df every type and 

nature, which may arise out Df ERO's DperatiDn of the Program under this 

Memorandum of Understanding, expressly including, without limitation, any and all 

liabilities which may arise out of the collection, transportatiDn and disposal of the 

Green Waste. 

S. For pUrpDSes of this Memorandum of Understandinl, ERO shall constitute an 

independent contract, not an acent or employee of the City, and ERO shall 

Independent control all aspects of its perfonnance of the work and operation of the 

Program. 

City of Rio Dell, a Municipal Corporation 

Eel River Disposal Company, Inc. 

Harry A. Hardin, President 

23 



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN 

THE CITY OF RIO DELL AND EEL RIVER DISPOSAL 

COMPANY, INC. TO EHJ"8bISH CONTINUE THE CITY'S GREEN 

WASTE CURBSIDE COllECTION PROGRAM 

This Memorandum of Understanding Is entered into as of June 17, ag14July 1. 2015 between Eel River 

Disposal Company, Inc. ("ERD") and the City- of Rio Dell ("City"). 

RECITALS 

A. WHEREAS, ERD holds the exclusive franchise from the City for the collection of soUd waste 

and the exclusive right to collect recyclable materials placed at curbside (the "Franchise 

Agreement") and 

B. WHEREAS, the Franchise Agreement defines recyclable materials to include yard 

trimmings ("Green Waste") and 

C. WHEREAS, ERD and the City are Interested in (1) gauging and generating interest in, (2) 

wAderst3RdiRg tl=l9 eMteAt sf tl=le eMpeeted E9Sl!i 3Rd (a) jwdgiRg tl:le \"31"e 9f tl:-1e paFtiewlar 
appFeacRes af ceUetting GreeR Waste continued assessment of the program. (2) including 

a green waste program into a future franchise agreement and (3) continuing the current 

program through the term of the current contract between City and ERD for Solid Waste 

Services, and 

NOW, THEREFORE, the City and ERD agree to this Memorandum of Understanding to 

create continue a trial program for the collection of Green Waste within the City: 

1. From July 1. 201Sas sellR after SliER date as the 'it>,· eMecutes this P,greemeRt that ERD 

can prllceed continue to Jllne ao, 2g1§December 31. 2016, there wililleproviding a 

program for the collection and reuse of Green Waste. 

2. The program will Involve the use of supplied specially designated sixty eight gallon 

Green Waste toters which will be picked up every other week during the Program. 

fRO will establish rules governing the location and placement of toters for pick up and 

the non-contamlnation of material. The Green Waste will be transported to the City 

of Fortuna's corporation yard. If this use of the material becomes unavailable or not 

fully available, the Program shall be suspended until ERD and the City can agree on a 

new delivery point and any other needed changes to the terms of the Program. 

24 



3. The participants in the Program must specially sign up for the participation in the 

Program. Participants will pay $ 3.00 per month for the service during the Program. 

The cost of the service will be added to the participant's current garbage or recycling 

service bill and Is available to private residents, multifamily housing and businesses. 

4. The City, with the advice and review of ERD will provide Program publicity In a similar 

manner as the Single Stream Recycling Collection Program under the Franchise 

Agreement and ERD will also provide Green Waste publicity to its current customers 

along with its billing for service. 

s. TRFel! ~9FltJ:lS beJers tRS eRe year 3ARit/eFS3F\' af tl=le Pr9gra~1 the 'ftv and iRQ will 

~eet ,& dis'WS5 tl=le level af ("stemer interest, what eppaRwAities exist '9 eARaAGe 
systamer interest rlJtiat the per ;"staBier Gest t9 pr9vilile ttlis serviEe · ... ;35, tAS future 

pr9speGts fer GreeR 'Afaste disp9sal aAd the 18\'81 9f G9AtaFRiAated materials iF! ttle 

GreeR 'A'aste stream, all iA G9RReGtieR with ","twall.,. ElraftJRg iF! apPF9priate 
Franchise .GogreemeAt 3R\eRdmeRt aAd seFVjRg aF! apprepriate rate fer CSreeR '-'laste 

6alle~iaR as paR at the FraRGhise llgreeFReRt, It is the Citv's intent to Incorporate a 

green waste curbside collection program in any new, modified, or extended contract 

for solid waste services past the current contract expiration date of December 31, 

2016. A~ Franchise Agreement involving Green Waste Curbside Collection 

aFReRdFReRt may include a vehicle to changing rates as costs escalate or if the location 

or cost of disposal should change. 

6. If the Program is not sufficiently used during the term of this MOU to reasonably 

sustain operations, ERD and the City may agree to terminate the Program early upon 

giving subscribers thirty days' notice. 

7. ERD shall save, keep, hold harmless, defend (with Independent attorneys selected by 

the City) and indemnify the City, its officers, agents, employees, and volunteers from 

and against any and all claims, damages, costs, fees and liabilities, of every type and 

nature, which may arise out of ERD's operation of the Program under this 

Memorandum of Understanding, expressly including, without limitation, any and all 

liabilities which may arise out of the collection, transportation and disposal of the 

Green Waste. 

8. For purposes of this Memorandum of Understanding, ERO shall constitute an 

Independent contractQr, not an agent or employee of the City, and ERD shall 

independent!¥ control all aspects of Its performance of the work and operation of the 

Qilrogram. 

City of Rio Dell, a Municipal Corporation 

By: ___________ _ 

Kyle C. Knopp, City Manager 

25 



Eel River Disposal Company, Inc. 

By: ___________ _ 

Harry A. Hardin, President 

26 



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN 

THE CITY OF RIO DELL AND EEL RIVER DISPOSAL 

COMPANY, INC. TO CONTINUE THE CITY'S GREEN 

WASTE CURBSIDE COLLECTION PROGRAM 

This Memorandum of Understanding is entered Into as of July 1, 2015 between Eel River Disposal 

Company, Inc. (nERD") and the City of Rio Dell (nCIty"). 

RECITALS 

A. WHEREAS, ERD holds the exclusive franchise from the City for the collection of solid waste 

and the exclusive right to collect recyclable materials placed at curbside (the "Franchise 

Agreement") and 

B. WHEREAS, the Franchise Agreement defines recyclable materials to Include yard 

trimmings ("Green Waste") and 

C. WHEREAS, ERD and the City are Interested in (1) continued assessment of the program, (2) 

Including a green waste program Into a future franchise agreement and (3) continuing the 

current program through the term of the current contract between City and ERD for Solid 

Waste Services, and 

NOW, THEREFORE, the City and ERD agree to this Memorandum of Understanding to 

continue a trial program for the collection of Green Waste within the City: 

1. From July 1, 2015 ERD can continue to December 31, 2016, providing a program for 

the collection and reuse of Green Waste. 

2. The program will Involve the use of supplied specially designated sixty eight gallon 

Green Waste toters which will be picked up every other week during the Program. 

ERD will establish rules governing the location and placement of toters for pick up and 

the non-contamination of material. The Green Waste will be transported to the City 

of Fortuna's corporation yard. If this use of the material becomes unavailable or not 

fully available, the Program shall be suspended until ERD and the City can agree on a 

new delivery point and any other needed changes to the terms of the Program. 

3. The participants In the Program must specially sign up for the participation In the 

Program. Participants will pay $ 3.00 per month for the service dUring the Program. 

The cost of the service will be added to the participant's current garbage or recycling 

service bill and Is available to private residents, multifamily housing and businesses. 

27 



4. The City, with the advice and review of ERD will provide Program publicity In a similar 

manner as the Single Stream Recycling Collection Program under the Franchise 

Agreement and ERD will also provide Green Waste publicity to its current customers 

along with Its billing for service. 

S. It is the City's intent to incorporate a green waste curbside collection program in any 

new, modified, or extended contract for solid waste services past the current contract 

expiration date of December 31, 2016. A Franchise Agreement involving Green Waste 

Curbside Collection may Include a vehicle to changing rates as costs escalate or if the 

location or cost of disposal should change. 

6. If the Program is not sufficiently used during the term of this MOU to reasonably 

sustain operations, ERD and the City may agree to terminate the Program early upon 

giving subscribers thirty days' notice. 

7. ERD shall save, keep, hold harmless, defend (with independent attorneys selected by 

the City) and indemnify the City, its offICers, agents, employees, and volunteers from 

and against any and all claims, damages, costs, fees and liabilities, of every type and 

nature, which may arise out of ERD's operation of the Program under this 

Memorandum of Understanding, expressly Including, without limitation, any and all 

liabilities which may arise out of the collection, transportation and disposal of the 

Green Waste. 

S. For purposes of this Memorandum of Understanding, ERD shall constitute an 

independent contractor, not an agent or employee of the City, and ERD shall 

independently control all aspects of Its performance of the work and operation of the 

program. 

City of Rio Dell, a Municipal Corporation 

8y: __________ _ 

Kyle C. Knopp, City Manager 

Eel River Disposal Company, Inc. 

8y: ___________ _ 

Harry A. Hardin, President 

28 



675 Wildwood Avenue 

Rio Dell, CA 95562 

(707) 764-3532 

em-Of 

~ ELL --
For Meeting of: April 21, 2015 

To: 

From: 

Through: 

Date: 

Subject: 

City Council 

Kevin Caldwell, Community Development Directore 

Kyle Knopp, City Man~ 

April 13, 2015 

Appointment of a Public Member to the Nuisance Hearing Committee. 

Recommendation: 

That the City Council: 

1. Appoint either Tracy O'Connell or Joseph Frye as one of the two Public Members 
to the Nuisance Committee. 

Background/Discussion 

As the Council is aware the City recently solicited applications for two public members 
to serve on the City's nuisance Committee. The City only received one application from 
Julie Woodall. Mrs. Woodall was appointed at the Council meeting of February 17, 
2015. 

Staff reposted the Notice soliciting applications for the other public member on February 
18, 2015. The Notice was also included in the City's Winter Newsletter which was 
mailed out on February 20, 2015. Applications were due by 5:00 pm on Wednesday, 
March 18, 2015. The City received two applications, one from Tracy O'Connell and one 
from Joseph Frye. Both applications are in included as Attachments 1 and 2 
respectively. Staff invited both applicants' to attend the meeting. 

Nuisance Hearing Committee Public Member April 21, 2015 

29 



Again, the Nuisance Committee consists of two (2) City Council Members and one (1) 
altemate, the City Manager, and two (2) public members. The Nuisance Hearing 
Committee is responsible to hear appeals regard ing the determination of a violation and 
nuisance or the imposition of an administrative penalty, assisting staff in identifying 
priorities and recommending amendments to the Nuisance provisions of the Municipal 
Code. The Committee typically meets late aftemoon on the third Tuesday of each 
month. 

Attachments: 

1. Tracy O'Connell's application. 

2. Joseph Frye's application. 

Nuisance Hearing Committee Public Member April 21. 2015 

30 



To Whom It May Concern: 

I am writing to put forward my application to serve as a citizen member of the Rio Dell 
Nuisance Committee. At the last city council meeting, it was noted that Julie Woodall 
would serve as a citizen member, but that another person was needed to round out the 
team, along with city council members and staff. 

I have owned a home in Rio Dell since 2003, and lived in it for just over two years during 
that time. It was otherwise rented out, under property management, while I lived out of 
state, waiting for retirement so I could return. I therefore have experience as both a 
resident and absentee landlord, with some of the character-building experiences that the 
latter role can afford. I care about safety and the appearance of the community, which 
can affect not only home prices, and the rent landlords can charge, but the peace of mind 
of residents, the experience of visitors and tourists, and the degree to which people 
maintain property better, and vandalize it less, when neighboring properties are cared for, 
as the "broken windows" research in New York City has shown. 

Since moving back, I have volunteered at the Rio Dell Scotia Chamber of Commerce, 
with various activities during Wildwood Days, and have attended city council meetings 
semi-re!,'Ularly. I planned a couple events commemorating the 1964 flood, and was 
recently named to the Chamber of Commerce board, as announced at the last council 
meeting. 

My background includes decades of work in both the corporate and non-profit sector as a 
manager overseeing public relations and advertising, subjects which I have also taught at 
the university level full-time, and continue to teach on-line part-time. I lived ncar Los 
Angeles for 18 years and in rural Wisconsin for 25. as well as growing up on the East 
Coast. 

I own a rural acreage in Hydesville and in the next two years plan to put a small house on 
it and move there, as I have horses pastured there which I now need to drive every day to 
care for. At that time my plan is to either sell the Rio Dell house or once again rent it out. 
I point this out in case that future affects my eligibility, now or in the future, to serve on 
the Nuisance Committee. 

Thank you for your consideration ofthis application. 

Sincerely, 

Tracy O'Connell 

Tracy O'Connell 
103 Birch Street 
Rio Dell, CA 95562 
707.267.6052 

ATT ACHMENT 1 
31 



675 Wildwood A,'enue 
Rio Dell. CA 95562 
(707) 764-3532 

~ RECEIV~ 
..J-I7-J5'~ 

APPLICATION FOR COMMISSION/BOARD 

NA~!E ---..::,~",-,D::.::' ~'-O='?f-f!..!.h _----J-~-=r-r%'""""-e>--_ DATE 3 liz bJ-
• 

\f 

J 

HO~!E PHONE 707 -)by" V $'t. 

BUSINESS PI'IONE 7"')- (. 7.2..:. c: /07 

I A~! INTERESTED IN SERVING ON THE FOLLOWING BOARD 'COMMISSION: 

~ lie ;-,m a1l e. 

OCClJPA TION R C! j /' hr.k/n.n 
IIOW LONG HAVE YOU LIVED Ii': RIO DELL',' 

PROFESSIONAL AND/OR cm.I:\HJNITY ACTIVITIES _______ _ 

I 

ADDITIONAL PERTINEl\T lNFORMA TION REFEREl\CES ______ _ 

~ Il'ff 1/ 'I C fu>~ 
EDUCATION CoIINc (-!iAr( 
lr.1ud .. sf-o )1,' L~lltftl CITY OF RIO DELl 

ATT ACHMENT 2 32 



Please answer the following two questions: 

I) Why are you interested in serving on this board/commission? 

T wr,.,jl !tie h cp"h.;d«&: ipfJ,e bed-1ft. ~ 
~i?-Ad'l ."..{J C!U/i. U>fJ1. nnd;~/ it> he (d it} ".. /11d;t'(;'1 

-rh~ <?>fI c>.£ e" i? . Oed !b1 <~<?d.!? ~~B en Llrh kzj /ft''<r[ * f'4t.,f ..yJ,~ ~hrlk" at' <f1yz erN. 

2) What special talents/experience/education do you possess that will be useful in 
this position? 

Note: A Resume may be attached 

Return form to the City of Rio Dell at 675 Wildwood A \"e., Rio Dell, CA 95562 

2 

33 



Rio Dell City Hall 
675 Wildwood Avel/ue 
Rio Dell, CA 95562 
(707) 764-3532 
Tiodellcity.com 

April 21, 2015 

TO: Rio Dell City Council 

FROM: Kyle Knopp, City Mana~ 
SUBJECT: Discussion and Possible Action Approving the Draft Memorandum of 
Understanding Between Humboldt Waste Management Authority and the City of Rio Dell with 
Further Consideration of Related Request for Proposal and Authorization of a Related Letter 

IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT THE CITY COUNCIL: 

Staff recommends the Council take no action regarding the Recycling MOU or RFP. Staff 
further recommends that the Council authorize the Mayor to sign the attached correspondence to 
the HWMA Board. 

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 

The Humboldt Waste Management Authority (HWMA) has been in the process of creating a 
Regional Recyclable Materials Program since October of 2014. The program would centralize 
recyclable flow control with HWMA over the next ten years with the city receiving quarterly 
payments based upon tonnage received from the City. The Authority is proposing to keep 15% of 
this base revenue for costs incurred by the agency. 

The attached MOU is being distributed to all HWMA member agencies in order to assess 
program participation levels. Once member agencies sign (or do not sign) HWMA .... ill know the 
approximate tonnage levels it expects to process. This information will be used to issue a 
Request for Proposal to recycling processors. According to the current schedule, actual 
implementation of this new regional process could begin in November 20 IS at the earliest. The 
City Council is encouraged to make a decision on entering the MOU by May 29th

• 

The City of Rio Dell is currently in a contract with Eel River Disposal for flow control of 
recyclable materials. The current contract expires at the end of December 2016. Contractually, 
the city cannot redirect its recyclable materials until this contract expires. The MOU, as 
currently drafted, allows for the City to fulfill its current agreement with ERO, but signing the 
MOU would redirect flow control ofrecyclables after January 1,2017 to HWMA. 

The MOU also contains a provision that allows "HWMA member agencies not initially 
participating in this MOU shall be permitted to enter into this MOU, and thereby participate in 

34 



the Recyclable Materials Processing Agreement. " As a member of HWMA, Rio Dell may enter 
into the recycling MOV at any time, as the MOV is currently drafted. 

Therefore, it is staff's recommendation to take no action on the recycling MOV at this time. This 
will allow staff additional time to gain knowledge of practical benefits of the regionalized 
recycling process, if any, as it is implemented in the early part of 2016. This will allow the 
Council to have more information to base a decision on either entering the MOV or including 
flow control of recycling in a future franchise agreement RFP or extension of the current 
contract. The non-participation of Rio Dell in the MOV will have a negligible impact on the 
overall regionalization process since our recyclable tonnage is comparatively small in relation to 
the other members of HWMA. 

Staff recommends issuing the attached letter to the HWMA Board, declining initial membership 
in the MOV but also expressing our desire to keep this option on the table and maintain the 
language in the MOV that allows Rio Dell to participate in the future, if the Council chooses to 
do so. 

Staff further recommends that the council provide input on the MOV or RFP, if any, for the 
consideration of the HWMA Board. This input would then be added to the letter. 

//I 

3S 



Rio Dell Cit)' Hall 
675 Wildwood Avellue 
Rio Dell, CA 95562 
(707) 764-3532 
riodellcit),.colII 

April 21, 2015 

Jack Thompson, Chair 
Humboldt Waste Management Authority 
1059 West Hawthorne Street 
Eureka CA, 95501 

RE: Regional Recyclable Materials Processing Agreement 

Dear Chainnan Thompson, 

The City of Rio Dell appreciates the work undertaken by the Humboldt Waste 
Management Authority to develop both the regional recycling MOU and RFP. This work 
was done with the involvement of all member agency staff with Rio Dell included. We 
appreciate this transparency. 

At this time, the City Council of Rio Dell declines participation in the proposed 
Memorandum of Understanding and the regional recycling effort it will create. However, 
we wish to express our support for maintaining Section 9 of the MOU which states: 

9. Additional Participation. HWMA member agencies not initially participating in 
this MOU shall be permitted to enter into this MOO. and thereby participate in the 
Recyclable Materials Processing Agreement. 

The City Council supports retaining the option to enter into the agreement at a future 
date, should it so choose. 

Sincerely, 

Frank Wilson 
Mayor 
City of Rio Dell 

36 



MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN THE 
HUMBOLDT WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY AND ITS MEMBER AGENCIES 

TO PARTICIPATE IN A 
REGIONAL RECYCLABLE MATERIALS PROCESSING AGREEMENT 

This Memorandum of Understanding is entered into by and between the Humboldt Waste 
Management Authority ("HWMA" or "Authority"), a joint powers authority, and the 
undersigned participating member agencies (each, a "Participating Agency") and is effective this 
day of ("Effective Date"). 

Recitals 

A. HWMA is ajoint powers authority formed by the cities of Arcata, Blue Lake, Eureka, 
Ferndale, Rio Dell, and the County of Humboldt for purposes of efficient solid waste 
management. 

B. Based on the interests of its member agencies, HWMA is preparing to solicit a request for 
proposals for cost-effective regional recyclables materials processing services, evaluate 
said proposals and enter into an agreement for services. 

C. In order to solicit and secure a competitive proposal, member agencies are asked to 
commit their source-separated and mixed recyclable tonnage to HWMA. Some member 
agencies have entered into hauling franchise agreements in which recyclable materials 
are contractually committed to the franchisee for the term of the franchise agreement, but 
may be interested in committing recyclable materials to HWMA when such contractual 
commitments have ended and the materials are available. 

D. HWMA anticipates that said agreement with the Authority'S designated contractor for 
recyclable services will contain the following key components: 

1. Acceptance of source-separated or mixed recyclable materials from franchise 
haulers at either the HWMA facility (1059 W. Hawthorne Street, Eureka, CA), or 
other facilities approved by the HWMA and Contractor for purposes of 
implementing the Regional Recyclable Materials Processing Contract. 

2. A term often years, with a five-year extension option. 
3. Payment by the contractor for the recyclable materials at a rate to be determined 

through the negotiation process, with share of revenue distributed to member 
agencies based on contributed tonnage. 

4. Low-cost and efficient local recycling, receiving and processing services. 
5. Maximize commodities for high value end market. 
6. Flexibility to adapt to market fluctuations and trends to secure most competitive 

price rates. 
7. A quarterly market value credit to the Authority based on the tons processed and 

full market value of the indices described in the executed agreement between the 
Authority and the Authority's designated contractor for recyclable services. 

Dmft 2015 Regional RecyelingMemorandum orunde"lIlJ1ding (Mruth 2015) 

37 



8. The demonstrated ability, and expressed interest, to accept and market additional 
materials. 

9. Maintain quarterly facility total residual disposal to less than 8% of inbound 
materials from the franchise haulers. 

10. Meet or exceed all current and future state and local regulations and permitting 
conditions, and have an Operations Plan approved by local regulatory authorities 
at the time the Processing Agreement goes into effect. 

II. Creation of good quality jobs and fair treatment of employees. 
12. Full cooperation with member agency franchise operators, as well as the 

Hawthorne Street Transfer Station. 
13. Maintain a high level of service (timely, courteous, and responsive) to the 

Authority and its Member Agencies. 
14. Ensure the cost competitiveness and effectiveness of the services provided; and 
IS. Pursuant with CA Assembly Bill 32, minimize the carbon footprint; reduce 

overall greenhouse gas emissions and other adverse environmental impacts while 
maximizing the sustainability of the services. 

The undersigned HWMA member agencies would like to participate in the HWMA Regional 
Recycling RFP process, and ensure combined recycling tonnage is committed for recyclables 
materials processing. 

NOW THEREFORE, based on the terms recited above, the parties enter into this memorandum 
of understanding: 

I. Recyclable Materials Processing Agreement. HWMA shall solicit proposals and enter 
into an agreement for recyclable processing and marketing services with the Authority's 
Designated Recycling Contractor ("Contractor") with basic terms as outline above 
("Recyclable Materials Processing Agreement"). 

2. Recvclable Materials Flow Control. 

a. Each Participating Agency, for the term of the Recyclable Materials Processing 
Agreement, agrees to direct its franchise collection hauler to deliver all recyclable 
materials it collects under agreement with the Participating Agency to either the 
HWMA transfer facility located at 1059 W. Hawthorne Street, Eureka, or other 
facility approved by the HWMA for receipt by Contractor for purposes of 
implementing the Regional Recyclable Materials Processing Agreement. 

b. In the event a Participating Agency is under a current contract governing 
recyclable materials flow control, the Participating Agency agrees that at the time 
recyclable materials are no longer under prior contract it shall direct its franchise 
collection hauler to deliver all recyclable materials in accordance with Section 
2(a) for the then remaining term of the Recyclable Materials Processing 
Agreement. 

3. Reuse in Value Added Product. Participating Agencies may request that HWMA divert 
specified recyclable materials for reuse in a value-added, local product. 

Draft 20 I 5 RegionDi Recycling Memorandum of UnderslWlding (Mnrth 2015) 

38 



4. Reporting. HWMA will provide quarterly and annual summary reports to each 
Participating Agency indicating the tonnage of recyclable materials processed for that 
period from the jurisdiction of each Participating Agency, a statement of revenues 
received from the Contractor, and any other information concerning contract 
administrator as the Participating Agency should request. 

5. Contract Management. HWMA shall manage and administer the Recyclable Materials 
Processing Agreement based on direction from the HWMA Board of Directors. 

6. Meetings and Consultation. HWMA staff agrees to meet as needed with Participating 
Agency staff to coordinate and discuss the ongoing management of the Recyclable 
Materials Processing Agreement. 

7. Revenue Distribution. Revenue received by HWMA from the Contractor derived from 
the sale of recyclable commodities shall be disbursed to each Participating Agency 
quarterly on the following basis: 

a. HWMA shall retain for contract administration 1 5% of the agreed upon $ per ton 
base revenue received from all mixed-stream recyclable commodities; 

b. Any revenue received from source separated recyclable commodities shall be 
passed through to each Participating Agency. 

8. Education. The HWMA and Participating Agencies shall undertake coordinated 
educational and outreach activities to assist the Contractor in achieving a diversion rate of 
92% of all recyclable materials received. The HWMA and Participating Agencies will 
coordinate, prepare and implement an annual education campaign, including periodic 
collection route audits to identify excessive residuals in the recycling stream. 

9. Additional Participation. HWMA member agencies not initially participating in this 
MOU shall be permitted to enter into this MOU, and thereby participate in the Recyclable 
Materials Processing Agreement. 

10. Third Party Beneficiaries. Participating Member Agencies are not considered third party 
beneficiaries under the Recyclable Materials Processing Agreement. 

I I. Indemnity. Pursuant to the HWMA Joint Powers Authority Agreement, the HWMA shall 
indemnify each Participating Agency for any defense to claims, as well as cost of any 
judgments imposed for claims resulting from actions by the HWMA in relations to its 
management and implementation of the Recyclable Materials Processing Agreement. 

12. Counterparts. This MOU may be executed in separate counterparts, and all counterparts 
when signed, shall constitute and enforceable agreement. 

Draft 20lS Regional Recycling Mcmorandum orundcrstandine (March 201S) 

39 



13. Nuclear Free Ordinance(s) Compliance. The Contractor has certified to the HWMA that 
it is not a Nuclear Weapons Contractor, in that it does not knowingly or intentionally 
engage in the research, development, production, or testing of nuclear warheads, nuclear 
weapon systems, or nuclear weapons components as defined by the County of Humboldt 
Nuclear Free Humboldt County Ordinance, and the City of Arcata Nuclear Weapons Free 
Zone Act. The Contractor will agree to notify HWMA if it becomes a Nuclear Weapons 
Contractor as defined above, and the HWMA retains the authority to immediate terminate 
the Recyclable Materials Processing Agreement if it determines that the Contractor's 
certification is false or if the Contractor becomes a Nuclear Weapons Contractor. 

14. AMENDMENTS. This MOV may be amended by the majority determination of the 
Participating Agencies. Any Participating Agency may initiate an amendment to this 
MOV by written request from the Participating Agency's legislative body to the 
Authority's Executive Director who will forward the request to the Authority Board of 
Directors for its consideration as a Participating Agency. Regardless of the action taken 
by the Authority Board, the Authority shall process the amendment request as the 
administrator of the MOV. This MOV may not be amended in any way that would 
impact, alter or affect a material term of the Recyclable Materials Processing Agreement. 

WHEREFORE, the governing bodies of each of the parties below has authorized and approved 
this Memorandum ofVnderstanding, having decided to become a Participating Agency, on the 
date stated below: 

HUMBOLDT WASTE MANAGEMENT AUTHORITY 
Dated: 
By: Board Chair 
Attested to by: 
Dated: 
Executive Director Signature: 

CITY OF ARCATA 
Dated: 
By: Its Mayor 
Attested to by: 
Dated: 
City Clerk Signature: 

CITY OF BLUE LAKE 
Dated: 
By: Its Mayor 
Attested to by: 
Dated: 
City Clerk Signature: 

Draft 20lS Regional Recycling Mcmorundum ofUndcrstandms (March 201 5) 

40 



CITY OF EUREKA 
Dated: 
By: Its Mayor 
Attested to by: 
Dated: 
City Clerk Signature: 

CITY OF FERNDALE 
Dated: 
By: Its Mayor 
Attested to by: 
Dated: 
City Clerk Signature 

COUNTY OF HUMBOLDT 
Dated: 
By: Its Chair of the Board 
Attested to by: 
Dated: 
County Clerk Signature: 

CITY OF RIO DELL 
Dated: 
By: Its Mayor 
Attested to by: 
Dated: 
City Clerk Signature: 

Draft 201S Regional Recycling Memorandum of Understanding (March 2015) 

41 



REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 

FOR 

PROCESSING AND MARKETING OF 
RECYCLABLE MATERIALS 

ISSUED BY: 

Humboldt Waste Management Authority 

1059 West Hawthorne Street 
Eureka, CA 95501 

Month Day, Year 

Dmft - M=h 201 ' REQ EST FOR PROPOSALS PROCESSING AND M,\RKETING OF RECYCLABLE MATERIAL 

42 



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

1.0 GENERAL INFORMATION ................................................................................................. 4 

1.1 Humboldt Waste Management Authority ....................................................................... 4 

1.2 Autbority Goals and Objectives ....................................................................................... 5 

1.3 Organization of tbe RFP ................................................................................................... 6 

2.0 PROPOSAL CONSIDERATIONS ........................................................................................ 7 

2.1 Rights of the Authority ...................................................................................................... 7 

2.2 Consequence of Submission of Proposal .......................................................................... 7 

2.3 Proposal Costs .................................................................................................................... 8 

2.4 Proposal Schedule .............................................................................................................. 8 

2.5 Anti-Collusion Statement .................................................................................................. 9 

2.6 Conflict of Interest ............................................................................................................. 9 

2.7 Limits on Disclosure of Proposal ...................................................................................... 9 

2.8 Proposer Code of Conduct .............................................................................................. 10 

3.0 BACKGROUND INFORMATION ..................................................................................... 10 

3.1 Recyclable Material Tonnage from Authority Member Agencies .............................. 13 

4.0 SCOPE OF SERVICES ......................................................................................................... 14 

4.1 Recyclable Materials Receiving and Processing Facility ............................................. 14 

5.0 AGREEMENT ARRANGEMENTS .................................................................................... 16 

6.0 PROPOSAL SUBMITTAL INSTRUCTIONS ................................................................... 16 

6.1 Qualifications Response ................................................................................................... 16 

6.1.1 Company Information ............................................................................................ 17 

6.1.2 Key Personnel .......................................................................................................... 17 

6.1.3 Compliance, Litigation and Debarment History .................................................. 18 

6.1.4 Environmental Compliance ................................................................................... 18 

6.2 Financial Response ................................................................................................................. 18 

Dmft - Man:h 20 1 S REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS PROCESSING AND MARKETING OF RECYCLABLE MATERIAL 2 

43 



6.3 Operations Response ............................................................... .............................................. 19 

6.3.1 Recyc1ables Receiving and Processing .................................................................. 19 

6.4 Agreement Acceptance Response ......................................................................................... 20 

7.0 COST PROPOSAL AND COST FORM ............................................................................. 20 

8.0 PROPOSAL EVALUATION AND PROPOSER SELECTION .... ....... ............................ 22 

8.1 Proposal Evaluation Procedures .......................................................................................... 22 

8.2 Proposal Evaluation Categories & Factors ....................................................................... 22 

9.0 PROPOSAL SUBMITTAL INSTRUCTIONS ................................................................... 26 

9.1 Authority Contact and Address ...................................................................................... 26 

9.2 Submittal of Written Questions ...................................................................................... 26 

9.3 Proposal Submittal Format ............................................................................................. 26 

9.4 Clarification of Proposal Information .............................................................. ............. 27 

9.5 Presentation to HWMA Board ....................................................................................... 27 

9.6 Selection of Recommended Proposers ........................................................................... 27 

9.7 Schedule ...................................................................... .............. ........................................ 27 

9.8 Proposal Content ..................... ........................................ ............................. .................... 27 

Attachment 1 - Agreement ......................................................................................................... 30 

Attachment 2 - Cost Forms ........................................................................................................ 31 

Attachment 3 - Distance from Each Member Agency to the Proposer's Proposed 

Receiving Facility Form ..................... ......................................................................................... 33 

Attachment 4 _ Anti-Collusion Form ......................................................................................... 34 

Dr.Ifi - M,n:h 201 5 REQUESTFOR PROPOSALS PROCESSING AND MARKETING OF RECYCLABLE MATERIAL 3 

44 



1.0 General Information 
The Humboldt Waste Management Authority ("HWMA or Authority") is issuing this Request 
for Proposals to select a qualified Proposer to process recyclable materials from Member 
Agencies. The Agreement will be between the HWMA and the selected Proposer for a ten (10) 
year period. The terms of this Agreement may be extended for a five (5) year period at the sole 
discretion ofthe Authority. The term of the Agreement will commence (insert date) days from 
the date of approval by the HWMA Board. The Proposer will be responsible for securing 
property for a facility within the Authority's Member Agency's jurisdictions to receive 
recyclable material for transportation to the Proposer's facility for processing, marketing and 
disposal of residual materials. 

Proposals are being solicited from qualified Proposers, or a group of qualified Proposers, that 
form a team arrangement, for purposes of this solicitation. In the event a teaming arrangement is 
proposed, the Proposers should recognize that the team must be represented by a single prime 
Proposer that will be responsible for entering into this Agreement and serve as the primary 
contact and responsible party. The Agreement specifying the Terms and Conditions for the 
requested services is located in Attachmelll J. 

The Proposal shall be submitted in accordance with the guidelines presented in this RFP. All data 
and information furnished by the HWMA or referred to in this RFP are provided for the 
Proposer's convenience. The HWMA does not guarantee that such information or data is 
accurate and assumes no responsibility as to the accuracy of the information. Proposers are 
encouraged to independently verify the accuracy and interpretation of all such information or 
data. 

1.1 Humboldt Waste Management Authority 
The Humboldt Waste Management Authority is a Joint Powers Authority (JPA) consisting of the 
Member Agencies of the jurisdictions of Arcata, Blue Lake, Eureka, Ferndale, Rio Dell, and 
Humboldt County. The cities of Fortuna and Trinidad are not members of the HWMA JPA, 
although Trinidad has expressed interest in joining. The Authority was established in 1999 and 
acted as a regional focus point in a diverse waste management system. One of the primary goals 
of the Authority is to provide program support for cost-effective waste reduction, recycling, and 
solid waste programs to Member Agencies through their franchised collection providers and the 
public recyclers to meet and exceed the minimum 50% diversion mandated by California State 
Law, AB 939. 

The Authority operates the Hawthorne Street Transfer Station located at 1059 West Hawthorne 
Street in the city of Eureka. The Hawthorne Street Transfer Station serves as a hub and central 
location in the area for drop off of solid waste from the public and local franchise collection 
haulers. Solid waste collected at the Transfer Station is loaded and hauled by transfer trailer 
trucks to the Potrero Hills Landfill in Suisun City, California and the Dry Creek Landfill in 
Medford, Oregon. 

The Hawthorne Street Transfer Station also accepts recyclable materials at its drop-off location 
from the public and commercial businesses. Household hazardous waste, E-waste, and Universal 
materials are also received and managed at the Eureka Recycling Center housed within this 

olUn - M"",h 2015 REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS PROCESSING AND MARKETING OF REC'YCLABLE MATERIAL 4 

45 



complex, as well as through mobile collection programs in the Humboldt County area. The 
Authority owns and manages the Cummings Road Landfill in Eureka. The Authority also 
manages through contractual means compo sting of organic materials at the Mad River Compost 
Facility owned and operated by third-party contractors. 

1.2 Authority Goals and Objectives 
The Authority is interested in receiving proposals from companies that have demonstrated 
experience providing transportation and processing of recyclable materials comparable to those 
described in this RFP, to ensure success of the services for the Authority and its Member Agencies. 
The Authority will place an emphasis on a Proposer who places a high priority on reliable, cost 
effective, and environmentally sound operations, and who has demonstrated measurable results 
through its on-going operations on other similar projects. The Authority'S goals and objectives for 
future services include: 

• Low-cost and efficient local recycling, receiving and processing services. 

• Maximize commodities for high value end market. 

• Flexibility to adapt to market fluctuat ions and trends to secure most competitive price 
rates . 

• A quarterly market value credit to the Authority based on the tons processed and full 
market value of the indices described in Appendix 1 - Processing Agreement. 

• The demonstrated abi lity, and expressed interest, to accept and market additional 
materials. 

• Maintain quarterly facility total residual disposal to less than 8% of inbound materials 
from the franchise haulers. 

• Meet or exceed all current and future state and local regulations and perrmttmg 
conditions, and have an Operations Plan approved by local regulatory authorities at the 
time the Processing Agreement goes into effect. 

• Creation of good quality jobs and fair treatment of employees. 

• Full cooperation with member agency franchise operators, as well as the Hawthorne Street 
Transfer Station. 

• Maintain a high level of service (timely, courteous, and responsive) to the Authority and 
its Member Agencies. 

• Ensure the cost competitiveness and effectiveness of the services provided; and 

• Pursuant with CA Assembly Bill 32, minimize the carbon footprint; reduce overall 
greenhouse gas emissions and other adverse environmental impacts while maximizing the 
sustainability of the services. 

D",ft - March 2015 REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS PROCESSING AND MARKETING OF RECYCLAB LE MATERIAL 5 

46 



1.3 Organization of the RFP 
General information regarding the RFP purpose, process, and schedule are provided in the 
following. 

o Section 1 contains General Information to assist Proposers in understanding the current and 
proposed services required, including general information about HWMA member agencies. 

o Section 2 contains Proposal Considerations such as the rights of the Authority, 
consequence of Contract's submission of their proposal, costs to prepare a proposal, and 
the proposal schedule. 

o Section 3 presents Background Information regarding recyclable material types to process 
and estimated quantities to be processed under this Agreement. 

o Section 4, Scope of Services, defines the work and services covered by this RFP. 

o Section 5 details the Agreement, terms and conditions for the requested services. 

o Section 6 discusses the RFP Proposal Requirements to be submitted by the Proposer. 

o Section 7 describes the Cost Proposal and Compensation required for submittal for this 
RFP and the Proposer's compensation and payment method to be employed by the 
Authority. 

o Section 8 describes the Proposal Evaluation and Proposer selection process to be followed 
by the Authority. 

o Section 9 presents the Proposal Submittal Instructions to be followed by Proposers for 
submittal of their RFP. 

o Attachment I contains the Agreement and contractual arrangements binding by the 
Proposer. 

o Attachment 2 contains the Proposal Cost Forms required to be filled out by the Proposer. 

o Attachment 3 contains a Form to calculate the distance from each Member Agency to the 
Proposer's Proposed Receiving and Processing Facility. 

o Attachment 4 is the Anti-Collusion Form. 

Droft - Marcil 2015 REQUESTFOR PROPOSALS PROCESSING AND MARKETING OF RECYCLABLE MATERIAL 6 

47 



2.0 Proposal Considerations 

2.1 Rights of the Authority 
The Authority's rights include, but are not limited to, the following: 

o Reissuing or modifying the RFP, 

o Withdrawing the RFP at any time during the procurement process 

o Issuing addenda to the RFP, including extending or revising the timeline for submittals. 

o Requesting clarification or additional information from the Proposers at any time during 
the procurement process. 

o Execution ofan Agreement with the successful Proposer on the basis of the original 
proposals and/or any other information submitted by the Proposers during the procurement 
process. 

o Rejection of any or all proposals, waiving irregularities in any proposals, accepting or 
rejecting all or part of any proposals, and waiving any requirements of the RFP, as may be 
deemed in the best interest of the Authority. 

o Negotiating with more than one Proposer. 

o Accepting a proposal that does not offer the lowest cost but offers the best overall proposal, 
which the Authority determined is in the best interest of the Member Agencies based on the 
Proposer's qualifications, operations proposal. financial strength, and willingness to accept 
the Agreement terms as well as its cost proposal. 

o Discontinuing negotiations after commencing negotiations with a selected Contactor if 
progress is unsatisfactory in the sole judgment of the Authority, and commencing 
negotiations with another qualified Proposer. 

2.2 Consequence of Submission of Proposal 

o Proposal submission constitutes an incontrovertible representation and warranty by 
Proposer that the Proposer has investigated all aspects of the RFP. 

o Proposer is aware of the applicable facts pertaining to the RFP process, its procedures and 
requirements. 

o Proposer has read and understands the RFP, and complied with every requirement. 

o Without exception, the proposal is premised upon performing and furnishing the services 
and equipment required by this RFP and Agreement and as such means, methods, 
techniques as may be indicated or required by this RFP and Agreement. 

Draft - March 21115 REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS PROCESSING AND MARKETING OF RECYCLABLE MATERIAL 7 

48 



(J Proposer submittal of an RFP, andlor any addendums, are sufficient in scope and detail to 
indicate and convey understanding of all the tenns and conditions for perfonnance and 
furnishing services of the project. 

The submission of a proposal shall not be deemed an agreement between the Proposer and the 
Authority, and the following conditions apply: 

(J Authority shall not be obligated to respond to any proposal submitted, nor is bound in any 
manner by the submission of a proposal by a Proposer. 

(J Acceptance of a proposal by the Authority obligates the Proposer to enter into good faith 
Agreement negotiations on the proposal submitted. 

(J The Agreement shall not be binding or valid against the Authority unless and until it is 
executed by the Authority Board and the selected Proposer, and the Proposer' s 
perfonnance bond or other surety has been accepted. 

2.3 Proposal Costs 
Costs of investigating, preparing, and submitting a proposal is the sole responsibility of the 
Proposer and shall not be chargeable in any manner to the HWMA. The HWMA will not 
reimburse any Proposer for any costs associated with the preparation and submission of 
proposals or expenses incurred in making an oral presentation, participating in an interview, or 
negotiating an Agreement with the HWMA. 

2.4 Proposal Schedule 
The HWMA intends to adhere to the schedule provided in Table I during the selection process . 
This schedule may change at the HWMA's sole discretion. 

Table 1; Proposal Procurement Schedule 

Procurement Activi!I. Date 
HWMA release RFP. July. 2015 
Deadline to submit written questions and comments by TBD 
Proposers. 
HWMA will issue to Proposers; response to written questions TBD 
and RFP addendum if necessary. 

PROPOSAL DUE August, 2015 

HWMA may request clarification of proposal information. August, 2015 
HWMA interviews shortlisted Proposer(s). September, 2015 
HWMA Board selects Proposer. October, 2015 
HWMA conducts and completes nC2otiations with Contractor. November. 2015 
Proposer commences provldine: services. September. 2016 
*The Authonty retams the nghts to modify andlor amend dates as necessary. 

D .. ft - MOTCh 20 I 5 REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS PROCESSING AND MARKETING OF RECYCLABLE MA TERI,\L 8 

49 



2.5 Anti-Collusion Statement 
A sworn anti·collusion statement is included as Attachment 2 as part of the proposal package. 
The Authority requires that a non·collusion statement be made as a sworn affidavit executed and 
sworn before a person who is authorized to administer oaths by laws of the State. This 
certification is required as important evidence in the event that collusion or bid rigging is 
discovered at a later date. If any Proposer submits a false statement, sanctions could then be 
taken against the Proposer. 

2.6 Conflict of Interest 
The Proposer must disclose any contractual relationship that exists, or has existed, between the 
Proposer and a predecessor organization of the Proposer, or a sub-contractor included in the 
Proposer's response to this RFP, and the HWMA or its Member Agencies. Proposers must also 
disclose any existing business or personal relationship between the Proposer, its principals, or 
any affiliate or subcontractor, and the HWMA, its Member Agencies, or any other entity or 
person involved in the project that is the subject of this RFP. 

Failure to disclose any such prior or existing contractual or personal relationship as described in 
this section may result in disqualification of the proposal. The Authority will make the final 
determination regarding the existence of a conflict of interest. 

2.7 Limits on Disclosure of Proposals 
The HWMA has determined that the public interest will be best served if proposals submitted by 
Proposers in response to this RFP are not made available for review by other companies 
participating in the competitive selection process. For that reason, proposals submitted during the 
RFP process will not be made available to other Proposers or the public earlier than the date on 
which the HWMA issues to Member Agencies a shortlist of a company or companies 
recommended for final negotiation. The HWMA may, at its sole discretion, release select 
portions of the proposal(s) of the recommended companies that have not been identified as 
entitled to confidential treatment as containing trade secrets. 

Conversely, public release may be deferred until the Authority has narrowed its consideration to 
one preferred Proposer. All materials received from that Proposer (other than those entitled to 
protection under California Government Code Section 6254(k» will be made available for public 
review by the Member Agencies no less than twenty (20) days prior to the date on which the 
governing board of each Member Agency will consider a staff recommendation to award the 
Agreement to a selected company. 

The HWMA will implement the following procedures: 

I. All materials which a Proposer believes to contain trade secret information entitled to 
protection from disclosure under Government Code Section 6254(k) must be clearly marked 
on each page as "CONFIDENTIAL"; and 

2. Prior to the date on which the Board of Directors selects its preferred Proposer, if HWMA 
receives a request to review and/or copy materials submitted by any Proposer, the Authority 
will decline release of those materials; and 

Drufi - Mon:h 2015 REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS PROCESSING AND MARKETING OF RECYCLABLE MATERIAL 9 

50 



3. If the person submitting the request files a legal action against HWMA seeking its release, 
the HWMA will notify the affected Proposer(s) and will not oppose a motion by such 
Proposer(s) to intervene in the action. The Proposer(s) must either intervene or agree to pay 
HWMA's and its agent(s) legal expenses in defending the action, including fees, if any, 
awarded to the plaintiff. Absent such an agreement, the HWMA will have no obligation to 
defend the action and may release the information sought without any liability whatsoever; 
and 

4. Proposer will not seek damages against HWMA, its agents, or any Member Agency for 
recovery of its attorneys' fees as a result of any dispute related to the release or withholding 
of information submitted in response to this RFP. 

2.8 Proposer Code of Conduct 
The Proposer is required to follow the Proposer Code of Conduct as a result of submitting an 
RFP. The Code of Conduct for Proposers includes the following provisions: 

I. Prohibits ex parte communications with HWMA Board members or elected officials of 
Member Agencies; 

2. Prohibits giving any gift or monetary compensation to an HWMA Board member, staff 
member or its agents; and 

3. Prohibits collaboration or discussion with other Proposers of the content of the proposal or 
rates proposed. 

Failure to abide by the above will result in the bid proposal being disqualified. 

3.0 Background Information 
The HWMA, lhrough ils Member Agencies, has been lasked with the responsibility to 
contractually manage an agreement for processing and marketing of recoverable commodities, 
sale of the materials, and disposal of residuals. Recyclable materials within the Member 
Agencies are collected through a variety of methods including residential curbside collection 
programs in the cities of Arcata, Blue Lake, Eureka, and some unincorporated areas of Humboldt 
County, commercial recycling programs in some of the jurisdictions and drop-off materials at the 
Eureka Recycling Center. 

For pllrposes of respolldillg to this RFP, Proposers call expect to process mixed-stream 
residelltial material from commercial collection activities, commercial sOllrce-separated 
recyclables (e.g. cardboard), and other materials as directed by the Allthority. 

Commercial source-separated recyclables (i.e. cardboard) is an example of a commercial 
recycling program. Single-stream material is also collected by businesses and placed in 
designated bins and picked up by haulers. 

Orufi - M""h 2015 REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS PROCESSING ANO MARKETING OF RECYCLABLE MATERIAL 10 

51 



Residential recycling curbside collection programs are set up as a mixed-stream system; 
residents set out containers with mixed-stream materials (for example, mixed paper, cardboard 
glass, plastic, and metal) for collection. 

Recyclable Material Types 
Table 2 lists the various types of desired materials collected from Member Agency jurisdictions. 

Table 2: HWMA Member Agencies Recyclable Material Characterization 

Recyclable Subcategory 
Material Category 
Source-separated Corrugated cardboard 
material Other 
Mixed Fiber Corrugated cardboard, chip board, office paper, computer 

paper, magazine, junk mail, envelopes, catalogs, brown 
paper bags, paper board, telephone books, paperback books, 
colored paper, construction paper, and cereal and food 
boxes. 

Newspaper Inserts, coupons, and advertisements. 
Glass Clear, brown, green (all colors), CRY and non-CRY 

containers. 
Plastics Containers identified as P.E.T. # 1-5 (includes examples) 

• #1 PET (Clear plastic containers) 

• #2 HDPE (Ridge Containers) 

• #3 V (Vinyl or PVC) 

• #4 LDPE (Various containers, bags) 

• #5 PP (Ketchup, syrup, yogurt containers) 

• Plastic bags and film plastic 

• All containers stamped with the Society for Plastics 
Industry (SPI) code #1 through #5. 

Aluminum Food and beverage containers, foil, foil containers, pots, pans 
and baking containers. 

Metal Steel, tin, and bi-metal containers; small pieces of scrap 
metal weighing less than 10 pounds. 

Textiles Old clothes and fabrics 
Aseptic packalling Milk, fruit .iuice, broth, soup, etc. containers. 
Gable top Milk and juice cartons 
Other Other recyclable materials the proposer is able to process 

and market. 

The types of recyclable materials collected curbside are at the discretion of each individual 
Member Agency at this time. Materials are subject to change and decisions will be at the 
discretion of each Member Agency. Franchise haulers operating in the cities of Arcata, Eureka, 
and some unincorporated areas of Humboldt County including the Greater Arcata and Eureka 

Orafi - March 20 15 REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS PROCESSING ANO MARKETING OF RECYCLABLE MATERIAL 11 

S2 



areas are currently directed to deliver recyclable items collected to the Hawthorne Street Transfer 
Station. 

Table 3: HWMA Member Agencies Recycling Programs 

CQiiipOD.DtlProgr~niName Arcata lJlue Eureka FerJliliile Uumlioldf, Rio 
" " 

Lake 
" 

Gounly 'DeD 
Residential Curbside • • • • • • 
Residential Drop·Off • • • • • 
Residential Buy·Back • • • • 
Commercial On·Site Pickup • • • • • • 
Commercial Self·Haul • • • • • 
School Recycling Programs • • • • • 
Special Collection Seasonal • • • • • • 
(re~ular) 

Special Collection Events • • • • • • 
Other Recycling • • • 
HWMA has an existing agreement with Solid Wastes of Willits, terminating in September 2016, 
for the transportation and processing of member agency franchise curbside collected recyclables 
and mixed stream recyclable materials received at the Authority. These materials do not include 
source-separated goods including cardboard, cans, CRY, white goods, scrap metal, electronic 
and household hazardous wastes received, at the Eureka Recycling Center. Franchise collectors 
for Arcata, Eureka, and the unincorporated areas of the Greater Arcata and Eureka area deliver 
recyclable materials and cardboard to the Hawthorne Street Transfer Station. The received 
materials are then loaded into Solid Wastes of Willits trucks for transportation to their processing 
facility located in Willits, CA. 

The Eureka Recycling Center operated by the Authority receives mixed stream recyclable 
materials. This tonnage is included in the RFP. Recyclable materials from the cities of Ferndale 
and Rio Dell, and the adjacent unincorporated areas of southern Humboldt County area are 
processed at the privately-owned Eel River Disposal MRF in Fortuna. Since the respective 
franchise agreements direct recyclable materials to the ERD facility, their tonnage is not included 
into the RFP. Recyclable materials from City of Fortuna and its general area are not included 
within recyclables material tonnage estimates to be considered for the purposes of responding to 
this RFP. 

Humboldt Sanitation operates a privately owned transfer station in McKinleyville that collects 
source-separated recyclables and CRY from the unincorporated community of McKinleyville 
and surrounding areas, as well as the City of Trinidad. The Humboldt Sanitation tonnage is not 
included in the RFP estimates because existing franchise agreements direct recycling material to 
Humboldt Sanitation until 2021. 

In addition to the Eel River Disposal facility located in Fortuna, Eel River Resource and 
Recovery, Inc. also operates the Samoa Processing Facility, a MRF and permitted medium 
volume transfer station, located in the unincorporated community of Samoa. CA. While currently 
the City of Blue Lake has directed curbside collected material to this facility, until September 

Dn>R - M.",h 2015 REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS PROCESSING AND MARKETING OF RECYCLABLE M.I TERIAL 12 

S3 



2016, this Member Agency material is included in the RFP. Humboldt State University is also 
directing source-separated recyclables to this facility, and the HSU tonnage is not included in the 
RFP estimates. 

The recycling tons described herein do not include recycling material received by open market 
drop-off commercial recycling centers including Humboldt Sanitation, Eel River Disposal, 
Redwood Acres Recycling, G&R Metals, Sherricks Recycling, Popko Recycling, and Redway 
Transfer Station, as these companies serve independently from Member Agency franchise 
collection agreements. Additionally, other materials received by HWMA (i.e. electronic waste, 
household hazardous waste, white goods and other material diverted from the tip floor) will be 
processed and marketed by the Authority. 

3.1 Recyclable Material Tonnage from Authority Member Agencies 
Since processing of recyclables in the Authority region are non-regulated, precise measurement 
of recyclable tonnages generated within the HWMA is dependent on voluntary submission of 
data to the Authority. To the besl of the Authority's knowledge, as of January 2014, the tolal 
annual tonnage of recyclable materials is presented in Table 4. This tonnage is based on actual 
curbside collected materials received from the cities of Arcata, Blue Lake, and Eureka, and 
satellite areas of unincorporated Humboldt County surrounding urban pockets of customers to 
nearby Arcata, Eureka, and Blue Lake areas. 

Current and Future Recycling Tonnage 
When the contract for hauling recyclable material was put forth in 20 I 0 the estimate was a 
baseline of 7,000 tons, increasing by 1.5% each year. Actual tonnage the first year (2011-2012) 
was 3,377 tons, with 655 tons from the Eureka Recycling Center. Following the implementation 
of mandatory curbside collection in 2012-2013, within the jurisdictions of Eureka and Arcata, 
tonnage increased to 6,415 tons, with 1,822 tons from the Eureka Recycling Center. In 2013-
20147,477 tons was received with 2,310 tons from the Eureka Recycling Center. These figures 
include source-separated commercial cardboard. 

The Authority is projecting a 5% per year growth in total incoming tonnage, but does not 
guarantee any particular level of recyclable material delivery to the Contactors' material 
receiving facility. With other franchise areas anticipating mandatory curbside recycling the 
tonnage is expected to increase 5% annually, generating an estimated 10,252 tons in 2014-2015 
and 10,739 in 2015-2016. Growth forecast being based on the increase in tonnage from the 
previous year. With planned implementation of AB 341- 75% Statewide Diversion Goal 
(Chesbro) will enable increased materials collection to order to meet diversion goals. 

Table 4 presents the past (3) years of mixed-stream recyclable material and source-separated 
commercial cardboard tonnage as well as future projected recyclable material tonnage from the 
Authority's Member Agencies, not including Ferndale, Rio Dell and portions of unincorporated 
Humboldt County, over the next two (2) years. 

D",fi - M.n:h 2015 REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS PROCESSING AND MARKETING OF RECYCLABLE MA TERI,\L I3 

S4 



Table 4: Material Tonnage Received in 2011-2014 and Projected Through 2016 from 
HWMA Member Agencies 

Agreement Term (Year) 2011-12 2012-13 2013-14 2014-15 2015-16 
(est.) (est.) 

Mixed-Stream Recyclin2 3,837 7,411 8,476 8,827 9,201 
Source-Separated 195" 826 1,311 1,425 1,538 
Commercial Cardboard 
Total Annual Tons 4,032 8,237 9,787 10,252 10,739 

"2011-12 tonnage reflect primarily cardboard tonnage received through City of Arcata curbside 
collection with a significant increase the following year with the addition of Eureka's collection 
servIces. 

4.0 Scope of Services 
The Humboldt Waste Management Authority, as a joint powers authority acting on behalf of its 
Member Agencies, is seeking to enter into an agreement with a contractor who will provide 
transportation, receiving and processing of recyclable materials at a Regional Processing Facility 
located within a Member Agency's jurisdiction for a term period of 10 years. The purpose of this 
RFP is to solicit proposals for the processing of identified recyclable materials in Table 2 of this 
RFP. Interested proposers are encouraged to submit proposals which include additional services 
not identified in this RFP. Proposers are also encouraged to provide alternatives if they can 
improve the efficiency, save monies, and/or reduce the disposal of residuals. The Authority will 
place an emphasis on a Proposer who places a high priority on reliable, cost effective, and 
environmentally sound operations, and who has demonstrated measurable results through its on
going operations on other similar projects. 

Proposers should carefully review Sectioll 5.0 Agreemellt that will define the contractual 
arrangements between the HWMA and the Contractor selected through this RFP process, and 
Sectioll 6: Proposal SlIbmillallllstructiolls which specifies required information from Proposers 
which will be used in the evaluation and selection process. In the event of a conflict between the 
Agreement and this RFP, the language in the Agreement takes precedence. 

The selected proposer will be required to provide all labor, supervision, equipment, and 
materials in conformance to all required permits and regulatory requirements. 

The selected Proposer will: 

IJ Develop and/or, secure and maintain a building with sufficient capacity to receive 
Authority's Member Agencies' recyclable materials and the Authority'S Eureka Recycling 
Center's mixed recyclable material for loading and transfer to Contractor's facility for 
processing. 

IJ Provide all necessary personnel, rolling stock equipment, and supplies necessary for 
operations of the facility, transporting the recyclables, and other obligations through the 
Term of this Agreement. 

Omn - Man:h 2015 REQUEST FOR PROPOS,\LS PRO("ESSING AND MARKETING OF RECYCLABLE M,\TERIAL 14 

55 



D The Proposer's receiving/processing facility shall be open (business hours) to receive 
Authority's recyclable materials from 7:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m., Monday through Friday, 
including all hol idays. Member Agencies franchise collection haulers shall be provided key
card access to the receiving facility outside of normal business hours and 365 days per year. 
The hours of operation of the facility may be changed upon mutual agreement between the 
HWMA and the Contractor. 

D The Proposer shall ensure that the traffic into the selected facility flows smoothly, that there 
are no delays in unloading, and that the unloading area is clear to receive recyclable materials 
at all times during operating hours. 

D The Proposer shall provide loader equipment and move the unloaded mixed-stream 
recyclable materials into the proper temporary storage area. Source-separated recyclable 
materials shall be kept separate from either of the mixed-stream recyclable materials and 
stockpiled within a temporary storage area or container until ready to process. 

D The Proposer shall collect source-separated recyclable materials from the Authority's 
Hawthorne Street Transfer Station and transport to a local processing facility. 

D The Proposer must provide turnaround time at the receiving fac ility of less than IS minutes 
for franchise haul trucks. 

D Inbound and outbound franchise haul trucks must be weighed, and electronic files of the 
scale data must be submitted monthly to the Authority. 

D Maintain sufficient personnel and equipment to process at the Contractor's facility all loads 
of recyclable materials from the Authority. 

D Maximize cost-effective marketing of recyclable materials del ivered to the selected 
Proposer's processing facility. Allowable exceptions will be made for value added services. 

D A complete record of all commodity sales transactions shall be kept by the Contractor and 
shall be submitted for review according to the reporting requirements of the Agreement. 

D The selected Proposer is responsible for securing markets for recovered materials and 
maintaining accurate accounting of material quantities, types, pricing, and payments received 
on all recovered materials at the highest and best price available in the competitive market. 

D The selected Proposer will market materials, including local markets, to obtain the highest 
gross revenue from commodity sales. 

D Following separation and recovery of Authority'S recyclable materials, the selected Proposer 
will dispose of residuals as approved by the sole discretion of the Authority. The disposal 
rate for residuals at no time will exceed the cost that would locally be provided by the 
HWMA 

Draft - March 2015 REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS PROCESSING AND MARKETING OF RECYCLABLE MATERIAL 15 

56 



o The Proposer shall load the respective type ofrecyclables (either fibers or containers) into a 
transfer trailer truck when sufficient volumes of material are available to fully load the 
trailer. 

o The selected Proposer will provide monthly documentation in a form satisfactory to the 
Authority and as required by applicable law documenting the recyclable material tonnage 
received, processed, marketed and the tonnage of residuals disposed. 

o Proposers must submit a sales revenue plan though which the selected proposer would share 
revenues received from marketing the recyclable commodities collected and processed. 

o Other items as identified tIuu Addenda or proposed by Proposer. 

The Proposer selected will be expected to be flexible and proactive in working with the 
Authority in order to provide services in an efficient manner and to add or modify services as 
requested to improve such services throughout the Term of the Agreement. 

5.0 Agreement Arrangements 
The procurement schedule in Table I designates the schedule to select a Proposer and to final ize 
the Agreement with the selected Proposer as the Authority's Contractor. In an effort to 
accomplish this objective, an Ab'Tcement is provided in Attachment 1. The Agreement provides 
Proposer required terms and conditions of the required services and the HWMA's roles. 
responsibilities, and obligations. 

The HWMA is interested in selecting a Proposer that is prepared to sign the Agreement in its 
existing form . . The Authority expects that the Draft Agreement will be executed by the selected 
proposer in substantially the same form as presented in Attachment I. Proposers may, if 
necessary, propose exceptions to the Agreement; exceptions must be accompanied by 
recommended alternative lanb'Uage, such that the alternative language is acceptable to the 
HWMA. If Proposer' s comments include material exceptions to the HWMA's Agreement terms, 
the HWMA may reject the proposal regardless of its other merits and proposed costs. Except at 
the sole discretion of the HWMA, all negotiations with the Proposers will be limited to the 
Proposers' comments and recommended alternative Agreement language contained in their 
proposal. 

6.0 Proposal Submittal Instructions 
Proposers must provide all information requested in this section and addendum items, if any, as 
part of their proposals. Attachments 2 and 3 contain the Cost Proposal Forms required to be 
completed by each Proposer. Failure to provide all required information as listed below may be 
grounds for rejection of a proposal. 

The proposal requirements have been separated into the following responses: and will be 
evaluated and ranked according to the following categories: I) Company Qualifications, 

D"'ft - March ~OIS REQUESTFOR PROPOSALS PROCESSING AND M.\RKETING OF RECYClABLE MATERIAL 16 

57 



Financial Assurance, Information and Experience, 2) Cost Proposal, 3) Operational Proposal, 4.) 
Environmental Compliance, Environmental Enhancements, Workforce Compliance, Litigation 
History and Other considerations; and 5) Agreement AcceptancelNumber and materiality of 
exceptions to the Agreement. 

6.1 Company Qualifications, Financial Assnrance Information and Experience 
At a minimum, provide a detailed description of the company and its qualification including key 
personnel and information on the Company's experience to successfully implement the requested 
services in the RFP. 

o State the name and address of the company that will be signing the Agreement and the name, 
address, phone number, fax number, e-mail address, and title of person to be contacted 
regarding the proposal. Provide the names of any other company (ies) that will share 
significant responsibilities as team members in performing under the Agreement. 

o Provide names and resumes of principal officers, partners, or other officials of the company 
who will perform significant responsibilities required under the RFP. 

o IdentifY the names of individual(s) who will implement the Agreement, and include resumes 
for each key individual responsible for implementation of the Agreement. 

o Describe relevant technical experience of key personnel, how long they have been with the 
company and their backgrounds in solid waste transfer, recycling materials processing and 
receiving, recyclable commodity marketing services, and customer service. 

o Provide support that the Proposer has financial resources sufficient to undertake the proposed 
services. 

o Provide audited financial statements, including income and balance sheets for the 
contractually responsible party and any parent company and joint venture company (ies), for 
the most recent three (3) complete fiscal years and an audited statement through the most 
recently completed quarter of the current fiscal year. 

o Provide a statement from the chief financial officer indicating that there has been no material 
change in the financial circumstances of the proposing entity (or its parent or owners if they 
are providing financial assurance of performance) since the date of the last audited 
statements. 

o Describe your company and staff qualifications as they relate to successfully providing 
recycling, processing and marketing, as well as operations of a transfer station and permitted 
processing facility. 

o Describe any proposed partnerships that could support or enhance recycling diversion efforts. 

o If companies are submitting as a team, describe any prior successful working arrangements 
involving similar types of services for similarly sized communities. 

Draft - March 20 15 REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS PROCESSING AND MARKETING OF RECYCLABLE MATERIAL 17 

58 



o Describe services provided currently, or in the past, to other jurisdictions that are directly 
relevant to services described in this RFP, including descriptions of relevant contracts and the 
dates the service was provided. 

o Provide the name, telephone number, and address for three (3) municipal clients serviced by 
the Proposer as references for your experience for the services requested in the RFP. 

6.2 Cost Proposal 
o The Marketing Plan shall include: I) a materials specifications section that lists the materials 

specifications for the markets/vendors used by the Proposer, and 2) a materials marketing 
contingency section that discusses how the Proposer will manage a change in market 
conditions, and 3) proposed unit price it will pay for recyclable materials processed by the 
Proposer. 

• Describe how the Proposer's material marketing sale programs result in obtaining 
superior market value. 

• Describe how the company fosters innovation and high quality performance with proven 
examples. 

• Describe how materials will be marketed or made available to local businesses. 

• Description of the experience, history, and volumes marketed by your materials 
marketing stafl7agent. 

• List the volumes and sale price by commodity types that will be produced by the 
Authority that have been sold by the Proposer (from Northern California) over the last 12 
months to domestic and foreign markets. 

• Provide a detailed description of a proposed revenue sharing program with the Authority 
materials recovered and marketed by the Proposer. 

6.3 Operations, Recyclable Receiving and Processing 
Operations information supplied by the Proposer should focus on the methods of performing the 
services required under the Agreement and as described under Section 4, Scope of Services. 
Proposers should describe in detail the proposed method for providing the following services 
requested in the RFP. The Proposer will be required to secure and/or site and operate a 
recyclables receiving and processing facility to I.) Receive recyclables from the Member 
Agencies franchise haulers; and 2.) Transport mixed-stream recyclable materials from the 
Authority's Eureka Recycling Center. The Proposer's facility must be located within anyone of 
the Authority's Member Agency jurisdictions. Proposers are required to submit the following 
information on the facility: 

o Address of the recyclables receiving facility. Provide a site map{s) showing the facility and 
its location to the surrounding area. 

D .. fi _ March 2015 REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS PROCESSING AND MARKETING OF RECYCLABLE MATERIAL 18 

59 



D Describe the facility layout and features in detail including the square footage of the 
building and the square footage of the recyclable receiving area. 

D Describe the load receiving and inspection procedure proposed for use at the facility. 

D Describe how the Proposer will collect and transport mixed-stream and identified source
separated recyclable materials from the Authority's Eureka Recycling Center to a local 
processing facility. 

D Detail the staffing levels and equipment requirements that will be employed by the 
Proposer to process the materials. Identify the location, function and work hours for the 
personnel. 

D Complete Attachment 3 -'Distance from Each Member Agency to the Proposer's Proposed 
Receiving and Processing Facility". 

D Describe the number and nature of jobs created or retained for providing the services 
requested in the RFP over the life of the contract period, including location of jobs, pay 
scale and benefit package for each job category. 

D Describe the safety and training plans at the facilities, and safety plans for the drivers and 
collection trucks using the facility. 

D Provide a table showing the position and number as full-time equivalents (or partial FTE) 
of all company employees that will be involved with providing these services 

D Include a table that illustrates the distance (mileage) recyclables are transported and 
tonnage transported for each jurisdiction that utilizes the processing facil ity proposed to 
accept recyclable materials from the HWMA. 

D Provide detailed information regarding the processing facility operations proposed for 
processing and sale of the Authority's recyclables. At a minimum, include permitting 
information; facility design and equipment in-use including a detailed flow chart of system 
operations; tonnage processed and recovered; residuals remaining as a percentage of 
tonnage received; and number of full time equivalent personnel employed at the facility. 

D Describe how the Proposer will maintain safe and efficient unloading procedures of 
Authority's recyclables. 

D Describe how materials will be received and managed on the tipping floor of the processing 
facility. 

D Proposer will provide a detailed Materials Marketing Plan as part of the proposal 
submission. 

D Provide a detailed description of a proposed revenue sharing program with the Authority 
for materials recovered and sold by the Proposer. 

0",8 - Mun:h 20 ll REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS PROCESSING AND MARKETING OF RECYCLABLE MATERIAL 19 

60 



6.4 Environmental Compliance, Environmental Enhancements, Workforce Compliance, 
Litigation History and Other Considerations. 

(J List any environmental compliance-permit violations incurred by the company, partner or 
subsidiary in this venture, or sub-Proposer in the past five (5) years for similar types of 
facilities operated within Northern California. 

(J Provide detailed infonnation regarding the Proposer's litigation history. Has any company, 
partner, or subsidiary proposing on this RFP or any corporate officer been involved within 
the past ten (10) years in litigation arising from: 

• Performance of solid waste contracts or recycling contracts; 
• Violation of environmental laws, regulations, permits, or federal antitrust laws; and 
• Connection with allegation of corrupt practices. 

(J Has any company, partner, or subsidiary in this venture, or any corporate officer, been the 
subject of any enforcement action, order, decree, or notice of violation of any environmental 
laws, regulations, or permits? Ifan answer is "yes," please explain fully. 

(J Provide details of any past or pending litigation against the Proposer or its parent company or 
joint venture company (ies) by a governmental entity contracting with the Proposer or its 
parent for services relating to waste management services, or against such a governmental 
entity by the Proposer or its parent company or joint venture in the past five (5) years. Failure 
to disclose an accurate litigation history may result in disqualification of the proposal. 

(J Proposer must provide information detailing its worker safety record for the past five (5) 
years for the company and its affiliates in California or pertinent State(s) where it operates. 

(J The worker safety record information will include, but not be limited to, employee safety 
metrics commonly used in the industry such as the number of hours lost for individual 
injuries per employee and workers' compensation insurance ratios. 

6.5 Agreement Acceptance 
The HWMA is interested in selecting a Proposer that is prepared to sign the Agreement in its 
current form. Proposers may, if necessary, propose exceptions to the Agreement. Any exceptions 
must be accompanied by recommended alternative language such that if the alternative language 
is acceptable to the HWMA, the Proposer is prepared to sign the revised Agreement without 
further discussions or negotiations. 

The number and the substantive nature of the exceptions will be compared to those taken by 
other Proposers during the proposal evaluation process. If comments by the Proposer include 
significant exceptions to the HWMA's Agreement tenns, the Authority may reject the proposal 
regardless of its other merits and proposed service costs. 

At the sole discretion of the HWMA, all negotiations with the Proposers will be limited to the 
Proposer's comments and recommended alternative Agreement language contained in their 

D .. R- M=h 2015 REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS PROCESSING AND MARKETING OF RECYCLABLE MATERIAL 20 

61 



proposal. 

7.0 Cost Proposal and Cost Form 
Receiving cost effective and efficient recyclable processing and marketing services is a priority 
for the HWMA Member Agencies. The Proposer is required to submit its cost proposals using 
the Cost Forms in Attachment 2 for this submittal. The Attachment 2 Cost Form is divided into 
two (2) separate components: 

Form #1, Standard Cost Proposal 
o A. Receiving Facility Cost: The determination of the cost per ton by the Proposer related 

to the operation of a recyclables material receiving and loading facility. 

o B. Transportation Cost: The determination of the cost per ton related to the transportation 
of the Authority's mixed recyclable materials from the Eureka Recycling Cenler to the 
Proposer's processing facility. 

o C. Processing Cost: The determination of the cost per Ion related to the processing of the 
Authority's recyclable materials at the Proposer's processing facility. 

o D. Summation of All Cost Components: Proposers are required to sum Cost Components 
A, Band C into one (l) Total Cost per Ton Fee ($) for the services requested by the 
Authority for this RFP. For future rate escalation and Proposer compensation purposes, the 
Total Cost per Ton Fee will be the unit cost value submitted by the Proposer. 

Form #2, Cost Proposal with Revenue Sharing 
The Attachment 2 Cost Form #2 with Revenue Sharing includes the Cost Components listed 
above less a share of the sale revenues of commodities per ton: 

o A. Receiving Facility Cost: The determination of the cost per ton by the Proposer related 
to the operation of a recyclables material receiving and loading facility. 

o B. Transportation Cost: The determination of the cost per ton related to the transportation 
'ofthe Authority's mixed recyclable materials from the Eureka Recycling Center to the 
Proposer's processing facility. 

[J C. Processing Cost: The determination of the cosl per ton related to the processing of the 
Authority's mixed and source-separated recyclable materials at the Proposer's processing 
facility. 

[J D. The Determination ofthe Revenue per Ton from the Sales of Recyclables Credited 
Back to the HWMA. We understand that this will be based on the items included in the 
final agreement and revenue may vary in response to periodic market conditions. Proposer 
should propose a method for sharing revenue and demonstrate projected revenue at the date 
of the bid submittal and allow for annual market adjustments. 

o E. Summation of All Cost Components: Proposers are required to sum Cost Components 

DlUft - Man:h 2015 REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS PROCESSING AND MARKETING OF RECVClABLE MATERIAL 21 

62 



A, B, C less Component D into one (I) Total Cost per Ton Fee ($) for the services 
requested by the Authority for this RFP. For future rate escalation and Proposer 
compensation purposes, the Total Cost per Ton Fee will be the unit cost value submitted by 
the Proposer 

Section 8.0 Proposal Evaluation and Proposer Selection 

8.1 Proposal Evaluation Procedures 
The proposals will be evaluated based on their content, completeness, and clarity. Specific 
evaluation criteria has been developed that will focus on evaluating the information requested in 
the RFP. Proposals will be evaluated based on the extent to which they meet evaluation criteria. 

Proposals will be evaluated by a RFP Evaluation Committee (RFP Committee) consisting of two 
(2) HWMA staff members, and a staff member from each of the Authority Member Agencies. 
The Authority's Executive Director will help facilitate the process and support the RFP 
Evaluation Committee. The Executive Director will be available to answer questions by the RFP 
Evaluation Committee as needed, but will not have any proposal scoring and ranking voting 
authority. Each evaluator will review all proposals received using a set of established evaluation 
criteria that will be applied to identify the relative strengths and weaknesses of individual 
proposals. 

The ratings from the RFP Committee evaluators will be compiled to determine a preliminary 
ranking of the proposals based solely on the evaluation criteria. After initial evaluation of 
proposals and preliminary ranking, the RFP Committee may prepare a shortlist of Proposers to 
be interviewed. 

Invitations may be issued to Proposers on the shortlist to make oral presentations to and/or 
interviews with the evaluation team. Site visits to Proposer's representative facilities by RFP 
Committee members may also be required as part of the selection process. 

Based on the contents of submitted proposals, the results of interviews and oral presentations and 
site visits, if conducted, along with any other information requested by the HWMA, the RFP 
Committee will prepare a final ranking of the short listed Proposers and present its ranking to the 
HWMA Board. The Authority Board will have the sole and final authority to select a preferred 
Proposer, and will direct staff to enter into negotiations with the selected Proposer to provide the 
services outlined in this RFP. In the event the negotiations with the selected Proposer are 
unsuccessful, the Authority, in its sole discretion, may designate another Proposer from the list 
of shortlisted Proposers and enter into negotiations with that Proposer. 

8.2 Proposal Evaluation Categories and Factors 
Proposals will be numerically scored and ranked using the factors and weighting described in 
this section. The scores assigned will reflect the extent to which criteria is satisfied relative to 
other proposals The evaluation categories and maximum score that can be achieved for each 
category are presented in Table 6. 

Dmfi - M=h 2015 REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS PROCESSING AND MARKETING OF RECYCLABLE MATERIAL 22 

63 



Table 6: Proposal Evaluation Categories and Maximum Evaluation Score 

Proposal Evaluation Category Maximum 
Evaluation Score 

1 Company Qualifications, Financial Assurance, 'nfonnation and 15 
Exoerience 

2 Cost Proposal 40 
3 Operational Proposal 30 
4 Environmental Compliance, Environmental Enhancements, 10 

Workforce Compliance, Litigation History and Other 
considerations 

5 Agreement Acceptance 5 
Total Maximum Score 100 

The potential factors that may be considered by the proposal evaluation team when developing 
the score for each category are presented below. The factors which the Evaluation Team will 
score the proposals are outlined below. Proposer must be fully compliant with the RFP 
submission requirements, and rely on Sections 5 and 6 to guide the substance and form of their 
proposal. Proposers should not consider these category factors as being comprehensive or 
exhaustive 
Company's Qualifications, Financial Assurances, Information and Experience (Maximum 
15 pOints) 

o Company Experience: Demonstrated experience of the company in operating transfer 
stations, transporting waste and other materials, operation of recycling, processing and 
related facilities. 

o Past Performance Record: Review of company's history with litigation and regulatory 
action (e.g., nature of past and pending civil, legal, regulatory, and criminal actions; 
history and nature of payments of liquidated damages); regulatory compliance related to 
equipment and facilities including compliance with land use permits. environmental 
permits, highway requirements, etc. 

o Key Personnel Qualifications: Extent and relevance of the qualifications and experience 
of key personnel proposed for the team and on-going management of the operations. 

o Management: Demonstrated capabilities of the company's existing management and its 
responsiveness to the ongoing needs and requests of customers including: reporting, 
providing new services, tracking and monitoring operational activities, regulatory 
compliance, safety record, general quality of operations, billing and collection, scale 
house performance and management, and administrative services. 

o Financial Stability: Financial strength and ability of company to acquire equipment and 
provide financial assurance of performance based on review of its audited financial 
statements and its proposed financing plan. 

o Jurisdiction References: Level of satisfaction of jurisdictional customers with Proposer 

Drnfi - M=h 2015 REQUESTFOR PROPOSALS PROCESSING AND MARKETING OF RECYCLABLE MATERIAL 23 

64 



services. 

Cost Proposal (Maximum 40 points) 

o Reasonableness of Cost Proposal: Logical relationship between proposed costs and 
operational assumptions for the cost proposal. 

o Competitiveness of Cost Proposal: Cost competitiveness relative to other proposals 
submitted 

o Location and distance of the Proposer' s regional processing facility to each of the 
Member Agencies. 

o Revenue Sharing Plan: Reasonable relationship based upon the Marketing Plan, market 
conditions and potential revenue sharing.. 

Operational Proposal (Maximum 30 points) 

o Approach: Reasonableness and reliability of the proposed services (e.g., technology, 
equipment, and staffing levels,); reasonableness of productivity and operating 
assumptions (operating metrics). 

o The number and nature of jobs created or retained in Authority'S Member Agency 
jurisdictions over the life of the contract period, including pay scale and benefit package 
for each job category. 

o General Operations: Proposed methods of tracking and reporting operational activities 
such as productivity, staffing levels, and training programs. 

o Diversion Plans: Proposed methods to increase diversion of materials at processing 
facility, plans, and transfer station diversion commitments that the company may 
guarantee. 

o Processing System Design: The efficiency of the processing sorting equipment layout, 
equipment, personnel and use of technology in the proposed sorting system for the 
Authority'S recyclables. Scale software system capabilities, reliability, billing and 
reporting procedures. How the Proposer will handle the Authority's mixed-stream 
recyclables in combination with its other single-stream customers, if applicable. The 
functionality and capabilities of the sorting system including the tons per hour 
throughput, effectiveness at sorting materials, labor conservation, and employee working 
conditions. 

o Separation Efficiency: Proven effectiveness of the sorting system to deliver clean and 
fully separated commodity types and the ability of the system to capture recyclables and 
reduce residual. 

o Commodity Marketing Experience: Demonstrated ability to reliably market the 

Dra~- M""h 20lS REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS PROCESSING AND MARKETING OF RECYCLABLE MATERIAL 24 

65 



Authority's commodities and obtain the best revenues from commodity sales including: 
descriptions of current and past materials marketing experiences and purchase contracts 
with buyers that demonstrate the company's future price/volume commitments. 

Provide copies of all pertinent regulatory permits and contact names for regulatory agencies that 
monitor the facility's compliance with applicable local, state, and federa l laws. 

Environmental Enhancements, Workforce Compliance, Litigation History and Other 
Considerations (Maximum 10 points) 

o Green-house Gas (GHG) Emissions: Overall reduction in GHG through the use of 
alternative fuels in trucks and equipment; purchase or generation of renewable power in 
Proposer's buildings; or other GHG emission reduction proposals. 

o Market Enhancement: Identify domestic markets for recyclable materials and propose a 
plan for maximizing reuse or recycling within the US. 

o Proposer must provide information detailing its worker safety record for the past five (5) 
years for the company and its affiliates in California or pertinent Staters) where it 
operates. 

o The worker safety record information will include, but not be limited to, employee safety 
metrics commonly used in the industry such as the number of hours lost for individual 
injuries per employee and workers' compensation insurance ratios. 

o Provide a table showing the position and number as full-time equivalents (or partial FTE) 
of all company employees that will be involved with providing these services. 

o Describe any criminal proceedings in which the Proposer, and/or any director or officer 
of the proposer or affiliate and any individual identified as key personnel in the proposal 
has been named as a defendant that are either currently pending or were concluded within 
the past ten (10) years. For each proceeding, provide the name of the case, the court in 
which it was filed, and the docket number. 

o Describe any civil lawsuit in which the Proposer has been named as a defendant or cross
defendant, either currently pending or were concluded within the past five (5) years. For 
each lawsuit, provide the name of the case, the court in which it was filed, and the docket 
number. Lawsuits which involved only claims for personal injury or property damage 
arising from vehicle accidents which resulted in defense verdicts or in judgments against 
defendant, or settlements of less than $100,000, need not be disclosed. 

o Describe any administrative proceedings involving the Proposer initiated by federal, 
state, or local regulatory agencies that are either currently pending or were concluded 
within the past ten (10) years. For each, provide the name of the regulatory Authority, the 
nature of the proceeding, and the amount of any fines or penalties assessed. 

Number and Materiality of Exceptions to Agreement (Maximum 5 points) 

Dmft - M=h 2015 REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS PROCESSING AND MARKETING OF RECYCLABLE MATERIAL 25 

66 



Proposals will be scored based on the Proposer's acceptance of the Agreement without revisions. 
Although a Proposer may propose exceptions to the Agreement, points in this category will be 
given based on the fewer number of revisions proposed. Authority shall reserve the right to 
determine if the exceptions are reasonable; if proposed revisions are determined to be reasonable, 
points mayor may not be deducted. 

Section 9 Proposal Submittal Instructions 

9.1 Authority Contact and Address 
Proposers shall submit all correspondences, questions and the proposal submittal to the following 
contact individual: 

Jill Duffy 
Executive Director 

Humboldt Waste Management Authority 
1059 West Hawthorne Street 

Eureka, CA 95501 
Telephone number: 707.268.8464 

Email: jdu!Iy@hwrna.net 

9.2 Submittal of Written Questions 
HWMA requires Proposer to submit all questions and requests for information in writing (email 

is acceptable) directly to HWMA at the address listed in Section 9.1. The deadline for submitting 
written questions and requests for information will be Month Day, Year. HWMA will NOT 
accept questions or requests for information after Month Day, Year. 

9.3 Proposal Submittal Format 
The Proposer shall submit (8) double-sided copies in three-ring binders of the complete proposal 
and one (I) single- sided signed original, no later than 2:00 p.m. on Month Day, Year in a sealed 
package. In addition, Proposers must submit an electronic copy either on disk or USB drive of 
the proposal in Adobe PDF (preferred) or Microsoft Word shall be submitted with the sealed 
package. 

Proposals must be printed on 811," x II" paper with 30% or greater post-consumer recycled
content paper. All pages shall be consecutively numbered. 

The sealed package shall be clearly labeled: 
PROPOSAL TO HWMA FOR PROCESSING AND MARKETING OF RECYCLABLE 

MATERIALS: Name of Proposer: 

The proposal must be mailed or hand delivered to HWMA's Business Office address as cited in 
Section 9.1. Proposals received late will not be considered and will be returned unopened to the 
Proposer. Postmarks will not be accepted as proof of receipt. 

9.4 Clarification of Proposal Information 

Dr.lft - M=h 2015 REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS PROCESSING AND MARKETING OF RECYCLABLE MATERI,\L 26 

67 



Proposer may be asked to clarify information through written communications and interviews or 
during site visits of the Proposer's processing facility. The clarification process may be 
performed by H¥lMA staff, RFP Committee and/or Member Agency staff. 

9.S Presentation to HWMA Board 
One or more Proposers may be invited to present their proposals to the HWMA Board and 
Member Agencies. Invitations to present will be based on evaluation of the proposals at a time to 
be determined. 

9.6 Selection of Recommended Proposers 
After the HWMA selects and approves a Proposer, Agreement negotiations will commence. 
Upon notification of being selected to negotiate a contract, the Proposer will have seven (7) 
calendar days to provide a surety made payable to the HWMA in the amount of$100,ooO and in 
the foml of a cashier's check or surety bond. The purpose of the surety bond is to guarantee that 
the Proposer will execute in good faith the Agreement. If the selected Proposer does not execute 
the Agreement within thirty (30) calendar days after receiving notice of its selection, the HWMA 
reserves the right to keep the surety to offset potential costs associated with identification of an 
alternate service provider(s) and schedule delays. Un-cashed checks will be returned to all 
proposers within ten (10) calendar days after an Agreement is executed. 

9.7 Schedule 
The schedule for the RFP procurement process is presented in Section 2.4, Table I . 

9.8 Proposal Content 
Proposals must be submitted according the following format and include the following 
information: 

I. Cover letter providing: 

o Name, address, and telephone and fax number of Proposer and key contact person. 

o Description of type of organization (e.g., corporation, partnership) submitting proposal. 

o If teaming arrangement with is proposed, describe past working relationships on similar 
projects. 

o Name of entity that would sign the Agreement. 

o A statement that you have reviewed the requirements of the project as described in this 
RFP, its enclosures, and all addenda, by listing all addenda and dates received. 

o The cover letter and Forms must be signed by an officer or agent of the Proposer 
authorized to bind the Proposer. In signing proposal, the Proposer agrees that the terms of 
proposal and the cost as submitted by Proposer are firm for a period of one year from 
proposal due date and assures that a performance bond or other instrument as spec ified in 
the Agreement will be issued by the Proposer. 

DrnR - M=h 2015 REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS PROC ESSING AND MARKETING OF RECYCLABLE MATERIAL 27 

68 



2. Executive summary (not to exceed two pages) that highlights the major topics of your 
qualifications and proposal and clearly states the services the proposal addresses. 

3. Responses to all information requested in Section 4. Organize your responses into 
topics, and address each element following the format outlined below so that all 
requested information can be readily found. 

4. Proposal Outline 

Each proposal must address the topics and scope of work as stated in Sections 6 and 7 of the RFP 
in the following format: 

i. Title Page, Cover Letter, Table of Contents, Executive Summary 

I. Company Description, Experience and Qualifications Element 
I. Company Information 
2. Company Qualifications 
3. Key Personnel 
4. Personnel and Experience 
5. Litigation History 
6. Environmental Compliance 

II. Operations Element 
I. Methods and Procedures for Operations of the Recyclable Receiving Facility 
2. Transportation of Materials 
3. Processing Facility (MRF) Operation 
4. Materials Marketing Plan 

III. Financial Background Element 
I. Financial Stability, Materially Letter 
2. Financing Method 

IV. Proposed Environmental Enhancements Element 

V. Agreement Acceptance Component Element 

VI. Cost Proposals Element 
I. Cost Proposal Form # I 
2. Cost Form #2 

3. Anti-Collusion Affidavit Form 
4. Distance from Proposer's ReceivinglTransfer Facility to Member Agencies Form 

Appendix, Additional Information - Other information or data relevant to your proposal is 
optional and may be included as an Appendix to the proposal. 

D .. ~ - Man:h 2015 REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS PROCESSING AND MARKETING OF RECYClABLE MATERIAL 28 

69 



II Attachment 1: Agreement 

TO BE INSERTED-

Legal Counsel will initiate drafting once the Board has approved 
a DRAFT RFP. 

O .. ft - M=h 2015 REQUESTFOR PROPOSALS PROCESSING ANO MARKETING OF RECYCLABLE MATERIAL 29 

II 

70 



I Attachment 2: Cost Proposal Form #1 I 
Proposer Name: ________ _ 

A. Receiving Facility Cost: (Cost per ton 
related to the operation of a recyclables 
material receiving and loading facility.) Receiving Facility Cost ($) = $ Iton 

B. Transportation Cost: (Cost per ton related 
to the transportation orthe Authority's 
recyclable materials from the Eureka Transportation Cost ($) = $ Iton 
Recycling Center to the Proposer's processing 
facility.) 
C. Processing Cost: 
(Cost per ton related to the processing of the 
Authority's recyclable materials at the Processing Cost ($) = $ Iton 
Proposer's processing facility.) 
D. Summation of All Cost Components: 
(Sum Cost Components A, B and C into one 
(1) Total Cost per Ton Fee ($) for the services.) Total Cost Components ($) = $ Iton 

D .. ft- M""h 20lS REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS PROCESSING AND MARKETING OF RECYCLABLE MATERIAL 30 

71 



Attachment 2: Cost Proposal Form #2, Revenue Share 

Proposer Name: ________ _ 

A. Receiving Facility Cost: (Cost per ton 
related to the operation of a recyclables 
material receiving and loading facility.) Receiving Facility Cost ($) = $ Iton 

B. Transportation Cost: (Cost per ton related 
to the transportation of the Authority's 
recyclable materials from the Eureka Transportation Cost ($) = $ Iton 
Recycling Center to the Proposer's processing 
facili ty.) 
C. Processing Cost: 
(Cost per ton related to the processing of the 
Authority's recyclable materials at the Processing Cost ($) = $ Iton 
Proposer's processing facility.) 
D. Revenue Share: Mixed Recycling Revenue Share ($) -
(Revenue share related to the sales of $ Iton 
HWMA recovered materials. 

Source-Separated Revenue Share ($) = 
$ Iton 

Total Revenue Share ($) = $ Iton 
E. Summation of All Cost Components: 
(Sum Cost Components A, B, C less 
Component D into one (I) Total Cost per Ton Total Cost Components ($) = $ Iton 
Fee ($), Component D for the services.) 

Dmft - March 2015 REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS PROCESSING AND MARKETING OF RECYCLAB LE MATERIAL 31 

72 



Attachment 3: Distance from Proposer's Receiving facility to 
Member Agencies Form 

Proposer Name: _______ _ 

965 Rivenvalk Drive, 

Dmft - Morch ZOIS REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS PROCESSING AND MARKETING OF RECYCLABLE MATERIAL 32 

73 



Attachment 4 Anti-Collusion Statement Form 

The under signed Proposer has not divulged to, discussed, or compared his/her proposal 
with other Proposers and has not colluded with any other Proposer or parties to the 
proposal whatsoever. Proposer acknowledges that all information contained herein is part 
of the public domain as defined in the guidelines in Section 2.7 Limits on Disclosure of 
Proposals as stated in the RFP and as governed by the State of California. 

I certify that this proposal is made without prior understanding, agreement or 
connection with any corporation, firm or person submitting a proposal for the same 
service, and is in all respects fair and without collusion. I agree to abide by all 
conditions of these proposal specifications and I certify that I am authorized to sign 
this proposal. 

(Please type or print below) 

Executed under penalty of perjury on this ___ d.ay of ____ , 2016 at _____ ' 

SIGNED BY: ____________________________________ ___ 
TITLE: 
ORGAN~IZA~T=I~O~N~:---------------------------------

Subscribed and sworn to before me this ____ ,day of ____ ----', 2015 at ____ ' 

Notary Public 
My Commission expires: 

Drufi - Marcb 2015 REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS PROCESSING AND MARKETING OF RECYCLABLE MATERIAL 33 

74 



Rio Dell City Hall 
675 WildwoodAvellue 
Rio Dell, CA 95561 
(707) 764-3531 
riodellcity.colII 

April 21, 2015 

TO: Rio Dell City Council 

FROM: Kyle Knopp, City Manager 

CITY Of 

j"AM\ 
(RlS ) DELL 

SUBJECT: Discussion and Possibl Action Regarding Contracts for Services at the 
Metropolitan Well Site 

IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT THE CITY COUNCIL: 

The Council should review the contracts and provide comment, if any. 

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 

Work at the Metropolitan Well Site is scheduled to occur far quicker than originally hoped. This 
is good in terms of keeping our goal of achieving project completion within 2015. We have a 
signed contract y,ith ABC Liovin Inc. for work on the Monitoring We11s, however, we do not 
have a signed contract at the time of agenda publication for the weIl rehabilitation work at the 
Metropolitan WeIl Site. 

Staff wiIl provide a copy of the rehabilitation contract to the council via email as soon as 
possible. 

Attached to this agenda is a copy of the contract with ABC Liovin Inc. for the construction of 
three monitoring weIls at the Metropolitan Site, as required by the State. 

III 

75 



NOTICE OF AWARD 

TO; Ivan Lievin. ABC Lievin Drilling Inc. 
1180 East Burne" Street 
Signal Hill. CA 90755 

PROJECT: Metropolitan Monitoring Weilinstailatign 

City of Rio Doll 
Metropofrtan Moniloring Weilinstalla~on 

The OWNER has considered the BID submitted by you for Ihe above described WORK in response 10 ils 
Advertisement for BIDS dated March 20" 2015. and Information for BIDDERS. 

You are hereby notified that your BtD has begn accepted for items in the amounl of 

Nineteen Thousand. Eighl Hundred Dollars ($19 BOO.OOl 

You are required by the tnformation for BIDDERS to execute the Agreement and furnish the required 
Contracto(s certificates of insurance and bonds wilhin seven (7) calendar days from the date this Notice 
is received by you. 

If you fail to execute said Agreement and to furnish said INSURANCE withm fourtegn (14) cays from the 
date of receipt of this Notice, said OWNER will be entitled to consider all your rights arising out of the 
OWNER'S acceptance of your BID 85 abandoned and as a forfeiture of your BID BOND. The OWNER 
will be entitled to such other rights as may be granted by law. 

You are required to return an acknowledged copy of this NOTICE OF AWARD to the OWNER, 

Daled this ('6ofi-day of A r r " . 20 I c:;; 
Owner: City of R,o Dell 

By. 7~'7~ T~ ~CCEPTANCE OF NOTICE 

C ,-/-.., 

Receipt of lhe above NOTICE OF AWARD is hereby acknowledged by. 

86c.. WOVlf\ Urlll"0;i .kOc. 
(Name of Contr lor) 

Daled this ~ day of I\pril 
By (h-

,20 lS 
litle. ---,P...:..( e=:J=1 J...!:.-t'v1!",!.T!.....-__ 

Part 2 Cor.lraa Documents 

76 



; 
c r KID DELL 

City of Rio Dell 
Metropolitan Monitoring Wellinstalialion 

RECEIVED CONTRACT AGREEMENT 

THIS AGREEMENT, MADE THIS __ C\:..!......_ DAY OF _...!.PrLl?...!.r.!,l1 \'---__ " 20l? by and 

between the Crr_ of Rio Dell, hereinarter caned "Owner; and 

f\\?)L LIOVI() 1)n\li{\~ -.:me. 
doing business as LlXp.Jr G\i10{1 . 
(insert "a corporalion:"a partnership: or "an individuar as applicable). 

WITNESSETH: Thai for and in consideralion of Ihe payments and agreements hereinafter mentioned: 

1. The Conlraclor will commence and complele Ihe: 
Melropolilan Monitorino WeD Inslallalion 

2. The Contraclor will furnish all of Ihe malerial, supplies. tools, equipmenl, labor and olher 
services necessary for Ihe conslrucbon and complelion of Ihe project described herein. 

3. The Conlraclor will commence Ihe work required by the Conlracl Documents wilhln five 
(5) calendar days after the date of the Notice to Proceed and will complete the same 
within Ihe lime provided In Seclion B-35 of the General CondiUons, unless Ihe period for 
completion is eXlended otherwise by the Conlracl Documenls. 

4. The Contraclor agrees 10 perform all of the work described in the Conlracl Documenls 
and comply wilh lerms Iherein for the sum of S i q 5! DD, () l) , or as shown in the 
Bid Schedule. 

5. The Conlracl Documenls conslsl of Ihe Bidding Requirements, Conlracl Forms, 
Condolions of Ihe Conlracl, the Specificalions, and Ihe Plans, including all modificalions 
Ihereof incorporaled inlo the documenls before Iheir execulion. and including all olher 
requirements Incorporaled by specific reference therelo. These form the Contract. 

6. The Owner will pay 10 Ihe Contraclor in the manner and al such times as set forth in Ihe 
General Conditions such amounts as required by Ihe Conlracl Documenls. 

7. This Agreemenl shall be binding upon all parties herelo and Iheir respeclive heirs. 
execulors. adminislralors, successors, and assigns. 

8. The general prevailing rales of per diem wages shall be paid by the Conlraclor. 

9. This is a Public Works Projecl funded with CA State funds (Proposilion 84). Therefore CA 
Siale prevailing wage rales will be required on Ihls project. Pursuanllo CA Labor Code 
1725.5 all cantraclofs and subcontrac\ors musl be currently registered and be in good 
standing with Ihe Departmenl of Induslrial Relalions 10 be fisled on a bid and work on a 
public works project. All conlractors musl electronically submit their payroll 10 the 
Department of Industrial Relalions and submit their payroll to North Valley Labor 
Compliance Services 714-408-8687. An conlraclors and subcontractors wort<ing on Ihis 
project must keep certified payrolirecords in accordance with Labor Code 1776. 

10. In accordance wilh Labor Code 1720, Ihe Division of Labor Standards and Research has 
delermined the general prevailing rales or wages and employer payments for health and 

Patl2 2·' Contract Documenls 

77 



" 
City of RID Dell 

Metropolitan Monitoling Wellinslallation 

welfare, pension, vacation, travel time, and subsistence pay as provided for in section 
1773,8. Hotiday and overtime work when permitted by law shaU be paid for at a rate of at 
teast one and one-hatf times the above specified rate of per diem wages, untess 
otherwise specified. The State prevailing wage sheets are on file at the City's office. 

11. It shall be mandatory upon the Contractor herein and upon any Subcontractor to pay not 
less than the said specified rates to all laborers, workers and mechanics employed by 
Ihem in the execution of the Agreement pursuant to CA Labor Code 1774. 

12. Atlention is directed to the provisions In section 1777.5 and sections 1777.6 of the Labor 
Code conceming the requirement to employ apprentices by the Contractor or any 
Subcontractor under it. 

13. The Contractor shall comply with and shall cause his subcontractors to compty with all 
laws and regulations govemlng the contractor's and subcontractor's performance on this 
project inctuding, but not limited to: anti discrimination taws, workers' compensation laws, 
and prevaiting wage taws as set forth in CA Labor Code, Sections 1720-1861 et seq. and 
licensing taws, as well as Federal Labor Standards set forth in the Davis-Bacon Act (40 
USC 276(a-a5), the Copeland "Anti-Kickback" Act (40 USC 276©; and the Contract Work 
Hours and Safety Standards Act (CWHSSA) (40 USC 327-333). The contractor is 
required to include the prevaifing wage tanguage in all subcontracts pursuant to CA Labor 
Code 177S(E)(b)(1). The Contractor shall post, at appropriate conspicuous points on the 
site of the Project, a schedute showing all the determined gene rat prevailing wage rates. 

14. The Contractor agrees to compty with Labor Code Section 1775 (Payment of the 
Prevailing Wage Rates) and Labor Code 1776 (keeping accurate records) and Labor 
Code 1777.5, placing responsibmty for compliance with the statutory requirements for all 
apprenticeable occupations on the prime contractor. The Contractor shall comply with the 
requirements imposed by the Catifornia Labor Code Sections 1720 through 1861 
regarding public works projects and prevailing wage laws and sections 16000-16800 of 
the CA Code of Regulations. 

15. Contractors and any Subcontractors shall be assessed penalties for violating the following 
labor codes; CA Labor Code 1813 for overtime, 1775 for underpayment of the prevailing 
wage, and 1776 for inaccurate or incomplete payroll records. 

Contract Documents Part 2 

78 



City 01 Rio 0.1i 
Melropol~.n Monilorlng Wellln,lallation 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have execuled. or caused 10 be executed by Iheir duly 
aulhorized officials, Ihis Agreement in quadruplicate, each of which shall be deemed an original on Ihe 
date firsl above written. 

OWNER: 

Oate .Jf-IVL~ 

Pon 2 2·3 

CONTRACTOR: 

IvlIy\LOy1\!\ 

Title \\'fJ\!iknt 
Date y-q-Is 
f\f,c. 1I0v\Y' Dr1l\t{l9 1:r(. 

Contractor 

ntle, __________ _ 

Oale, __________ _ 

Contract Documents 

79 



r 
(Premium included in the Performance bond) 

Bond No: 024057563 
City 01 Rio Dell 

w'ettopohtan MonitDnng We'llnstaUation 

PAYMENT BOND 

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS that 

ABC Liovin Drilling, Inc. 

(Nama of Contractor) 
1180 E Burnett Street, Signal Hill, CA 90755 

(Address of Contractor) 

a ...;c:.o:.:.r!p~o~r~a:.;t;i.:.o.:.n.;...."..-::.-,--:-.,-_:-c:-:-:-::-___ ___ ______ • hereinafter 
(Corporation, Partnership, or Individual) 

ca"~d PrlOClpal, and The Ohio Casual t v Insurance Company 
(Name of Surety) 

62 Maple Avenue , Keene, NH 03431 

(Address of Surety) 

herelnafte, called Surety, are held and firmly bound unto 

City of RIO Dell 
(Name of Owner) 

675 WildWood Drive R,o Deli CA 95562 
(Address of OYmerj 

hereinafter ca led Owner, in the penal sum of 

Ni n eteen Thousand Eight Hundred -------- DoUars (S 19 / BOO. DO 

in lawful money of tt,e United States, for th" payment 01 which sum well and truly to b" made we b nd 
ourseNIOS successors, and assigns, jOintly and seve,any firmly by these pllOSents 

THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION is such that whereas, the Principal entered Into a cecta n 
conllact WIth the Owner, dated ___ day of ,20_1_5_, a copy of which IS hereto 
attaChed and made a part hereof for tI1e construction of 

Metrocolltan Monitoring We11nstallation 

NOW, THEREFORE, if Ihe Principal shall promptly make payment to all persons firms succontractors, 
and corpcrat,ons furnishing malenals for or perform,ng labor in the prosecution of the work prOVided for ,n 
such contract, and any authonzed extension or modification thereof, including a I amounts due for 
materials. :ubncants, oil. gaso'ine, coa ' and coke repa 'rs on machinery, equipment and tools, consumed 
or used in connection with the construction of such wor~, and all insurance premiums of sa:d work, and lor 
a!I ..... ages and fringe benef.ts of labor, performed In .Loch work. whether by subcontractor or otherwise 
then thIS obligation shall be void, otherwis" to rema,n '" lun lorce and effect. 

PROVIDED, FURTHER, that the said Surety for value received hereby stipulated and agrees that no 
cha~ge, extens on of time, a~eration or add~10n to the terms of tI1e contract or to the work to be performed 
thereunder or the speCifications accompany'ng the same shall In any wise affect Its obligation on thiS 

Part 2 2·7 Contract Documents 

80 



Bond No: 024057563 

City 01 RID Dell 
MeITDpolitan Monitanng Wen Install.ticn 

bond, and it does hereby waive nolice 01 any such change, extensIOn of t me aUeratlon or addition to the 
terms of the contract or to the work or to the specifications 

PROVIDED, FURTHER, that no final settlement between the Owner and the Contractor shall abridge the 
right of any beneficiary hereunder, whose claim may be unsa~sfied 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF thIS instruments executed in 2 counterparts, each one of which shall be 
deemed an or.ginal, thiS ~ day 01 Apr iI, 2015 

ATTEST 

(PrinCipal) Secretary 

Witness as to Pllnclpal 

Address 

AneST 

Waness as to Surety 

Address 

ABC Liovin Drilling, Inc. 

6:rinCIPal flJ 
11BO E Burnett Street 

Address 

Signal Hill. CA 90755 

The Ohio Casualty Insurance Compan y 

Surety 

By /3A(~ 
AUorney •. n-Fact , Blake A Pfister 

62 Maple Avenue 

Address 

Keene, NH 03431 

Local : c / o L lber Ey Mutua l 
790 The City Dr SoI200,Orange.CA.92668 

NOTE Date 01 bond must not be pllor t~ date 01 Contract If Contractor IS PartnerShip, all partners shou'd 
execute bond (714) 634-3311 

tMPORTANT Surety comparues execubng bonds must appear on the Treasury Departmenrs most 
current liS! (Cllcular 570 as amended) and be authorized to transact buSiness In the State where the 
project IS located 

Contract Documents P..,2 

81 



CALIFORNIA ALL-PURPOSE ACKNOWLEDGMENT CML CODE § 1189 
w 

A nolaty public or other officer completing this certiIicaIe verifies only the Identity of the individual who signed \he 
document to which this certiIicaIe Is attached, and not the truthfulness, accuracy, or vaJIdity of that document. 

State of California 

County of Qrange 

On April 8, 2015 

Date 
before me, Lianne Nahina, Notary Public 

HeTfi Insert Name and TItle of tha Officer 
personally appeared Bla ke A, Pfister 

Name(s) of Slgne,(6) 

who proved to me on the basis of IIIItlsfactory evidence to be the ~I/J whose name(s) lsi .. 
subscribed to the within Instrument and acknowledged to me that heI--.v executed the same In 
hlslllWi 111,. authorized capacity8lltj. and that by hls-..,.,t. ' &lg~ on the Instrument the pe!15Onfl. 
or the entity upon behall 01 which the person(tt acted. executed the Instrurnenl 

I certify under PENAL TV OF PERJURY under the laws 
01 the Stata 01 Cslifomla that the foregoing paragraph 
Is true and correct. 

WITNESS rny hand and official seal. 

Place Notary Seal Above 

------------------------- OPnO~---------------------------
Though this section Is optional. completing this InfCJmlation can deter alteration of the document or 

fraudulent reattachment of this form to an unintended document. 

Descripllon of Attached Document . 
TItle or Type of Document: Bond 024057563 Document Date: Apnl 8 . 2015 

Number of Pages: 2 Signer(s) Other Than Named Above: NIA, Non .. ....:...------

Capacity(les) Claimed by Slgner(s) 
Signer's Name: Bl ake A. Pfis t er 
o Corporate Officer - Trtie(s): _____ _ 
o Partner - 0 Urnited 0 General 
o Individual IE Attorney in Fact 
o Trustee 0 Guardian or Conservator 
o Other: -::-__ -:-:---:::-:---:~:___::_ ___ __:;-:-: 
Signer Is Representing: The Ohio Casualty 
Insurance Comp any .. 

Signer's Name: -------
o Corporate Officer - litie(s): _-,-___ _ 
o Partner - 0 Umlted 0 General 
o Individual 0 Attorney in Fact 
o Trustee 0 Guardian or Conservator o Other: ____________ _ 

SIgner fs Representing: _______ _ 

02014 Natlonal Notary AssoeIatlon • www.NationaiNotary.org • 1-800-U8 NOTARY (HKJO-876-6827) Item M5907 

82 



THIS POWER OF ATTORNEY IS NOT VAUD UNLESS IT IS PRINTED ON RED BACKGROUND. 
Thb __ 01 AIIDrn'lY Imt. IhI.oIS 01Il10 ......... hlllln, wilily hlYI no authority 10 bind thO Compony l....,r In thO ...... and 10 l1li utanllImin IWd. 

American Fire and ca",ally Compa1y 
Tho Otoio Casualty 1nS\Blte ~y 

liIle~y l.\JIuBl1n5UlillCe Company 
West American 1nSUIance ~y 

A t~~~~~ ~~ 'iflim~~3 

Certil'k:ate: No . .mwr. 

KNOWN ALL PERSONS 9YTHESC PI1fSEHTS: ThaI AftricaI F"n & CosuaIIyCoor!>anY "'" Tl>e Olio CI5IIaIy"""""'" ~ .... ~ ~org_ under IhD laws of 
the 5IIIt ofNow~ ..... Uber!y WuoI iIRI<an<e C_yls I Q)IJXlI'OIiOn duly DJpIIized underlhD laws DIllie 5IIIt Dft.'asaal:tolsellS. "'" WestAmeri:on II1SIdlC8 Cc!qlany 
Is. a>rpor1Iian du~OIg8iz!d undarJlllIaws 01 JIll SJaJo Drln:!iana 1 __ lycaJod IhD ·CO ........ ,.,....,1I1I to RI by IIIIhoIIy ",,"", .. I fDr1h. does hereby ....... conslilllie 
and 1IP!IDIn1. Blake A. Pfister 

and deliver. lor and DOlls_IS SIdty mf .. 1Is a:t "'" _ . aly and .. ~ bonds. __ """ _SIllIly obigoliDns. in _tDlJhesa pments """ WI 
be .. binding upon JIll CofIlIIries IS n IIey 11M bee __ cIIIly signed by lie fR'ldent and _ by lie seaeJstyor lie eo..,Iries in tnIir""" __ 

IN 'MThESS IIt1EREOF. lib I'IrMIr Dr AIJomay has ben 511b_ by II1I1U111orizzd ofbr or _ of II. Companies "'" lie c:orpor.ie soaIs Dr IhD ~. have been llilixed 
IiIemo dis 21st day of Odobt t 2014 

83 



(eFemium subject to adjustment based on final contract price) 

Bond No: 024057563 

City of Rio Doll 
Metropolitan Monitoring Wen Instollabon 

Premium:$594 

PERFORMANCE BOND 

KNOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS. that 

ABC Liovin Drilling, Inc. 

(Name of Contractor) 

1180 E Burnett Street, Signal Hill, CA 90755 

(Address of Contractor) 

a _.::.c.::.o.::.r:..!p'-o:..:.l:".::a.::.t.::.i.::.o.::..::.n...,..,_-=---:-_-:-:-_...,......"...,.,.......". _____________ . hereinafter 
(Corporation. Partnership. or Individual) 

called Principal. and The Ohio Casualty Insurance Company 
(Name of Surety) 

62 Maple Avenue, Keene, NH 03431 

(Address of Surety) 

hereinafter called Surety. are held and firmly bound unto 

City of Rio Dell 
(Name of Owner) 

675 Wildwood Drive RIo Dell CA 95562 
(Address of Owner) 

hereinafter called Owner In the penal sum of 

Nineteen Thousand Eight Hundred -------- Dollars(S 19,800.00 

In lawlul money of Ihe United States. for the payment of which sum well and truly to be made we b nd 
ourselves successors. and assigns Jointly and severally. firmly by these presents 

THE CONDITION OF THIS OBLIGATION Is such thai whereas. the Principal entered Into a certain 
conlract wIIh the Owner. dated ___ day of .20-ll, a copy of which IS hereto 
attached and made a part hereof for the construct ion of 

Metrooolitan Monitoring Weilinstaliation 

NOW THEREFORE. If the Principal shall well. truly and faithfully perform ~s duties. a'i the undertaking 
covenants. terms. condlllOns. and agreements of said contract dUring the original term thereof, and any 
extensions thereof which may be granted by the Owner. with or wIIhout notice to the Surety and dUring 
one year (minimum) guaranty period. and If he shall satisfy all claims and demands incurred under such 
contract and shall fully Indemnify and save harmless the Owner from all costs and damages which It may 
surrer by reason of failure to do so. and shall reimburse and repay the Owner all outlay and expense which 
the Owner may incur in making good any defaun, then this obligation shall be void. othelWlSe to remain in 
full force and effect 

PROVIDED. FURTHER. that the said Surety for value received hereby stipulates and agrees that no 
change. extension of lime. atteratlon or addibon to the terms 01 the Contract or to the work to be 
performed thereunder of the Specifications accompanying the same shall In any WISe affect its ob igatlon 
on thiS bond. and ~ does hereby waive notice of any such change. extens,on of time alteraton or addlt,on 
to the terms of the conlract or to the work or to the SpeCifications 

P.~ 2 2·5 Conbilct Documents 

84 



Bond No: 024057563 

City of Rio Dell 
Metrapclitan Monitoring Waliinstalfabon 

PROVIDED. FURTHER. thai no final senlement between the Owner and the Contractor shall abridge the 
righl of any beneficiary hereunder. whose claim may be unsalisfied 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF. this instrument is executed In .L counterparts. each one of which shall be 
deemed an original. this 8th dayol April .20~ 

ATTEST 

(PrinCIpal) Secretary 

W~ness as to Principal 

Address 

ATTEST 

Witness as to Surety 

Address 

ABC Liovin Drilling, Inc. 

~rlnciPa12 

1180 E Burnett Street 
Address 

Signal Hill, CA 90755 

The Ohio Casualty Insurance Company 

Surely A . 
8y /J 1:('-..... 
Anomey-ln-Fact,Blake A pfister 

62 Maple Avenue 

Address 

Keene, NH 03431 

Local: c/o Liberty Mutual 

790 The Citv Dr Sol200,oranCle,CA9286B 
NOTE: Dale 01 Bend must nol be proOf to dale 0 Contract If Confractor IS Partnership a .. partrfers 
should execute Bond 

(714) 634-3311 

IMPORT ANT Surety companies execu~ng Bonds must appear on the Treasury Department's most 
current bst (Circular 570 as amended) and be authonzed to transact buSiness in the State where the 
prOJect is locati!d 

Contract Documents 

85 



CALIFORNIA ALL·PURPOSE ACKNOWLEDGMENT CML CODE § 1189 

A nolaly public or other officer completing INs ceftificate verifies only !he Identity of !he inOrvIduaI who signed the 
documenllO whIch Ihls certificalels attached, and nollhe lruthfulness, SCCUtBCy, or vaJid"rIy of !hat document 

) 

) 

Slate of CalIfornIa 

County of Orange 

On April 8, 2015 

Date 
before me, Lianne Nahina, Notary Public 

Here Insert Name and T1tIe of the Officer 

personally appeared Blake A. Pfister 
Name(s) of Slgner(s) 

who proved to me on the bBSIs of eatlsfactory evidence to be the penson(4Il whose name(s) lsI.
subscribed to the wIthIn Instrument and acknowledged to me that heidi 1_ executed the same In 
h1siM1/*"oIi authorized capac~, and that by 1IIsIJo1III!I5.' &Igna~ 011 the Instrument the pensonM, 
or the entity upon behaJf of which the personlt! acted, executed the Instrumenl 

I certify under PENAL 1Y OF PERJURY under the laws 
of the State of Califomla that the foregoing paragraph 
Is true and correct. 

WITNESS my hand and official seal. 

SkJnal~k/ug/2A.. 
-~ature of Notary Public 

Place Notery Seal Above 
--------------------------OPnONAL--------------------------

Though this secllon Is opllonal, completing this Informallon can deter alterallon of the document or 
fraudulent reattachment of this form /0 an unintended document. 

Description of Attached Document 
TItle or Type of Document: Bond 024057563 Document Oate: April 8, 20 15 
Number of Pages: 2 Signer{s) Other Than Named Above: I1NI...1",A.I..' ~No>W.n ... e ______ _ 

Capacity(ies) Claimed by SIgner1s) 
SkJ~sName: Blake A. Pfister 
U Corporate Officer - TItle(s): __ -:-______ _ 
o Partner - 0 Umited 0 General 
o Individual I2l Attorney In Fact 
o Trustee 0 Guardian or Conservator 
o Other: __ ---..,....-=,.---..",.,...,----,:--___ ...-::-:' 
Signer Is Representing: The Ohio Casualty 

Insurance Company 

• 2 leGN 

Signer's Name: -------
o Cofporate Officer - Trtle(s): __ -:-______ _ 
o Partner - 0 Umlted 0 General 
o Individual 0 Attorney In Fact 
o Trustee 0 Guardian or Conservator o Other. ::-__ .,-________ _ 
SIgner Is Representing: _______ _ 

& 

C2014 National Nolaly AssoclatIon • www.NaUonaINolaly.OfQ ' 1-8OQ.US NOTARY (1·800-876-6827) Hem .5907 

86 



THIS POWER OF ATTORNEY IS NOT VALID UNLESS IT IS PRINTED ON RED BACKGROUND. 
TIllar-pi ~ Hmib IhIlotJ oIthosl .. mid hIIIIn. and tilly lin. no llIIIIorItylo bind thl Compony .... Ijl\ In 1111_ Ind ID tho IJIInI hIIIIn._ 

Ceftificate No .IZ.1lZ!1. 
American F .... and Casually ~y 
The Cllio Casualty Insurance Company 

Uberty Mrtuallnsuraf1ce Company 
West American InSUlalCe ~y 

and d<Wer. ~ and on 115 bellall as .... ty ond as is 11:1 and deed, any and alllIIMftrtaIoiIlg~ bonds, __ and _ 5IJI!Ity obigrion •• i1 ptI>IJftII 0I1hese preoonb and shall 
be .. biId~ upon tho ~ .. If thoy 11M boon duly signed by tho pIooidenI and'- by tho SICIIIay oltho ~ in their """ _ """'"', 

IN WIlNESS \\HEREOF, II1i$ _ of AIIlmey has been !IIIbsc:ribed by III _ _ 01 officiaf of Iho C...,.....and lie COlpO .... _ 01 tho eon,..ies ""'" betn _ 
tho .... 1flIs .'S Cay of Oct""" .l21L, 

148 o/sco 

87 



Rio Dell City Hall 
675 Wildwood Avenue 
Rio Dell, CA 95562 
(707) 764-3532 
riodel/cit),.com 

April 21, 2015 

TO: Rio Dell City Council 

FROM: Kyle Knopp, City Manag~ 
SUBJECT: Discussion and Possible Action Authorizing staff to issue a Progress Payment to 
Groundwater Pump & WelIlnc. for work on the Metropolitan Well Rehabilitation Project 

IT IS RECOMMENDED THAT THE CITY COUNCIL: 

That the Council authorize a progress payment to Groundwater Pump & Well Inc. not to exceed 
$10,000.00 

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 

In negotiating with Groundwater Pump & Well Inc., the contractor made a request for half of the 
project cost up front, or approximately $18,142.20. Throughout our discussions, the contractor 
has maintained that some form of early payment is necessary for their work. 

Staffhas informed Groundwater Pump & WelI Inc. that an item would be placed on the agenda 
seeking authorization from the Council for no more than $10,000.00 in payment. StafT will 
present a number for the council to authorize that is reflective of costs incurred by the contractor 
for services rendered on Monday April 20th and Tuesday April 21 st . These costs would likely 
include mobilization costs and initial investigation costs. No prepayment for future work will be 
recommended by staff. 

1/1 

88 



675 Wildwood Avenue 
Rio Dell, Ca 95562 
(707) 764-3532 

TO: 

FROM: 

THROUGH: 

DATE: 

SUBJECT: 

CITY OF RIO DELL 
STAFF REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 
April 21, 2015 

Mayor and Members of the City Council 

Karen Dunham, City Clerk 

Kyle Knopp, City Manag~ 

April 21, 2015 P 
City Council Protocols and Possible Adoption of New Rules of Order 

RECOMMENDATION 

CiTY OF 

J.~ ~ 
~ 

CAlJOL .... 

I) Adopt Rosenberg's Rules of Order as the City'S parliamentary procedures for the conduct of 
its meetings; or 
2) Take no action and keep Robert's Rules of Order as the City's parliamentary procedures; and 
3) Review the 20 II City Council Protocols: discuss any recommended changes and direct staff 
to return with the update for formal adoption as the Council's guiding rules of procedure in 
conjunction with the adopted rules of order, 

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION 

This item is back for further discussion and consideration at the direction of the Council at the 
March 3, 2015 study session, After a fairly lengthy discussion and review of the City Council 
protocols and rules of order. staff was directed to return to the Council with copies of the latest 
version of Robert ' s Rules of Order (in brief) for review and comparison with Rosenberg's Rules 
of Order as well as review and/or revision of the 20 II City Council Protocols. 

Staff sent out an inquiry through a City Clerk Listserv to. obtain information and comments on 
their jurisdiction's rules of order and received a total of34 responses. Attached is the spreadsheet 
summarizing those responses. For Council's review, staff purchased copies of the newly revised 
Robert's Rilles of Order. ll'h Edition including a Spark Chart which basically condenses the 669 
pages dO\\TI to 6 pages. 

89 



Also provided at the March 3'd meeting was a Draft Council Mee/ing Pr%eol sheet with an 
overall mission statement and a list of II high priority protocol subjects. Staff recommends this 
be included as part of the city council protocol update. 

The City Council has relied on Rober/ 's Rilles of Order in the past to provide guidance on 
parliamentary issues or questions related to the conduct of meetings but it is cumbersome and 
sometimes difficult to interpret whereas Rosenberg's Rilles of Order are a modernized and 
simplified version of parliamentary rules that generally shadow Rober/ 's Rilles but are much 
easier to follow and understand. 

Rober,'s Rules of Order were published in 1876 and not really drafted with local governments in 
mind and do not address certain issues related to local government such as: 

I) the need for public comment and public hearings, 
2) the provisions for special Mayoral powers, 
3) the use of abstentions for political purposes, 
4) the special role of staff during city council meetings; and 
5) assumes that all meeting participants will conduct themselves with decorum and 

respect and that they will always follow the rules and abide by the decisions of the 
chair. 

Although Rosenberg's Rules of Order doesn't specifically address these issues either, it does 
address the major rules of parliamentary procedure. Adoption of official rules of order whether 
il be Robert 's or Rosenberg's as the general procedures along with a comprehensive set ofCily 
Council protocols or rules of procedures will provide the necessary lools to govern the order and 
conduct of all City Council meetings and related board meetings. 

The Cities of Sacramento, Napa, Riverside and a few others I surveyed have adopled their own 
Council rules and procedures since there is no stale law requiring local government to adopt a 
particular set of rules. To the extent that their ru les do not address an issue of parliamentary 
procedure, Rosenberg's Rules or Robert ' s Rules then apply. 

Attachments: 

I) Robert 's Rules of Order II'h Edition 
2) Robert's Rules of Order Spark Chart 
3) Rosenberg's Rules of Order 
4) Robert 's vs. Rosenberg's Rules of Order Comparison Sheet 
5) Single page Mission Statement and Council Meeting Protocol Summary 
6) City of Sacramento Council Rules of Procedure 
7) 20 II City Council Protocols 

90 



INTRODUCTION 
Robert'. Rules 0' Ord. r is a documenl lhol explains 
gcmeral parliamentary pro<edurc II has become Ihe 
slandard reference for alllypcs of business meelings 
that require a pornomonlory aulhorily. hom small 
Iocol organlzalions 10 large corpora lions f obert's 
Rules 01 Order provides guidelines fhat prOletllhc 
rights 01 individual group members, Ihe mojorlly. Ihe 
minority, obsentees, and all parlles as a whole This 
chart summarlzes the mOSllmpOrlanl points contained 
in Roberr's Rules of Order Businesses and groups 01 
on kinds may follow theso bask rules 01 procedure 10 
govern !helr organizat,on. hold effective meetings, and 
ensure equal, fair trealment for 011 01 their members 

EVOLUTION OF PARLIAMENTARY PRDCEDUhE 

In 1845, i.&ItMt Cushing, dett. of the Massachtlsetts Hoose i s. Only one member rnoy" have the floot at a ti", • . When 
01 Representatives, publlstled Cushing's Manual, which member has been 4ISigned tt.. loot, or ztven the ritht I 
attempted to provide aukJeUnes for ordinary, \<OIOnt.vy sod· speaIr:, othef members normaIty may not interrup1. 
eties. CUshlni's Id&a that e.xh ocgantzadon shOUld astabAsh 6. fill debot. .. aaow.d on 011 quuttons. uNeu the rult 
Its own rules 01 order proved to be unreall5tit In practfce. do not allow deboN. Members IM'/ debate fully each pn 
In 1876, army officer Henry M. RoIMrt wrote • l1&'page '101. posed main motion. certain secondary motions, hOwever. Sf 
ume of rules for ortIlnary societies called the pod:~t Manual not debabble. 
of Rules of Older for DeIl~tJtive AsSemblies.. His publisher 7. The blue. not 1M person. is atwap what II unde, conslc 
shortened the tttIe to Irob«t".lfula of ()rooftr. etaflon. Memben should confine theIt remarks to the me 
.. 1915. Roboft pubII:shed IloIwt'I JuIa of Ord« hWsed. , Its DI the pendinI question ond should not matt CI\spar881n 
which ~. expanded. and t/arlfled the &artier edf· i comments aboUt other members or their motives. 
tlon. SUbsequent revisions followed , Robwt'. Rules oI0n:ler • . the orgaIlIzatloI. II paramount compared til the lndMdua 
Newly...." first published In 1970. appeared in Its most ; Though individual members have the right to make a motlOf 
recent ',0th) ~Itfon In 2000. 1 they cannot make I decision. Only the organization makes 

dKlsIon throuth Its wtlna membets. 
As eq as ancient Greece, pemmelt offitiatiae.M!!d proa!. " A rnoforlty'fOte IMddes. ""'"" a knpr'fOt. II r.qufrec 
dure!J for Itlelr legislative bodIeS to mike detisIanS Met then!by , 1. A quorum mun be p ...... nt to lob legol aC1ton. A qUOf'Um I A majority vot~ afflrmattve vote of mont than half c 

BASIC UNDERLYING PAfNCIP1.ES 

govern the populace. DurinS !he Middle Ages. p;riament denot·· is the minimum number of members who must be present to those members present and voting-deddes most que! 
ed any Important meeung held for the purpose of discussion. transact business legally. lions. Certain motions that affect basic rights of member 

The rules and precedents pemlng IegiskJUve bodies, com· 2, AD memb.rs otw equal. Each member of an orpnlzatlon has and chanaes kI partiaJlw rules of the assembly usual! 
manly C4IIed portIamentaty law, emerpd from En&fand's equat tigtlts. No member's vote counts mora than another's. require. two.tNrds wote for adoSltion. lWO,thIrd$ is de(1t\O-

PanL.1mert1. When E"I'bh colonists settJed America. they ) , Member! btIng bvaJnen before on asambty In the fonn as at least twkt IS many membcf's In '.wor IS opposed 
~ these prtndpIes (e.&-, consIdeBtIon of ana suD- 0' Cln»tIon. A motion}s a formal proposal of boslness. lO.SIIenc:e gMs C6f1Hnt, A member who does not vote acqu 
fect.1 tJ time, alternating debate between opposite points 01 4. Only one fvnnol proposal to take certain odien may be esces to the will of the majonty. The assembly does not con 
view, BOd confining debate to the merits of the pending ques uncle' cunalderatlon at a time. Members n'lW'/ consider sider an abshntfon an affirmatt.oo or negattve WW, It simp! 
tlon). This fngtlsh par1lamentary law would h.lve greallnnu- only one basic form 0' motion, or main moHon, al a time. does not aJUI"It It atal. 
ence 00 tho newty rotmed aawmmenl of the united States. Memben; seeking to make MUndMY' moflona (Which deal n. Once on auembtr cr.ddu a quesHan.. ttMlt q\lestlan am 
In 1801, Va President Tbema ~ MOte A IIUnCRI wtth how I main motion win be handledl must mata them not come Mck Wore the ~ in ttM 101M form 
at parll.JmenlifIY PrKHce for ttte use Df ~ semte of the before adoptlnR. rejecting. or dlspos1na 01 the main motion. Members cannot.sk the assembty to dedde thf:I same ques 
UrotN States. The manual was the first todifled parUamen lion twice In thO same session unitoss they Bm.nd, relidnd 
tary procedure deslgned espedally for guyemment use. or tet:Of1s1der tho previously adOpted quesllon. 

THE DELIBERATIVE ASSEMBLY 
A dellben:ttivo assambty Is on Independent or 
a lonomous group of peoplo meeting 10 determine, In 
full and froc discussion, courses of ocllon 10 10k-a in the 
rdnt of Iho enllre group 

CATE GORIES 

Assembly of an orgonb:ed~: A local branch of II state, 
national or intemational sodelV ParticIpation Is limited 10 
those whO are on the membershIp rolls as voting members. 
IAglslaflve body: A constitutionally estab:.'Shed lawmaking 
body of representatives (al the national, stilte, or local level) 
chosen I7f the e4ectoratc fOf a certain tefm of office. 
!ocud: An adrNnistratrve cr m8MgiM'1a1 body of appointed or 
elected people. It may be the organizatIOn'S supreme govem 
ing body er may be subordiflOlte to the generol membership. 
Mass mnting: A meeting of an ullOfgan!red group who havt: 
a common Interest in a particul.1r purpose or problem, A series 
Of m.lS$ mcetrgs may be head to orxarUe a pennanenl soc .. 
ety everyone Who attends the meetllPl iIIld IS In agreement 
with tho common interest has the right to p;vticipate 
Convention: An assembly of delegates chon n to represent 
oonsUtuent subdiviSions 'or one session. Delegates who 
hold proper aedimtklls are entitled to purtl(ipate. 

ME£TJN~S 

A mnting 1$ a single offic!at gathering 0' members in one room 
or area to transact business for II length of time with no ces
sation (except for a short recessl Members do not separate 
[lUrinH a meeting. 

SeuJon: A 5eSSion may be II single mecq or a series of 
amected I11I!tI11ngS with a SIngle order of buSInesS. asenW, 
program. or purpose_ Each succeeding meellng continues busI 
ness al the point where II was lett off at the previous meetinG. 
lflJu at meetings 

Reg\llor:: A periodic bUsiness meeting of a pct'tn.1nent 
society held at defined Intervals. 
SpedaI: A ~ate business mee1ilC held at a ddlcreot 
tme thoVl regularly SCheduled meetings, COl"l\'ening only for 
tile specific purpose noticed In the caIto the meeting. 
Adfoumed: A continuation of the Immediately precedlns; 
regular or special meeting. 
Amual: A mcetinB designated to roceM! reports of 
outcers ond commll1l!'CS, hold electionS, or tak!! othct' 
acUons prescnbed In the byl.lws. 
becUfM HUlan: Arry meeting or porllon of a meeting In 
which proceedings are secret. 

MEMBERS 

Memt.t of Cl deflberaH .. Cl&Ambty trcrt. the tight to: 
• Attend meetings 
• Offer motions 
• Speak In debate 

Vote 
Nominate other members 
Hold office 

Memben hove ttl. duty and r •• ponslblllty to: 
• Attend meetings 
• Obey the rU'es 
• Further the ob,eCI 01 the SOCiety 
• Insist on enfotcement of the rulH 
• FutfIM assigned duties untIl property excused 

RULES OF THE ASS[MDLV 
Every organization Is sublect to national, state, and sometimes 
local laws. Also, each assembly requires rul! s that establish 
ItS structure and HOYem its operation. The hierarchy 'ot these 
tu\Qs is as loIows: 

CorponJte tharter:: A legal Instrument. grilnted by stilte 
or federal laW, thai IS used to incerporate lin organllation 
Altematlvely, B charter may be a certificate that a national 
or state orjilnlzation Issues to lI'"nt a group the right to form 
a local or subofdlnate organization Thil lorm of charter Is 
not an instfumenl 01 lnOOrpotiU:lon 
Conltth.ltlon: A doaJment defining the primary chamcteris
tics of the organization. Currently, the trend Is to have these 
rules contained In ene document called the bylawa. 
Bylaws: A document that define} how an organization func ' 
110llS. It Inchldes all the rules that. due to the\( lmportance, 
Ire :nom difficult to Change Bylaws t1R! 

• Adopted by m.ljority vote. 
• Amended by two thirds vote With previous notice to the 

memberl hip 
• Suspended only if they ilre In the nature ef ruk!s of oruer 

or if they allow'or their own suspension. 

STRUCTURE m: BYLAWS 

Bylaws are divided Into tho following articles: 
1. Name: The assembly's name. futl, exact and properly punc

tuated 
1. ObJect: The assembly's purpose, expressed concisely In a 

single sentence, with phrnscs or icttered subparagraphs aU· 
set by :»emicolons 

3, Members: ThOse who ha~ the right to particIpate fully in 
the assembly, Subcategories IndIJde 
• Classes of members (regular. affiliate, honorary, etc I, 

with rights and Hmltatlons defined 
• Qualifications or eligibility fOr membef'shIp 
• ~ dues ilnd fees, me 5Ct\ed!k by wtllch they 

should be paid, and stipulation about when membership 
wilt be terminated for nonpayment of dues and lees 

• ReSlgnaUons 
4. Oflkers; The structure of the assembly's offICers, including: 

• Order of rank (usually president, vtce presklem, secretary, 
tfeasurer, etc.) 
Duties 
Method 01 nomination 
Mode of election 
Term of officII' and when it commem:es 
Term Nmitahons 
Mcthod for fiGln!t vocanoes 

5, Meeting.: Spcdfks about the assembly's meetings, WlcIudIng 
The day on which to hold regular meetings (but not lho 
time or location) 
Designation of an annual meeting 
Procedures lor calling special meetings and nottlicatlOl 
requirements 
Dermltion of Quorum for all meetings 

6, txecutivtl board: SpecificatIon of the executive board's 
Composition 
Powers 

• Regular meetings 
• Speclal meitungs 
• Quorum 

7, Comrnm..l: Any subordinate groups of the assembly 
Standing commi"", (those having conllnulng eJCiswncl:! 
should Include 

COI11J¥)SJtlon 
A delined tnaMer oJ SCfection 
Defined duties 
Names, or a prtMsion for establ shmenl 01 addlll(lOd 
standmg committees 

Sptdal committee. (established as need ')risas Iota spe 
crfic purpose) must haVe a specified mamer of se4ection 

• £It otfido: A latin phrase that ~ans ·by VltlU1! of Dlllee ' 
The president may serve ex offICio as a member of al 
committees eA:Ceptthe nominating committee 

I, Parliamentary autharity: The assembly's chOIce of a p.lr 
fiamentary authOrIty to follow (e.g., tile current edition 0 
Robert's Ruit!s of Order Hf!WIy Rewed) 

9. AtMndment: PI"OCedles til' amending the byt.lws. iOCluding 
Requirements for advance notice (time and manner) 

• Requirement lor vote to approve an amendment 

RULES OF ORDER 

The assembty's rultrs of order come from the assembty's cho 
sen parliamentary authority Spedot rules of arcMr are IIn\ 
wnllen regulatIOns 01 ptUliamentary procedure tholt supersedt 
the parliamentary authorrty Special rules of order are 

Adopted or On'l~ by two·thlrds voW with previou! 
notice or majority vote of the entife membership 
SUspended by two·thin:ls wte, unless pnNeclin@;a minorit\ 
01 toss tnan one· tNd 
No .. : RuCes ~ding fundamental prtndpJe. of partla· 
INntary low (e.s., considering one question at a time, pro 
tetting absentees) or Involving balk rights of m.,mbershlt: 
(e.g., rules regarding quorum) cannot be suspended 

STANDING RULES 
stondlng Mea ore rules relating to admlnisirntlt'fllllther thai' 
to parliamentary procedure fe.g., a rute requiring members te 
WBar badges) Standing rules are 

Adopted by majority vote 
Amended either ~ two· thirds vote without prevIOUs "otlC( 
or majority wte with previous notice 

by malooty vote 91 



I A motion Is a member's formal proposal thollhe assembly lake a certain cellon 
The InlrOOucllon 01 a mollon may be for a subsfonllve purpose. may abow klr 
a member 10 oxpress a view, or moy 'rIgger on Invcsllgollon lhal wlilioler be 
reporled 10 Ihe assembly 

CATEGORIES OF MOTIONS ' ••.• _ .. tL~ .. £l."'W ... - .' ...."... 'C'I 

1. Moln mollons inuodtJce new. substOlllive biJsinl!$s or relale to past or IUlure business althe 
assembly. A main motico Is tile 10YiesI ranking motion, and a member may make ooe only 
when no other business is pending. 

2. Subsidiary motions assbt the assembty in h.1llC1linga main motion. MobOM in thb Class r.ri; 
aboVe the main motion and loWer ranking subsidiary motIOnS but rank: lOwer lJ'Ian privileged 
motklns SUbsHftary motions: 

Always apply to another motIon while il is per'l(llng 
• May appty to any main motion 
.. FillnlO an ordef 01 pretedence 
• Are in order from the Ume the chair stales a main motion unll Ule vote on that motion 

3. PrMleged motlonl do not relate to the pendollg motion bUI deal wUh special ~aller~ of 
immediate and ovefric:hng Importance. 1.1OtJons In this class rank above the matn mollon, 
subsldlary motions, ood lOWM·ranklng priv'!egei1 motIOnS 

4. Inddenfal motions change the procedure lor ho1ndling a mOlion but do not change what the 
assembly is considering. Incldenlal motions a:5O relate to pending business or bUSiness the 
ussembly will con4uct In the future. These motions never have alJ four of the characteristics 
01 subsidiary matrons. )nd(fen131 motklns also do not have rank bUt,lre If"I(ldcntal to the other 
motIons. They must be decided immediately, before proceeding WIth funher bUSiness. 

5. Motions that bring a quutlon again before the olumbly brlngback buSiness Ihat has been 
previouSly docldcd. Members usuatly Introduco them when no otht!f business is pending. 

STANDARD DESCRIPTIVE CHARACTERISTICS OF MOTIONS 
Each motion has eight standard descriptive characterlsll(.S You can remember Ihem by uSing 
the mnemonic devICe SAD MR IPA: 

54K0nd: Does me moOOn requ;re tn.Jt another member second the moltOn! 
Amendable. IS there iI varlOible1 
Debatable: Is It possible fOI the members to debate the merits of the qu~stion1 
Majority vole: 00t.'S adOJ)tIon of the motion reqtnte a ma}orlty vote or a greater perccntlge! 
Iteconskferoblo: 15 It possible to ron$ldcr the motJOn again? 
b1tetTUpt; Maya member Interrum another member to oller the mot on1 
, reeedence: DOes the motIon fall into an order of precedence or rank? To which motions 
ftoos It yield, ~nd over WhICh motIOns does it take precedence? 
AppU:tabMlty; Towtuch moliollS is I applicable lind to whit!! motions m.1Y It aptliy1 

THIRTEEN RANKING MOTIONS 
MotkmS ilIe taMed tllerarch t<IIIy The rMin motIOn. Sltbsidiary molions, and PflVIIcged motions 
la InlO the l ollowln" order 01 precedence 
Main tI\OtM)n: 

Original main motion: A motion that Introduces a SUO.ilanllve qut:stion a~ a new subjOCt 
Inddental main motion: A motion ellt\er IlCK1ent41 10 or relating to busint.'SS 01 the .1sS('mbly 
01" its past or luture actIOn (e.g., to t.lIo:.e a recess lit It certa n hrT'lel 
ResoluKon: A main motiOn subrTlltted 10 writing duc to its It.>ngtn, comple.xlly or IlTlpOfI3nCe 
Preamble: An optlollal clausels), ptecetl ng the resolving tlausftls}, th,lt Indudes background 
mformalon Df reasons to .ldopt the rewlulloo EilCh clause IS indented and beglflS WIth 
'"Whereas, ~ iVld ends \'11th a semIColon Aller IhI! senuculDn at the entl of the lol~t dlus.e, 
tho wards wnow, therefore, be It" arc addea 
Resolving clau.el.): The actual proposed motion, preceded by the words "Rcsolved, Thdt • 
If malO th.1O one resolvll1g dause eAlsts, the word ",mtr IS adtled before D.e i.Bt resolving 
cllU5e FOf e.xampl~ 

Wllt'rcas. ,. (tC'tt CI(tln~ firsl prt';tmhlc dauwl, 
WIIl'n·II~, •• , 11t:xt "hiM' !;t'('ond rn.·amhlt, duusl'L 
Wht'n'a." . , , llcxt ortht' finAl prc;tmJ.ll· d.lu!lti. nt),...tIH"reCIKt!.IM'it 
Hrsulllf'd, "fhOll • •. llnt uftlM! first n.~~h·inKd:m.~I: 
H" SIIIIJf.'I/, TII"t ,. , It(,::IllIr tb~ !U'('flllli III l.l~ f1'SlIII'in~ clall!lll" l : :lnll 
RI'S()/IJ''II, Th:lt ... Ih~:.t IIr filial n'lllllviuK ..-hlu""l 

SUbsidiary motions; 
2. PastpotM Ind"nltety: A mouon to rCie£t a rna.n muuoo WtthOUt it dI,ect vote, Of kill It rn 

Ofder noilO consitJct it irt thill sessIOn 
3, Amend : A motIon to !liter or mocffy the word ng of d mJln motion. A primary amendment 

{amendment of the lint degree) modifies the motion a .econdary amendment (amendment 
o{ the SNOOd dewee) modIlies the lXim;)ry alOOfldmi!nt Men1bc" wte 00 amendments., 
reverse Ofck.., (second,lry omcndmenL purnary amendment. and tocn motion) A member 
can amend .:t motIOn in three ways 
a, Insert or add words Of a paragraph: Insert words at tilt! bewnrung Of within UIO motiOfl, 

adtI words at the end. 
b. Strike aut wards or a pGnlgraph: Remove WOtds or a paraKmph 
c. Strike aut and Insert wonIs or subsfftute a patagnlph. Remove certain words and replace 

them With olherS. 0'" slnke OlIt an enllre pariJRr,lPh and subsbtute a dllfc:rent one '" its place 
4, Commit or ref«: A motion to sencl a ""lin mottOn to a smolN WotlP Icommcltee) IOf la-thor 

$tudY300~1 
5, Po.tpone to • certain time (or definitely) : A mot~ to defay considermlon of a main motion 

until latl!r In the same meetinl!; or until the next reGularly scheduled meeting, 
6. Um" or utend lmihi of debcrta l A motion to change th~ number of tmas each member 

may spcalri. the lime consumed by each speech, Of the tolal time for debate A motion tOtlmlt 
debate appl:es to all motIOns prevIOusly made and that may subsequenlly be made. A motion 
to extend knlls of deb.lte, however, affects only mottons that are stln pending. 

7. ~s qu.sflan: A motion to cloSo debdtl!, or caU far tM question. so thilt ttle pen4lng 
motlOll wi. come 10 an ImmedJaII! vole 

B. Lay en the tab": A mot,gn to set aside a ma.n motion temporarily to toke up a mom press 
mg or Important Issue. 'MKlnevcr 01 COfJ(fltlon ls attached to ,] lay on tile table moUon, that 
motlCn becomes . dlflerent typt! 01 motton (e g , .. motion to lay the pcrKling motlOC"l on the 
table! until tilt! next meeting Is actually 0 motIOn to postpOne to a certain time) 

--, 9. Call hlr the onIen of !tie day: A rl!que51 by 00 ind vktual member to foWow the IIdopt 
agenda . 

W.RDlse a question of privilege: A motIon to interrupt the O,scusslon of business to bring I 
an urgent subject or motion. For instance, a member may can a prOblem with comfort lei. 
(noise, room temperature, etc.) to the attention 01 the dla r RatSing a QUeStion 01 privi~ 
may also give a member the ability to make an informed deriSion (receive handout maleria 
see a presentation. etc ). Also, an assembly may use this motion to consider. confidenlJ 
subject by meJrlbers only le.xecutive session) 

n. Recess: A motion to lake a short inletmlSSIon In the meetng 
Il.Adfoum: A motion to dose the meeting. 
ll.fix the Ume 10 which to adjourn: A motion to set a time, date, and place to c:onbrlue the pre 

enl meeting anytime belore the next regularly SCheduled meeting; set an adjOUrned meetlnf 

13 Fbtlhl Hme '" "'. " ..... " 00 rTI02!I"y .. ' 00 

~ 
~ 

12 &d(oum YO' .. 00 mOlonl.,. "' 00 ,, - ... , .. 00 mojotl1.,. 00 no .. ...... 00 '4 00 ""', no ... _of 
docid~ ."" .... 

, eaUforlhe "' no "' cl Ihe requQ~1 00 '" ...... of ,f~ ...... """""", 
lw,onlfMl ... ' .. 00 mojonr.,. 00' no -7 PTwwIous JO' no 
~ 

00 r'>\.~ lhud5 ylts' "' 
, """,w ... '" no two "-rd. ",.' no 

f ...... 
l mib of ...... .- JO' , .. ... ~r,' , .... no 
10 11 certain 
Hmelor 

~""J 
• CooomIt« yo. ,~ ... IT:Dpr:l • .... no -:sA;;;;.d ". ,.,. .... "'.qtJtt/ __ -!!!.. __ ~ 
, Postpon. "'. "" ind.AnIt~ 

JO' ~'I"f ,n' ,~ 

, ........... ... '" ... ~-, ... no 

INCfCENTAL MOTIONS 
~ mo&ns ilIe 11sU!<S betow In the OfOCf in wttch they aPP'!.1' In ltOOOrt's Rut?s 01 Ordt 
Ncwty Revfscd. They do not hilVC rank but. when made. take precedence 0II(!t Um pendmg motion. 

Point of order: A motIon that brings any VIolation of a rule of tho assembly to the atlcnti{)f 
of the presiding officcr A member must ral54! the poinl of order immediately after thl mlrac 
tton. otherwise. the point cafll"lOt be raised, The 1XesM:i og olftee, must rule that tile point 0 
order 15 tither wl!lI t"ken or not well t.lken, or anow th~ assembly to decide 
Appeal: An appe.ll from lite deOSlOn of the ch.'1t must be rrode irnml.'d13te1y Ilia'!" the presidllg ofll 
cer rules 011 a point 01 orcll!r If the JpPC,lI is sccondt>d, the assembly t3keS a vote to dI.."dde whetht! 
.~ with thcrullrlg. tt wtl!5 nolan the ~ tJAon the d\alr'"sdl..'OSIOI1 "SNI U"II!dccision 0 
the chair 00 sustmlll'd7" If the as.scmbty docidt'd !he poif'It of order. no approl IS aIIowI!d. 
Suspend the rules: A motion to tcmporanly set aside II rUle thilt would prevent the asscmWo 
from taking up a ceW .. n qucstlOtt or actIon An assembly may nat, hOwever, suspend byl.1M 
a statutory law, Of rUles of b.1sk: parilarnentary law (e.g, tholt only membefs may votel Also 
the vote ,CflUlrcd to suspentlthe roil'S depends on the rule to be sU$pendcd. 
Oblectlon to the consideration of a question: An objection to any anginal rTlilin motilln 
A member must offer the obiection belore any dlscuS!l1OtI hdS ~un or subSIdiary moliOl 
Slated The ch.llr mmcd ately tOllte~ the vote by ast.Ing. "Sihall Ute ~tlon be consedcredl 
unle5li two·thlrds of lilt aS~!fllbly vote III IIle negatIve, the question is considered 
DfvI.Jon ef a question: A vote by the aS5f'mbly to dlvidlt a pUl1ding malton Into two or man 
parts capable olstandmg an their own merit Ii e . parts that are not dependent on tilt! adop 
bon Of the other portion of the motion) 
CM1skfetatton by paragraph Of ser\aHm: A motloolO consider a lengthy motIon by p.ua 
graph, arUck? or section. TIle preSid ng olficer opens eoch p.ut of the paragraph for dcb3tl 
and amendment separately. belore considering the enure document for adoption 
DivIsion af the G1Isentbtr: A dem .. n! by a member to retake a 'IOfuI whl or vohI by sha. 
of hands by taking a rUlng YO" A member can call out the word "DMsIon,-1f each side 0 
iI voice vote sounds the same, or if that member doubts the resull 01 a vote 
MoHon Nfatlng to methods of votfng and the polls: A request by a member to t hange thl 
me-1hocI 01 voting or to dose or reopen the polls In an election Of batot vote. 
Matton ra4atfng to nominations: A mohan pn!SCf1bIng the method lor making norninatm. 
(When the bytaws Of tuIcs filii to provide one) or dictatIng when to close 0'" reopt,.>n nomiool.lons. 
Iequut to be eXCl.lSed from cI duty: A request by a member to be relieved of an obligallor 
Imposed by the byI.""tWS Of by duties of an office. 
hquut or inqukr. A request or inquIrY retcUed to pendinG buslnessOf business that it menl 
bet wishes to introduce 

Parlamentary inquiry: A Il.'(JJeSt for thE!' cha .. 's opinion on a point of patli.lfT1CI1tary proceduro 
PoInt oIlnfonnatlon: A Il!QlleSt for f.xts affecting the pendin8 buslncs3 
~tar penntliJon to withdraw ormadlfy a motion; A reQuest by it member to with 
driPN hlslher own moUon Irom conSIderation or to mod Iy il 
Request to read papers: A request by il member to read (or have the secretary read) ~ 
papcr or book as part of debate . 
Request foJ 1m'( otheir privhege: A request for 0 prMlege nOI covered by It 
requests (e.g., a request to make il presentation when no motion is pending) 92 



. - ~. ~.. -. . 

_ ....... 
'" '" no chairrulH 

.;': d ..... 

... '" "'. '" - yu' tnGjoril'f° 
no fWQ·lhitUs° 

~0IIfecIM. '" "" '" = .......... 01 
~e-

no Iwo-third$1n 
Ihqncgoti"fe 

........... , .. y" 
' ...... 
'Cas ...... IIo .. , .. ,.. 

roc mafotll'f 

00 GO 

~::.r" 
Dt.w.n ..... "0 '" -'-_ .. ............. ,0' yO' 

....... poIIr; -- yo. ... _ .. 
~ 
'.""uAwj "" "" ~ ...... "0 00 

"" """ '" ........ ' 
'" chair no 

yo. 

..- nt$pand$ 
or requests 
resporn.o --_ .. - .. 

yes' '" molal'lIy 

~ ....... _ ...... ,." 00 .-........ anr -....... ~o" '" no malarlly yes no 

.- '" -. ' 
BR ING BA CK MOTIONS 

Mot\onl that bMg a question DgOIn befof. the alsembty ilfe bted below In the ~ In 
which they appear In Robert"s Rules o(OrrJer NeWly RtMsed They do nol have rank but may 
be offered and considered when no other mollon is pend ng. 
• Taka from the table: A. motion 10 resume consideration of a main motion that was laid on 

the table during that meeling or the previouS meeting 
) Rescind I,.peal 0' annuli: A motion to repeal a previously adopted motion entirely 

Amend something p,.v~usIV adopted : A motion to modify a previously adopted motion 
Dlscha'ge a commiH": A motion to lake a referred question out 01 a commlt~ee's h<I~S 
$0 that tOO&sscmbly can con.sidCf It A .tandll\O commltt .. (ooe tOOl has conbnuWIg elltS· 
lence) may be discharged Ir&" constdenulOTl 01 the question. If a questtoo was referrl!d 
10 a spedal committee lone that ceases to c.lllst after the completion 01 the task), the 
committee itself may be discharged. 
Recondde,: A motion to rCtonsider a previously decided motion 

A motion to recon~der is subject to certain tim. limitations During.:l meeting, a memo 
ber may make a motion to reconsider a previously decided SlJbject, but the motton to 
rec~ mtnt occur on the same day J$ tile decision. ouring a sudan, the motlOO 
to recoMlder must be made on the same tor !oUowlRg) day of that 5eSsWI. 
The member olilmng the motion must hJYe voted on the prevalllTlg SIde (I e . voted yes 
If It was adopted or no" it was defeated) 
Making a motion to reconsider takes precedence over all other motions. However, tlte 
assembly may lake up or consider tho motion only when the orlgln.:ll motIOn could be 
considered (according to the order of business) 

", ~ '" - ,. 00 

'" "" Y" ---~Ity-;Uh 00 
previous noll(e; 

lwo.fhirds; or 
ftKI(orllr:' .ntire - ...., 

"" 
,.. 

"" -- "" pt....tous tlQ6ke: 
1wo·1hIn:Is. or 

InOlOIily of enllro 
mllmbership 

'jI!~ ~ majority Go 

OTHEl~ PARLIAMENTARV TERMS REGARDING MOTIONS 

Renewal:" an asscmbty does not adopt a motion, atT'f member I11iry Intuxluce the moUon 
at subsequent mecungs. provided thefe Is etthef a signllkant ChoJ"l,'e In the motion's 
wording or a difference In time or circumstances 
Dilatory: If a motion IS absurtt or uMeCe5sanly delays (or thwarts) tho will 01 an assembly. 
a chair can rule " dilatory 
Improper: If a motion conflicts with the rules 01 the assembly, It Is out 01 order If the 
assembly considers and adopts such a motion, the motion is null and VOid 

HANDLING A MOTION 
Toolfer a motion, a membl. .. f must first seek recognltloo and be Isslgned the loot by !he t:h.W 
(presiding ofllcer) To claim the Boor fobtilin the nght 10 speak) I member rises at his place 
(or goes to a microphone In a larger meeUng) atld addre'5Ses the chair by IllIe, "Mr or Madam 
President," The chair recognizes the member, usua' ly by announcing tfle member's name or 
title The member then has the Hoor and can make a motion or speak itl debate, as appropri 
atc. There are sile steps in handling a motion The first thrH steps bTlng the motion belore 
the assembly: the last three Involve the eonslderatlon of the quesUol\. 

1. A membe, mo'" 0 motion • 
• The member 5&ys, "I move that _ ... "I move to . . _: or 'Resolved, That .- and tflen 

Is seated 
2, AnotfM, member IkDndI the moflon, 

Th s member says, "Second.~ ~I second the motion," '" second It: or ·Support " 
A member neltI1er has to be rt'Cognized nor has to be In agreement w(th a matico to sec· 
ond It. He Of she merety agrees that the motion Shou4d come belore the assembly 
II no member seconds the motion, the Chair may asic, "Is lt1ere III serond7" 
II no member offers a second, the c.h.llr says, "There is no second, and the motion wiM not 
be considered." If for some reason an assembly omits this step Ind Is already debating the 
issue, begin"ini the vote, Of has completed the vote, It is too !.lte to raise a point of orcIef 
The lact that there was not a second Is immaterial and does not affect the vote's DUtcOmO, 

3_ The chair states 1M quesdan. 
When the chair says, "It is moved and seconded , Irepeats Ule motionl.· the motion 
is oUlcialty placed before the assembty At any time prior to this step, the member who 
made the moti1>n may withdraw or modify It But aiter the chait stales the question, the 
motion belongs 10 the assembly. and the maker may withdraw or mOdify it onlywlUl the 
assembly's approval. 
The chair may also request that a motion be submitted In writing, In order to: 

Perlect the motion's content and grammar 
.. Provide the chair with the moUon·s exact wording so that II may be stated correctly 
.. Provide the secretary with the motion's correct verbiage lor Vldusion in the mil1U1es 

4. Memt..n debat.the motion. 
The ttlaarlnitlales debate by a5lting. "Are you ready for the question?' or ·,s there any 
discusslon7" 
The maker 01 the motion Is entitled 10 speak first If he or she seeks the floor Members 
may speak twice to a question, lor no more than ten minutes each time No member 
may speak a second time until all have had lin opportunity to make a first speech 
The assemb)l must confine all debate to the merits 01 the pendIMg questIOn. 

S. TIM chaW puts the quesflon to a .... (For details aboot WJling methods, see other side) 
Tile chair repeats the motion so mat members know the questkln they are being asked 
10 decide -The question Is on adoption 01 the motion (or resolution) " 
II the chair does not repeat the mollOn exactly as It was made, a member may raise a 
point of order. Otherwise, the verbiage used by the chair in putting the question to B 
vote is the same as will appear In the minutes of the meellng, 
Methods for toking 0 vole: 

Voice IviYa voce): The usual method fot a vote requiting a majority for approval 
Shaw of hands: An alternative to viva voce, often used In small boards or committees 
Iblng: TM IJSUi]I methocllot a vote rnqtnrWlg two·thlnis for approval 

rllsponslIl 

1'how In kuor ol In. molion Wolf '01$1111'10 rloht hond · Ipo;;; lor rllspon,e 
"law", hands ° lar nod. "1hot'.k you 01 
·Ihow apposed w~1 r3lse itwl fight hmd ·lpa'./Se lUI rtLSponse' 
'l_hcJrKb '~Of~~~k~__ __~_ 

'100SO ln ta,Of 01 tfltr mOM)" w'\l , se lcw SlornJl o [potJsQ fat ~I 
.fit! ~i!Qled " 

1'noSIl oppo~mJ '11111 lise lor staM • Ipou5fI lor rosponsel 
°Be ~eolild-

Note: The as;etnbly always takt.>s the negative vote, even illt appears that alllTli!mbef5 
have voted in fal/Ol of the proposal The only exceptions to thl:"; rule are complimentaryOl' 
courtesy resolutions (unless any member objects, in which case the "no" vote is talcenl 

' " The chak M .... 0 cemptet.a ~ of'" NlUft of the 'let • . 
• The chait states which side has !he most votesand whether the motion IS adopted or lost 

PIIOPEIl WCRDING fOR ANIIDUNCING mE DL:TCOMf or A "'O~f 
~";;i;_ii~.iQ'dlf,g~...,;?,-;O"W;-<1'"'ii1ID~ 
;WIC:el~~l -Thl! 0Y't~ lima II, of'd Ihlt mallOn 1'ho nos hove II. and 1M motion 
'l: _'" - -.,.... jsodoploo- Islasl-.. ~ - ~--- - -----
~ if...... 'Th\l ulifmoltio has 'I. und!hl! mol,l)I\ "The ~tlliwG has IT, and lho moIiM 
l . ~. ~ . IS odoeItod • b Imt· 

~ 1;;;;~ tMJ.ellflhltllh. UIIw-;;;;~. "Ther.OfO ~~.=.~;;;-t . OI>It 1M moIIon i'5 Ddopll\d ' offlrmottre. ood!he mollon b Iml: 

:l - ;;;!f+l arl! W ,"11m ol.rmulrlG and "There Oil) hI! In !he oflrma;;;;;;;-
Min Iho nt!!lnhvu Thu o l~rfT\(1lrll! (yt In the negollvo Tho nl!gallvo has il. 

" N:S II. lind Ihe mohon IS odoplfld- and Iha motion Is ~Io 
. ..... J .I _ t. 

After dedamS tho outc.ome, the chmr milkes a statement indicating the effect 01 the \'Ote 
If appropriate. the chair announces the rM!xt Item of business 

RU LES ANO OECORUM IN DEOATE 
Providing that no mocllfications have been made to the rules of deb,ne listed in Robt.>rt's RIlles 
of Order Newly Revised. eac" member Is enlltled to speak twke In debate, lor no more than 
ten mlnut .. at a hme. 

A member must seek the floor and be Neognized by the chal' In order to speak 
The member that m.1kes the motion Is etltttted 10 ~eak flnt 
No member Is entitled to speak 0 second t!me unitt all other mernbefs who WISh to speak 
lOt the first Ikne haW! the oppcxtuntty to do so. 
A. member may not trDnder his Of' her rights during a debate 
A. member may not y&e4d to another member The chait assigns who will weak nIDIt 
If a speaker yields for a quesUon, the "me Is charged to the speAker 
Members must (onOne remarks to the meritl of the pending quutlon 
A member's mottws must not be attacked. 
A member may nat speak agaInIt hisIher own motion, though he/She may vole agillnsllt 
All 'ertlMks must be addressed to or through the chaI, 
Members may not speak dltKtty to aM anattw 
The dlaIr should olMmate debate between the affirmative and negatM! poslilOOs 
Only the auembly may Klant permISsion to read from books,. ,.port'l. etc. 
A. member Interrupted by the chair mutt beleated. 
The chair may not partldpateln debate Without relinquishing tho cIMlir, 
No member may c:omment adv..-sely on ;Jny prior act 01 the assembly. 
The chair m.:Jy daH debate only with the CCftSent of the assembly, which rtlQuires <l two
ftlinb'tOr. 

93 



• 
I 

MOTIONS (con~nued) 

DETERMINING VOTING RESUL.TS 

The baS!C requirement for approval of an action In a deliberatIve assemilly Is a molority vota. 
or morl! than haJ the vOles cast. Unless a specific requirement ariSes. the vote Is always a 
rna/oray of th~ ~pret.tnt and voting- Other voting requirements may be 

Two·thltds vote: At least twice as many In favor as opposed 
Malority 01 the entlte membership: More than ha f of all the members(notJust those pres 
ent at the meeting}.. l hls requirement Is sometimes an allerl1<ltrve to 11 two-th'rds vote 
Unanlmout CQIISMlt (generor consen,.: Agreemeot by the members present wlihOut 
laklng a vOle The chait asks, "ts there any obtetUon1~ II there 's no ObjectIOn. the motion 
passes by unanimous consent. Unanimous consent may be u5fd 'Of a majoflty or two 
thirds '101 ng requirement 
Thl .. ·fourths vote or 90 porcent ¥Of. : An unusually high percellt8ae of tlM! vole requtred 
lor approval These types of VOles are olte" reserved lor speclalltem$ of business in accor
dance with the bylaws 
Plurality votlll : Merely the largest numbel of vOles recewed, nOI necessarily a majority 
Used when members have 011 least three choices of candidates or proposals 
Tie vote: A lost vote, since ne:ther the affirmative nor the negative received a majorltv 

MAKING NOMINATIONS 
Accordinglo RDbert 'S Rules of Orr/er Newly Revised, a nomln.atioa. Is a proposal·thill __ ,. 
elected.' There are a vilrleLY of method$ for making nominations for electld offices; an org<l; · 
tUZiltion's preferred method should be listed In the orsanlZailon'S bylaws 

Nate: A second is not reQUired for a nomination. 
Methods for making nomlncrtion.: 

By the chair. Tht chair makes the nomination. This method Is usually reserved lor nam· 
Ing members of commillees. 
From th. floo, (open nominatiON); Any member present ... the meeting proposes the 
tame of il candidate for nomination 
By a cammlHH; A nominating comm.lIee proposes candidates for electIOn SUCh a 
nom natll18 comm ttce must be established In the organizaUon's bylaws. 
BV ballot; An alletnatlve to nomilliltlng lrom the Iloor, all members ptesent at a meetinC 
rn3Y propose cMclidate5 by writing their names on OOI:ot5. All members."hO ate noml 
nated an this mnnnet appear On the e"ection ballot 
Iy 1nOI1: Members r.ornlnate candidates lOf office by mall rather than In person t his 
method allows al the. organlzattoo'S members to have the ,)bi:hy to nominale, regatd 
tess of their pmscnce or absence at meetings The nommting bilHol may be s.otttt 01 
S;jned In accordance with requirements of the organization's bylaws . 

• • 
An offkef is a member cloctcd or appolnled 10 a leadership posillon In an 
orgon1zoUon 

: ' -
the Inimum eS5ential officers for business to occur In <In organ zation are a presiding officer 
and a MUetary 

In practice. however, organizations usU31ly have at leolst four olflc(!rs p,esldent, vice 
presiden'" .ecrelory, and trea~r.r land perhaps others} 
In Its bylaws. an orgtlntzaUon should spoofy' 

ReqUired number of officers 
Mothod 01 nomInliting and etectmg (or appoinlinJ) olrt("ets 
NeccSSJlry quaflficatf0t\5 for members who want to become offlccrs 
Each officer's term of office 

PRESIDENT I PRESID ING OFfI CER 

The preddent IS the usuallll/e 'Of the presiding officer or chafrman the term "the chair"' IS 
used to reler lO the pet"soo who Is actua:ly presidlng at a gtyen moment 
D~Ku ., .... presJdk\g oflkw: 

can the mHllng to ordet- at the appo nted lime alter detCtmlning a quorum Is Plesent 
Announce the Items 0' business before the meeting In the proper ollJet 
Recogl1lzc members entllted to the floor 
State and put to vote aU question. that legitimately come belate the assembly 
Protet! the assembly from frivolous or dlkltary maHons. 
Enlorte tne rules 01 debate and those iovolv ng oriU:r and decorum 
bpadlte business whl:.e tecognizlng the righl5 01 members {e g, by using unanimous 
consent on noncontrOWfsial mollonsl. 
Decide all quutlons of o,der. 
Respond to Inquiries relating to parllilmentary procedure or factuallnlormatlon 
AuthenHca .. all acts, OIdets, and proceedings 01 tho ilSMlmbly by signaturo. 
Declare the meeting adlourned 

~U1eI: 
The presiding ollicer should be seated (or step back from th(llecteln, while a member 
Is speaking. 
The presiding officer shoukJ stand when. 

calNng the meeting to order 
AMoonclng Items of business 
A$51Crung the nOOl 
Stall"R a motion 
Announcing the result of a vote 
RespondIng to questions 
Eapbinlng a nJIng resutting from a point of OfDer 
speaking leKarding a ruling made as a result of a po"t of onSer 01" an appeal 
DcdMll'lI the meeting adjourned 

hbatetmd.,..: 
II a motion is '1M(1ftc to the presiding aflIcet, he or she shoukJ tum the chair over to 
the vice president Of apptoprwte temporary chairman and resume the thair when the 
matter has been decided 
lIthe presiding omcer wishes to partklpate in debate, he or She must vocate the chair and 
YICId et to the VIce preskJent or temporary chairman unlil the matter has been decided. 
The presiding officer does nat vote unless the vote Is by ballot, he or she may, however, 
VOle to affect the result (e.g1 to make or break a tie vote) 
If Dny two members appeal a decision of HIe ettalr. the presiding olncer does not vacate 
the chair, rather, he or she has the right to be the first $pcakcr lind provide reasons for 
making the decision. Each member has an opportunity to speak once, and then the pre 
siding officer may speak one last time A IkI vet'- sustains the decision of the chair 

By P4t1Hon: Members nominate candidates for office by a nominating petition This 
melhod requires a certain number 01 signatures on a petition for the cand date to 
rece'Vl! a nomination 

METHODS OF VOTING • 

A deliberative Bssembty has the opUoo 0' uslng a vafletv at VDltng methAds. All members 
have the tight but not the obligation to vote 

Hote: lI'embers may chQl1g4 ttMtlr \'Ot~ unt1 the POint When the chag declares the result. 
Mrr that. membecs may change their vo.es oRty with perm.sskKl of the assembty _of_, 

Volca IvWo voce): The default melhOd fOf taklng a vote In . meeting. 
Show of ha~s; An alternative to voting by voice 
Rising: The usual method lor laking a vote reQUIring two-thirdS for passage or 101' "'fity
ing a close vote by voice 
Counted rising vote: The Ijsual melhod lor ver lying a close two-thirds vote_ 
Voting cord, ; An alternative to voUng by voice or rising, On'y vot ng members receive a 
bnghtly colored voUng card, Which they riJise at the direction of the chair 
RoU con vote: An II!ffective way to place on the record how each mtmber or delegation 
votes (espedally for representative bodies, such as local government boards, which are 
responsible to a constituency). A tOn (a list of the membels' names) Is called one by one, 
and the response may be ·yes,~ ·no; ·present· (abstain). or ·pass· (delay YOUnt until all 
ott;ers have had the opportunity to vote) 
Ballot: A method In which Cllch member marks hiS or het choke on a slip of paper 
When voting by this method, .. lien who tt!port to the assembly count the ba'iots ' nd 
rfPort 10 the chair, who IInnounces the restit 01 the vote The Iet'ers report should 
include the following information 

Number of votes cast 
Number of votes ntcessary IOf tlection 
Number of votes each candldote or proposal received 
Number 01 Wegal votes (e.g . YOtes cast Jot me;..glbre persons.. Instances of more wates 
cast thiln the number to be clecteCI, two ar more batots Iolded together, etc I 

Machine Of electrank voting: An illterlQtlW! to paper ba!klts in large organizatklns 
Anemaff ... methods of voting; An Of8anllatton must OUIhne In ts bylaws spcciflcalty 
how to wMC OOtslde of a mcetinB. For eJ!.lrnple. volng by postaJ rna electronic: mail 
facslmile Ilall) transmission, or !)foxy \/'OtIng . 

Vlct PRESIDENT 
The Yice presi6enl 1S the eflicer who OIssumcs the chairlf the president is absent or vacates the 
cha r. The vice president's specific dUlles usually are prescribeJ in the organization's bylaws 

When the president htIs the po.,-er to ilpPO.nt ail (:ammIHe .. , the vice president does not 
have th.s power wPlile presld;ttg 
Members should attdrc5S the vice preSIdent as "Mr. 01' Madam President" Ylhenever he 
or she Is presiding 

SECRETARY .. 

The HCrtttary Is the recording officer of the assembty and custodIan of Its records 
DutI .. of the ~ta'l'; 

Conducting the organlzatlQr1's oKeto' ~espondence and sending out a notlCt 0 1 
meetings, known as the call ollhe mcl!tinl. 
Notifying olflcers, comrtllttees. ilIld delegates of their etcttion or appomtment 
Preparing an agenda lot onfer of buslness) at the prcs.'(tCf1t 's request 
Having the Ofganiultion'sdocllments at each mcelnll. These Include the mtnutes book, 
bytawS, ru1es. list or members and c:ommtltee membcfs, agend.l , b.lIlot paper, and any 
other necessary supplies. 
tailing the meeting to ordef alld Immethate"( conducting an electlOIl for.1 chalnnan pro 
tem (short for the Latlnpro tempore. meaning &Ior the lime beinlf) should the preSldeftt 
and VIce president be absent 
Keeping a careful and authentic rL"Cord 0' the! proceedings 0' illl bUSiness meetings. nils 
record Is known as the minutes (For more infomJatlDn on the content of minutes, Sl'(' 

Minutes and Standard Ofder 01 Business, next pagl!.J 
Reading the minutes for approval by the assembly 
Providing a copy of the minutes 10 the president as soon as poSSible after the mcctll" 
Allowing members to examine the minutes and records upon request 
M~ntaining the official roll 01 members and calling the ron when requested 
Signing, along with the president, aM ofl1cial acts, orders, and proceedings of the 0'¥IJ' 
nlzation 
UpdoHng ttte bylaw, and other fottt'lill rules of the organization In accordance With 
amendments recorded in the minutes. 
Furnishing delegates with proper cncIantla', 
Bemg the custodian of all Important papers. such as convmtwe reports, belonging to 
the organization 

TFiEASURER 

The Irecrsuter Is the custodian of the Organil.ltlorl'S funds . This oflter's duties V\It)' from 
organization to organization and Oepcnd Lartetv on whethef the orcanization emJMays til 
actmiI\I$trative sWf. 

Duties of the ~ 
Colfectfng ond depoJltfng fund. Of the org.1nizillion. 
DIsbursing fuMs onty With the authOflly of the assembly 
Obtaining Signatures of the required ofrtcers on all checks 
Providing a rec.lpt for any cash or checks teCetved 
Maintaining account. as estobllshed by the organiZatIOn 
Reconciling all bank stuNrnents 
Preparing a written treasurer'. report lor each meeting The report should inc:lude

Balance on hand at the beginning of the period 
Receipts 
Disbursements 
Balance on hand at the end of tho petio<.l 

An organization should never adopt a treasurer's report. the report should be placed on IlIC: 
awaltinl aud·!. An organization Should Ihen adopt the auditor's report. 

94 



'MINUTES AND STANDARD O~DER~OF ~BUSINESS~+'_'~'1'~',W'! 
MINUTES 
The secretary keeps an officlol. legal record of meetings called the mlnut.s. This 
record should reneet what members did during the meallng. no' whollhev sold. 

CONTENT OF MINUTES _ - - ~ , • 

Fix the time to which to adjourn (I e., set an adjourned meeting lor IIny time prior to 
regularly scheduled meeting) 
Adjourn 
Recess, making the assumption that a quorum will eventually be present 

• Take measures to secure a quorum, which may Include phoning absent member 

Though the content of minutes may vary from organization to organization, at minimum it should ' • 
contain the following-

transporting them to the meetln 
An organization may offer an Invocation or preyer If so, this should be first. 
The playlng and/or singing of the National Anthem precedes the Pfedge of Allelillan 
A member may read an InspiraHonal or motivational rnessoge after the patriotic cere 
Members may observe rituals, suCh as reciting an organizational pledge or recour 
object or Ideals of the organization. 

Flntpo ..... ph, 
• Type of meeting {regular, spetlaL ad)llumed fletUlst", Of adjourned speclaO 
• Name of the organlzotion 
• Date and time of the meeting and tfIe placa (If It Is not always the same) 
• Notation of the regular presiding offlci!l"s and secr!'tary's presence or that of tlleir substitutes 
• Action taken on the m nutes of the previous meetlng(s), i.e. whether they were approved 

as read or as conllded. (Note: A previous meeting's minutes should never be approved al 
a special meeting.) 

Body luparcrt. paragraph for each of the following!; 
• All main motions or motions to brlnlil a question 0liloln before the assembly 

• Name of the maker of each motfon (but not 01 the seconder). 
• Final wording of each motion (including any amendments) and whether each motion was 

adopted, lost, or tempora(aiy dispose(! 01 (e.g., postpOned or referred to a committee). 
(jenerally, motions that are withdrawn should not be inc uded In the minutes. 

• All nodcn of motions, 
• AU points of order and appeals, whether 5tlstained or lost. along with the chair's reasons 

for the ruling. 
Last paralilraph, 
• Notes the hour of adlournment 
• Closes with the signature and title of the person writing them, In some organizations, the 

president also signs the minutes. 
• inclusion of the words "respectfully submitted· Is an older practice generally no longer used. 

READING AND APPROVAL OF M INUHS 
At the beginning of the next regular meeting. the secretary reads the previous meeting's min· 
utes, and the assembly approves them. The as&embly normally makes correcHons to the min· 
utes and approves them by unanimous consent 

The assembly may dispense with the reading of the minutes by a majority vote; In other 
words, the assembly will not consider the minutes at the regular time 
If members receive a draft 04 the minutes In advance 01 a meeting, the secretary does not need 
to read them aloud 
When an assembly approves the minutes, the secretary should write the word "Approved" 
wlth his or her initials and the date at the bottom. 
After adoption, an assembly may amend the minutes upon the discovery 01 an error or omis· 
sion , SuCh an amendment r~Ulres a two·thlrd$ vote, a majOrity vote With previous notice, or 
a majority vote of the entire membership. wh chever Is easiest to obtain. 

• STANDARD ORDER OF BUSINESS 
' ho secretory or recording officer should prepo4'e an ogGncla, or order of bUSiness, 
for each meeling The agenda should be made available 01 leost 10 the presld ng 
officer and secrelary 4 

OPENING CE REMONIES 
The presiding officer may rap the gavel once and announce, ,he meeting will come to order· 
The chair Is responsible for determining the presence of a quorum. In the absence 01 a quo, 
rum, the assembly may take only the following actions. 

COMMITTEES 
A commlttoo Is 001 a deliberolive assembly· rQlher, ills one or mo,e persons elected 
or appointed by on ofganlzalion to consider, sludy, investigate, or talco acllan on 
assigned mailers During a cammillce's deliberations m meetings, only comm 'lI~ 
members and Inviled guests may be present The rules general." do nolollow 
members 10 make mollans to limit debale 

COMMITTEE P ROCEDURES 

Standing committees, established In the bylaws, have a conllnuous i!lIlstence. These commit· 
tees either have their dutits assigned to them by the assembly or roo them listed In the bylaws. 
Special (ad hoc: or sefed) committees are estabUshed as the need arises and cease to exist 
elther on completion of their 8SSIgf1ed task or after making their final report 
CommlttH of the whole Is a device in which the fun assembly acts as a committee to consider 
a motion. Ttle rules of debate are relaxed, and members may speak In debate as often as they 
are able to obtain the ftoor. This devicl!! is usually used for large assemblies (100" members) 

The presiding officer appoints a chairman to preside over the committee. The presiding officer 
leaves the chair so as to preside more eHectively during the assembly's final consideration. 
The secretary does nor record the proceedings of the committee In the minutes bot does 
include the committee', report. 
The following are two alt.mate fonns of comm llee oftha whole 

A quasi commlttH of the whofe Is suited lor medium·slzed asRmblles 01 about 50-100 
members Although the rules of debate are refaxed just as In . committee 01 tho whole, 
the preskllng officer remains In the chair Again, the secretary does not record the pro 
ceedlngs In the minutes bt.t does Include the committee's report. 
lmonnal conslderaHon, best suited for small groups, simply removes the normal lmlta, 
tlons on speaking In debate. The presiding officer remains In the chair. and the secretary 
Includes in the minutes the results of any votes taken during Informal consideration. 

M£THOOS OF APPOINTIN G COMMITTHS 

II the assembly has not dictated how to appoint cammltteu In Its bVIaws or rutes 01 order. the 
assembly may decide on the method by unanimous consent or 8 ma/Orlty vote. Ttle power to 
appoint a committee Includes the power to flU any vacandn. Committees may be appointed In 
the lollowlng ways: 

Election by banot: Members make nominations using any method of nomination (.see Making 
Nominations, previous pageL and a rnajanty vote elects. 
Nominations from the floor (open nominationsl with Yiva woce election: If the assembly noml· 
nates the same number of members as positions to be nlled, the chair declares that these nomi, 
nees become the committee. on the other hand, If members propose moro nominations than 
positiOns to be nlled, the assembly votes on the tandldates In the order of their nomtnation. 

Members may adopt the agenda If the organization has not established a Special erde 
ness or the organization is not following a standard agenda outlined In Raben's Rules 
Newly Revised. 

COMPONENTS OF tHE. stAND ARO CROE R OF BUSINESS 

The six components to the standard order of business follow the mnemonic device Mil! 
Minutes 
• The minutes, or record of the proceedings, are read and approved in chronological 
• The chair asks, "Are there any correctiOliS to the minutes?· 
• Typically, the assembly adopts both the corrections to the minutes and the mlnuh 

selves by unanimous consent. 
" ports of officers, boards, and stondln; committees 
• Officers report in the order Usted in the bylaws. 
• The secretary presents the board of directors' report (If there Is a board aodlor rei 
• Standing commlnees report In the order listed in the bylaws. 
SpecIal commlHH reports: (jlven in the order In which the committees were establ 
SpecIal orde,.: Items that the bylaws require the assembly to handle at a particular 
such as the election of officers. 
• At a specific Ilme, the assembly may Interrupt business to consider any Item postl 

a two·thlrds vote and made a Special order (from the same or a previous meeting) 
Unfinished business and general orders 
• Unfinished buSiness Includes any Items on the agenda not completed at the last 

(the term ·oId business" is not used). 
• General orders Include any items postpOned from the last meeting by a 11l.1jority V\ 
Hew business: May be Introduced when no other Question is pending. 

C l OSlNG ACTI\llTIE5 
Under the Good of the Order(or general welfare of the sod ety) heading, members mi 
the lloor and provide Informal observations about the organization's work, reputatlc 
bersh p, or another similar Issue. 
The chair or other members may make announcements. 
The program Is presented before the meeting adjourns. This might include a talk, fil 
speaker, or other program of a cultural, educational, or dvic nature. However, the E 

should never tum over a meeting to another member or guest speaker Insteatl, a m, 
the assembly should either Introduce a guest speaker (if the assembly does not yet I 
speaker) or present a speaker (If members already know the speaker). 
The meeting Is adfaurned either by motion and vote, or, if business has been Conell 
chair may ask the assembly If there Is any further business. If members do not have ar 
business, the presiding oftlcer may dct:lare ttle meeting adjourned without a moUon 

TAKING UP BUSINESS OUT OF ITS PROPER ORDER 

The assembly may take up any Item of business out of Its proper order by adopting a r 
suspend the rules by a two ·thirdS vote 

Nominations by the chair with a .conflrmatlon votll by .... assembly: The asser 
wish not only to take advantage of the chair's knowled,ee and judgment but also to f 
power to veto nominations. The chair names the cand,dates and then askS, ··Sha41 tt 
sons constitute the committee?" Any member may mOYt to strike out the name of a I 
member If the assembly approves striking a name by majority vote, the chair pro 
alternate name, 
Appointment by the chair: Ttle assembly does not VGtC! on appointees unless the 
nonmembers. 

Appointment of the committee chalnnan by the chair: If the chair or presiding 
the assembly has the power to .apPOint a committee, the first person he or she nail 
committee Is the chairman. The first·named appolnttc serves as the cholirman!oJ 
sped fically stated that the committee will efect its own chalnnan. 
Appointment of the convnlttee chalnnon by the assembly or executive board: If I 
bIy or executive board (Ie. not rhe chair} adopts a motion to name a axnmlttec. the 
the power to name a chairman. HoWeVer, If an assembly does not designate a chart 
appointing a committee, the committee members have the right to elect a chairman 

Appointment by adopHon of a motion naming members of the commlttH: An 
may use thiS method to appoint special committees. 

COMMtTtEE REPORTS 

A report Is an outhorlzed statement fonnally adopted by and submitted in the name of 
miUee. The report makes the assembly awore of acflons the committee takes or reeo 
or information the committee obtains. 

Committees should submit reports in writing, worded in the third person. 
A standing commfttee should word reports as lollows" 

nit! ctlnmliut'C! on III suhmits tht! rullilwing report . . .. ~ 
A special comrnlthte should reports as fotl0W5 

nit' clIDlmlttl't! Ilppnintt'titul" submib tile fulluwinll: report .•• .- or 
The commlUre to which wa.. tcfcrr.-d [ll report!! (ur rct:ummcntls) that . • , .• 

A committee's report may also cantoln a ruolvtfon. 
• The committee chairman er reporting member Introduces the resolullon by Si 

direClIon 01 the committee. t move adopllon of the rollowlng resolution . " 
• A second Is not required for a recommendallon of a committee, since the recomn 

was effectively seconded In committee. 

95 



OTHER TYPES Of ' DELIBERATIVE ~ASSEMBLIES .~. , -:-.~;~ .. ' .. 
BOARDS 
A board Is a 'orm of deliberative assembly thol 
has no mlnimum size Ibul Is usually smallor thon 
an orgonlzallon's assembly) A board Is afwoys 
subordinate 10 Ihe orgonlzotlon Iiself; thol is. " 
rQc.a ~lOs li s power 10 operata 'rom the organlzallon 

COMPOSITION AND OFFICERS~ 
In accordance volh the bylaWS. a board may (orisist of offi · 
cers chairmen , and other members and may toe car.ed an 
executive board, board of directors. board of trustees, 01 

board of go .... mors 
EJf..offlclomambers: Often, a board includel members who 
serve ex officio, or "by virtue of lhelt ofllce - An f!A offic~ 
member who Is lUIder the authority of the organization haS 
the same privileges as any other board member Ex-offit:1o 
members who are IIDt under the authOrity of the organiza
tion have the privilege to make mOl ions, speak in debate, 
and vote but do not halle the obligation to particIPate IrI 
other words the board doe~ nat caunt an ex·officio mem 
ber in determining the prnence of a quorum. 
Officers of in organilallon's board are usually the SGme a~ 
those serving In the organization A board has only these 
powers assigned It In the organization'S bylaws and con 
ducts Its business jusl like any other deliberative assembly 
A board usualty reports to the membership; an executive 
committee. composed of the elected officers, reports to 
VIC board. 

PROCEDURE ltV SMALl. BOAR DS; "In'- ...... • ...... t 

Smoll boards (001 more than about a dozen members prescnU 
conduct business like a comm:ttei! Generanv. the foUowillS 
rules govern meetings of smaU boards (although a boortl m.:IV 
decide to deviate from these rules by the adoptocn of special 
rules of order) 

Members may make motions or speak in deCate wluli! seated 
Uley do not need to obtain the 1I00r to do so 
Motions do not require a second 
There IS no lunltalion on the m:mbcr of tlmts a member 
mav speak to a question 
Generally, members rna}' nat make matlcns to Um:t or c!ose 
debate 
Members mav d:lSCtIS!i a sublect mformal:.y ~h l re no motIon 
IS pending 
f'ra propoi31 IS clear to all preser.t a vote Il1ilY be tdken 
wiUlout hav.,g to mtroduce a motion formally 
nle chairman rna;, sit whIle puttrng questions to a vote 
Th-= wainnan may make motions., speak in debate, and 
{U'\I,IilIty) vote on all questions. ~ 

MASS MEETINGS 
A mass mootfng Is a mcoting or an unorganized 
group_I! Is opon 10 anyone inrerasled In the meallng's 
s.lared purpose or problem 

OR GANIZATIOfl.l OF A MASS MEETING ~...s 
The car~ or announcement of the meeting, should spedfy 
the Elale, hour. and place of the meetinz; Its purpose, and 
who is Env' ted to attend 
BefOfe the meeting. lhe sponsors Should agree on 

Who wtll calt the meettng to order 
Whom they prefer as a chairman 
Who will be nominated fOf secretary 
What rules, If any. wlB be proposed for adoption 
\\'110 w'lI make the initial talk explaining the purpose of 
the meeting. 

l he -member~~ of a man meeting consist of all persons 
inv ted who attend 
Members take a voice vote to a elect a chairman and sec· 
retary The secret:rry then reads the purpose contained In 
the caJ of the rnet bng 
A member (the sponsor or a member designated by the 
sponsors) offers a ,esoMion or a series of tesolutions to 
accomp':..sh the purpose 
A motion to odlourn is not in order while business is pend· 
ing. unless a tJme for an adjourned meeting has been 
established 

OAGANfZATION OF 11 PERMANENT SOCIETY 
AlthOugh the organizers of il permanent sodety \ItOrk in a 
manner simJar to the sponsors of a mass meeting, the seCI
ely's membership should be limited to people who take an 
interest in the subject of the society For this reason, Robert's 
Rules of DrotJr Ne~"1y Revised suggests that meetings of per· 
manent socl~ties not be publicly annoonced 

Fint organizational meetings include: 
Election of temporary offieers and Introductory tarks 

• Adoption of a resolution to form a permanent society 
• selection of bylaws by committee members 
• Establishment of an adjourned meeting 
Second organizational meetings include; 

Reading and approval of mmutes 
Consideration and adoption ~ by majority vote) of pro
posed bylaws 
Recess to enroll (charterl members 
Redding 01 the roll and eltction of permanent officers 
Anv other essential bus~ess 

CONVENTIONS 
A COflWInflon Is on assembly 01 delegates chosen to 
represenl consliluen~ subdivisions ro, one sessJon 
Conventions vary In slzo and durallon. ohen occurring 
at specific ~orly In!~rvafs as the bylaws dlclola 

f'ORMAL ORCAPltzAn ON OF A CONVENTION 
Before a convention can start bUSlness,three committee reports 
must be conSidered and adopted in the fOllo""ing order 

Credennols commltt.e: Adoption of this report by majori 
tv vote estabhshes the convention body Addillonal reports 
may be given at the beginning of each business meellng or 
before crucial items of bUSiness le,g, election of offlCersl. 
A majority vote also adopts these supplementary reports 
Committee on standing rules: The convention program 
usually includes proposals for rules, including parliamen 
tary rules (e g , a mltation on the length of speechesl and 
administrative rules (e.g, a requirement that convenbon 
participants wear badges at all times) A two thirds vote is 
required to adopt cOllvention standog rules. 

If a member requests that a particular rule be voted 
on separately. metnners must first vote on the body 01 
rules, then they may consider the rufe in question. 
ParNamentary rule$ teqUlre a two' thIrds vote for adoption. 
admil1lstratlve rules require a mafor.lVvote for adoption. 

Program commltt.e : The convention program (wllch the 
assembly adopts by majority vote) outlines the order of 
business and additional actMties during the convention It 
might iII.iO contain 

open'ng. 'closing hours Of eaCh dilj"S O1Jslness meeting 
Reports 
Time fO( nominat.on and election of officers 
Report of ttoe COl'l'/entlon resolutions comrfllttftt 
Times for educational workshop!. meals. or soda! events 

Some conventions may also halie a resolutions committee. 
whose purpose is to screen aM original main motions This 
comm:ttee recei\es Its power from the convention 

The committee may only have the authority to put resolu
tIOns in proper farm and logical sequence Alternatively, It 
may have the authority to alter the substance of resolubonS. 
The committee usually reports all resolubQf1s rcferfed to it 
and recommer.ds each for adopbon, relection. or amend· 
ment AJterniltlllely, it mily make no recommenddtion at al . 
Somebmes the rommlt>ce IS gIVen the power not to repoft 
a reson.tion, thus Wltl1hOkllflg the resolution from the con· 
.. enlJOn's consK1eratlon. II so. the convention shOUld always 
retain the power to override the committee's determrnatlon.. 

ADDITIONAL PROCEDURES fGLOSSARY (1I=.' ;rERMS· 
AMENDING BYLAWS 
allen, en organization may amend Jts bylaws 0"'; I at 
an annual mooting or a convenhon 

PROCEDURE 
A f"OHon to omend the ~s is classified as it motion to 
amend something previously adopted Normally amendments 
to the bylo1WS require previous nollce and a two·thirds vote 

An organizauon may allow pnmary and secondary amend 
ments as long as they do not exceed the scepe of change 
contained in the previous notice 
An affirmative vote cannot be reconSIdered An am(.>OOment 
to a bylaw tilkes immedIate effect 

COMPL£TE REVJ~ION OF BYLAWS 
If the assembly proposes extensiVe changes scattered througtJ 
out the bylawS. it may consider a comptcte revision of them 
A lcvislon opens the entire document to amendment. so the 
a, sl:ftlbly may make an unlimited number 01 char.ges The cur 
rent verSlOrl of the bylaws ~ not Pflndwc: If a member wishes 
to fetaln an original section, he or slle must make a separate 
motion to amend the revision. 

PROUISOS 
An assembty may add (to the motm to adopt the amend 
ment) a provision defining when the amendment to a bylaw 
takes effect Alternately, a provtSO in the fonn of an incidental 
matron may be adopted prior to conslderatjon of Ihe proposed 
bylaw amendment. 

DISCIPLINARY PROCEEDINGS 
Although many organizations have a rormol code at 
ethics, even those withoul a code can expecllheir 
members to behOVG properly Formal dlscipUnory 
odlcn should be ~ for serious sI1uatk>ns, whKh 
may occur either during or oulSlde of meellngs 

OFFENSES OURING MEETINGS 

An Dtganizallon has the light 10 determine who may be pres
ent at meetings and may also expect a reasonable level 01 
control during m .. llngs AI members present have the duty 
to obey the kliItimale ortlers of the presiding officer, and the 

assembly has the right to go Into executive session (excluding 
nonmembers from the meeting) 

If a member ccmmits only a slight breach of order (e g, 
speaking directly to another member during debate), the 
chaIr may Simply rap the g.wel, point out the fau'!, and 
advise the memtier to avoid the breach In the future 
II a member COmmits a ffiOnI serious offenseoo.g _ repeatedly 
questioning the motIveS of other memtJers), the chair should 
first warn the member The Chait or any other member mdy 
also can the momber 10 order bi ratSII'Ig a point of order 
If the member has been warned repeatedly by the presld
mg officer yet persists in the offense, the chair may nome 
the offender, Which amounts to preferring charges on the 
offender This should be used only as a last resort. 
II the member obeys. the matter may be dropped If the 
member persists, the ettalr may ask. -What penalty shall be 
imposed on the member~ AS a pena tv, the assembly may 

ReqUire an apology 
Censure the member 
Require that the member leave the meeting room 
suspend membership 
Expel the member from the organllatron 

OFFENSES OUT SICE OF MEETINCS 
The bylaws may Include a proY1S1Oll outlining the penalty for 
certain behavior outside of meeHngs (e.g, harming the good 
name of the organlzatlon, hampering Its work, and so on). 

Dlsdplinory trial: The organIzatiOO has the right to IfM!StI 
gate the character 01 Its members. Arrr accused member has 
the nght to a fair trial: If the bylaws do not indude procedtns 
for hoIdtng a diSdplll\ilfY trial the assembly should consult 
the current edition of Robert's Rules 01 Older Newly Rr!vrsed 
Removal from office: Any elected officer may be removed 
Irom ottice for misconduct or neglect of duty. 

If the bylaws prOVIde that olrlCers serve ~for Ixl years 
or until their successors are elected: the assembly 
may rescind the election and elect a successor for the 
remaincler of the term. The vote reqUited would be the 
same as to rescind. 
If the bylaws prOVIde lhatofflcers serve only a flKed term 
or that they serve -for Ixl years and until their succes· 
sors are elected,~ the officer can be removed only as a 
rosu' t of a disciplinary trial. 

Ad hoc: latin for -for tillS Ipurposel alone-
Address the choir; To use the appropriate title of the presid· 
Ing officer when seeking recognition 
Adjourn slnedie: An adjournment without provision fOt anoth· 
er meeting. used at the dose of a convention 
Adopt: To accept or apprlM! a motion 
Agendo: The establiShell order of ileJt'.s 01 buslneS5 
Aye/yeo/ya: An affirmative vote 
Censure: An admonition or reprimand 
Choir: The presiding olllctr of an assembly 
Debate: A discussion of the pros and cons of a motion 
Decorum: Proper behavtor 
Ent.rtaln D motion: For the ch.lir to request a formal motion 
to tilke a specific action 
&: offldo: Latin for -by v;rtue 01 off tee-
Germane: Relevant ~11SCd regarding amendments or debate) 
In order: correct in aocorUIce with the rules of the assembly 
Lost: RejeCled by a w le of the assembly 
Noy/no: A neg;ltive vote 
Nun ond vokI: Lacking legallorce or cllect 
Obtain the floor. To sean recognition in order to make a 
motion or speak In debate 
Ovt of order: In violation of the Mes of the organizatIOn 
Porflomentary outhority: The book of rutes aoopted by an 
assembly to govern tis parlilmentary proccWte 
'-ndlng' motion: The mction under conskteraUon 
Prewdeno: PrIortty or rank 01 motions 
Prevt:HRng side: The sIdo that reCeived the greatest noo;bcr of 
wtes, either affirmative Of negalive 
Pro"mpotr. Latin for -lemporari/y,4 -lor the time being
Proxy: Wrttten aIhtrimtion to vote on irother ~ befI.jf 

Questkin: The Immediately pending mo~on 
Recommit: To refer a subjec" 0( motion again to the same 0( 

a different committee 
ItuRng: A ~lsIon made by the chair 
Stand at ease: To take a brlel pause in the meetins (shorror 
than a recess, members 40 oot leaw the room) 
Vote by ocdarncrtfan: Approval of a candidate by unanimous 
consent 01 the assembly 96 



Rosenberg's Rules of Order 
REVISED 2011 

Simple Rules of Parliamentary Procedure for the 21st Century 

By Judge Dave Rose/lberg 

97 



MISSION AND CORE BELIEFS 
To expand and protect local control for cities through educat ion and atlmcaq 10 enhance the qualit y nfJife for all DJifornkms. 

VISION 
To be recognized and respected as the leading ad~'ocale for the common inlcrl'Sis of California's cities. 

About the League of California Cities 

Established in 1898, the League of California Cities is a memher organi7.oJ.lion that rcprc..'SCnlS California's incorporated cili~. 

The League strivc.."S to protect the local O1uthorily and automon), of city government and help California's ci ties effectively 

ser\'e their residents. In addition In advocating un cities' behalf at the stille cilpilol. the Lc.':lguc pnn-idcs its mcnlbcrs with 

professiunal development programs and information rcsourCl'S, conducls education confcrc"(cs and research. and publishes 

\\'estern City magazine. 

ABOUT THE AUTHOR 

Dave Rosenberg is a Superior Court Judge in Yolo County. He has served as presiding judge of his court, and as 

presiding judge of the Superior Court Appellate Division. He also has served as chair of the Trial Court Presiding Judges 

Advisory Committee (the committee composed of 011158 Dlifornia presiding judges) and as an ildvisory member of the 

Californiil Judicial Council. Prior to his appointment to the bench. Rosenberg was member of the Yolo County Board of 

Supervisors. where he served two terms as chair. Rosenberg also served on the Davis City Council, including two terms 

as ma)'Or. He has served on the senior staff of two governors, and worked for J9 years in private law prilctice. Rosenberg 

has served as a member and chair of numerous slate, regionill and local boards. Rosenberg chili red the California State 

Lottery Commission. the California Victim Compensation and Government Claims Board, the Yolo-Solano Air Quality 

Management District, the Yolo County Economic Development Commission. and the Yolo County Criminal Justice 

Cabinet. For many Ye;;J,rs, he has taught classes on parliamentary procedure and has served as pilrliamcnlarian for large 

and smilH bodies. 

II 
98 



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

About tM Autltor , .......... , ............... , .. , .. _ ..... _ ............ , ...... , ......... _ ....................... , .• , ..•. _ .• ;; 

I nt rod u, tion ... _ ............... _ ...................................... _ ........ _ ............ _ ........ _ ........... _ ....... 2 

E,t.blish ;ng • Q"",u m ..•..•.. _ ....... _ ........... _ .. _ ..... _ ..... _ ...... ,._ ..... _._ ..•.. _ .. _ .•...•............ 1 

n.~ Role of th~ Cho;, .. _ .. _._ ..•. _ ..... _ .... _._ .. _ ..... _ ............ _ ..•.. _ ........... _ .. _ .... _ .. _._ ....... 2 

Th. Book Fo,m" fo, on Agenw. Iltm Oi"u",on .............. _ ............ _. .. ............... 2 

!>lotion. in ~n""'I .... _ .. _._ .......................................... _._ ..... _ .. _ ..................... _ ........... 1 

n.. Th,« Bot, i, ~lotioJl$ .... _ ........... , ...................... _ ............ ~ ......................... * ..•.. _.~ ..• 3 

!>Iulliple ~lol,on' I!<fo," Ih. Dod)· ...•..•..•...•...•..•.. ~ ..•.. * ..... * .* '.* ........ *.* ..... * .* ... ,.* .* , •. j 

To D.bOl. 0, "altO D .... I ......... _ ..•..•..•.. * .. * ..... * .* ................ * ..•.. _ ......... .......... ... ........ 4 

~ lojo,itr and Sup.,·!> 10 jo,il)' \'ot'" •..•.. * . _,.* ..... * ................................ _ .. , .................... 5 

Counting \'01"'_ ............................ * ........ * ..... * .......................................... ~ .... ~ ............ 5 

Tho ~Iot'on to I!tcon<,<kr .......................... * ............ _ ..•.......................•..•...•..•..•• .... * .* .6 

Co"rt •• ~ and D«orum .............................. * ... ... .... ............. .. _ .................... . * .. * ...... ... . 7 

S~ial Not'" Abaut Publi' Input ......... *.* ................ , ........................... , ..... * .* ..... * ...... 7 

, 
99 



INTRODUCTION 

The rules of procedure .t meetings should be simple enough for 
most people to understand. Unfortunately, that has not always been 
the case. Virtually all clubs. associations. boards, councils and bodies 
follow a set of rules - Robert's Rilles of Order - which are embodied 
in a small. but complex, book. Virtually no one I know hilS actually 
read this book covcr to em'er. \\'orse yet. the hook was written for 
another time and for another purpose. If one is chairing or running 
a parliament. then Robert's Rules of Or tier is a dandy and quite useful 
h.ndbook for procedure in th.t complex setting. On the other h.nd, 
if one is running a meeting of say, a five-member body with a few 
members of the public in attendance, a simpli fied version of lhe rules 
of parliamentary procedure is in order. 

Hence, the birth of RMell1h!rgs Rules of Order. 

\"'hat follows is my version of the rules of parliamentary procedure, 
based on my decades of experience chairing meetings in statc and 
IUt."'31 gm·crnmcnt. These rules have been simplified for the smaller 
bodies wc chair or in which we participate, slimmed dO\·..-n for the 
21st Centur)", yet retaining the basic tenets of order to which we have 
grown accustomed. Interestingly enough, Roscflbcrg's Rules has found 
a welcoming audience. Hundreds of cities, I..()Unlies, special districlS, 
committees, boards, commissions, neighborhood associations and 
private corporatiuns and companies have adopted RosclIbt!rg's Rules 
in lieu of Robert s Rules because they have found them practical, 
logical, simple. easy to learn and user friendlr-

This tn:atise on modcrn pJrliamentary procedure is built on a 
foundation supported by the following four pillars: 

I. Rules should establish order. The fi rst purpo>e of rules of 
parliamentarr procedure is to establish a fr<lmework for the 
orderly conduct of medings. 

2. Rules should be clear. Simple rules le.d to wider underst.nding 
<Ind participation. Complex rules create two classes: those 
who understand and participate; and those who do not full y 
understand and do not fully participate. 

3. Rules should be user friendly. That is. the rules must be simple 
enough that the public is invited into the bodr ~nd feds that it 
has participated in the process. 

4. Rules should enforce the will of the majority while protecting 
the rights of the minority. The ultim.te purpose of rules of 
proccdurt is to cncour.tge discussion and to facilitate decision 
making b)' the bod)<. In a democracy, majority rules. The rules 
must enable the majority to express itself and fashion a result, 
while permitting the minority to also express itself, but not 
dominatc1 while fully participating in the process. 

2 

Establishing a Quorum 
The starting po int for a meeting is the establishment of a quorum. 
A quorum is defined as the minimum number of members of the 
bod)' who must be present at a meeting for business tn he legally 
transacted. The default rule is that a quorum is one more than half 
Ihe body. For cx.1mple, in a th'e-member bod}' a 'luorum is three. 
\Vhen the body hac; three mcmbers present, it can legall}' transact 
busincss. If the body has less than a quorum of members present. it 
cannot legally transact business. And even if the body has a quorum 
to begin the meeting, the body can losc the quorum during thc 
meeting when a member departs (or even when a member leaves the 
dais). \Vhen th<ll occurs the body loses its ability to transact busint:ss 
until and unless a quorum is reestablished. 

Thc dd ault rule. identified abm'e, howc\'er, gives way to .. specific 
rule of the body that establishes a quorum, For example. the rules of 
a particular fivc-member body rna)' indicate that a quorum is fnur 
memhers for that particular hody. The body must follow the rules it 
has established for its quorum. In the ab~cnce of such a specific rule, 
the quorum is one more than half the members of the bod)". 

The Role of the Chair 
\Vhile all members of the hody should know and understand the 
rules of parliamentary procedure, it is the chair of the bod)' who i$ 
charged with applying the rules of conduct of the meeting. The chair 
should be well vcrsed in chose rules. ror all intents and purposes, the 
chair makes the final rul ing on thc rulc.> c\'cry time the chair states an 
IIct ion, In fact, lin deci~ions hr the chair arc final unlc!i'i CJ\'erruled hr 
the bod)' itself. 

Since the chair runs the conduct of the meeting, it is usual courtesy 
for lht! chair tn playa k-ss acti\'e role in the debate and discussion 
than otht:r members of the hody. This docs not mean Ih;\I the chair 
should not partic ipate in the dehate or discussion. Tn the contrary, as 
a member of the bod)', the chair has the full right tn participah: in the 
debate, discussion and decision-making of the body. What the chair 
should do. hm\'t. .... ·cr. is strive to be the last tn speak at the discussion 
and debate stage. The ch.lir should not make or .c;e..:ond.;) motion 
unlt.'S!) the chair is convim.ed that no other mcmber of the body \,,'m 
do so at tha t point in time, 

The Basic Format for an Agenda Item Disrussion 
}-ormai meetings normally ha,'c a wriuen, often published agenda. 
Informal meetings rna)' have only an oral or understood agenda. In 
either case, the meeting is governed by the agenda and the agenda 
constitutes the body's agreed-upon road map for the meeting. Each 
agenda item can be handled by the chair in the following basic 
format : 

100 



First, the chair should clearly announce the agenda item number and 
should clearly state what the agenda item subject is. The chair should 
then announce the format (which follows) that will be followed in 
considering the agenda item. 

Second, following that agenda format. the chair should invite the 
appropriate person or persons to report on the item, including any 
recommendation that they might have. The appropriate person or 
persons may be the chair, a member of the body, a staff person, or a 
committee chair charged with providing input on the agenda item. 

Third, the chair should ask members of the body if they have any 
technical questions of clarification. At this point, members of the 
body may ask clarifying questions to the person or persons who 
reported on the item, and that person or persons should be given 
time to respond. 

Fourth, the chair should invite public comments, or if appropriate at 
a formal meeting, should open the public meeting for public input. 
If numerous members of the public indicate a desire to speak to 
the subject, the chair may limit the time of public speakers. At the 
conclusion of the public comments. the chair should announce that 
public input has concluded (or the public hearing. as the case may be, 
is closed). 

FYfh. the chair should invite a motion. The chair should announce 
the name of the member of the body who makes the motion. 

Sixth, the chair should determine if any member of the body wishes 
to second the motion. The chair should announce the name of the 
member of the body who seconds the motion. It is normally good 
practice for a motion to require a second before proceeding to 
ensure that it is not just one member of the body who is interested 
in a particular approach. However, a second is not an absolute 
requiremenr, and the chair can proceed with consideration and vote 
on a motion even when there is no second. This is a matter left to the 
discretion of the chair, 

Seventh, if the motion is made and seconded, the chair should make 
sure everyone understands the motion. 

This is done in one of three ways: 

1. The chair can ask the maker of the motion to repeat it; 

2. The chair can repeat the motioni or 

3. The chair can ask the secretary or the clerk of the body to repeat 
the motion. 

Eighth, the chair should now invite discussion of the motion by the 
body. If there is no desired discussion, or after the discussion has 
ended, the chair should announce that the bod)' will vote on the 
motion. If there has been no discussion or very brief discussion, then 
the vote on the motion should proceed immediately and there is no 
need to repeat the motion. If there has been substantial discussion, 
then it is normally best to make sure everyone understands the 
motion by repeating it. 

3 

Ninth, the chair takes a vote. Simply asking for the "ayes" and then 
asking for the "nays" normally does this. If members of the body do 
not vote, then they "abstain." Unless the rules of the body provide 
othen\'ise (or unless a super majority is required as delineated later 
in these rules), then a simple majority (as defined in law or the rules 
of the body as delineated later in these rules) determines whether the 
motion passes or is defeated. 

Tenth, the chair should announce the result of the vote and what 
action (if an),) the bod)' has taken. In announcing the result, the chair 
should indicate the names of the members of the body, if any, who 
voted in the minority on the motion. This announcement might take 
the following form: "The motion passes by a vote of 3-2, with Smith 
and Jones dissenting. \Vc have passed the motion requiring a lO·day 
notice for all future meetings of this body." 

Motions in General 
Motions are the vchicles for decision making b)' a bod)'. It is usuall), 
best to have a motion before the body prior to commencing 
discussion of an agenda item. This helps the bod)' focus. 

~Iotions are made in a simple two-step process. First, the chair 
should recognize the member of the body. Second, the member 
of the body makes a motion by preceding the member's desired 
approach with the words "I move ... " 

A typical motion might be: "I move that \"'e give a lO~dar notice in 
the future for all our meetings." 

The chair usuall}' initiates the motion in one of three ways: 

I. Inviting the members of the body to make a motion, for 
example, "A motion at this time would be in order." 

2_ Suggesting a motion to the members of the body. "A motion 
would be in order that we give a to-day notice in the future for all 
our meetings." 

3. Making the motion. As noted, the chair has every right as a 
member of the body to make a motion, but should normally do 
so only if the chair wishes to make a motion on an item but is 
convinced that no other member of the body is willing to step 
fon\'ard to do so at a particular time. 

The Three Basic Motions 
There arc three motions that are the most common and recur often 
at meetings: 

The basic motion. The basic motion is the one that puts forward a 
decision for the body1s consideration. A basic motion might be: "I 
muve that we create a five-member cummittee to plan and put on 
our annual fundraiser.'" 

101 



The motion to amend. If a member wants to change a basic motion 
that is before the body, they would move to amend it. A motion 
to amend might be: "I move that we amend the motion to have a 
lOAmember committee." A motion to amend takes the basic motion 
that is before the body and seeks to change it in some way. 

The substitute motion. If a member ,'I.-ants to completel), do away 
with the basic motion that is before the body, and put a ne'''' motion 
before the body, therwould move a substitute molion. A substitute 
motion might be: "I move a substitute motion that we cancel the 
annual fundraiser this rear." 

"~'lotions to amend" and "substitute motions" arc: often confused, but 
they are quite different. and their effect (i f passed) is quite different. 
A motion to amend seeks to retain the basic motion on the floor, but 
modit)· it in some wOJy. A substitute mot ion seeks to throw out the 
hasic motion on the floor, and substitute a new and different motion 
for it. The decision as to whether a motion is really a "motion to 
amend" or a "substitute motion" is left to the chair. So if a member 
makes what that member catls a "motion to amend." but the chair 
determines that it is really a "substitute motion," then the chair's 
designation governs. 

A "friendl), amendment" is a practical parliamentary tool that is 
simple, informal, sa\'cs time and avoids bogging a meeting down 
with numerous formal motions. It works in the following way: In the 
discussion on a pending motion, it may appear lhat a change to the 
motion is desirable or may win support for the motion from some 
members. \Vhcn that happens. a member who has the floor may 
simply say, "I want to suggest a friendly amendment to the motion." 
The member suggests the friendly amendment, and if the maker and 
the person whl\ st.,<onded the motion pending on the floor accepts 
the friendly amendment. that now becomes the pending motion on 
the flnor. lf either the m.lkl:r or the: person who seconded rejects Ihe 
proposed friendly amendment. then the proposer can formally move 

to amend. 

Multiple Motions Before the Body 
There can be up te> three motinns un the floor at the same time. 
The chair can reject a fourth motion until the chair has dealt 
with the three that arc on the fluor and has resolved them. Thi~ 
rule has practical value.f!.lore Lhan threc motions on the floor at 
any given time is confusing and unwieldy for almost evcryone. 

including the chair. 

When there are two or threc motions on the floor (after motions and 
seconds) ar the same time, the vote should proceed jirston the last 
motion that is made. For example, assume the first motion is a basic 
"motion to have a five-member committee to plan and put on our 
annual fundraiser." During the discussion of this motion. a member 
might make a second motion to "amend the main motion to have a 
lO-membcr committee, not a five-member committee to plan and 
put on our annual fundraiser." And perhaps. during that discussion. a 
member makes yel a third motion as a "substitute motion that we not 
have an annual fundraiser this year." The proper procedure would be 

as follows: 

First, the chair would deal with the third (the last) motion on the 
floor, the substitute motion. After discussion and debate, a vote 
would be taken first on the th ird motion. If the substitute motion 
passed, it would be a substitute for the basic motion and would 
eliminate it. The first motion would be moot, as would the second 
motion (which sought to amend the first motion). and the action on 
the agenda item would be completed on the passage by the body of 
the third motion (the substitute motion). No vole would be taken on 
the first or second motions. 

Second, if the subst itute mot ion failed, the chair would then deal 
with the secnnd (now the last) motion on the floor, the motion 
to amend. The discussion ilnd debate would focus strict1y on the 
amendment (should the committee be fi\'e or 10 members). If the 
motion to amend pllsst!d, the chair would then move to consider the 
main motion (the first motion) as Il1lJcudt!ti. If the motion to amend 
jiJilt!d, the chair would then move to consider the main motion (the 
first motion) in its original format, not amended. 

Third, the chair would now deal with ,he fir . .,t motiufl that was plnced 
on the t1oor. The original mution "muld eithcr bc in its originnl 
format (five-member committee), or if tlI/wJde,I, would be in its 
amended format (IO-member committee). The question on the tluor 
for discussion and decision would be whether a committee should 
plan and put on the annual fundraiser. 

To Debate or Not to Debate 
The basic rule of motions is that they are subject to discussion and 
debate. Accordingly. basic motions. motions to amend. amI substitute 
motions arc all eligible, each in their turn. for full discussion before 
and by the body. The debate can continue as long as members of the 
body wish 10 discuss an item. subject to the decision of the chair that 
it is time to move on and take action. 

There arc exceptions to the general rule of free and open debate 
on motions. The exceptions all apply when there is a desire of the 
body to move on. The following motions arc not debatable (that 
is . when the following mot ions are made and seconded, the chair 
must immediately call for a , 'ote of the bod y without debate on the 

mOl ion): 

Motion to adjourn. Th is mot ion. if passed. rcquin:s Iht" body to 
immediately adjourn to its next regularly scheduled meeting. It 
requires a simple majority vote. 

Motion to recess. This mot ion, if passed, requires the body to 
immediately take a recess. Normally, the chair determines the length 
of the recess which may be a few minutes or an hour. It requires a 

simple majority vote. 

Motion to fix the time to adjourn. This motion, if passed. requires 
the body to adjourn the meeting at the specific lime set in the 
motion. For example, the mot ion might be: "I move we adjourn this 
meeting at midnight."' It requires a simple majority vote. 

102 



Motion to table. This motion, if passed, requires discussion of the 
agenda item to be halted and the agenda item to be placed on "hold." 
The motion can contain a specific time in which the item can come 
back to the body. "I move we table this item until our regular meeting 
in October." Or the motion can contain no specific time for the 
return of the item, in which case a motion to take the item off the 
table and bring it back to the body will have to be taken at a future 
meeting. A motion to table an item (or to bring it back to the body) 
requires a simple majority vote. 

Motion to limit debate. The most common form of this motion is to 
say, "I move the previous question" or "I mm'e the question" or "I call 
the question" or sometimes someone simply shouts out "question." 
As a practical matter, when a member calls out one of these phrases, 
the chair can expedite matters by treating it as a "request" rather 
than as a formal motion. The chair can simply inquire of the body, 
"any further discussion?" If no one wishes to have further discussion, 
then the chair can go right to the pending motion that is on the floor. 
However, if even one person wishes to discuss the pending motion 
further, then at that point, the chair should treat the call for the 
"question" as a formal motion, and proceed to it. 

When a member of the body makes such a motion ("I move the 
previous question"), the member is really saying: "I've had enough 
debate. Let's get on with the vote." \Vhen such a motion is made, the 
chair should ask for a second, stop debate, and vote on the motion to 
limit debate. The motion to limit debate requires a t"vo-thirds vote of 

the body. 

NOTE: A motion to limit debate could include a time limit. For 
example: "I move we limit debate on this agenda item to 15 minutes ." 
Even in this format, the motion to limit debate requires a two· 
thirds vote of the body. A similar motion is a motion to object to 
consideration of an item. This motion is not debatable, and if passed, 
precludes the body from even considering an item on the agenda. It 
also requires a t\vo-thirds vote. 

Majority and Super Majority Votes 
In a democracy, a simple majority vote determines a question. A tie 
vote means the motion fails. So in a seven-member body, a vote of 
4-3 passes the motion. A vote of 3-3 with one abstention means the 
motion fails. If one member is absent and the vote is 3-3, the motion 

still fails. 

All motions require a simple majority, but there are a few exceptions. 
The exceptions come up when the body is taking an action which 
effectively cuts off the ability of a minority of the body to take an 
action or discuss an item. These extraordinary motions require a 

two-thirds majority (a super majority) to pass: 

Motion to limit debate. Whether a member says, '" move the 
previous question," or "1 move the question," or "I call the question ," 
or "I move to limit debate," it all amounts to an attempt to cut off the 
ability of the minority to discuss an item, and it requires a two· thirds 

vote to pass. 

5 

Motion to dose nominations. \Vhen choosing officers of the 
body (such as the chair), nominations are in order either from a 
nominating committee or from the floor of the body. A motion to 
close nominations effectively cuts off the right of the minority to 
nominate officers and it requires a two-thirds vote to pass. 

Motion to object to the consideration of a question. Normally, such 
a motion is unnecessary since the objectionable item can be tabled or 
defeated straight up. However, \,,'hen members of a body do not even 
want an item on the agenda to be considered, then such a motion is 
in order. It is not debatable, and it requires a two-thirds vote to pass. 

Motion to suspend the rules. This motion is debatable, but requires 
a "va-thirds vote to pass. If the body has its own rules of order, 
conduct or procedure, this motion allO\\'s the body to suspend the 
rules for a particular purpose. For example, the body (a private club ) 
might have a rule prohibiting the attendance at meetings by non-club 
members. A motion to suspend the rules would be in order to allow 
a non· club member to attend a meeting of the club on a particular 
date or on a particular agenda item. 

Counting Votes 
The matter of counting \'otes starts simple, but can become 
complicated. 

Usually, it's pretty easy to determine whether a particular motion 
passed or whether it was defeated. If a simple majority vote is needed 
to pass a motion, then one vote more than 50 percent of the body is 
required. For example, in a five-member body, if the vote is three in 
favor and two opposed, the motion passes. If it is two in favor and 
three opposed, the motion is defeated. 

If a two-thirds majority vote is needed to pass a motion, then how 
many affirmative votes arc required? The simple rule of thumb is to 
count the "no" votes and double that count to determine how many 
"yes" votes are needed to pass a particular motion. For example, in 
a se\'en-member body, if "\'0 members vote "no" then the "yes" vote 
of at least four members is required to achieve a two·thirds majority 
vote to pass the motion. 

\\'hat about tie votes? In the event of a tie, the motion always fails since 
an affirmative vote is required to pass any motion. For example~ in a 
five-member bod}', if the vote is two in favor and two opposed, with 
one member absent, the motion is defeated. 

Vote counting starts to become complicated when members 
vote "abstain" or in the case of a written ballot, cast a blank (or 
unreadable) ballot. Do these \'ott!S count, and if so, how does one 
count them? The starting point is always to check the statutes. 

In California, for example, for an action of a board of supen'isors to 
be valid and binding, the action must be approved by a majority of the 
board. (California Government Code Section 25005. ) Typically, this 
means three of the five members of the board must vote affinnatively 
in favor of the action. A vote of2-1 would not be sufficient. A vote of 
3~O with two abstentions would be sufficient. In general law cities in 

103 



California, as another example, resolutions or orders for the payment of 
money and all ordin,mces require a recorded \-ule of the total members 
of the cil)'council. (California Government Code Section 36936.) Cities 
with charters may prescribe their own vote requirements. Local elected 
officials are always well-advised tu consult with their local agency 
counsel on how state law may affect the vote count. 

After consulting state statutes, step number two is to check the rules 
of the body. If the rules of the body say that you count votes of "those 
present" then you treat abstentions one way. However. if the rules of 
the bod)' say that you count the votes of those "prescnt and voting," 
then you treat abstentions a different war. And if the rules of the 
body arc silent on the subject, then the general rule of thumb (and 
default rule) is that you count all votes that are "present and voting." 

Accordingly, under the "prescnt and voting" system. you would NOT 
count abstention votes on the motion. Members who abstain are 
counted for purposes of determining quorum (they arc "present"). 
but you treat the abstention votes on the motion as if they did not 
c:<ist (ther arc nol "voting"). On the other h.md, if the rules of the 
hudy specificall)' say that rou count votes of those "present" then you 
DO count abstention votes both in establishing the quorum and on 
the motion. In this event, the abstention votes act just like "no" votes. 

How does tlris work in practice? 
Here are a few examples. 

Assume that a five-member city council is \'oting on il motion that 
re()uires a simple majority voCe Co pass, and assume further that the 
body has no specific rule on counting votes. Accordingly, the default 
rule kicks in and we count all \'otes of members that arc "pfl.'Sent and 
\·(lling." If the vote on the motion is 3-2. thc motion pa'ises. If the 
motion is 2-2 with one abstention. the motion fails. 

Assume OJ five-m ember city council voting on i1 motion that requires 
a two-thirds majority vote to pass, and further assume that the body 
has no specific rule on counting \"Otes. Again, the default rule applies. 
If the vote is 3-2, the motion fails for lack of a two-thirds maJurit}: If 
the vote is 4-1. the motion passes with a dear two-thirds majoritr. A 
vute of three "yes." one "no" and one "abstain" also results in passage 
of the motion. Once again. the abstention is counted only for the 
purpose of determining quorum, but on the actual \·ote on the 
motion, it is as if the abstention vote never existed - Sl) an effecliw 
3-1 vote is dearly a l\\U-thirds majority vote. 

Now, change.' the scenario slightl~t. A'isume the same five-member 
city council voting on a motion that requires a two-thirds majority 
vote to pass. but now assume that the body DOES have a spedli(" rule 
requiring a two-thirds vole of members "present." Under this spedfic 
rule. we must count the mcmbers present not only for quorum but 
also for the motion. In this scenario, any abstention has the same 
force and effect as if it were a "no" vote. Accordingly, if the votes \,,'ere 
thrce ")'es;' one "no" and one "abstain," thcn the motion fails. The 
abstention in this case is treated like a "no" vote and effective vote of 
3.2 is not enough to pass two· thirds majority muster. 

6 

Now, exactly how does a member cast an "abstention" vote? 
Any time a member votes "abstain" or sa)'s, " I abstain," that is an 
abstention. Howe\'er. if a member votes "present" that is also trealed 
as an abstention (the member is essentially S3};ng. "Count me for 
purposes of a quorum, but mr vote on the issue is abstain.") In fact. 
any manifestation of intention not to vote either "yes" or "no" on 
the pending motion may be treated by the chair as an abstention. If 
wrinen ballots are cast. a blank or unreadable baUot is counted as nn 
abstention as well. 

Can a member vote "absent" or "count me as absent?" Interesting 
question. The ruling on this is up to the chair. The belter approach is 
for the chair to count this as if the member had left his/her chair and 
is actually "absent." Th3l. of course, affects the quorum. Howe\'er. the 
chair may also treat this as a vote to abstain. particularly if the person 
docs not actually leave the dais. 

The Motion 10 Reconsider 
There: is a special and unique motion that requires a bit of 
cxplanation all by itself. the motion to reconsider. A tenet of 
parliamentary procedure is finality. After vigorous discussion. debi.lte 
and a vote, there must be some closure tn the issue. And 50. after a 
vote is taken, the maHer is dcemc..-d. closed, subject only to reopening 
if it proper motion to consider is made and passed. 

A motion to reconsider requires a majority vote to pass like other 
garden·\Oaricty motions. hUI there arc two special rules that apply 
only w the motion to rc..'Considcr. 

First, is the matter of timing. A motion to reconsider must be milde 
at the meeting where the item was first voted upon. A mution to 
reconsider made at a later time is untimely. (The body. hm ... ·cver. can 
i.,lways vote to suspend the rules and. by a two-thirds majority. allow 
a motion to reconsider to be made at another time.) 

Second, a motion to reconsider mar be made on1r br cerlain 
members of the bod)'. Accordingly, a motion to reconsider may be 
made onlr by a member who voted in the majority on the original 
motion. If such a member has it change of heart. he or she may 
make the motion to reconsider (any other member of the body 
- including a member who voted in the minority on the original 
motion - may second the motion). If a member who ,"oted in the 
minority seeks to make the motion to reconsider. it must be ruled 
OUt ()f order. The purpose ufthis rule is finality. If a member of 
minority could make a motion to reconsider. then the item could be 
brought back to the body again and again. which would defeat the 
purpuse of finality. 

If the motion to reconsidt'r passes, then the original matter is back 
before the body, and a new original motion is in order. The matter mar 
be c.iiscuss(:d. and dcbil1Cd a~ if it were nn the floor for the first time. 

104 



Courtesy and Decorum 

The rules of order are meant to create an atmosphere where the 
members of the body and the members of the public can attend to 
business efficiently, fairly and with full participation. At the same 
time, it is up to the chair and the members of the body to maintain 
common courtesy and decorum. Unless the setting is very informal. 
it is always best for only one person at a lime to have the floor, and 
it is always best for every speaker to be first recognized by the chair 
before proceeding to speak. 

The chair should always ensure that debate and discussion of an 
agenda item focuses on the item and the policy in question. not the 
personalities of the members of the body. Debate on policy is healthy, 
debate on personalities is not. The chair has the right to cut off 
discussion that is too personal. is too loud, or is 100 crude. 

Debate and discussion should be focused, but free and open. In the 
interest of time, the chair may, however, limit the time allotted to 
speakers, including members of the body. 

Can a member of the body interrupt the speaker? The general rule is 
uno." There are, however, exceptions. A speaker may be interrupted 
for the following reasons: 

Privilege. The proper interruption would be, "point of privilege." 
The chair would then ask the interrupter to "state your point." 
Appropriate points of privilege rdate to anything that would 
interfere with the normal comfort of the meeting. For example, the 
room may be too hot or too cold, or a blowing fan might interfere 
with a person's ability to hear. 

Order. The proper interruption would be, "point of order." Again. 
the chair \""ould ask the interrupter to "state your point." Appropriate 
points of order rdate to anything that would not be considered 
appropriate conduct of the meeting. For example, if the chair moved 
on to a vote on a motion that permits debate without allowing that 
discussion or debate. 

7 

Appeal. If the chair makes a ruling that a member of the body 
disagrees with, that member may appeal the ruling of the chair. If the 
motion is seconded, and after debate, if it passes by a simple majority 
vote, then the ruling of the chair is deemed reversed. 

Call for orders of the day. This is simply another way of sajing. 
"return to the agenda." If a member believes that the body has drifted 
from the agreed-upon agenda, such a call may be made. It does not 
require a vote. and when the chair discovers that the agenda has 
not been followed, the chair simply reminds the body to return to 
the agenda item properly before them. If the chair fails to do so, the 
chair's determination may be appealed. 

Withdraw a motion. During debate and discussion of a motion, 
the maker of the motion on the floor. at any time, may interrupt a 
speaker to withdraw his or her motion from the noor. The motion 
is immediately deemed withdrawn, although the chair may ask the 
person who seconded the motion ifhe or she wishes to make the 
motion, and any other member may make the motion if properly 
recognized. 

Special Notes About Public Input 
The rules outlined above will help make meetings very public
friendl}'. But in addition, and particularly for the chair. it is wise to 
remember three special rules that apply to each agenda item: 

Rule One: Tell the public what the body "ill be doing. 

Rule Two: Keep the public informed while the body is doing it. 

Rule Three: When the body has acted, telI the public what the 
body did. 

105 



~ \. LEAG U E" ~ m l'\lIIOrt"J!o\ 

C ITI ES 

1400 K Street. Sacramento, CA 95814 
(916) 65K-R200 I F.x (916) 65R-R240 

www.cacities.org 

To order additional copies of this publication, call (916) 658·8200. 

$10 

A"1 10l11.CIIgIlC ofCtdiJomitl Citics. All rights rcscfl'cd. 

106 



.... 
~ 

Rober't~ v. Rosen~rg's ~Rules of Order 

,me of aty and'CIerk Roberts 

1. Glendale (Andv Kassakhlan) X 
2. Winters ( Nancy Mills) 
3. Sonoma (Gay Johann) 
4. Oroville (Jamie Hayes) 
5. Antioch (Arne Simonsen) X 
6. Stockton ( Bonnie Paige) 
7. Irvine (MoliV Mclaughlin) X 
8. Oxnard (Daniel Martinez) X 
9. Santa Rosa (Terri Griffin) 
10. Fresno (Yvonne Spence) 
11. Monrovia (Alice Atkins) X 
12. Millbrae (Angela louis) X 
13. National City (Michael Dalla) 
14. Wesrlake Village (Beth Schott) X 
15. Belmont (Terri Cook 
16. S. lake Tahoe (Susan Alessi) 
17. Dublin San Ramon Services District (N , Gamble) 
18. Susanville (Gwenna MacDonald) X 
19. Fillmore (Diana Impeartice) 
20. Portola Valley (Sharon Hanlon) X 
21. Lawndale (Pam Glamano) 
22. Contra Costa Water District (Mary Neher) 
23. Riverside (Colleen Nichol) 
24. Calistoga (Kathy Flamson) 
25. Hollister (Gerl Johnson) X 
26. Rohnert Park (JoAnne Buergler) 
27. Ferndale (Jennifer Church) 
28. Pinole (PatriCia Athenour) X 
29. San Rafael (leslie Carpentlers) X 
30. S. San Francisco (Krista Martinelli) 
31. Fortuna (Unda Jensen-McGill) 
32. Napa 
33. Rancho Palos Verdes 

34. Sacramento 

Rosenberis Comments 

Rosenberg's are better because they address typical city council issues particularly in CA 
X Rosenberg's are simplified procedures 

X Rosenberg's are easy to understand and expeditious 
X Switched in 2012. Felt Roberts was much too formal with the world as it is today 

None 
X None 

Have not considered moving to Rosenberg's Rules 
Has been some disucssion about changing to Rosenberg's 

X Shifted to Rosenberg's Rules in 2013. So far, so good 
X In 2012 switched to Rosenberg's as the primary source with Robert's as secondary source 

Use Robert's Rules but no confirmation of formal adoption and no discussion of changing 
No discussions to change 

X Shifted last year. Easier to use and understand, readily avalable online. Roberts cumbersone 
Have not discussed changing 

X Rosenberg's much simpler and timely. Roberts is archaic and applies to larger bodies of goY! 
X None 

X None 
Consensus is that it's worth considering change only if all boards and commissions agree 

X No comment 
Please share findings 

X Council procedures allow use of Roberts but no one has asked to review 
Special District 
Use neither. Have their own meeting rules. 

X None 

Had discussion about changing and decided to stay with Robert's Rules 
X In the process of changing to Rosenberg's Rules 
X Changed to Rosenberg's Rules in 2010; prior to that operated under Roberts 

X 

Use Roberts Rules. Approached City Attorney about changing and he was not supportive 
City Council uses Roberts although Planning Commission uses Rosenberg's 

X No comment 

X 

X 

Use neither. Adopted their own procedures. (included as Attachment A) 
In the event of a conflict, the Munucipal Code governs over Rosenberg's Rules of Order 

Rosenberg's Rules applv to the extent that their own Rules of Order do not address an issue 

UOTAlS; 3!\ --U -- 11. 3.- at!!!!; 



CITY Of 

Council Meeting Protocol ~ DELL -

"In the conduct a/the public 's business, the Rio Dell City Council strives to 

operate with integrity, responsibility and respect/or all. The meetings a/the Rio 

Dell City Council will be operated openly and/or the purpose o/protecting the 
rights 0/ the minority while canying out the will 0/ the majority . .. 

1. Only one person at a time speaks. 

2. A speaker must be recognized by the Mayor before speaking. 

3. A speaker can only speak in front of a microphone located at the podium, staff 
table or dais - not the audience. 

4. All comments are made through the Mayor. 

5. Comments are confined to the current issue before the Council. 

6. Discussion should alternate between Pro and Con. 

7. No cross conversations or interruptions. 

8. No personal verbal attacks of other Councilmembers, public or staff. 

9. Decisions are null and void if there is no quorum or proper posting. 

10. Decisions are binding on all, even those who voted against. 

11. Parliamentary procedure shall be governed by Rosenburg's Rules of Order (RRO), 
and should an issue develop that is outside of RRO's scope, the mayor shall have 
discretion in the conduct of the proceedings within these protocols. 

City of Rio Dell V. 3.3.15 

108 



Council Rules of Procedure 
Adopted on January 27,2015 

Resolution No. 2015-0021 

109 



Blank page is Intentional 

110 



CITY OF SACRAMENTO-COUNCIL RULES OF PROCEDURE 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

CHAPTER 1 - AUTHORITY/ADMINISTRATION ........................................................... 1 
A. General Authorities and Applicability 1 
B. General Administration 1 
C. Amendment 1 
D. Suspension 1 
E. Rosenberg's Rules of Order 1 

CHAPTER 2 - DUTIES .................................................................................................... 2 
A. Duties of Members and Staff 2 
B. Duties of Mayor, Vice Mayor and Mayor Pro Tempore 2 

CHAPTER 3 - CONDUCT OF MEMBERS ...................................................................... 3 
A. Norms and Expectations 3 
B. General Conduct 3 
C. Conduct with Members 4 
D. Conduct with City Manager and Staff 4 
E. Conduct with the Public 5 
F. Conduct with Other Agencies 5 
G. Conduct with Boards and Commissions 5 
H. Conduct with the Media 6 
I. Ethical Conduct 6 

CHAPTER 4 - CONDUCT OF CITY STAFF ................................................................... 7 
A. General Conduct 7 

CHAPTER 5 - CONDUCT OF THE PUBLIC .................................................................. 8 
A. General Conduct 8 
B. Addressing the City Council 8 
C. Electronic Devices 10 
D. Location of Speaker 10 

CHAPTER 6-MEETING TYPES AND SCHEDULES ................................................... 11 
A. Regular Meetings 11 
B. Adjourned Meetings 11 
C. Special Meetings 11 
D. Emergency Meetings 11 
E. Closed Sessions 12 
F. Public Hearings 12 
G. Teleconferenced Meetings 14 
H. Televised Meetings 14 

CHAPTER 7- MEETING AGENDAS ............................................................................. 15 
A. Requirements for Agenda Item Submission 15 
B. Declaration of Policy 15 
C. Procedures for Submission of Reports 16 
D. Written Communications from the City and the Public 16 
E. Preparation of the Agenda Packet 16 
F. Distribution of the Packet 17 
G. Posting of Agenda 

Resolution 2015-0021 January 27,2015 

17 

111 



CITY OF SACRAMENTO-COUNCIL RULES OF PROCEDURE 

H. Failure to Meet Agenda Deadlines 18 
I. Exceptions to the Agenda Requirement 18 
J. Types of Agenda Items 18 
K. Ordinances and Non-Binding Resolutions 19 

CHAPTER 8- CONDUCT OF MEETING ....................................................................... 20 
A. Call to Order - Presiding Officer 20 
8. Roll Call/Attendance 20 
C. Order of Discussion 
D. Oral Communications from the Audience 
E. Quorum Call 
F. Obtaining the Floor 

20 
22 
22 
22 

G. Motions 22 
H. Voting 23 

CHAPTER 9- COUNCIL REQUESTS ....•..•..••...•• •. .•.•...•. ................•......•.•• ...••.••.•••• ...••.• 24 
A. General 24 

CHAPTER 10 - VACANCIES .•••..............•••. ..••...••.....................•.......••.•...••..••••••..•.....•. 25 
A. Procedures 25 

CHAPTER 11- FACiLITIES •..•••.•.•...•....•••••.••..••. ...••...••...•••.•.••••••••••••••••••••.•••.•...•.•...••..• 26 
A. Council Chamber Capacity 26 

CHAPTER 12 - CITY COUNCIL COMMITTEES/REGIONAL ORGANIZATIONS ..••••.. 27 
A. General 
B. Standing Committees 
C. Ad Hoc Committees 

27 
27 
28 

D. Regional Organizations 29 

CHAPTER 13 - LAW AND LEGISLATION (LAW AND LEG) COMMITTEE .•..•••........ 30 
A. Authority; Purposes 30 
B. Procedures 30 

CHAPTER 14 - PERSONNEL AND PUBLIC EMPLOYEES COMMITTEE .....•... .•••.••. 32 
A. Purposes 32 
8. Procedures 32 
C. Exceptions 32 

CHAPTER 15 - BUDGET AND AUDIT COMMITTEE ...•.•••.•.••. ..............• •• .•••. •............ 33 
A. Purposes 33 
B. Procedures 33 

CHAPTER 16- BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS ..•...•.........•....•.•........ ••.•. .. ••. ••. •••.......•.. 35 
A. Vacancies and Appointments 35 
B. Exceptions 36 

END NOTES ..••.......•••...•..•...••. ......•..•.••••••....••...•••..••. ..•....• .•.•. .•...•.•• ....••.......•••• •.•.•.......•. 37 
GLOSSARY •.••• .. •• .......•...•••....••.•..•...••••••.•. ..... ...•.•......•.••.••• ••.......••.•• ••.......••••.•••. ...•.•.•... 38 
INDEX .••.. .••..•....•.••....•..••..••. .....•.•.••......•••••......•• .•......••.•••• ...•...•. ••••............•..•••..........•.. •• 39 

Resolution 2015-0021 January 27,2015 ii 

112 



CITY OF SACRAMENTO-COUNCIL RULES OF PROCEDURE 

CHAPTER 1 - AUTHORITY/ADMINISTRATION 

A. General Authorities and Applicability 

1. The Charter of the City of Sacramento provides that the city council shall 
determine its own rules and order of business.1 When not in conflict with the 
Charter of the City of Sacramento, or the Constitution or laws of the State of 
California, including the Ralph M. Brown Act,2 these City Council Rules of 
Procedure ("Rules") shall be in effect upon adoption by resolution of the council. 

2. Until such time as they are amended or new rules are adopted by resolution, 
these Rules shall govern the order and conduct of business of the council and 
other legislative bodies that meet concurrently with the council , as well as various 
council committees, and council-established boards and commissions 
(collectively, "legislative bodies"). Those council-established boards, 
commissions, and committees that are required by law to adopt rules of 
procedure shall adopt rules that are consistent with these Rules to the extent 

possible. 

B. General Administration 

1. The council shall review and revise these Rules at least annually, or as needed. 

2. During council discussions, deliberations, and proceedings, the presiding officer 
has the primary responsibility to ensure that the council, staff, and members of 
the public adhere to these Rules. 

3. Any member who thinks the Rules are being violated may make a "point of order" 
to call for the presiding officer to enforce the Rules. 

C. Amendment 

Any rule may be adopted, altered, amended, or repealed by resolution at any time 
by a majority vote of the council, provided that at least a one week notice of such 
proposed rule change is given to the council members. 

D. Suspension 

Any rule may be temporarily suspended by a two-thirds vote of all council members 

present, being not less than five votes of the council. 

E. Rosenberg's Rules of Order 

To the extent these Rules do not address an issue of parliamentary procedure for 
legislative body meetings, Rosenberg's Rules of Order: Simple Parliamentary 

Procedures for the 21 st Century shall apply. 

Resolution 2015-0021 January 27,2015 1 

113 



CITY OF SACRAMENTO-COUNCIL RULES OF PROCEDURE 

CHAPTER 2 - DUTIES 

A. Duties of Members and Staff 

1. Council members ("members") and city staff shall conduct the business of the 
City of Sacramento: 

a. recognizing that stewardship of the public interest is of primary concern; 

b. working for the common good of the people of Sacramento; and 

c. assuring fair and equal treatment of all persons, claims, and transactions 
coming before the council, council committees, and council-established 
boards, commissions, and committees (legislative bodies). 

B. Duties of Mayor, Vice Mayor and Mayor Pro Tempore 

1. The mayor is: 

a. the presiding officer of the city and of all meetings of the council; 

b. the official head of the city for performance of duties lawfully delegated to the 
mayor by the charter; 

c. referred to as "chair" or "chairperson" when acting as presiding officer of 
legislative body meetings other than the council; 

d. considered a member of the council; 

e. entitled to make and second motions on matters before the council and vote 
on actions, but shall possess no veto power over actions of the council; 

f. the primary, but not the only, person responsible for interpreting the policies, 
programs, and needs of city government to the people; and for informing the 
people of any major change in policies or programs; and 

g. empowered, but not exclusively empowered, to make recommendations to 
the council on all policies and programs that require council decisions; and to 
perform such other duties as prescribed by the charter. 

2. The vice mayor and mayor pro tempore shall be elected annually from among 
the members of the council, other than the mayor, by a majority vote at the 
council's first meeting in January. 

b. In the absence of the mayor from the city or a council meeting, the vice mayor 
shall possess all powers of the office of the mayor, and be subject to all 
prescribed duties for that office. 

c. In the absence of the mayor and vice mayor from the city or a council 
meeting, the mayor pro tempore shall possess all powers of the office of the 
mayor, and be subject to all prescribed duties for that office. 

Resolution 2015-0021 January 27,2015 2 

114 



CITY OF SACRAMENTO-COUNCIL RULES OF PROCEDURE 

CHAPTER 3 - CONDUCT OF MEMBERS 

A. Norms and Expectations 

1. Members shall: 

a. put constituents first at all times; 

b. treat each other, staff, and members of the public with dignity, courtesy, and 
respect; 

c. value all opinions, be tolerant of new and different ideas, and encourage 
creativity and innovation; 

d. follow through on commitments and be accountable to each other; 

e. clarify when items are discussed in confidence and maintain appropriate 
confidentiality; 

f. be attentive to others, limiting interruptions and distractions; 

g. encourage dissent in debate while being mindful not to prolong discourse or 
block consensus; 

h. be candid with each other about ideas and feelings, and resolve conflicts 
directly; 

i. keep comments clear, concise, and on-topic to maximize opportunities for all 
to express themselves; 

j. continuously strive to improve how members work as a team; 

k. place clear and realistic demands on staff resources and time when 
requesting action; 

I. start and end meetings on time, work from an agenda, and be present, 
attentive, and prepared; 

m. present problems in a way that promotes discussion and resolution; and 

n. continually work to build trust in each other. 

B. General Conduct 

1. Members shall: 

a. treat each other and everyone with courtesy and refrain from inappropriate 
behavior and derogatory comments; 

b. be fair, impartial, and unbiased when voting on quasi-judicial actions; 

c. use the speaker sequencing system to inform the presiding officer of their 
wish to speak and wait to be acknowledged by the presiding officer before 

speaking; 

Resolution 2015-0021 January 27,2015 3 

115 



CITY OF SACRAMENTO-COUNCIL RULES OF PROCEDURE 

d. move to require the presiding officer to enforce these Rules, and the presiding 
officer shall do so upon an affirmative vote of a majority of the members 
present; 

e. preserve order and decorum during the meeting; 

f. not delay or interrupt the proceedings or the peace of the council, nor disturb 
any member while speaking, by conversation or otherwise, nor disobey the 
orders of the council, or the presiding officer, except as otherwise herein 
provided; 

g. abide by the Confidential Information Policy (Resolution No. 2010-108) 
prohibiting disclosure of confidential communications and authorizing public 
censure for failure to comply with the policy; 

h. support the laws established by the council ; and 

i. abide by these Rules in conducting the business of the City of Sacramento. 

C. Conduct with Members 

1. Members shall: 

a. value each other's time; 

b. attempt to build consensus on an item through an opportunity for dialogue; 
but when this is not possible, the majority vote shall prevail and the majority 
shall show respect for the opinion of the minority; 

c. have the right to dissent from, protest, or comment upon any action of the 
council; 

d. respect each other's opportunity to speak and, if necessary, agree to 
disagree; 

e. avoid offensive negative comments and shall practice civility and decorum 
during discussions and debate; and 

f. assist the presiding officer's exercise of the affirmative duty to maintain order. 

D. Conduct with City Manager and Staff 

1. Members shall : 

a. speak to the city manager directly on issues and concerns; 

b. direct the city manager to implement council's policy decisions through the 
administrative functions of the city; 

c. treat staff professionally and refrain from publicly criticizing individual employees; 

d. avoid involvement in personnel issues except during council closed sessions 
regarding council-appointed staff such as the city manager, city attorney, city 

Resolution 2015-0021 January 27,2015 4 

116 



CITY OF SACRAMENTO-COUNCIL RULES OF PROCEDURE 

treasurer, city clerk, or city auditor, including hiring, firing, promoting, 
disciplining, and other personnel matters; 

e. discuss directly with the city manager, city attorney, city clerk, city treasurer, 
or city auditor as appropriate, any displeasure with a department or staff; and 

f. request answers to questions on council agenda items from the city manager, 
city attorney, city clerk, city treasurer, city auditor, department directors, or 
division managers prior to the meeting whenever possible. 

E. Conduct with the Public 

1. Members shall: 

a. make the public feel welcome; 

b. be impartial, respectful, and without prejudice toward the public; 

c. listen courteously and attentively to public comment; 

d. not argue back and forth with members of the public; and 

e. make no promises to the public on behalf of the council. 

F. Conduct with Other Agencies 

1. Members shall: 

a. project a positive image of the city when dealing with other agencies; 

b. show tolerance and respect for other agencies' opinions and issues and, if 
necessary, agree to disagree; 

c. represent official policies or positions of the council when designated as 
delegates of a legislative body; 

d. explicitly state when their opinions and positions do not represent the council 
when representing their individual opinions and positions, and shall not allow 
the inference that they do (see also Rule 13.1.c); and 

e. have the ability to lobby or discuss issues that have been adopted by 
legislative bodies or are standing policies of the legislative bodies with other 
legislators, government officials, applicants, or other interested persons. 

G. Conduct with Boards and Commissions 

1. Members shall: 

a. treat all members of boards and commissions with appreciation and respect; 
and 

b. refrain from participation at board and commission meetings with the purpose 
of influencing the outcome of those meetings. 

Resolution 2015-0021 January 27,2015 5 

117 



CITY OF SACRAMENTO-COUNCIL RULES OF PROCEDURE 

H. Conduct with the Media 

1. Members shall not discuss, or go "off the record" with the media to discuss, 
confidential or privileged information pertaining to closed sessions, or attorney
client privileged or attorney work product communications, including personnel, 
litigation, or real property negotiations. 

2. Providing non-confidential, non-privileged background information is acceptable. 

I. Ethical Conduct 

1. Members shall receive at least two hours of training in ethics, conflicts of interest, 
open meetings laws, competitive bidding requirements, bias prohibitions, etc., in 
accordance with Government Code section 53234 et seq.3 every two years. 

2. Members shall conduct themselves in accordance with such training. 

Resolution 2015-0021 January 27,2015 6 

118 



CITY OF SACRAMENTO-COUNCIL RULES OF PROCEDURE 

CHAPTER 4 - CONDUCT OF CITY STAFF 

A. General Conduct 

1. City staff shall: 

a. prepare well-written staff reports and provide accompanying documents on all 
agenda items in accordance with the agenda format and preparation 
schedule; 

b. be available for questions from members in accordance with the Brown Act 
prior to and during meetings; 

c. respond to questions from the public during meetings only when requested to 
do so by members or the city manager; 

d. refrain from arguing with the public or members; and 

e. switch any electronic equipment such as pagers and cellular telephones to 
silent or off mode during council meetings. 

2. Staff shall remain objective on issues and should not be advocates for issues 
unless so directed by the legislative body. 

3. To the extent permitted by the Brown Act, the city manager and staff shall inform 
the mayor and members representing the districts affected of controversial, 
significant-impact issues that are coming before the legislative body. The 
information shall be provided at least two weeks prior to the legislative body's 
meeting, unless circumstances do not allow for such advance notice. 

4. The city manager shall advise management staff of potentially political or 
controversial issues coming before the legislative body and direct staff to be 
present and appropriately prepared. 

5. The city manager shall make available an informational briefing for member's 
staff for items affecting the city and items on, or potentially on, the council 
agenda. Briefings shall include necessary department staff and shall take place 
no later than six days preceding potential council action. 

Resolution 2015-0021 January 27,2015 7 

119 



CITY OF SACRAMENTO-COUNCIL RULES OF PROCEDURE 

CHAPTER 5 - CONDUCT OF THE PUBLIC 
A. General Conduct 

1. Decorum. 

a. Members of the public attending council meetings shall observe the same 
rules and decorum applicable to the members and staff as noted in chapters 
3 and 4 of these Rules. 

b. No person shall engage in conduct that is intended to or is likely to provoke 
violent or riotous behavior, nor shall any person engage in conduct that 
disturbs the orderly conduct of the council meeting. Examples of disorderly 
conduct include feet-stamping, whistling, yelling or shouting, organized silent 
demonstrations, physically-threatening conduct, and similar demonstrations. 

c. The presiding officer shall request that a person who is breaching the rules of 
decorum cease the conduct. If the person does not cease the conduct 
immediately, the presiding officer may order the person to leave the council 
meeting. The sergeant-at-arms shall assist the presiding officer in enforcing 
the rules of decorum, including removing disorderly persons upon order of the 
presiding officer. 

2. Lobbyists shall identify themselves and the client(s), business, or organization 
they represent before speaking to the council. 4 

3, Members of the public wishing to provide documents to the council shall comply 
with Rule 7.0. 

B. Addressing the City Council 

1. Purpose of public comment. During regular meetings, the city provides 
opportunities for the public to address the council as a whole in order to listen to 
the public's opinions regarding agendized items and unagendized matters within 
the subject matter jurisdiction of the city. At all other meetings, public comment is 
limited to agendized items. 

a. Public comments should not be addressed to individual members nor to city 
officials, but rather to the council as a whole regarding city business. 

b. While members of the public may speak their opinions on city business, 
personal attacks on members and city officials, use of swear words, and signs 
or displays of disrespect for individuals are discouraged as they impede good 

communication with the council. 

c. Consistent with the Brown Act, the public comment periods on the agenda are 
not intended to be "Question and Answer" periods or conversations with the 
council and city officials. The limited circumstances under which members 
may respond to public comments are set out in Rule 8.0,2, 

Resolution 2015-0021 January 27,2015 8 

120 



CITY OF SACRAMENTO-COUNCIL RULES OF PROCEDURE 

d. Members of the public with questions concerning Consent Calendar items 
may contact the staff person or the member whose district is identified on the 
report prior to the meeting to reduce the need for discussion of Consent 
Calendar items and to better respond to the public's questions. 

2. Speaker time limits. In the interest of facilitating the council's conduct of the 
city's business, the following time limits apply to members of the public 
(speakers) who wish to address the council during the meeting. 

a. Matters not on the agenda. Two minutes per speaker. 

b. Consent Calendar items. The consent calendar is considered a single item, 
and speakers are therefore subject to the two minute time limit for the entire 
consent calendar. Consent calendar items can be pulled at a member's 
request and will be considered individually, with up to two minutes of public 
comment per speaker. 

c. Discussion Calendar items. Two minutes per speaker. 

d. Time limits per meeting. In addition to the above time limits per item, the total 
amount of time anyone speaker may address the Council at any meeting is 
eight minutes. 

(i) Each speaker shall limit his/her remarks to the specified time allotment. 

(ii) The presiding officer shall consistently utilize the timing system, which 
provides speakers with notice of their remaining time to complete their 
comments. A countdown display of the allotted time will appear and will 
flash red at the end of the allotted time. 

(iii) In the further interest of time, speakers may be asked to limit their 
comments to new materials and not repeat what a prior speaker said. 
Organized groups may choose a single spokesperson who may speak for 
the group, but with no increase in time. 

(iv) Speakers shall not concede any part of their allotted time to another 

speaker. 

(v) The presiding officer may further limit the time allotted for public 
comments per speaker or in total for the orderly conduct of the meeting; 

such limits shall be fairly applied. 

3. Speaker slips. Members of the public wishing to speak to the council should 
complete, and turn into the city clerk prior to the item being called, a speaker's 
slip indicating the agenda item or off-agenda item that they wish to address and 

wait to be called upon by the presiding officer. 

Resolution 2015-0021 January 27,2015 9 

121 



CITY OF SACRAMENTO·COUNCIL RULES OF PROCEDURE 

C. Electronic Devices 

1. Members of the public shall turn their electronic devices that are capable of 
emitting sound - including cellular telephones , personal data devices, pagers, 
digital tablets, laptop computers, etc. - to the off· or silent-mode during council 
meetings. 

2. Cameras. Cameras and recording equipment may be used during council 
meetings only if: 

a. the devices are silent during use; and 

b. the devices are used in a manner and at locations that do not impede 
walkways or others views of the meeting or disrupt the conduct of the 
meeting. 

D. Location of Speaker 

1. Members of the public shall not approach the dais without the express consent of 
a council member. 

2. Members of the public wishing to address the council must approach the podium 
when recognized by the presiding officer or city clerk, and speak only from the 
podium. 

Resolution 2015-0021 January 27,2015 10 

122 



CITY OF SACRAMENTO-COUNCIL RULES OF PROCEDURE 

CHAPTER 6-MEETING TYPES AND SCHEDULES 
A. Regular Meetings 

1. The council shall meet after 5:00 p.m. not less than one evening each week, not 
including its four weeks of recess annually.s 

2. The council shall meet each Tuesday generally beginning at 6:00 p.m. in the City 
Hall Council Chamber, 915 I Street, First Floor, Sacramento, California, except 
as otherwise provided in the annually-adopted meeting schedule or as otherwise 
revised by the council. 

3. Whenever possible, special workshops shall take place in the council chamber. 

B. Adjourned Meetings 

As permitted by law, the council may adjourn any regular, adjourned regular, special, 
or adjourned special meeting to a time and place specified in the motion of 
adjournment. 

C. Special Meetings 

The mayor or a majority of the members may call a special meeting by providing notice 
24 hours in advance of the meeting to the mayor, to all members, and to all media 
outlets and persons having requested in writing notification of such meetings pursuant 
to state law. 

D. Emergency Meetings 

1. In the case of an emergency situation involving matters upon which prompt 
action is necessary due to the disruption or threatened disruption of public 
facilities, the legislative body may hold an emergency meeting without complying 
with either the 72-hour or 24-hour notice and posting requirements for regular 
and special meetings, but shall otherwise comply with the Brown Act procedures 
generally stated below. 

2. Each local newspaper of general circulation and radio or television station that 
has requested notice of special meetings pursuant to the Brown Act, shall be 
notified by the presiding officer of the legislative body, or deSignee thereof, at 
least one hour prior to the emergency meeting, or in the case of a dire 
emergency, at or near the time that the presiding officer or designee notifies the 
members of the emergency meeting. 

3. This notice shall be given by telephone call to the numbers provided in the most 

recent request for notification. 

4. In the event that telephone services are not functioning, the notice requirements 
of this section shall be deemed waived, and the legislative body, or designee of 
the legislative body, shall notify those newspapers, radio stations, or television 

Resolution 2015-0021 January 27,2015 11 

123 



CITY OF SACRAMENTO-COUNCIL RULES OF PROCEDURE 

stations of the emergency meeting, the purpose of the meeting, and any action 
taken at the meeting as soon after the meeting as possible. 

5. During an emergency meeting, the legislative body may meet in closed session 
pursuant to the Brown Act if agreed to by a two-thirds vote of the members 
present, being not less than five votes of the council. 

6 . All special meeting requirements in the Brown Act shall be applicable to an 
emergency meeting, with the exception of the 24-hour notice and posting 
requirement. 

7. The minutes of an emergency meeting; a list of persons who the presiding officer 
of the legislative body, or designee of the council, notified or attempted to notify; 
a copy of the roll call vote; and any actions taken at the meeting, shall be posted 
for a minimum of ten days in a public place as soon after the meeting as 
possible. 

E. Closed Sessions 

1. Closed sessions generally shall be conducted weekly or during special meetings 
held immediately prior to regular meetings. 

2. In accordance with the Brown Act, the public may speak regarding any closed 
session item prior to the closed session. 

3. All closed session information, verbal or written, is privi leged and confidential and 
shall not be shared with any person not at the closed session. Any member 
sharing information in violation of this rule may be subject to censure by the 
council consistent with the council's confidentiality policy then in effect. 

4. The city attorney shall report out in public session any reportable actions that were 
taken by council and the vote on such actions in accordance with the Brown Act. 6 

F. Public Hearings 

1. The city clerk shall set council hearing dates and notify the council via the 
preliminary agenda on all matters that require a notice and public hearing before the 
council, such as matters received from the planning division and appeals to the 

council. 

2. Public hearings will not be withdrawn or continued without the full knowledge and 
concurrence of the members with in whose districts/jurisdiction the issue resides. 

3. The council may refuse to grant a continuance of any hearing unless there is a valid 
legal reason why the hearing must be continued. 

Resolution 2015-0021 January 27, 2015 12 

124 



CITY OF SACRAMENTO-COUNCIL RULES OF PROCEDURE 

4. Continuances. 

a. Any person (applicant, appellant, or designated representative) scheduled for a 
public hearing before the council: 

(i) may obtain one continuance for a period not to exceed the second regular 
meeting after the original scheduled hearing date, as a matter of right, without 
personally appearing before the council on the scheduled hearing date, 
provided a written request for the continuance must be delivered to the city 
clerk by noon on the day prior to the scheduled public hearing. Any person 
who has once obtained a continuance by any procedure, may not obtain a 
subsequent continuance by notifying the city clerk as provided in this Rule 
6.F .. a(i). 

(ii) who wants to obtain a continuance of the hearing beyond the second 
regular meeting after the original scheduled hearing date, or has not 
notified the city clerk as provided in Rule 6.F.4.a(i), may obtain a 
continuance only by appearing before the council at the time the original 
hearing is scheduled and requesting a continuance. This continuance is 
not a matter of right and will not be granted unless the council is satisfied 
that good cause exists for the continuance and that a substantial number 
of people will not be inconvenienced by such continuance. 

(iii) who has once obtained a continuance of a hearing either by notice to the 
city clerk per Rule 6.F.4.a(i) or by personal appearance per Rule 
6.F.4.a(ii), may obtain a further continuance only by appearing before the 
council at the scheduled hearing and satisfying the council that 
extraordinary circumstances exist that would justify this second 
continuance. 

(iv)who has twice obtained a continuance of a hearing, may obtain an 
additional continuance only by appearing before the council at the 
scheduled hearing and satisfying the council that a miscarriage of justice 
would result from the refusal of the council to grant a continuance. 

b. City staff may obtain a continuance based on the need of the originating 
department or on behalf of a member. Department staff may request, via the 
city clerk, as many continuances as needed to complete and ready the project 
or appeal for the hearing process; however, staff may not serve as a 
requestor on behalf of an applicant or appellant. 

c. Any organized group of residents or neighborhood associations, not 
recognized as an applicant or appellant, may contact their council member 
and request a continuance as needed to complete and ready the project or 
appeal for the hearing process. The member, in his or her sole discretion, 
may request the council approve the continuance for good cause. 

Resolution 2015-0021 January 27,2015 13 

125 



CITY OF SACRAMENTO-COUNCIL RULES OF PROCEDURE 

d. Disputes regarding the length of a continuance will be decided by the council 
at the scheduled hearing if city staff or the city clerk cannot obtain mutual 
agreement between the parties beforehand. 

G. Teleconferenced Meetings 

Members of the public wishing to attend meetings and address the council via 
teleconference or other electronic device may do so only at duly-noticed teleconference 
locations set from time to time for members' attendance in accordance with the Brown 
Act. 

H. Televised Meetings 

Meetings held In the council chambers are generally telecast via local cable television 
and available via streaming video on the city's official website. 

Resolution 2015-0021 January 27,2015 14 

126 



CITY OF SACRAMENTO-COUNCIL RULES OF PROCEDURE 

CHAPTER 7- MEETING AGENDAS 

A. Requirements for Agenda Item Submission 

1. The city manager and city clerk shall develop the agenda for council meetings in 
consultation with the mayor and vice mayor. 

2. Members may submit items for inclusion on a future agenda by orally making the 
request under Council Ideas, Comments, and Questions. 

3. Charter officers may submit staff reports or descriptions of oral reports to the city 
clerk for placement on the agenda. 

4. The city auditor and independent budget analyst may submit staff reports or 
descriptions of oral reports to the city clerk for placement on the agenda. 

5. Department directors, subject to the discretion of the city manager, may submit 
staff reports or descriptions of oral reports to the city clerk for placement on the 
agenda 

6. Outside agencies may submit agenda items in accordance with the following: 

a. Items from outside agencies must be sponsored for agenda placement by 
members, charter officers, or department staff; and 

b. All agenda items must be submitted in accordance with the agenda packet 
submission and preparation requirements. 

B. Declaration of Policy 

1. No ordinance, resolution, motion, or item of business shall be introduced or acted 
upon at a meeting of a legislative body of the city without it appearing on a duly 
noticed and posted agenda in accordance with the Brown Act. Exceptions to this 
rule are limited to those provided by state law. 

2. No ordinance, resolution, motion, or item of business will be considered that: 

a. does not affect the conduct of the business of the City of Sacramento or its 
powers or duties as a municipal corporation, or 

b. supports or disapproves of any legislation or action 

(i) of the State of California; 

(ii) of the Congress of the United States; or 

(iii) before any officer or agency of the state or nation, 

c. unless the proposed legislation or action, if adopted, will affect the conduct of 
the municipal business or the powers or duties of the City of Sacramento or 
its officers or employees. 

Resolution 2015-0021 January 27,2015 15 

127 



CITY OF SACRAMENTO-COUNCIL RULES OF PROCEDURE 

d. Rule 7.B.2 may be invoked only before public comment or council deliberation 
on the matter and by five affirmative votes on the question: "Shall the council 
consider this matter?" 

C. Procedures for Submission of Reports 

1. A written staff report should be prepared and submitted to agenda review in 
accordance with the agenda review procedure. 

2. Staff reports shall include a section reflecting review by the city attorney as 
appropriate. 

"Continued" items do not require a new report if there are no changes other than the 
agenda date. If there is any other change, a new report meeting all applicable 
requirements must be submitted. 

D. Written Communications from the City and the Public 

1. The city clerk shall manage communications to members regarding meeting 
topics to ensure compliance with the Brown Act. 

a. Except for records exempt from disclosure under the California Public 
Records Ace and otherwise by law, agendas or any other writings distributed 
to all or a majority of the members of a legislative body for discussion or 
consideration at a public meeting are disclosable to the public, and shall be 
made available upon request without delay. 

b. Materials distributed to the members during the meeting shall be available for 
viewing by the public during the meeting if the materials were prepared by the 
city or a member, or at the conclusion of the meeting if prepared by another 
person.8 

2. Interested parties or their authorized representatives may address the council by 
written communications regarding agenda items. Such written communications 
received by the city clerk prior to close of business on the eighth day preceding 
the council meeting wi ll be included in the agenda packet material. 

3. Written communications received by the city clerk after such deadline will be 
delivered to members at the city council meeting if related to an item on that 
meeting agenda. 

4. Documents (15 copies recommended) that members of the public submit to the 
city council at the meeting shall be given directly to the city clerk for distribution 
and shall not be given directly to the council. The documents will be available to 
the public. 

E. Preparation of the Agenda Packet 

1. No later than noon on the Thursday prior to each regularly scheduled meeting, 
the city clerk shall finalize the agenda packet. 

Resolution 2015-0021 January 27, 2015 16 

128 



CITY OF SACRAMENTO-COUNCIL RULES OF PROCEDURE 

2. Agenda Packet Contents. 

a. The agenda packet shall include the agenda, the staff reports, draft 
resolutions and ordinances, contracts, and other attachments. Items noted as 
"To Be Delivered" on the agenda will be delivered and published to the city's 
website upon receipt by the city clerk. No item shall be required to be 
considered by the council if the applicable written material is not delivered to 
the council before the meeting and made available to the public at the same 
time. 

b. Corrections or supplements to a staff report or other written materials already 
included in the agenda packet may be delivered separately. 

c. All agreements on the agenda shall be available for review by the council and 
the public prior to the meeting, or at the meeting location during the meeting, 
unless determined otherwise by the city attorney. 

d. Unless waived by a 2/3 vote of council , all labor agreements and all 
agreements greater than $1,000,000 shall be posted on the city's website and 
be made available to the public at least 10 days prior to council action. 

F. Distribution of the Packet 

1. The city clerk shall distribute the agenda packet to the members and persons 
requesting copies of the agenda packet no later than Friday at noon prior to the 
regularly scheduled meeting. 

Paper or electronic copies of the agenda packet shall be available for the news media 
and other such organizations, agencies, institutions, or persons who so subscribe. 

G. Posting of Agenda 

1. The city clerk shall post the agenda of each regular or adjourned regular meeting 
of the legislative body at least 72 hours in advance of the meeting in a location 
that is freely accessible to members of the public as required by the Brown Act. 

2. The city clerk shall maintain an affidavit indicating the location, date, and time of 
posting each agenda. 

3. Agendas will generally be published to the city's website by the end of business 
on the Thursday before regular meetings. 

4. Agenda reports including attachments, exhibits, and agreements will generally be 
published to the city's website by end of business on the Friday before regular 

meetings. 

5. If technical difficulties occur, the agenda and reports will be published on the 
city's website as soon as those difficulties are resolved. 

Resolution 2015-0021 January 27,2015 17 

129 



CITY OF SACRAMENTO-COUNCIL RULES OF PROCEDURE 

H. Failure to Meet Agenda Deadlines 

1. The city clerk shall not, without the consent of the city manager or city attorney, 
accept any agenda item or revised agenda item after the deadlines established 
and noted in these Rules. 

I. Exceptions to the Agenda Requirement 

1. Matters not included on the published agenda may be discussed and acted upon 
by the legislative body only in the following situations: 

a. at a meeting during which a majority of the members determine in open 
session that the matter in question constitutes an "emergency"9; or 

b. Upon a determination by two-thirds of the members, or if less than two-thirds 
are present by unanimous vote of the members present, that: 

i) there is a need to take immediate action; and 

ii) the need for action came to the attention of the city after the agenda had 
been posted; or 

c. the item was posted for a prior meeting occurring not more than five calendar 
days prior to the date action is taken on the item, and at the prior meeting the 
item was continued to the meeting at which action is being taken. 

J. Types of Agenda Items 

1. Closed Sessions-confidential discussions with the legislative body as permitted 
by the Brown Act. 

2. Ceremonial Matters-the presentation and receipt of ceremonial resolutions and 
celebrations not requiring formal legislative body action. 

3. Administrative Matters-consent items making clerical corrections to previous 
legislative documents and to ensure accurate legislative history. 

4. Consent Calendar-considered one item, consisting of matters routine in nature 
and not likely to be subject to debate or inquiry by the members or the public; 
typically adopted in one motion. 

5. Public Hearings-duly noticed hearings as mandated by local, state, or federal 
law, providing an opportunity for public review and comment of a proposed action 
by the council. 

6. Discussion Calendar-non-routine items requiring an oral presentation and 
discussion before action is taken. 

7. Information Items-items when staff is required by federal or state law or city code 
to inform council of an issue when authority has been delegated to a person, 
position, board, or commission. 

Resolution 2015-0021 January 27, 2015 18 

130 



CITY OF SACRAMENTO-COUNCIL RULES OF PROCEDURE 

8. Public Comment-oral communications from the audience regarding matters not 
on the agenda but within the subject matter jurisdiction of the city. 

9. Council Ideas, Comments, and Questions: 

a. Brief oral or written reports summarizing meeting or conference attendance at 
city expense, as required by AB 1234;10 

b. Requests that city manager or staff report on various issues; 

c. Requests to place items on a future council meeting agenda; 

d. Requests to refer preparation or review of non-binding resolutions or 
ordinances to the Law and Legislation Committee; and 

e. Reports on district and citywide activities or news. 

K. Ordinances and Non-Binding Resolutions 

1. Ordinance and non-binding resolution preparation shall be referred to the Law 
and Legislation Committee before coming to council as described in Rule 13.A.2. 

2. Ordinances on the agenda may be passed for publication or adopted in 
accordance with the procedures in the city charter. 11 

Resolution 2015-0021 January 27,2015 19 

131 



CITY OF SACRAMENTO-COUNCIL RULES OF PROCEDURE 

CHAPTER 8- CONDUCT OF MEETING 

A. Call to Order - Presiding Officer 

1. The mayor, or in the mayor's absence the vice mayor, shall take the chair at the 
hour appointed for the meeting and shall immediately call the meeting of the 
council to order. 

2. In the absence of the mayor and vice mayor, the clerk shall call the meeting to 
order and a mayor pro tempore shall be appointed from the members present. 

3. Upon the arrival of the mayor, the vice mayor shall immediately relinquish the 
chair at the conclusion of the business then before the council. 

B. Roll Call/Attendance 

1. A majority of the members of the council then in office shall constitute a quorum. 

2. Before the council proceeds with the business before it, the city clerk shall note 
the members present for the minutes. The late arrival of members shall be 
entered into the minutes. 

3. A member shall be considered present at a meeting if the member is either 
physically in the council chamber or is participating in the meeting through 
teleconference in accordance with the Brown Act. (See endnote 4.) Meeting 
attendance of members through teleconference will be permitted only in 
extraordinary circumstances such as a medical condition that physically disables 
the member from attending in person. 

4. Members attending a council meeting through a teleconference are not counted 
when determining a quorum. 

5. Members must be physically present at the council chamber dais or 
teleconference location to vote. Proxy or absentee voting is not permitted. 

C. Order of Discussion 

The order of business is typically carried out as listed on the agenda or as set out 
below; however, the mayor may reorder the items, unless members object. 
Members may request items be reordered by motion. 

1. Public Comment will be held at the end of the meeting prior to council comments. 

2. Consent Calendar items removed for discussion 

a. Members, the city manager, or other charter officers may request that any 
matter be removed from the Consent Calendar. 

b. All matters remaining on the Consent Calendar shall be approved by a single 
action, such single action to have the legal effect of individual action on each 

matter. 

Resolution 2015-0021 January 27,2015 20 

132 



CITY OF SACRAMENTO-COUNCIL RULES OF PROCEDURE 

c. The city clerk shall read into the record each item removed from the Consent 
Calendar. 

d. If Consent Calendar items are removed, they shall be discussed immediately 
after adoption of the balance of the Consent Calendar. 

3. Public Hearings. 

a. The order of public hearings will generally be as follows: 

(i) Staff comments, information, and reports, followed by member questions. 

(ii) Proponent, if applicable, speaks, followed by member questions. 

(iii) Opponent, if applicable, speaks, followed by member questions. 

(iv) If the public hearing is on an appeal that does not require council de novo 
review, then the appellant (opponent) speaks before the applicant 
(proponent) in accordance with the allotted time. 

(v) Public comments. 

(vi) If the public hearing is a de novo review appeal, the applicant speaks in 
rebuttal, but if not a de novo review appeal, the appellant speaks in 
rebuttal. 

(vii) Closure of public hearing. 

(viii)Further member discussion, motion, and action. See Rule 6.F regarding 
continuances. 

b. The presiding officer may direct speakers to avoid repetition in order to permit 
maximum information to be provided the council within the time allotted to the 
hearing. 

4. Discussion Calendar. 

a. The order of discussion after introduction of an item by the mayor will 
generally be as follows: 

(i) Staff comments, information, and reports, followed by questions from the 
members. 

(ii) Public comments and information, followed by questions from the 
members. 

(iii) Member discussion, motion, and action. 

b. Once the item is placed before the council for discussion, motion, or action, 
no member of staff or the public shall be allowed to address the council 
without the consent of the mayor or members. 

Resolution 2015-0021 January 27,2015 21 

133 



CITY OF SACRAMENTO-COUNCIL RULES OF PROCEDURE 

D. Oral Communications from the Audience 

1. As required by the Brown Act, a portion of each council meeting agenda wiii 
provide an opportunity for members of the public to address the council on any 
agendized item, including closed session and consent calendar items. Regular 
meeting agendas also wiii provide for public comment on any unagendized matte 
that is within the subject matter jurisdiction of the city. 

2. In response to public comment on non-agendized items, the members may individually: 

a. briefly respond to statements made or questions posed by members of the public; 

b. ask questions for clarification; 

c. provide a reference to staff or other resources for factual information or 
response; 

d. request staff to report to the council at a subsequent meeting; and 

e. request staff to place a matter of business on a future agenda as needed. 

E. Quorum Call 

1. During the course of the meeting, should the presiding officer note a quorum is 
lacking, the presiding officer shall call this fact to the attention of the clerk. 

2. The presiding officer then shall issue a quorum call. If a quorum has not been 
restored within two minutes of a quorum call, the presiding officer may declare a 
recess for a reasonable period of time in order to reestablish a quorum. 

3. If no quorum is reestablished within a reasonable time, the presiding officer shall 
adjourn the meeting. 

F. Obtaining the Floor 

1. Any member wishing to speak must first obtain the floor by being recognized by 
the presiding officer. The presiding officer shall recognize any member who 
seeks the floor when appropriately entitled to do so. 

2. With the concurrence of the presiding officer, a member holding the floor may 
address a question to another member and that member may respond while the 
floor is still held by the member asking the question. A member may opt not to 
answer a question while another member has the floor. 

G. Motions 

1. Rosenberg's Rules of Order: Simple Parlimentary Procedures for the 21st 
Century shall be used for the management of motions. 

Resolution 2015-0021 January 27,2015 22 

134 



CITY OF SACRAMENTO-COUNCIL RULES OF PROCEDURE 

H. Voting 

1. Requirements for Action. 

a. Unless a higher vote is required by the city charter, the city code, or otherwise 
by law, the affirmative votes of at least five members of the council shall be 
required: 

(i) for the council to take action on an item of business; 

(ii) to pass any ordinance, resolution, or motion; or 

(iii) to make or approve any order for the payment of money requiring council 
approval. 

b. Any ordinance declared by the council to be necessary as an emergency 
measure and containing a statement of the facts constituting such emergency 
as provided in the city charter may be introduced and adopted at the same 
meeting if passed by at least six affirmative votes. 

2. Voting Disqualification. 

a. A member shall not vote upon any matter on which the member is disqualified 
due to a conflict of interest, or any quasi-judicial action regarding that in which 
the member is biased. 

b. A member shall openly state an abstention due to a conflict of interest or bias. 

c. A member who is abstaining due to a financial conflict of interest shall publicly 
identify the financial interest in detail sufficient to be understood by the public, 
except that disclosure of the exact street address of a residence is not 

required. 

d. As to any other conflict of interest, the member's determination may be 
accompanied by an oral or written disclosure of the conflict of interest. 

e. A member who is disqualified by a conflict of interest in any matter shall not 
remain on the dais during the discussion and shall not vote on that matter. 
However, the member may remain on the dais for Consent Calendar items if 
the member states the abstention from the vote due to the described conflict 
of interest before the Consent Calendar is voted on in one motion. 

Resolution 2015-0021 January 27,2015 23 

135 



CITY OF SACRAMENTO-COUNCIL RULES OF PROCEDURE 

CHAPTER 9- COUNCIL REQUESTS 

A. General 

1. Council requests that deal with policy issues and council requests that may be 
construed as direction shall be directed to the city manager, except for general 
Inquiries or questions, in which case the council may go to the department 
directors or key staff in the City Manager's Office. Members may also deal 
directly with the city attorney, city clerk, city treasurer, city auditor, or other staff 
appointed by the council. 

2. Council requests requiring funding must go through the city manager. The city 
manager shall respond in a timely manner. 

3. Council requests to prepare or consider new ordinances or non-binding 
resolutions shall be made in accordance with Rule 13.B. 

Resolution 2015-0021 January 27,2015 24 

136 



CITY OF SACRAMENTO-COUNCIL RULES OF PROCEDURE 

CHAPTER 10 - VACANCIES 

A. Procedures 

1. Per the city charter:12 

a. Absence from five consecutive regular meetings of the council, unless 
excused by resolution of the council, shall operate to vacate the seat of the 
mayor or member so absent; and 

b. A vacancy in the office of council member or mayor 

i. shall be filled by special election called by the council as provided in the 
city charter,13 unless 

ii. the vacancy occurs within one year of the next general election at which 
that office would normally be filled, in which case the vacancy shall be 
filled by appointment. The city clerk shall be directed to perform council
determined procedures and take the necessary actions to accomplish the 
recruitment and appointment of candidates as provided in chapter 2.40 of 
the city code. 

Resolution 2015-0021 January 27,2015 25 

137 



CITY OF SACRAMENTO-COUNCIL RULES OF PROCEDURE 

CHAPTER 11- FACILITIES 

A. Council Chamber Capacity 

Council chamber attendance is limited to the posted seating capacity. The city 
manager shall appropriately regulate entrance to the council chamber when the 
council chamber capacity is likely to be exceeded. When legislative bodies are in 
session. members of the public shall not remain standing in the seating area or 
aisles of the council chamber. Sitting on the floor is not permitted. The sergeant-at
arms shall enforce this chapter. 

Resolution 2015-0021 January 27.2015 26 

138 



CITY OF SACRAMENTO-COUNCIL RULES OF PROCEDURE 

CHAPTER 12 - CITY COUNCIL COMMITTEES/REGIONAL ORGANIZATIONS 

A. General 

1. The mayor shall make all appointments to council standing committees, subject to 
the approval of the council. The mayor shall make all appointments to council ad hoc 
committees. 

2. A standing committee is a permanent committee of the council established to 
consider subjects of a particular class, with regularly scheduled meeting dates and 
times. 

3. An ad hoc committee is a temporary committee of the council established for a 
special purpose and of limited duration. 

4. Standing and ad hoc committees have fact-finding, informative, and 
recommendatory powers only, and such other powers delegated by the council. 

5. The council intends that council committees, to the extent possible, conduct a full 
hearing on any matter referred to that committee before the committee refers the 
matter back to the council. 

6. The city clerk shall maintain and keep on file a list of the standing committees, ad 
hoc committees, regional organizations, and joint powers agencies to which council 
members are appointed. 

B. Standing Committees 

1. General Guidelines 

a. Standing committee appointments shall be made by the mayor each January. 

b. Standing committees shall meet in the council chamber to allow for 
videostreaming and website access of meetings. 

c. Standing committees are subject to the Brown Act. Standing committee agendas 
shall be prepared, posted, and distributed in accordance with the Brown Act 
stating the time and place of the meeting and the subject matters to be 
discussed. 

d. A council member who is not a member of the standing committee may attend a 
standing committee meeting, provided the member attends only as an observer, 
does not testify or otherwise participate in any discussion, and sits amongst the 
public. 

e. Except as provided in subsection f, all items on a standing committee's agenda 
shall first be referred to the committee by the council for review, with a 
recommendation returned to the council within 120 days, subject to the 
exceptions set forth below or as otherwise modified by the council. 

Resolution 2015-0021 January 27,2015 27 

139 



CITY OF SACRAMENTO-COUNCIL RULES OF PROCEDURE 

f. With approval of the city manager or committee chair, an item may be sent 
directly to a standing committee without council referral. If a matter is so referred 
to a standing committee, the committee agenda shall note that fact on the face of 
the agenda and the committee chair shall notify the council. Such referrals are 
not required to be forwarded to the council unless council action is recommended 
by the standing committee. 

g. The city manager shall assign staff to assist the committee chair with the 
operation of the committee. 

h. The committee chair shall approve committee agendas and be provided draft 
reports prior to being published. 

2. As of the date of adoption of these Rules there are three existing standing 
committees: the Law and Legislation Committee (Chapter 13); the Personnel and 
Public Employees Committee (Chapter 14); and the Budget and Audit Committee 
(Chapter 15). These committees have three or four members, as indicated on 
the council-approved appointment roster. For a four-member committee, the 
quorum is three; for a three-member committee, the quorum is two. 

C. Ad Hoc Committees 

1. Establishment. 

a. The mayor or a majority of the council may request the creation of an ad hoc 
committee 

b. The city manager or department director, together with the city attorney, shall 
work with the appropriate supporting department(s) and determine the scope 
and approximate duration the ad hoc committee will be needed. 

c. The department director shall submit a request to the mayor, with a copy to 
the city clerk, requesting the creation of and appointment of up to four 
members to an ad hoc committee. 

d. Council members who are not ad hoc committee members shall not attend ad 
hoc committee meetings. 

e. Once the ad hoc committee has completed its task, the supporting 
department shall submit a report to the mayor, with a copy to the city clerk, 
stating completion of the ad hoc committee tasks and request the dissolution 

of the ad hoc committee. 

f. The City Clerk will provide a report to Council announcing the dissolution of 
the ad hoc committee. 

Resolution 2015-0021 January 27,2015 28 

140 



CITY OF SACRAMENTO-COUNCIL RULES OF PROCEDURE 

2. Scheduling. 

a. Once an ad hoc committee has been established, all meeting requests shall 
be directed to the city clerk for coordination with member's calendars and to 
set a meeting location. Once confirmed, the city clerk shall notify the 
members, mayor's office, city manager (or designee), and the city attorney (or 
designee) of the meeting details. 

D. Regional Organizations 

The mayor shall appoint council representatives to the regional organizations and 
joint powers agencies listed in the documents maintained by the city clerk, subject to 
council approval. 

Resolution 2015-0021 January 27,2015 29 

141 



CITY OF SACRAMENTO-COUNCIL RULES OF PROCEDURE 

CHAPTER 13 -LAW AND LEGISLATION (LAW AND LEG) COMMITTEE 

A. Authority; Purposes 

1. Authority to Represent City Positions . 

a. The Law and Leg Committee has the authority to take positions on behalf of 
the city on state and federal legislation. 

b. The mayor or the chair of Law and Leg Committee has the authority to take 
positions on behalf of the city when the need to react quickly does not allow 
for a matter to be considered by the Law and Leg Committee. 

c. Except as provided in sUbsections a and b, no person or committee has 
authority to represent the council on policy matters, unless that authority has 
been granted by the council or the information is limited to a factually 
accurate statement of the council's publicly-adopted position. 

2. Purposes. The purposes of the Law and Leg Committee are to consider, 
evaluate, conduct fact-finding, and recommend to council positions on proposed 
city ordinances and non-binding resolutions. 

B. Procedures 

1. Ordinances and Non-Binding Resolutions. 

a. Except as provided in SUbsection b, all requests to prepare, amend, draft, or 
process ordinances and non-binding resolutions shall be made by one or 
more members, or city manager, during a council meeting in open session or 
by city staff, and shall be referred to the Law and Leg Committee. The 
requesting member(s) or staff shall be considered the sponsor. City staff shall 
to work directly with the sponsor in developing the proposed ordinance 
language. 

b. Ordinances not requiring Law and Leg Committee review prior to council 
review and adoption are those that are: 

(i) deemed urgent by the mayor or city manager; 

(ii) voted on by the majority of council to bypass the Law and Leg Committee; 

(iii) voted on by the majority of the Law and Leg Committee to go to council 
without full Law and Leg Committee review; 

(iv)zoning code amendments for specific development projects; 

(v) listings on , or deletions from, the Sacramento register under Sacramento 
City Code chapter 17.604, article II; or 

(vi) adopting property-related fees or fee increases that require public notice 
before the Utilities Rate Advisory Commission. 

Resolution 2015-0021 January 27,2015 30 

142 



CITY OF SACRAMENTO-COUNCIL RULES OF PROCEDURE 

c. Ordinances and non-binding resolutions referred by city staff or by members 
during a council meeting shall be placed on the municipal legislation log, with 
new items placed at the end of the log, to establish a priority order; provided, 
the Law and Leg Committee or council may reorder the priority. 

d. The log will be scheduled for the consent agenda at every Law and Leg 
Committee meeting. Any committee member may pull the item from consent 
for discussion. 

e. Items placed on the log must be approved by the committee's adoption of the 
log before scheduling the item for discussion on the Law and Leg Committee 
agenda. 

f. Items on the log may be removed at the request of the sponsor. Staff shall 
note the removal request on the log and remove the item after the log has 
been approved by the committee. 

g. The log shall be brought to the council quarterly to confirm council's continued 
interest in the items and the priority status of the items. 

h. A vote of a majority of the members present is required to approve a 
recommendation to council. A two-two vote results in an item being 
forwarded to council without a recommendation. 

i. If a Law and Leg Committee item fails to receive the votes required under 
Rule 13.B.1.h to forward the item with or without recommendation, any 
member during the Council Ideas, Comments, and Questions portion of a 
council meeting may request the item be placed on a future council agenda. 

Resolution 2015-0021 January 27,2015 31 

143 



CITY OF SACRAMENTO-COUNCIL RULES OF PROCEDURE 

CHAPTER 14 - PERSONNEL AND PUBLIC EMPLOYEES COMMITTEE 

A. Purposes 

The purposes of the Personnel and Public Employees Committee are to: 

1. review applications received for membership to various city boards, 
commissions, and committees; 

2. conduct interviews for such membership appointment; and 

3. make recommendations to the mayor concerning such appointments. 

B. Procedures 

1. Applications for city boards, commissions, and committees shall be reviewed by 
the Personnel and Public Employees Committee. 

2. Recommendations by the Personnel and Public Employees Committee shall be 
submitted to the city clerk for distribution to the mayor. 

3. The mayor, or the city clerk on the mayor's behalf, shall announce appointments 
at the council meeting during Council Ideas, Comments, and Questions. 

4 . After the mayor's appointments, the city clerk shall submit a report for the council 
agenda requesting confirmation of the appointments. 

5. A vote of a majority of members present is required to forward Personnel and 
Public Employees Committee appointment recommendations to the council. in 
accordance with Chapter 16. 

C. Exceptions 

The procedures in this chapter 14 shall not apply to recommendations for 
appointments to the Parks and Recreation Commission, except as provided in city 
code chapter 2.62; nor to the Planning and Design Commission . except as provided 
in city code chapter 2.60. 

Resolution 2015-0021 January 27. 2015 32 

144 



CITY OF SACRAMENTO-COUNCIL RULES OF PROCEDURE 

CHAPTER 15 - BUDGET AND AUDIT COMMITIEE 

A. Purposes 

The purposes of the Budget and Audit Committee are to: 

1. Assist the council in overseeing and supervising the city auditor; 

2. Assist the council in evaluating the proposed budget, including a mid-year 
report, and any amendments thereto; 

3. Assist the council in overseeing and supervising the independent budget 
analyst; 

4. Assist the council in understanding the budget impacts resulting from council's 
actions; and 

5. Assist the council in enhancing the city's ability to: 

a. improve the effectiveness and efficiency of city operations; 

b. improve the city's fiscal operations; 

c. adopt and adhere to a balanced budget; and 

d. comply with city policies, procedures, and regulatory requirements. 

B. Procedures 

1. The Budget and Audit Committee shall receive, review, and forward to the 
council as appropriate, reports, recommendations , and updates from the city 
auditor. 

2. The Budget and Audit Committee shall receive, review, and forward to the 
council as appropriate, reports, recommendations, and updates from the 
independent budget analyst. 

3. The Budget and Audit Committee shall receive and review the proposed budget 
and any material amendments thereto. 

4. The Budget and Audit Committee shall receive and review any key budget 
policy issues, including but not limited to, CAFR results, use of any year-end 
surplus, the mid-year report, budget priorities, use of unanticipated revenue, 
or proposed budget issues such as fee increases, prior to bringing forward to 
council. 

5. The Budget and Audit Committee may: 

a. receive, review, and forward to the council, when relevant to city audits, any 
reports from the city treasurer, the department of finance, other city offices, 
or external auditors; 

b. receive, review, and forward to the council any reports and 
recommendations of the independent budget analyst; and 

Resolution 2015-0021 January 27,2015 33 

145 



CITY OF SACRAMENTO-COUNCIL RULES OF PROCEDURE 

c. propose that the council adopt ordinances, resolutions, or take other 
actions, provided that such ordinances, resolutions, or actions are within the 
jurisdiction of the Budget and Audit Committee. 

6. A vote of a majority of the members present is required to approve a 
recommendation to council. A two-two vote results in an item being forwarded 
to council without a recommendation. 

7. If a Budget and Audit Committee item fails to receive the votes required under 
Rule15.B.6, any council member during the Council Ideas, Comments, and 
Questions portion of a council meeting may request the item be placed on a 
future council agenda. 

Resolution 2015-0021 January 27, 2015 34 

146 



CITY OF SACRAMENTO-COUNCIL RULES OF PROCEDURE 

CHAPTER 16- BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS 

A. Vacancies and Appointments 

1. When any vacancy occurs on a board or commission, the city clerk shall 
announce that vacancy pursuant to the standard outreach procedures. For 
routine vacancies, the announcement is made approximately six months prior to 
the date on which the vacancy is to occur. For non-routine vacancies, the 
announcement is made as soon as possible in order to maintain viable 
memberships on the various boards and commissions. The City Clerk's Office 
maintains the board and commission files, and performs all clerical and 
administrative support tasks related to the application process. 

2. At the close of the application period, all applications received for the vacancy 
are referred by the clerk to the applicable council district, mayor, or the Personnel 
and Public Employees Committee for review and recommendation. 

3. Following review, the member or Personnel and Public Employees Committee 
Chair shall send the board and commission nomination(s) to the city clerk for 
distribution to the mayor. 

4. After reviewing the submitted nomination(s) made by the member or Personnel 
and Public Employees Committee, the mayor shall make an appointment to fill 
the vacancy at a regular council meeting. 

5. At the next regular council meeting (but not sooner than six days) following the 
meeting at which the mayor made the appointment, the council shall vote 
whether to confirm the appointment. 

6. If the council does not approve the appointment, then the mayor shall make 
another appointment, and at the next regular meeting following the meeting at 
which the subsequent appointment was made, the council shall vote whether to 
confirm the new appointment. 

7. This procedure shall followed until an appointment has been approved by the 
council. No request by a member to delay the appointment or approval will be 
allowed unless approved by a majority vote of the council. 

8. At the direction of the council, all vacancies, application periods, and close of 
application periods for boards and commissions shall be monitored and 
maintained by the city clerk in compliance with the Maddy Act. 14 

9. In making nominations and appointments to city boards and commissions, the 
mayor, Personnel and Public Employees Committee, and council district member 
should consider persons of various ethnicities, ages, genders, education, and 
occupational experience as reflected in the general population of the city; and 
should, as appropriate for the vacancy, consider persons from all districts of the 

city. 

Resolution 2015-0021 January 27,2015 35 

147 



CITY OF SACRAMENTO-COUNCIL RULES OF PROCEDURE 

B. Exceptions 

The procedures in this chapter 16 shall not apply to recommendations for 
appointments to the Parks and Recreation Commission, except as provided in city 
code chapter 2.62; nor to the Planning and Design Commission, except as othelWise 
provided in city code chapter 2.60. 

Resolution 2015-0021 January 27,2015 36 

148 



CITY OF SACRAMENTO-COUNCIL RULES OF PROCEDURE 

END NOTES 

1 Sacramento City Charter, § 30 (Rules, Quorum and Voting). 

2 California Government Code, § 54950 et seq. 

3 California Government Code, § 53234 et seq. 

4 Sacramento City Code, § 2.15.160 (Lobbyist Identification). 

5 See Sacramento City Charter, § 31 (Meetings). 

6 California Government Code, § 6250 et seq. 

7 California Government Code, § 54957.5(b). 

8 Government Code section 54957.5(b) 

9 California Government Code, § 54956.5. 

10 AS 1234, codified at California Government Code, § 53232.3. 

11 Sacramento City Charter, § 32 (Ordinances). 

12 See Sacramento City Charter, § 28 (Vacancies), and § 46 (Mayor Vacancy). 

13 See Sacramento City Charter, § 154 (Special Elections to Fill Vacant Offices). 

Resolution 2015-0021 January 27,2015 37 

149 



CITY OF SACRAMENTO-COUNCIL RULES OF PROCEDURE 

GLOSSARY 

et seq. abbr. Lati. 
et sequens (and the following one or ones) 

Non-Binding Resolution 
A non-binding resolution is a resolution in which the council declares its position 
and opinions on an issue, policy, or other matter that the council lacks legal 
authority to establish or regulate, but that the council determines is of such 
importance that the council should make the symbolic gesture of adopting a 
resolution declarative of council's position. 

Quasi-judicial 
Quasi-judicial action means any council action that implicates constitutionally 
protected property or liberty interests, such as issuance or denial of discretionary 
land use permits, subdivision maps, business licenses, and other similar action in 
which a property interest is at stake and the council is charged with applying 
legal standards to a specific factual situation. 

Sergeant-at-Arms 
The sergeant-at-arms is the principal law enforcement official of the legislative 
body and is charged with maintaining security within the chamber (meeting 
location) and surrounding areas. The sergeant-at-arms also enforces protocol 
and ensures public decorum is followed as noted in the body's rules of 
procedure. 

Resolution 2015-0021 January 27,2015 38 

150 



CITY OF SACRAMENTO·COUNCll RULES OF PROCEDURE 

INDEX 

A 

AB 1234 Government Code 53232.3 ...... .......... ................ ... ........ ... ...... .... ... .... ... ....... ... 37 
Absence ..... .. ...... ... .................... ........ ...... .... ................... .. ........ ......... .. .......................... 25 
Adjourned Meetings .................................. ........................................ .. ..... ................ ... .. 11 
Amendment. ...... ...... .... ... ..... ........ .... ... ...... .... ....... ... ...... ..... ...... .. .... ... ... ..... ....... .... ... ..... .... 1 

B 

Boards and Commissions 
Vacancies and Appontments ................................................ ... ....... ...... .......... ....... .... 35 

BOARDS AND COMMiSSiONS .............. ......... .................................. .............. ....... ...... 35 

c 
Call to Order - Presiding Officer ..................... .. .... .. .................. .. .................................. 20 
City Charter-Article III § 30 Rules, Quorum and Voting ............... .. ........ ........................ 37 
City Code 2.15.160 Lobbyist Identificalion . .. ........ .. ................. .. .................................... 37 
Closed Sessions ... ..... .... ..... ..... .... ......... ... ....... .......... .............. ..... .. ... ... ... .... ... ..... ..... .... . 12 
Conduct with Boards and Commissions .......................................................................... 5 
Conduct with City Manager and Staff .. ............................................................................ 4 
Conduct with Members ... ................. .... ............... .......... ................................................... 4 
Conduct with Other Agencies ........................................ ..... .. ............. ................ .............. 5 
Conduct with the Media ... ..................................... .. ... ... ..... .. ............................................ 6 
Conduct with the Public .............. .... .............. .... ......................................... ...................... 5 
Council Chamber Capacity .......... ........... ....................................................................... 26 
COUNCIL REQUESTS ........ .. ........................................................................... ............ 24 

D 

Declaration of Policy .... ............................... .. ................................................................. 15 
Distribution of the Packet. ............................................................................................. 17 

E 

Emergency Meetings ....... .................. .................................... ........................................ 11 
Ethical Conduct .... .......... ................................................................................................. 6 
Ethics Training-Government Code 53234 el seq ............... .... .......... .. ......... ... ... ............ 37 
Exceptions to the Agenda Requirement. ....................................................................... 18 

F 

Failure to Meet Agenda Deadlines . .. .................. .. ......................................................... 18 

G 

General Administration .. , ..... ................ ...................................................... ... ................ .. . 1 
General Authorities and Applicability ............................................................................... 1 
General Conduct ............... ........... .. ..................... .......... · .... · .. ·· ···· ..... ............................... 3 
General Conduct-City Staff .................. ............................................. .............................. 7 
General Conduct-Public .................................................................................................. 8 
GLOSSARY .................................... ......... ................ ... .............. , ... ....... ........................ . 38 
Govemment Code 54956.5 ... ........ ......................... ............................................... ........ 37 
Government Code 54957.5 Written Communication .................................................... 37 

Resolution 2015-0021 January 27, 2015 39 

151 



CITY OF SACRAMENTO-COUNCIL RULES OF PROCEDURE 

J 

Joint Duties of Members/Staff ...................................... ..... ..... ............. ............................ 2 
L 

Law and Legislation ....................................................................................................... 30 
Non-Binding Resolutions ............................. ....................................................... ...... . 30 

o 
Obtaining the Floor ........................................................................................................ 22 
Oral Communications from the Audience ....................................... .... ........................... 22 
Order of Discussion ............................................... .................. ...................................... 20 
Ordinances/Non-Binding Resolutions ...... .............. ...... ... ................... ... ... ...................... 19 
p 

Personnel and Public Employees Committee ....................... ... ..................................... 32 
Posting of Agenda ..... .. ........................... ........ ....... .. ..................................................... . 17 
Preparation of the Agenda Packet. ....... ........................................................................ 16 
Procedures for Submission of Reports .. ....................................................... ................. 16 
Public Hearing-Continuances ... ..... .................... ....... .. ........... ... .......... ... ..................... ... 13 
Public Hearings ............................................................................................................. 12 

Q 

Quorum Call ............................................ ........... ......... ...... ... ... ...................................... 22 

R 

Regional Organizations ........... ....................................... ............. ............................ 27. 29 
Regular Meetings .. ..................................................... ... ................................................ 11 
Requirements for Agenda Item Submission .................................................................. 15 
Roll Call/Attendance ....... ......... .......... .......... ............ ................................................. ..... 20 
Rule 7B-2 (Municipal Powers) .. .............. ................... .................................................... 15 

s 
Special Meetings ........................................................................................................... 11 
Standing Committees ................... .. .. ........ ..................................................................... 27 
Suspension ............ ... .................. .. .... ...... ................................. ..... ..... ..... ........................ 1 

T 

The Brown Act-Government Code 54950 et seq ........................................................... 37 
Types of Agenda Items ................................................................................................. 18 

II' 

Written Communications from the City and the Public . ................................................. 16 

Resolution 2015-0021 January 27.2015 40 

152 



CITY OF RIO DELL 

CITY Of 

CITY COUNCIL PROTOCOLS 
2011 

Prepared by: 
Office of tire City Clerk 

Adopted: August 16, 2011 

---------------------------------------- 153 



TABLE OF CONTENTS 

I. PURPOSE 

2. STATUTORY REQUIREMENTS/REGULATIONS 

2.1 The Brown Act 

2.2 Political Reform Act 

2.3 Rio Dell Municipal Code (ROMe) 

2.4 RDMC Chapter 2.05 Relating to Council Meetings 

2.5 Code of Ethics 

3. COUNCIL ORGANIZATION 

3.1 Newly-Elected Councilmembers 

3.2 Selection of Mayor and Mayor Pro Tem 

3.3 Duties of Mayor and Mayor Pro Tem 

3.4 Seating Order 

3.5 Representation at Ceremonial Functions 

4. COUNCIL ADMINISTRATION 

4.1 Travel and Expense Reimbursement 

4.2 Mail/Council Correspondence 

4.3 Clerical Support 

4.4 Requests for Research or Information 

4.5 Council Notification of Significant Incidents 

RIO DELL CITY COUNCIL PROTOCO LS Page 1 

154 



5. MEETING GUIDELINES & PROCEDURES 

5.1 Attendance/Quorum 

5.2 Meeting Dates and Location 

5.3 Cancelled Meetings 

5.4 Special Meetings and Emergency Meetings 

5.5 Adjourned Meetings 

5.6 Posting of the Agenda 

5.7 Agenda Packet Preparation 

5.8 Placing Items on the Agenda 

5.9 Americans with Disabilities Act Statement 

6. RULES OF CONDUCT 

6.1 General Procedure 

6.2 Addressing Members of the Public and Staff 

6.3 Authority of the Chair 

6.4 Mayor to Facilitate Council Meetings 

6.5 Council Deliberation and Order of Speakers 

6.6 Limit Deliberations to Item at Hand 

6.7 Length of Council Comments 

6.8 Council Presentations 

6.9 Obtaining the Floor 

6.10 Procedure for Motions 

RIO DELL CITY COUNCIL PROTOCOLS Page 2 

155 



6.11 Ordinances 

6.12 Voting 

6.13 Abstention 

6.14 Tie Votes 

6.15 Serial Meetings 

6.16 Non-Observance of Rule 

7. DECORUM 

7.1 Council members 

7.2 City Staff 

7.3 Public 

7.4 Noise in the Council Chambers 

8. ORDER OF BUSINESS 

8.1 General Order 

8.2 Action Agenda Items 

8.3 Consent Calendar 

8.4 Special Presentations 

8.5 Special Call Items/Community Affairs 

8.6 OrdinanceS/Special Resolutions 

8.7 Public Presentations 

8.8 Council Reports/Communications 

8.9 Closed Session 

8.10 Adjournment 

RIO DELL CITY COUNCIL PROTOCOLS Page 3 

156 



9. QUASI-JUDICIAL PROCEEDINGS 

9.1 Defined 

9.2 Identification on Agenda 

9.3 Ex Parte Communications 

10. COMMISSIONS/COMMIITEES 

10.1 Ad Hoc Committees 

10.2 Councilmember Appointments to Boards/Committees/Commissions 

11. CONFLICT OF INTEREST/ECONOMIC DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS FOR 
PUBLIC OFFICIALS 

11.1 Conflict of Interest 

11.2 Statements of Economic Interest Form 700 

12. PROTOCOL ADMINISTRATION 

12.1 Review of City Council Protocols 

12.2 Adherence to Protocols 

12.3 City Attorney as Protocol Advisor 

12.4 Adherence to Administrative Procedure and Process Protocols 

12.5 Applicability of Protocols 

RIO DELL CITY COUNCIL PROTOCOLS Page 4 

157 



1. PURPOSE 

The purpose of establishing and updating the City Council Protocols is to provide 
guidelines for the City Council to conduct its business in an orderly, consistent, 
and fair manner. 

The protocols set forth herein are not intended to limit the inherent power and 

general legal authority of the City Council. Any of the protocols herein may be 

waived by a majority vote of the City Council when it is deemed that there is good 

cause to do so based upon the particular facts and circumstances. 

2. STATUTORY REQUIREMENTS/REGULATIONS 

Certa in state laws and other established regulations exist, which govern various 

responsibilities of the City Council. These protocols are not intended to duplicate, 

fully articulate all requirements, or repeal any existing statutes or regulations. 

City Councilmembers are responsible for becoming familiar with these statutes 

and regulations. 

2.1 The Brown Act 

The Ralph M. Brown Act provides that all meetings of a legislative body, 
whether meetings of the City Councilor its appointed commissions and 
committees, shall be open and public and all persons shall be permitted 
to attend. Notices of such meetings must be made 72 hours prior to 
the meeting (or 24 hours in the case of a special meeting). A "meeting" 
takes place whenever a quorum is present and subject matter related 
to the City business is heard, discussed, or deliberated upon. 

2.2 Political Reform Act 

The Political Reform Act states that public officials shall perform their 
duties in an impartial manner, free from bias caused by their own 
financial interests or the financial interests of persons who have 
supported them. The Political Reform Act establishes regulations 

RIO DELL CITY COUNCIL PROTOCOLS Page 5 

158 



regarding conflicts of interests and campaign receipts and expenditures. 

2.3 Rio Dell Municipal Code (RDMC) 

The Rio Dell Municipal Code (ROMe) consists of those codified ordinances 
of general municipal regulations and laws of the City of Rio Dell. 

2.4 RDMC Chapter 2.05 Relating to Council Meetings 

RDMC Chapter 2.05, "City Council Meetings," sets forth the time and place 
of regular meetings, and further establishes such things as the rules for the 
cancellation of meetings, change of location, special and emergency 
meetings, and continuation of meetings. (Attached as Exhibit A) 

2.5 Code of Ethics 

RDMC Chapter 1.10 "Code of Ethics," sets forth the code of ethics and 
values for Council members. The proper operation of democratic 
government requires that decision makers be independent, impartial, 
and accountable to the people they serve. The City of Rio Dell has adopted 
this code of ethics to promote and maintain the highest standards of 
personal and professional conduct in the City's government. (Attached as 
Exhibit B) 

3. COUNCIL ORGANIZATION 

3.1 Newly-Elected Councilmembers 

Newly-elected Councilmembers are generally sworn into office at the first 
regular meeting following receipt of the Certification of Votes from the 
County Elections Department following the November General Election. 
Immediately upon election (even before being sworn into office), 
newly-elected Councilmembers are subject to the provisions of the 
Brown Act. 

3.2 Selection of Mayor and Mayor Pro Tem 

RIO DELL CITY COUNCIL PROTOCOLS Page 6 

159 



Resolution No. 700 establishes the procedures for seating new members of 
the City Council. Section 36801 of the California Government Code and 
Resolution No. 822.1 also establishes the procedures for choosing the 
Mayor and Mayor Pro Tern . The Mayor and Mayor Pro Tern will be elected 
by a majority vote of a quorum of the City Council. In years when members 
of the City Council are to be elected, the City Council shall consider the 
election of a Mayor and Mayor Pro Tern for two (2) year terms at the first 
regular meeting after certification of the general election resu lts has been 
received. 

3.3 Duties of Mayor and Mayor Pro Tern 

The Mayor shall preside over all City Council meetings. If he/she is absent 
or unable to act, the Mayor Pro Tern shall serve until the Mayor returns or 
is able to act. (Calif. Gov't Code Section 36802) 

In the absence of the Mayor and Mayor Pro Tern, the City Clerk shall call 
the Council to order, whereupon a temporary Chairperson shall be chosen 
by members of the Council to preside over the meeting. 

3.4 Seating Order 

Following the City Council election, the City Clerk shall designate the 
seating order for the Council dais. The Mayor Pro Tern is generally seated 
to the right of the Mayor. 

3.5 Representation at Ceremonial Functions 

The Mayor shall represent the Council at ceremonial functions. The Mayor 
may, at his/her own discretion, ask another Councilmember to represent 
the Council at the function. 

Councilmembers shall be reimbursed for meal expenses and mileage to 
attend ceremonial functions, for which the Councilmember was invited to 
represent the City, pursuant to the City of Rio Dell Travel and 
Reimbursement Policy (Resolution No. 809-2002) . 

RIO DELL CITY COUNCIL PROTOCOLS Page 7 

160 



4. COUNCIL ADMINISTRATION 

4.1 Travel and Expense Reimbursement 

Authorization to incur expenses for travel, conferences and training shall be 
made only for purposes approved in the budget by the City Council 
pursuant to Resolution 809-2002 (Attached as Exhibit C) 

4.2 Mail/Council Correspondence 

Mail 
A" general mail is date stamped and routed to the address unopened. 
A" letters addressed to the Mayor and/or City Council requiring a response 
from staff are copied to the City Manager. A copy of the responses mailed, 
along with the original letters will be provided to each Councilmember. 
Letters addressed to the Mayor and/or City Council that do not require a 
response, but provide information on Council agenda items or like matters 
are copied to the full Council. Mail pertaining to specific meetings where 
an individual Councilmember is the appointed representative of the Council 
is opened. Copies are not made for the full Council. Cards and other 
Councilmember mail marked "personal" will not be copied to the full 

Council. 

Council Correspondence 
All Councilmember correspondence written with City resources (letterhead, 
typing staff report, postage, etc.) will reflect the pOSition of the full 
Council, not individual Councilmembers's positions. All Councilmember 
correspondence using City resources will be copied to the full Council. For 
example, responses to citizen letters will be copied to the full Council along 
with the original citizen correspondence. City Councilmembers will be 

provided individual stationary and envelopes for use for communications 
reflecting their personal positions, not the positions of the full Council. 
These communications will be prepared and sent at the expense of the 

individual Councilmembers. Councilmembers may utilize the City's 
outgoing mail service. 

4.3 Clerical Support 

RIO DELL CITY COUNCIL PROTOCOLS Page 8 

161 



The City Manager's Office will coordinate the typing of correspondence 
requested by individual Councilmembers for communications reflecting 
the position of the full Council. All correspondence typed for 
Council members will be on City letterhead and will reflect the position 
of the full Council, not individual Councilmembers, and will be copied to 
the full Council. 

4.4 Requests for Research or Information 

Council members may request information or research from the City 
Manager on a given topic directly when it is antiCipated that staff can 
complete the request in less than an hour per week. Requests for new 

information 
or policy direction will be brought to the full Council at a regular meeting 
for consideration. All written products will be copied to the full Council. 

4.5 Council Notification of Significant Incidents 

In conjunction with the City's public safety department, the City Manager's 
Office will coordinate the notification to Council of major crime, or other 
related incidents. This will be accomplished concurrently through 
telephone and e-mail messages. 

5. MEETING GUIDELINES & PROCEDURES 

5.1 Attendance/Quorum 

Councilmembers acknowledge that attendance at lawful meetings of the 
City Council is part of their official duty. Councilmembers shall make a 
good faith effort to attend all such meetings. Councilmembers shall notify 
the City Clerk if they will be absent from a meeting. The City Clerk shall 
then notify the City Manager and all other Council members. If a Council
member fails to attend three (3) consecutive regular meetings of the 
Council without being excused, his/her position on the City Council 
becomes vacant and shall be filled by appointment or election as 
determined by a majority vote of the City Council. At the start of each 

RIO DELL CITY COUNCIL PROTOCOLS Page 9 

162 



City Council meeting, the Mayor shall call the roll. Any absent 
Councilmember who has left a message by 5:00 p.m., or reached the Mayor 
or City Manager's Office directly before the start of the meeting on the 
day of the meeting to advise of such absence, shall be considered excused 
only upon majority vote of the Council. 

5.2 Meeting Dates and Location 

Consistent with RDMC Chapter 2.05, regular meetings of the City Council 
shall be held every 1st and 3'd Tuesdays of every month, commencing at 
6:30 p.m. in the City Hall Council Chambers, 675 Wildwood Avenue, 
Rio Dell. 

5.2a Other Locations 

The Council, may from time to time, elect to meet at other locations 
within the City and upon such election shall give public notice of the 
change of location in accordance with provisions of the Government 
Code. 

5.2b Location During Local Emergency 

If, by reason of fire, flood, earthquake or other emergency, it shall 
be unsafe to meet at City Hall, the meetings may be held for the 
duration of the emergency at such other place as may be designated 
by the Mayor, or if the Mayor does not so designate, by the Mayor 
Pro Tem or the City Manager. 

5.3 Cancelled Meetings 

When the day for any regular meeting falls on a legal holiday, the 
regularly scheduled meeting for that day shall default to the 
following Thursday. That meeting or any other scheduled Council 
meeting may be cancelled when deemed appropriate by the Council, 
providing that the Council meets regularly, however, at least once 
each month. 

RIO DELL CITY COUNCIL PROTOCOLS Page 10 

163 



5.4 Special Meetings and Emergency Meetings 

Special meetings and emergency meetings of the City Council may be 
called and held from time to t ime consistent with the procedures set 
forth in the Ralph M . Brown Act (Government Code Sections 54950, 
et seq. 

5.5 Adjourned Meetings 
The City Council may adjourn any regular, adjourned regular, special 
or adjourned special meeting to a time and place specified in the 
order of adjournment pursuant to the procedures set forth in the 
Ralph M. Brown Act (Government Code Sections 54950, et. seq. 

5.6 Posting of the Agenda 

All City Council agendas and notices shall be made available to the general 
public pursuant to the California Government Code. The locations 
designated as the City's official posting locations are as follows: 

1. The bulletin board at the entrance of City Hall 
2. The bulletin board at the Rio Dell Post Office 
3. The bulletin board at Rio Dell/Scotia Chamber of Commerce 
4. Any other location as may be specifically selected in addition to 

the three location heretofore designated. (Resolution No. 511) 
(the fourth posting location is currently the Downtown City 
Bulletin Board). 

5.7 Agenda Packet Preparation 

The City Manager reviews and approves all items for the Council agenda. 
Agenda packets are compiled, photocopied, posted to the City's web site, 
and distributed through the City Clerk's Office. Agenda packets shall be 
distributed to Councilmembers no later than the Friday prior to the Council 
meeting. 

5.8 Placing Items on the Agenda 

RIO DELL CITY COUNCIL PROTOCOLS Page 11 

164 



Matters may be placed on the agenda for consideration by request of 
1; ) the Mayor 2) the City Manager; and 3) the City Attorney. Any 
reasonable request shall be honored subject to the City Manager's 
discretion as to the preparation of accompanying staff reports. Each 
Thursday morning the City Manager meets with Department Heads to go 
over proposed future agendas, at which time issues that need to be 
brought forth to the City Council are discussed with the City Manager. 

Councilmembers shall have the opportunity to request an item be placed 
on the agenda during an open council meeting; with concurrence of the 
Council, the request shall be honored. 

Requests from the public to place an item on the agenda are to be directed 
to the City Clerk and shall be handled in the following manner: 

• Proclamations/Certificates - All requests for proclamations and 
certificates are subject to approval of the Mayor or City Manager 
and are typically honored only if a local representative from the 
requesting agency can appear to accept the proclamation or 
certificate. 

• Presentations - Most requests for presentations by civic groups 
and local organizations shall be honored and placed appropriately 
under the "Special Presentations" segment of the agenda. 

• Item for Discussion/Action by Public 
Requests by members of the public to place an item for discussion 
or action on the agenda shall be directed to the appropriate City 
department for proper handling. In the event it cannot be handled 
in this manner, the individual requesting the action should attend a 
City Council meeting and address the Council under the "Public 
Presentation" segment of the agenda. 

The Council shall not take action on the matter other than to 
either: 1) direct that the matter be placed on a future agenda, or 2) 
direct staff to research the issue and report back to Council. 

5.9 Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) Statement 

RIO DELL CITY COUNCIL PROTOCOLS Page 12 

165 



Agendas for all City Council meetings will contain a statement regarding the 
Americans with Disabilities Act, making the City Clerk the contact for 
inquiries by those needing special assistance to participate in the meeting. 

6. RULES OF CONDUCT 

6.1 General Procedure 

It is the policy of the Council not to become involved on the entanglements 
over "parliamentary procedure." Consistent with any applicable City 
ordinance, statute or other legal requirement, any issue of procedure 
relating to the conduct of a meeting or hearing not otherwise provided for 
herein may be determined by the Mayor, subject to appeal to the full 
Council. 

6.2 Addressing Members of the Public and Staff 

In addressing the public and members of the City's staff, Councilmembers 
will generally refer to persons as Mr., Mrs. or Ms. followed by their 
surname and/or job title . 

6.3 Authority of the Chair 

Subject to the full Council, the Mayor shall have the authority to prevent 
the misuse of motions, or the abuse of any privilege, or obstruction of the 
business of the Council by ruling any such matter out of order. In so ruling, 
the Mayor shall be courteous and fair and should presume that the moving 
party is acting in good faith . 

6.4 Mayor to Facilitate Council Meetings 

The Council has delegated the responsibility and expanded the role of the 
Mayor to include the facilitation of Council meetings. In the role as 
facilitator, the Mayor will assist the Council to focus on their agenda, 
discussions and deliberations. 

6.5 Council Deliberation and Order of Speakers 

RIO DELL CITY COUNCIL PROTOCOLS Page 13 

166 



The Mayor has been delegated the responsibi/ity to control the debate and 
the order of speakers. 

6.5a Questions Addressed to Another Councilmember 
With the concurrence of the Mayor, a Couneilmember holding the 
floor may address a question to another Counci/member and that 
Councilmember may respond while the floor is still held by the 
Couneilmember asking the question._ A Councilmember may opt 
not to answer a question while another Councilmember has the 
floor. 

6.6 Limit Deliberations to Item at Hand 

Counci/members will limit their comments to the subject matter, item or 
motion being currently considered by the Council. 

6.7 Length of Counci/ Comments 

Couneilmembers will govern themselves as to the length of their comments 
or presentation. As a courtesy, the Mayor will signal by hand to a Council
member who has been speaking for over ten (10) minutes. The intent of 
the hand signal is a courtesy to let the Counci/member know they have 
been speaking for about ten minutes and may want to consider wrapping 
up their comments. This procedure is not meant to limit debate or to cut 
comments short, but rather to assist Counci/members on their efforts to 
communicate coneisely. 

6.8 Council Presentations 

Couneilmember presentations are limited to the item or issue being 
deliberated. To insure that the appropriate equipment is available, 
couneilmembers must provide the City Clerk advance notice of the intent 
to make a presentation. To insure a complete record ofthe meeting, 
councilmembers will provide a copy of the presentation to the City Clerk 
at the conclusion of the Couneil meeting. 

RIO DELL CITY COUNCIL PROTOCOLS Page 14 

167 



6.9 Obtaining the Floor 

Any member of the Council wishing to speak must first obtain the floor 
by being recognized by the Mayor. The Mayor must recognize any 
councilmember who seeks the floor when appropriately entitled to do so. 

6.10 Procedure for Motions 

Motions may be made by any member of the Council, including the Mayor 
and/or presiding officer, providing that before the presiding officer offers 
a motion, the opportunity for making a motion should be offered to other 
members of the Council. Any member of the Council, other than the 
person offering the motion, may second a motion. The following is the 
general procedure for making motions : 

6.10a 

61O.b 

• Before a motion can be considered or debated, it must be 
seconded. 

• A Councilmember wishing to second a motion should do so 
through a verbal request to the Mayor. 

• Once the motion has been properly made and seconded, the 
Mayor shall open the matter for discussion offering the first 
opportunity to the moving party, and thereafter, to any 
Council member properly recognized by the Mayor. 

• The Mayor may ask for public comment on the motion. 

• Once the matter has been fully discussed and the Mayor calls 
for a vote, no further discussion will be allowed, provided, 
however, Councilmembers may be allowed to explain their 

vote. 

Motion Amendments 

When a motion is on the floor and an amendment is offered, 
the amendment should be acted upon prior to action on the 

main motion. 

Motion of Intention 

A Motion of Intention process is generally limited to matters 

RIO DELL CITY COUNCIL PROTOCOLS Page 15 

168 



6.11 Ordinances 

legally required to be supported by findings. In proceedings 
identified as quasi-judicial on the agenda, when the City 
Council takes an action that is substantially different from the 
staff recommendation, the Council may utilize the Motion of 
Intention. A Motion of Intention provides staff direction as to 
the City Council's action through a formal motion. Based on 
this motion, staff revises the necessary findings, resolutions 
and/or implementing documentation for the City Council's 
action at the next scheduled meeting. 

Motions offering ordinances are deemed to include waiver of full reading of 
the ordinance and the reading of the ordinance by title only unless 
otherwise specifically stated. 

6.12 Voting 

Any council member present at a meeting when a question comes up for a 
vote should vote for or against the measure unless he/she is disqualified 
from voting and abstains because of such disqualification. If the vote is a 
voice vote, the Mayor shall declare the result. The Council may also vote 
by roll call, ballot or voting machine. Regardless of the manner of voting, 
the results reflection of all "ayes" and "noes" mist be clearly set forth for 
the record. 

6.13 Abstention 

If a Councilmember abstains because of a legal conflict, he/she is not 
counted as present for quorum purposes and is not deemed to be "voting" 
for purposes of determining whether there has been a "majority vote of 
those members present and voting." When a Councilmember abstains or 
excuses themselves from a portion of a Council meeting because of a legal 
conflict of interest, the Council member must briefly state on the record the 
nature of the conflict. In inclusion of this information on the public record 
is required by law. If a Council member abstains because of a conflict other 
than legal, he/she is counted as present for quorum purposes and is not 

RIO DELL CITY COUNCIL PROTOCOLS Page 16 

169 



deemed to be "voting" for purposes of determining whether there has 
been a "majority vote of those members present and voting." 

6.14 Tie Votes 

A tie vote results in a lost motion. In such an instance, any member of the 
Council may offer a motion for further action. If there is not action by an 
affirmative vote, the result is no action. If the matter involves an appeal, 
and an affirmative vote does not occur, the result is that the decision 
appealed stands as decided by the decision-making person or body from 
which the appeal was taken. 

6.15 Motions for Reconsideration 

Motions for reconsideration of a matter may be made at the same meeting 
or at the next succeeding meeting following a Council action. A proposed 
motion for reconsideration at the next meeting must comply with Brown 
Act noticing requirements. Motions for reconsideration may only be made 
by a Councilmember that voted with the majority of the City Council on the 
action proposed to be reconsidered by the Council. In the case of a tie 
vote, the prevailing side or majority of the Council will be deemed to be 
those Councilmembers who voted in the negative. Any member of the 
Council may second a motion for reconsideration. 

6.16 Serial Meetings 

Serial meetings are meetings that at anyone time involve only a portion of 
legislative body, but eventually involve a quorum. Serial meetings yield a 
process that deprives the public the opportunity for a meaningful 
contribution to the decision-making process. Serial meetings may be a 
chain, in which member "A" contacts member "B", "B" then contacts "Cn

, 

"Cn contacts "0" and so on, until a quorum is involved. An elected official 
has the right to confer with a colleague about public business however, if 
and when a "collective concurrence as to action to be taken" is reached, 
the Brown Act is violated. Councilmembers are encouraged to consider 
the possibility of serial meetings when engaging in discussion with their 
colleagues on a matter within the subject jurisdiction of the City. 

RIO DELL CITY COUNCIL PROTOCOLS Page 17 

170 



6.17 Non-Observance of Rule 

Rules adopted to expedite and facilitate the transaction of the business of 
the Couneil in an orderly fashion shall be deemed to be procedural only, 
and the failure to strictly observe any such rules shall not affect the 
jurisdiction of, or invalidate any action taken by the Couneil. 

7. DECORUM 

7.1 Couneilmembers 

ROMC Chapter 1.05 "Code of Ethics" establishes the code of ethics and 
values to be followed by City Counci/members and others. Members 
of the City Council value and recognize the importance of the trust 
invested in them by the public to accomplish the business of the City. 
Councilmembers shall accord the utmost courtesy to each other, to 
City employees, and to the public appearing before the City Couneil 
at all times. Councilmembers in the minority on an issue shall respect the 
decision and authority of the majority. 

7.2 City Staff 

Members of the City staff are expected to observe the same rules of order 
and decorum applicable to the City Council. City staff shall act at all 
times in a business professional manner toward Couneilmembers and 
members of the pUblic. 

7.3 Public 

Members of the public attending City Couneil meetings shall observe the 
same rules of order and decorum applicable to the City Couneil. 

7.4 Noise in the Couneil Chambers 

Noise emanating from the audience within the Council Chambers which 
disrupts City Council meetings, shall not be permitted. 

RIO DELL CITY COUNCIL PROTOCOLS Page 18 

171 



8. ORDER OF BUSINESS 

8.1 General Order 
The business of the Council at its meetings will generally be conducted in 
accordance with the following order of business unless otherwise specified. 
A closed session may be held at any time during a meeting consistent with 
applicable law. 

A. CALL TO ORDER 
B. ROLLCALL 
C. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
D. CEREMONIAL 
E. CONSENT CALENDAR 
F. SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS 
G. SPECIAL CALL ITEMS/COMMUNITY AFFAIRS 
H. ORDINANCES/SPECIAL RESOLUTIONS 
I. PUBLIC PRESENTATIONS 
J. REPORTS/STAFF COMMUNICATIONS 
K. COUNCIL REPORTS/COMMUNICATIONS 
L. ANNOUNCEMENT IN OPEN SESSION OF ITEMS TO BE DISCUSSED IN 

CLOSED SESSION 
M. PUBLIC COMMENT REGARDING CLOSED SESSION 
N. RECESS INTO CLOSED SESSION 
O. RECONVENE TO OPEN SESSION 
P. ORAL ANNOUNCEMENTS 
Q. ADJOURNMENT 

8.2 Action Agenda Items 

In accordance with the Ralph M. Brown Act, the Council may not take 

action on any item that did not appear on the posted Council agenda 72 

hours prior to the Council meeting unless an exception is made as 

permitted under Government Code Section 54954.2 (Agenda Postings; 
Action on Other Matters). 

8.3 Consent Calendar 

RIO DELL CITY COUNCIL PROTOCOLS Page 19 

172 



Agenda items removed from the consent calendar by Councilmembers or 
staff will be considered individually under II Special Call Items/Community 
Affairs" section of the agenda and be considered first. Members of the 
public may comment on consent items prior to the Council's consideration 
of the consent calendar. A Councilmember may vote IIno" on any consent 
item without comment or discussion. Any abstentions, comments, 
questions or discussion on an item will require the pulling of the item from 
the consent calendar. 

8.4 Special Presentations 

All Special Presentations will be calendared and coordinated through the 
City Manager and the Mayor and may be limited by the Mayor to a time 
period not to exceed 15 minutes at each Council meeting. 

8.5 Special Call Items/Community Affairs 

This section of the agenda is for items requiring discussion and/or action. 
The Mayor will call for a staff report from the City Manager; he/she may 
defer to the appropriate department head to present the staff report and 
answer questions of the Council. 

8.6 Ordinances/Special Resolutions 

Ordinances involve a command or prohibition and have the force of law in 
the City for which an ordinance is adopted. An ordinance generally 
prescribes some permanent rule of conduct or government that remains in 
force until the ordinance is repealed. With the exception of urgency 
ordinances, no ordinance may be passed within five (5) days of its 
introduction. Two (2) readings are therefore required; one to introduce; 
and a second to adopt the ordinance. Ordinances may only be passed at a 
Regular meeting or at an Adjourned (Le. Continued) Regular meeting; 
except for urgency ordinances. Ordinances may not be passed at a Special 
meeting. Unless otherwise stated, an ordinance shall take effect thirty (30) 
days following the date of adoption. 

RIO DELL CITY COUNCIL PROTOCOLS Page 20 

173 



A resolution expresses City Council policy or directs certain types of 
administrative action and may be changed by a subsequent resolution. 
Resolutions are effective on the date of adoption. 

8.7 Public Presentations 

This t ime is for persons who wish to address the Council on any matter not 
on the agenda and over which the Council has jurisdiction. Speakers are to 
come to the podium and state their name for the record. Items requiring 
Council action, at the discretion of the Council, will be placed on the next 
regular agenda for consideration, unless a finding is made by at least 2/3rds 
of the Council that the item came up after the agenda was posted and is of 
an urgency nature requ iring immediate action. Comments are limited to 5 
minutes per speaker. 

8.8 Council Reports/Communications 

The Council Reports/Communications section of the agenda provides 
Council the opportunity to briefly comment on Council business, City 
operations, City projects and other items coming before the Council. 
It also allows Councilmembers serving on Council subcommittees to 
present a verbal report to the full Council on the activities of the respective 
boards, commissions or committees upon which they serve. No action may 
be taken. 

8.9 Closed Session 

Closed sessions are regulated pursuant to the Brown Act. All written 
materials and verbal information regarding closed session items shall 
remain confidential. No member of the Council, employee of the City, or 
anyone else present shall disclose to any person the content or substance 
of any discussion that takes place in a closed session, unless authorized by 
a majority of Council. The same high standard of respect and decorum as 
apply to public meetings shall apply to closed sessions. There shall be a 
courtesy, respect, and tolerance for all viewpoints and for the right of 
council members to disagree. 

RIO DELL CITY COUNCIL PROTOCOLS Page 21 

174 



Under the Brown Act, California Government Code Section 54957.1(a): The 
legislative body of any local agency shall publicly report any action taken in 
closed session and the vote or abstention of every member present 
thereon. (See Exhibit "0" for guidance) 

8.10 Adjournment 

The Council establishes 10:00 p.m. as the hour of adjournment and will not 
continue beyond 10:00 p.m. without a majority vote of the Council. To 
assist on making the determination to continue an item under 
consideration, the Council should find that discussion, deliberation and 
action on the item could be concluded by 11:00 p.m. The Council will not 
hear any new agenda items past 10:00 p.m. without a majority vote of the 
Council. A determination should be made by Council that any new item(s) 
can be discussed, deliberated and action taken before 11:00 p.m. If agenda 
items remain after the 10:00 p.m. adjournment, a special continued may be 
scheduled or the items deferred until the next regular meeting. 

9. QUASI-JUDICIAL PROCEEDINGS 

9.1 Defined 

Quasi-judicial proceedings are those proceedings in which the City Council 
Is required to make findings based on an evidentiary record as to the 
entitlement. In quasi-judicial proceedings, the City Council sits as the 
judge and jury, and is required to make findings based on the evidence 
and records presented. Examples of quasi-judicial proceedings that may be 
heard by the City Council include conditional use permits, variances and 
subdivision map approvals. 

9.2 Identification on Agenda 

To facilitate the identification of quasi-judicial matters, quasi-judiCial 
proceedings will be identified as such on the Council agenda under the 
heading of "Quasi-Judicial Proceedings." 

RIO DELL CITY COUNCIL PROTOCOLS Page 22 

175 



9.3 Ex Parte Communications 

An ex parte communication is a communication made with a 
councilmember outside the Council chambers with any person except 
the City Attorney concerning a quasi-judicial proceeding to be heard by 
the City Council. When a Councilmember has an ex parte communication 
concerning a subject that is the basis of a quasi-judicial proceeding before 
the Council, the Councilmember must state for the public record the nature 
of that communication. Councilmembers must indicate with whom the 
ex parte communication was made and provide a brief statement as to the 
substance of the communication. A Councilmember may make an oral 
presentation of the nature of the communication or provide a written 
statement to be read into the public record. 

10. COMMISSIONS/COMMITTEES 

10.1 Ad Hoc Committees 

Ad Hoc Committees are formed on an as-needed basis with a clearly 
defined purpose and term. Ad Hoc Committees will consist of two (2) 
councilmembers recommended by the Mayor and concurred with motion 
by the full Council. 

10.2 Council member Appointments to Boards/Committees/Commissions 

Pursuant to RDMC Chapter 2.55, the City Council shall establish and by a 
majority vote appoint individuals for the prescribed terms to serve on 
such commissions, committees, boards, agencies and task forces as 
are required by law and by City operational need. The operational 
identities of such organizations are defined by law, ordinance or 
resolution. At the completion of an appointee's prescribed term of on 
such an organization, any interested party may apply to the City Clerk 
for Council consideration for appointment or reappointment to these 
support organizations which include, but are not limited to the Planning 
Commission, Parks and Recreation Commission, Traffic Committee and 
The Community Development Block Grant AdVisory Committee (CDBG-AC). 

RIO DELL CITY COUNCIL PROTOCOLS Page 23 

176 



1O.2a City Representation in Other Organizations 

Councilmembers are requested to serve on various commissions for 
outside agencies. Following an election year at which new Councilmembers 
are elected, the newly seated Council shall review the list of current 
assignments and make recommendations for appointments. Any 
Councilmember desiring to serve on a certain commission or board should 
inform the Mayor. Councilmembers resigning from his/her position on a 
certain commission should inform the Mayor via the City Clerk's Office 
in writing. Appointments are made by the Mayor subject to approval 
by majority vote of the Council. 

11. CONFLICT OF INTEREST/ECONOMIC DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS FOR 
PUBLIC OFFICIALS 

11.1 Conflict of Interest 

The Political Reform Act (Government Code, Title 9, Sections 81000-91015) 
controls conflict of interest through disclosure and prohibition of 
participation in decisions, which are actual conflicts of interest. Specifically, 
it requires City Councilmembers and other public officials to annually 
disclose all financial interests that may be affected by decisions made in 
their official capacity; this includes interests such as investments, real 
property, and income. Councilmembers must also disqualify themselves 
from making or participating in making or influencing any governmental 
decision that will have a foreseeable material financial effect on any 
economic interest ofthe Councilmember or certain family members. 

11.2 Statement of Economic Interest 

A financial disclosure form (Statement of Economic Interest Form 700) 
must be filed with the City Clerk no later than April1S

! of each year for 
financial interests pertaining to the preceding calendar year. Newly-elected 
councilmembers must file a statement within 30 days of officially assuming 
office. Planning Commissioners and certain city officials are also subject to 
this disclosure requirement. 

RIO DELL CITY COUNCIL PROTOCOLS Page 24 

177 



12. PROTOCOL ADMINISTRA TJON 

12.1 Review of City Council Protocols 

The protocols will be reviewed and amended from time to time by the City 
Council in order to remain current with federal, state, and local law. 

12.2 Adherence to Protocols 

During City Council discussions, deliberations and proceedings, the Mayor 
has been delegated the primary responsibility to insure that the City 
Council, staff and members of the public adhere to the Council's adopted 
Protocols. 

12.3 City Attorney as Protocol Advisor 

The City Attorney assists the Mayor as a resource to confer with and an 
advisor for interpreting the City Council's adopted protocols. 

12.4 Adherence to Administrative Procedure and Process Protocols 

The City Council has delegated the City Manager responsibility to discuss, 
on behalf of the full Council, any perceived or inappropriate administrative 
action with a Councilmember. The City Manager will discuss with the 
councilmember the action and suggest a more appropriate process or 
procedure to follow. After this discussion, if further inappropriate action 
continues, the City Manager will report the concern to the full Council. 

12.5 Applicability of Protocols 

The City of Rio Dell City Council Protocols shall also apply to the City Council 
when sitting as other entities or agencies representatives or any other 

body. The role of the Mayor and Mayor Prop Tern shall be interchangeable 
with the Chair and Vice Chair, or President and Vice President when sitting 
as another entity. 

RIO DELL CITY COUNCIL PROTOCOLS Page 25 

178 



RESOLUTION NO. 1131-2011 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 

CITY OF RIO DELL AMENDING SECTIONS 3.2 AND 10.2 
OF THE CITY COUNCIL PROTOCOLS 2011 FOR THE 
SELECTION OF MAYOR AND MAYOR PRO TEM AND 

APPOINTMENTS TO BOARDS/COMMITTEES/COMMISSIONS 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Rio Dell has previously adopted procedures 
for establishing a system for City Council appointments to commissions. boards and 
committees and procedures for the selection of Mayor and Mayor Pro Tern; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council reviewed such procedures and proposed certain revisions; 
and 

WHEREAS, on September 6, 2011 the City Council adopted Resolution No. 1127-2011 
providing for a procedure for appointments by the City Council for vacant positions on 
the City Council and commissions with the suggested revisions; and 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Rio Dell 
that Section 3.2 relating to the selection of Mayor and Mayor Pro Tern of the City 
Council Protocols 20 II is amended to read as follows: 

Selection of Mavor and Mayor Pro Tern 
Resolution No. 1127-2011 establishes the procedures for seating new members of 
the City Council. Section 36801 of the California Government Code also 
establishes the procedures for choosing the Mayor and Mayor Pro Tern. The 
Mayor and Mayor Pro Tern will be elected by a majority of the City Council. In 
years when members of the City Council are to be elected, the City Council shall 
consider the election of a Mayor and Mayor Pro Tern for two (2) year terms at the 
first regular or special meeting after certification of the general election results 
has been received. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Rio Dell that Section 
10.2 relating to Councilmember Appointments to Boards/Committees/Commissions of 
the City Council Protocols 2011 are amended to read as follows: 

Council member Appointments to Boards/Committees/Commissions 
Resolution No. 1127-2011 establishes the procedures for appointments by the 
City Council for vacant positions on various commissions. RDMC Chapter 
2.55 also provides direction concerning the City's boards. commissions and 
committees. The City Council shall establish and by a majority vote appoint 
individuals for the prescribed terms to serve on such commissions. committees 
boards. agencies and task forces as are required by law and by City operational 
need. The operational identities of such organizations are defined by law, 
ordinance or resolution. At the completion of an appointee's prescribed term 
of office on such an organization, any interested party may apply to the City 

Resolution No. 1131-2011 Page 1 

179 



Clerk for Council consideration for appointment or reappointment to these 
support organizations which include, but are not limited to the Planning 
Commission. Parks and Recreation Commission, Traffic Committee and 
The Community Development Block Grant Advisory Committee (CDBG-AC). 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Rio Dell on this 
20th day ofSeplember, 2011 by the following vote: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

Attest: 

Woodall, Leonard, Marks, Wilson 
None 
Thompson 
None 

Karen Dunham. City Clerk 

Resolution No. 1131-2011 

Julie Woodall. Mayor 

Page 2 

180 



675 Wildwood Avenue 
Rio Dell, CA 95561 
(707) 764-3532 
(707) 764-5480 (fax) 
E-mail: cm@riadellcity.com 

CITY OF RIO DEll 
STAFF REPORT 

CITY COUNCil AGENDA 
April 21, 2015 

TO: 

THROUGH : 

Mayor and Members of the City Council 

Kyle Knopp, City Manag~ 

Brooke Woodcox, Fi~irector 1)iJ FROM: 

DATE: April 21, 2015 

SUBJECT: Board of Equalization (BDE) Authorizations 

Recommendation 

CITY Of 

M ELL 
----

1. Receive staff report regarding the proposed authorizations for examination of sales and use tax 

transactions; and 

2. Open the public hearing, receive public input, and deliberate; and 

3. Adopt Resolution 1262-2015 approving staff recommendations of authorizing the positions of 

City Manager and Finance Director for examination of Board of Equalization sales and use tax 

transactions and direct staff to submit the requested documents to BOE for notification. 

Background and Discussion 

On July I, 2014 your Council approved Ordinance No. 326-2014 amending the City's Municipal 
Code and providing for a local transactions and use tax, identified as Measure U. Measure U 
allows the City of Rio Dell to collect a district tax of 1.0%. With the passage of Measure U 
Council approved Resolution 1246-2014 authorizing the City manager to execute administration 
agreements with BOE. BOE will further provide detailed sales and use tax information to 
authorized positions, or individuals, within the District. 

Revenue and Taxation Code section 7056 restricts the release of confidential transactions and 
use tax records; therefore BOE is requiring that the City designate by Resolution City and/or 
District official(s) authorized to review such information. The attached Resolution designates 
(by title only) the City Manager (Primary Contact) and the Finance Director (Secondary Contact) 

Resolution 1262·2015 Authorltlng the Examination 
Orr",nsoctJDns [Snles) .nd Use TiIX Records [BOE) 

181 



to view the confidentia l transactions and use tax records. By using titles instead of naming 

specific individuals, an automatic transfer of Section 7056 authority occurs when these 
personnel leave the City, and doesn't require a new resolution each time a change takes place. 

Financial Impact 

The financial impact of designating the City Manager and Finance Director as those authorized 
to review confidential sales and use tax transactions is inapplicable to this resolution, except as 

a budgeting tool to est imate collections. 

ATIACHMENTS 

• Resolution 1262-2015 Authorizing the Examination of Transactions (Sales) and Use Tax Records 

• Letter to BOE authorizing the City Manager to delegate assignment of staff to view information 

• Resolution 1246-2014 Authorizing the City Manager to Execute Agreements with BOE 

• Letter of Notification regarding Revenue and Taxation Code section 7056 regarding 

confidentiality of sales and use tax information 

• BOE Jurisdiction Contact Form 

• BOE Registration/Allocation Request Form (2) 

Resolution 1262-2015 Authorizing the Examination 
Of Transactions (Sales) and Use Tax Records (ODE) 

182 



RESOLUTION NO. 1262-2015 

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE EXAMINATION 
OF TRANSACTIONS (SALES) AND USE TAX RECORDS 

WHEREAS, pursuant to Ordinance No. 1246-2014 of the City of Rio Dell, hereinafter called 
District, and Section 7270 of the Revenue and Taxation Code, the District entered into a 
contract with the State Board of Equalization to perform all functions incident to the 
administration and operation of the Transactions and Use Tax Ordinance; and 

WHEREAS, the District deems it desirable and necessary for authorized representatives of the 
District to examine confidential transactions and use tax records of the State Board of 
Equalization pertaining to transactions and use taxes collected by the Board for the District 
pursuant to that contract; and 

WHEREAS, Section 7056 of the Revenue and Taxation Code sets forth certain requirements and 
conditions for the disclosure of Board of Equalization records and establishes criminal penalties 
for the unlawful disclosure of information contained in or derived from, the transactions and 
use tax records of the Board; 

NOW, THEREFORE IT IS RESOLVED AND ORDERED AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. That the City Manager and Finance Director of the District, designated in writing by 
the City Manager to the State Board of Equalization (hereafter referred to as Board), are 
hereby appointed to represent the District with authority to examine transactions and use tax 
records of the Board pertaining to transactions and use taxes collected for the District by the 
Board pursuant to the contract between the District and the Board. The information obtained 
by examination of Board records shall be used only for purposes related to the collection of the 
District's transactions and use taxes by the Board pursuant to the contract. 

Section 2. That this resolution supersedes all prior transactions and use tax resolutions of the 
City of Rio Dell adopted pursuant to subdivision (b) of Revenue and Taxation Section 7056. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the information obtained by examination of Board records shall 
be used only for purposes related to the collection of District's transactions and use taxes by 
the Board pursuant to the contracts between the District and Board. 

- 1-

183 



I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Amendment was duly introduced at a regular meeting of 

the City Council of the City of Rio Dell on April 21, 2015, and furthermore was passed, 

approved and adopted at a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Rio Dell on the 

Twenty-first day of April 2015 by the following vote: 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

Frank Wilson, Mayor 

ATIEST: 

I, Karen Dunham, City Clerk for the City of Rio Dell, State of California, hereby certify that the 

above and foregoing to be a full, true and correct copy of the Amendment to Municipal Code 

13.10.241 adopted by the City of Rio Dell on April 21, 2015. 

Karen Dunham, City Clerk, City of Rio Dell 

· 2-

184 



675 Wildwood Avenue 

Rio Dell, CA 95562 
(707) 764-3532 
(707) 764-5480 (fax) 
E-mail: cm@riadellcity.com 

April 21, 2015 

Board of Equalization 
Kimberly Norono 
Warrant Desk: MIC: 27 
Sacramento, CA 95814 

Subject: City of Rio Dell Transactions and Use Tax (RDGT) 
Tax Area Code: 390 

Authorization to Review Confidential Sales and Use Tax and Transactions and Use Tax 
Information Section 7056 of the Revenue and Taxation Code. 

Dear Ms. Norono: 

Resolution No. 1262-2015 authorizes the City Manager to designate in writing to the State Board 
of Equalization other officers, employees of the jurisdiction with authority to examine sales and 
use tax records for the jurisdiction. 

Accordingly, the City Manager and Finance Director for the City of Rio Dell are hereby 
authorized to receive and review sales or transactions and use tax records for the City of Rio Dell 
from the Board of Equalization. 

Sincerely. 

Kyle Knopp, City Manager 

185 



( ( 

RESOLUTION NO. 1246-2014 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF RIO DELL 

AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO EXECUTE 

AGREEMENTS WITH THE STATE BOARD OF EQUALIZATION FOR 

IMPLEMENTATION OF A LOCAL TRANSACTIONS AND USE TAX. 

WHEREAS. on July I. 20 14. the City Council approved Ordinance No. 326-2014 amending the City 

Municipal Code and providing for a local transactions and use tax: and 

WHEREAS. the State Board of Equalization (Board) administers and collects the transactions and use 

taxes for all applicable jurisdictions within the state: and 

WHEREAS. the Board will be responsible to administer and collect the transactions and use tax for the 

City: and 

WHEREAS. the Board requires that the City enter into a "Preparatory Agreement"" and an 

"Administration Agreement"" prior to implementation of said taxes. and 

WHEREAS •. the Board requires that the City Council authorize the agreements: 

NOW. THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Rio Dell that the 

"Preparatory Agreement" attached as Exhibit A and the "Adm inistrative Agreement"" attached as 

Exhibit B are hereby approved and the City tvlanager is hereby authorized to execute each agreement. 

• • • • • 

The foregoing resolution \\as introduced and adopted at a regular meeting ofthc City Council of the 

Citv of Rio Dell held on December 16.2014. bv the fo llowin!! vote. to \\it: . . ~ 

Resolution No. 1246·2014 BOE Agreement - Transactions and Use Tax Page 1 

186 



AYES: 

NOES: 

( 

Thompson. Johnson. Marks. and Wilson 

None 

ABSENT Woodall 

ABSTAI None 

ATTEST: 

( 

I. Karen Dunham. City Clerk for the City of Rio Dell, State of California. hereby certify the abo\'e and 
foregoing to be a full, true and correct copy of Resolution No, 1246-2014 adopted by the City Council 
of the City of Rio Dell on December 16, 2014, 

·ch!Ul lQ,nbv lI6i 
Ka n Dunham. C C 
Cit)' Clerk. City of Rio Dell 

Resolution No, 1246-2014 BOE Agreement - Transactions and Use Tax Page 2 

187 



STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

STATE BOARD OF EQUALIZATION 
LOCAL REVENUE ALLOCATION SeCTION 

450 N STREET. MIC 27 . SACRAMENTO, CALIFORNIA 

(PO BOX 51428751, SACRAMENTO, CALIFORNIA 94279.(027) 

TELEPHONE (9i1S) 324 ·1307 

FAX (91S) 324·8117 

WWIN.boe CS.gov 

Brooke Woodcox, Finance Di rector 
City of Rio Dell 
675 Wildwood Avenue 
Rio Dell, CA 95562 

Re: City of Rio Dell Transactions and Use Tax (RDGT) 
Tax Area Code: 390 

April 9, 2015 

SEN GeORGE RUNNER (R&:T ) 
FrrSI DrstnCI Lancaster 

FtONA MA CPA 
SeconCl Drstnct. San FranCISCO 

JEROME E HORTON 
ThifCI DIstrICt. Los An~s County 

DIANE L HARKEY 
FOUf1h Dlstncl Orange County 

BETTY T vEE 
SUIte Controlte, 

Cynth a BnelgH 
E~ecuLve DIrector 

Authorization to Review Confidential Transactions and Use Tux Information 
Section 7056 of the Revenue and Taxation Code 

Revenue and Taxation Code section 7056 restricts the release of confidential transactions and use 
tax records to officers or employees of local jurisdictions who are designated by a resolution of the 
legislative body of the jurisdiction, or by a letter of designation, ifsuch authority to designate has 
been granted by the resolution . 

If the District wishes to obtain confidential registration and/or al location data for transactions and 
use tax that became operative on April I, 2015, a resolution must be adopted authorizing City/ 
District officials or employees to review such information . A "Sumple Resolllliol1" has been 
enclosed for your convenience. I would be happy to review your proposed resolution before it is 
sent to be signed by the City/Board/Counci l to avo id any errors requiring an amendment. 

All positions that examine transactions and use tax records must be authorized by resolution. The 
City/District may wish to consider the designation of posit ionslti ties only, rather than provide 
ind ividual names. This would provide for the automatic transfer of Section 7056 authority when 
personnel changes occur. If the City/District prefers to designate specific individuals by providing 
their name in the resolution, that is acceptable; however, a new resolution is needed each time a 
designated individual leaves the City/District. 

After a resolution has been adopted, the City/District may request monthly allocation data avai lable 
beginning in July I, 2015 by completing the enclosed "Registratiol1/Allocatiol1 Request" and using 
the "Jurisdictiol1 Con/act Form" to identify a notification letter recipient. The allocation data and 
any notification letters can be mailed or electronically transmitted only to specifically authorized 
positions. We do not offer registration data monthly for district taxes but a complete listing may be 
requested as needed. 

In addition, after the resolution is adopted, please identify For us a contact pos ition for receipt of 
transactions and use tax notifications sent to your jurisdiction. The Board of Equalization notifies 
jurisdictions by letter when a decision on a petition results in a decrease to its total distributions by 
5% or more of the district's average quarterly revenue or $50,000 or more wh ichever is less, is 
contemplated under Regulation 1828, Petition for Distribution of Transactions and Use Tax. 

188 



Page 2 

Generally, decision letters issued under Regulation 1828 will include the taxpayer's name, account 
number, return period(s) and the amount of the redistribution. This information is confidential 
pursuant to Section 7056 of the Revenue and Taxation Code. Since the notification letter contains 
confidential Transaction and Use tax records. 

Please select a primary and secondary contact (if needed) from the authorized positions in your 
resolution and complete the contact information for each position on the enclosed form. The 
primary contact position should be authorized to accept, appeal or request mitigation for any 
redistribution that is the subject of a notification letter. The secondary contact position will be 
contacted only if the primary contact is unavailable. 

Additionally, information regarding the notification process can be found within Publication 28 on 
our website at www.boe.ca.bov/pdli.pub28.pdt: 

If you have any questions, please call me at (9 I 6) 324-1307. 

Sincerely, 

00-cA?-, 
Kimberly Norono 
Associate Tax Auditor 
Local Revenue Allocation Unit 

189 



JURISDICTION CONTACT FORM 

NOTIFICATIONS & APPEALS 

CITY OF: Po Ie Veu.. Tax Area Code: ,,'"1D Salcs and Usc TaxI Transaction & Use Tax 

Pursuant to Revellue and Taxation Code § 7056, you may select ollly officers alld employees authorized by 
Resolution or leller of desigllation to examine the Board 's tat records for your Jurisdictioll. If the officer or 
employee's title has not yet been formally authorized, please inc/lllje a designatiollietter. See attached sample 

.1~!!¥!,ationl:!!!!':.. ___________________ . __ ... ______ . . ______ . _______ . ___ ._. __ 

PrimarY Contact 

Title of Authorized Officer/Employee 

Mniling Addn."Ss Line I 

Mailing Address Line 2 

/{/o Deu.., Cfi ~1. 
Cit;. State. Zip 

7fJ1 · 7~4. "532. 
Phone 

-un· 7",&.#. 5'1fO 
Fax 

Emilil 

It is rcconllncndcd. if possible:, that you use an Email address 
thut coincides \\ ilh the authorized pos ition tit le . For c:tample: 

citymanager(ajcityof .go\'. 

BOARD USE ONLY 

Secondary Contact 

Till!! of Authorized Officer/Employee 

Mailing Address Line I 

Mailing Address Line 2 

Cit!. State, Zip 

Fa." 

_ f;ryanrr J (BtiDtArJlvity . COM 
[mail 

It is recommended, ifposs iblc. thal you use tin Email add ress 
that coincides with the authorized position tith: . For example: 
citymantlgerg cityof .gov. 

Pursuant to Section 7056(b), this form is inerrective unless signed by one of the following (boxes cbeeked): 

o City Adm inistrator 0 Administrative Officer 0 City Controller 0 
-'Cu,I,L-T...L'I-LM."""q""""B.. ....... _.(Spec i fy) 

Print Name: KYL-E KNoPP 

Title: eery MMlA'lel!! 
Signature: ___________________ _ D:ltc: ______ _ 

Return this form bye-mail to: EWGroup@boe ca.gov 

OUESTIONS: CALL THE WARRANT DESK AT (916) 324-1307 

Note: Titles held by more than one employee need to be made a un ique identifier fo r runction. For example: Accounlant ll (Rc\'enuc Desk) 

190 



Boord Use Onlv 

REGISTRATION/ALLOCATIO~ MEOlA REOUEST Ju ri s. I.D. # ______ _ 

Please complete Sections I, II, & Ill. and forward this fonn to the address at the bottom of this page, 
Resolut ion \erific:d: YES_ NO 
Updote _________ _ 

By 
IMPORTANT Eacll jurist/ielioll mllst I,m'e a resolutioll otljile witllille 8oort/ of Equoli:alirm 

10 eXamillt ollocalioll amI/or regislratio" dala. A sample resollllioll is inclllded ill Publicatioll 28 which is Ilvailable Oil Ollr Website 
K'ww.boe.co.govlpdjlpub28.pdf or by cal/Itlg Ille Board's Local Revenue Allocation Ullil al (916) 324·3000. 

SECTlOi'l" I: MEDIA RECIPIENT COi'l"TACT li'I"FORMATlOi'I" 

(l r the name/position below is not authorized by resolution or letter of designation, this [ann 
Must be signed bi 11 position authorized by resolution to designate other onicials or employees) 0 Counry a Cil) CJ District (add·on) 

Jurisdiction: tIT'( OF /{'O DELl-Your name: t<'iL..6 t<..N¢pp 

Title: tiN MAN~ER Tax Area Code: _" ..... 'i.,D~ _________ _ 

Address: fe15 u)lt..l:JiJ?oD AII~. 
Cily.SI .... Zip: 8.10 ~) CA q~'2. 

Telephone: 1PJ. 1M. ,1.';12 
FAX: 7&11. 1r.ct. f'ilfBO 

E·M.iI Address KKrv;pp ~ ri ode 'Icily. ~ 

SECTlO:'> II: REGISTRATION DATA REQUEST (List of name, address nnd BOE accounl number fur each business) 

A. Do you require a one-time registration jisting (Start·up) showing all sales and use tax accounts in your jurisdiction. 
Indicatc yes or no: r:gI"Yes 0 No 

SECTIO:\" III: ALLOCATION DATA REQUEST (List of local tax dollars distributed to your jurisdiction by aOE account number) 

A. Do you wish to receive monthly allocution Dnd registration media 

Indiclilc )CS or no; arYes Cl No 

8. ((you require prior period 10caltDx doto·, inuicate thc periods below: 

(MMYY) Frum: _____ To: ____ _ 

• r\ VAILADLE IIISTOI{\ IS LI.'tln.:o TO I'RE' tOl S 36 'IO."TIIS, 

Signed by individual (or designee) authorized by resolulion to receh'c confidential Boord or Equalization inrorm~tion : 

/<Y' E KNOPP 
(Print Name) (Signalure) 

RETl IRN nils FOR~I TO: 
STATE BOARD OF EQUALIZATION 

LOCAL REVENUE ALLOCATION UNIl 
450 N STREET MIC 27 

PO BOX 942879 
SACRAMENTO CA 94279·0027 

FAX 10 (916) 324·3001 

(Title) 

For assislance in completing this form. contnct Dcbbic nlnisdell at 916324·1204. 

RellFom\,doc (804m orEqu:diz:ltloltiLRAU) 
REV 06'2011 

(Dale) 

191 



Bm!Td Use Onlv 

REGISTRATION/ALLOCATION MEDIA REOUEST Ju ris. 1.0. # ______ _ 

Plc:asc complete Sections I, II, & III. and forward th is form 10 the address at the bottom of th is page. Resolution verified: YES_ NO 
Updulc ________ _ 

By 
IMPORTANT Each jurisdiction mllst Irm'e d resolmion OIl jilt witlr tire Board of Eqllali:.alim, 

to exnmiIJe allocatioll and/or registration dnla. A samplt! resolution is inc/lldell ;n Pllblicat;m, 28 wliiclr ;s amilable 011 Ollr Website 
www.boe.ca.gOlvpdjlpub28.ptljor by calling tile Board's Local Re,'emle Allocation Ultit at (9/6) 324·JOOO. 

SECTlO~ I: ~IEOI"\ RECIPIENT CONTACT INFORMATION 

(lCthe name/position below is not authorized by resolution or letter of designation, this form 
Must be Signed by OJ position authorized by resolution to designate other omcials or employees) 0 County Deity o District (add-on) 

Jurisdiclion: tiN 1)1" R,P J)FkL Your nome: BR06tE tDoory-O~ 
Title: PIl.IIV.J£,E ])'Q€~ Tox Area Code: ....... " ........ q..,D ........ _________ _ 

Address: 1,7!5 U )llmmD ./!lIt;: • 

Cily. Slate. Zip: /J.'D D~ CA ~:2.. 
Telephone: 1 Pl. 7le1+. 3~M 

(1- I 
FAX: '107. 1{,'i .rr4BQ 

E-Moil Address +i 00\1)£.(...1 ~&K;/,ell~ 

SECflO~ II: REGISTRATION' DATA REQUEST (List or name, uddrcss and OOE account numbl!r for each business) 

A. Do you require a one-time n:gislration !jsting (Stan-up) showing all sales and usc tax uccounts in your jurisdiction, 
Indicate yes or no; c;;Ycs 0 No 

SECTION III: ALLOCAT10:'<i DATA REQUEST (List of local tax dollars distributt!J 10 )our juriS(.]iction by BOE account number) 

A. Do )'OU wish to receive monthly allocation and registration media 

Indicate yes or no: ~cs 0 No 

B. II' you require prior period locnl tax data-. ind icQte the periods below: 

(M~IYY) from : ______ To: _____ _ 

• r\ \ r\ll ·\lJLE IIISTOR\ l'i I ""TEO TO "ItE\ lot s 36 \IO.'TIIS. 

Signed by individul)l (or designee) .. uthonzd by resolution to recein conlillcnti::.1 BOllriJ of Equnliz:ttion inrormation: 

(Print Name) (Signalure) 

RET[fR~ nils FOR~I TO: 
STA rc BOARD OF EQUALIZATION 

LOCAL REVEN UE ALLOCATION UNIT 
~lO N STREET MIC 27 

PO BOX 9~2879 
SACRAMENTO CA 94279-0027 

FAX to (916) 324·3001 

(Tille) 

For assistance in completing this rorm. contact Debbie Blaisdell at 916 324-1204. 

Rejl:Fonn.doc (Bonnl ofEqu:d izalto l~lRAU I 

REV 06.1'20'1 I 

(OOIC) 

192 



675 Wildwood Avenue 
Rio Dell, CA 95562 
(707) 764-3532 
(707) 764-5480 (fax) 
E-mail: cm@rlodellcity.com 

TO: 

THROUGH: 

CITY OF RIO DELL 
STAFF REPORT 

CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 

April 21, 2015 

FROM: 

Mayor and Members of the City Council 

Kyle Knopp, City Man~ 

Brooke Woodcox, Finance Director ~ 
DATE: 

SUBJECT: 

April 21, 2015 

Ordinance No. 335-2015 Amending Section 13.10.241 Rio Dell Municipal Code 
Related to Property Lien Assessments for Delinquent Sewer Accounts 

Recommendation 

1. Receive staff's report regarding the proposed text amendment; and 

2. Open the public hearing, receive public input, and deliberate; and 

3. Adopt Ordinance No. 335-2015 amending Chapter 13.10 Sewer Rates and Regulations, Section 

241 Discontinuance of Service for Nonpayment for Customers Without Water Service 

4. Direct the City Clerk, within 15 days after adoption of the Ordinance, to post an adoption 

summary of the Ordinance with the names of those City Council members voting for or against, 

or otherwise voting in at least three(3) public places and to post in the office of the City Clerk a 

certified copy of the full text of the adopted Ordinance pursuant to Section 26933(a) of the 

California Government Code. 

Background and Discussion 

It was reported to Council at a regularly scheduled Council meeting on April 7, 2015, that 

Ordinance 332-2015 had incorrect information and an amendment was necessary. The original 

Ordinance allowed the City to collect delinquent charges, penalties, and twelve months advance 
payments to be placed as liens against property owners that fail to pay their sewer bills. Staff 

then sought legal Counsel prior to issuing any property tax liens. 

Ordinance 335·2015 Amendment to Section 13.10.241 ROMe 
Property Lien Assessments for Delinquent Sewer Accounts 

193 



Ordinance 335-2015 is to correct the language of Section 12.10.241 of the Rio Dell Municipal 
Code related to property lien assessments for delinquent sewer account. This ordinance 
removes the language "and the next 12 months service" and allows for property tax liens for 
sewer accounts to be placed only to the extent of delinquent charges, penalties, and roll change 
costs. 

Financial Impact 

The financial impact of removing the language "and the next 12 months service" is that the City 
will collect on delinquent sewer charges after the fact, instead of twelve months advance. 

AITACHMENTS 

• Resolution 1259-2015 Amending Ordinance 332-2015 

• Copy of Resolution 1253-2014 Wastewater Fees and Charges for Wastewater Customers 

Pursuant to Ordinance 322-2014 

• Minutes of January 20, 2015 meeting First Read ing of Ordinance 332-2015 

• Minutes of February 3, 2015 meeting Second Reading of Ordinance 332-2015 

• Minutes of April 7, 2015 meeting First Reading of Ordinance 335-2015 

Ordinance 33S~2015 Amendment to Section 13.10.241 ROMe 
Property Lien Assessments for Delinquent Sewer Accounts 

194 



RESOLUTION NO. 1259-2015 
ORDINANCE 335-2015 AMENDING RIO DELL 

MUNICIPAL CODE SECTION 13.10.241 

PROPERTY TAX LIENS FOR NONPAYMENT OF DELINQUENT 

SEWER BILLS FOR CUSTOMERS THAT DO NOT SUBSCRIBE 
TO WATER SERVICE, AND A MEANS OF COLLECTING 

THE DELINQUENT CHARGES ON THE PROPERTY TAX BILL 

WHEREAS: The City of Rio Dell Municipal Code Section 13.10.240 provides that the Department 

of Public Works has the right to discontinue water service to any customer that is delinquent in 
the payment of his sewer bill, and 

WHEREAS: There is no provision in the City of Rio Dell Municipal Code to discontinue sewer 

service to a customer that is delinquent in the payment of his bill, but does not subscribe to City 
water service, and 

WHEREAS: The City of Rio Dell is in need of an incentive and procedure to effect the collection 

of delinquent sewer bills from customers that use sewer services, but are habitually delinquent 

in paying for the service and suffer no consequence, and 

WHEREAS: Government Code Section 54348 provides for the maximum penalty for delinquent 
utility services, and 

WHEREAS: Government Code Sections 54354-54357 gives local agencies the authority to place 

a lien on property for delinquent utility charges and penalties. 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that Resolution 335-2015 amends Ordinance 332-2015, 

Chapter 13.10, Section 241 of the Rio Dell Municipal Code regarding the establishment of 

property tax liens for nonpayment of delinquent sewer bills for customers that do not subscribe 

to water service, and provides a means of collecting delinquent charges on the property tax bill. 
The City Council of the City of Rio Dell does hereby ordain as follows: 

AMEND section 13.10.241 as follows: 

13.10.241 DISCONTINUANCE OF SERVICE FOR NONPAYMENT FOR CUSTOMERS WITHOUT 

WATER SERVICE 

195 



In the event that any non-water account customer shall be delinquent in the payment of his or 

her sewer bill twice in succession or three times in a 12 month period, the City may initiate 

proceedings to have such delinquent charges, late penalties, and roll change costs aRElIRe Relit 

12 "'SRIRS sf sewer Sep,.IEe (figured on a flat rate based on the average residential usage in the 

City) lump sum assessed against the real property or premises where the service is provided to 

become a lien against the property. 

The lien shall be turned over to the County Assessor who shall enter the lien on the assessment 

rolls as a special assessment, thereafter to be collected at the same time and in the same 

manner as ordinary municipal taxes, to be subject to the same penalties and procedures under 

foreclosure and sale as provided by the Government Code and as provided for ordinary 

municipal taxes. 

I HEREBY CERTIFY that the foregoing Amendment was duly introduced at a regular meeting of the City 

Council of the City of Rio Dell on April 21, 2015, and furthermore was passed, approved and adopted at 

a regular meeting of the City Council of the City of Rio Dell on the Twenty-first day of Apri l 2015 by the 

following vote : 

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

Frank Wilson, Mayor 

ATIEST: 

I, Karen Dunham, City Clerk for the City of Rio Dell, State of California, hereby certify that the above and 

foregoing to be a full, true and correct copy of the Amendment to Municipal Code 13.10.241 adopted by 

the City of Rio Dell on April 21, 2015. 

Karen Dunham, City Clerk, City of Rio Dell 

196 



c c 
RESOlUTION NO. 1253-2015 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF RIO DelL RESTATING 
WASTEWATER FEES AND CHARGES FOR WASTEWATER CUSTOMERS 

PURSUANT TO ORDINANCE NO. 322-2014 

WHEREAS, the City of Rio Dell is authorized by the California Constitution and the California Code to 
charge fees to cover expenses for the services it provides; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Rio Dell did adopt Ordinance No. 322-2014 that allows for 
sewer rates and charges to be modified by resolution of the City Council to provide for future changes; 
and 

WHEREAS, Ordinance No. 322-2014 deemed reasonable and authorizes the Council for the City of Rio 
Dell to fix charges to pay for expenses to be incurred by the wastewater department. The expenses to 
be paid include: (a) salaries, office expenses and other necessary disbursements: (b) the operation 

expenses of the utility: (c) provisions for the appropriate funds for repairs, replacements or 
betterments; and 

WHEREAS, all wastewater system connections, once purchased, place a demand on the capacity of the 
treatment and collection system for processing and treat possible effluent whether in service or not; 

and 

WHEREAS, the City Council of the City of Rio Dell has held public meetings pursuant to Proposition 218 
to discuss the need for an increase in wastewater rates and charges; and 

WHEREAS, the City has entered into a funding agreement for construction of a $12.6 million Sewer Plant 
and Effluent Disposal Project with the State Water Resources Control Board; and the City must earmark 

funds for the repayment of the loan. 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that this Resolution establishes and fixes wastewater service rates 

and charges for residential, commercial and institutional customers and replaces the wastewater rates 

and previously set by Ordinance or Resolution. Wastewater rates shall include a fixed minimum charge 
in addition to volume rates based on winter water consumption. Wastewater rates shall meet the 

following conditions: 

1) Sewer Bills. Sewer bills are based on consumption but in no case are sewer bills less than the 
fixed/minimum service charge that is applied to the sewer bill for an equivalent dwelling unit 

(EDU). 

2) Definition of Consumption. "Consumption" shall mean a three month average of winter water 

use as measured and recorded at the water meter serving the same parcel or premise receiving 
sewer service for the months of December, January, and February. The City Manager or his 

designee is authorized to make adjustments to customer winter water consumption due to any 

of the following conditions: 

197 



( ( 

Vacancy: If the water consumption readings for the three winter months indicate that the 
premise being served sewer service was vacant during a portion of the three winter months, 
the City is authorized to average the water consumption for the period the premise 
appeared to be occupied. 

Irregularity: The City is authorized to eliminate from the calculation water readings which 
are clearly not representative of average monthly water use when compared to water 
readings for two of the three months. 

New Residential Account: New residential accounts will be billed based on the city-wide 
residential average of Scef until a usage history is established. 

New Commercial Account: New commercial accounts at existing locations will be billed 
based on prior occupant's water consumption unless the new commercial operation is 
significantly different from the previous commercial operation. 

3) Water Consumption Measurements. Water consumption is measured in units of one hundred 
cubic feet (cef). One ccf equals 748 gallons. 

4) Winter Water Consumption Rate. Each unit of winter water consumption is billed at the volume 
rate for the customer category/group. Sewer fixed minimum charges and volume rates are 
presented in the table below: 

Sewer Fees and charges per Equivalent Dwelling Unit: 

I Customer class i Customer Class 
Description 

I 
t 

I low Strength I See Exhibit A 

: Domestic Strength I See Exhibit A 

I Medium Strength See Exhibit A 
I High Strength I See Exhibit A 

EDU - eqUIvalent dwelling Unit 
Cef - hundred cubic feet 

' Minimum Monthly 
(Fixed) Sewer Service 
Charge 

$47.01 per EDU 

! $47.01 per EDU 
' $47.01 per EDU 

I $47.01 per EDU 

Volume Rate (per ccf I 
of winter water use) I 

I $3 .29 per ccf 
$4.11 per cef 

! $6.17 per cef 

I $7.19 per ccf 

5) Residential Water Consumption Maximum. Single family resident ial and multifamily residential 
customers shall not be billed for monthly winte r water consumption in excess of 15 units. 

6) Customer Categories/Groups. Sewer customers are classified as low strength, domestic 
strength, medium strength, and high strength based on the content and strength of the 
discharge as established by industrial standards and California Sta te Water Resources Control 
Board guidelines and as determined by the City Engineer. 

7) There shall be a new service connection fee of $5,220 required for each individual 
dwelling, reSidence, building, or separate service to any multiple use consumer on any 
parcel or parcels under the same ownership. The fee shall be levied in addition to any 
actual costs by the City to provide the new service and shall be received into the sewer 
capital fund for the purpose of capital expenditures. 

198 



c ( 

Exhibit A 

Strength Classifications into low, Domestic, Medium, and High Strength Dischargers 
Low Streng:h 

Domestic Strength 

Medium Str~ngth 

Sanks & Financiallrutltutions 
Barber Shops 
Hair Salon (hair cutting onl") 
Dry Cleaners 
Laundromats 
Offices - Business ilnd Proftsslon,J1 
Offices - Medical/Dental (withou~ sur.!ry) 
Post Offices 
Retail Stores 
Schools without cafeterra 
Car Wash 

Residential - All 
Appliance Repair 
Auto Dealers - without Service Facilities 
Nail Salomi 
Pet Groomers 
Bars & Ta'Jems' without dlnrn(l 
Camp Ground or RV Park 
Churches. Halls & lodges 
Fite Stations 
Hotels, Mot~15, 8&95, and 'Iacat!on Rentalls ('11/0 restaurant) 
Ubraries 
Rest Homes 
Shoe Repair Shops 
Theaters 
Warehouses 
Car Washes· Self SerJlce 
High Tech Medical ManufactUring 
Light Manufacturlng/lndustrtal 
Mobile Home Park 
Gas Station 
Gym or Health Club 
5, 1'100[5 with cafeteria 
Auto Dealers - with Service Facilities 
Mach ne Shops 
Service Stations, Garages, AutO Repair Snops 

Restaurants · WIO Dish Washer & Garbage Disposal 
Coffee Shops - WIO Oish Washer & Garbage Disposal 
Mini Marts· W/O Dish Washer &. Garbage Disposal 
MIni Mart with Gas Pumps -W/O DISh Washer &. Garbage D sposat 
Catering · w/a D!sh Washer &. Garbage Disposal 
Hotel/Mo;:el with Restaurant 
Beauty Shops ( h,fr cuning w/addltional treatments) 
Hospitals - General, Convalescen: & Veterinarian 
Medical Offices - with Suriery 
Dental Offices 

Restaurants· w th Dish Washer or Garbaga DIsposal 
Coffee Shops - WIth Dish V/asher or Garbage Dlsposa 
Catering - with Disn Washe~ or Garbage Disposal 
Bakeries 
Butcher Shops 
r sh Market/Shop 
Markets · with Dish \':asher or Garbage Di.s~osa' 
Markets · 'Jli:h Sakeries or Butcher Shops 
Mmi Marts . \"lith Dish Vl3sh.!t or Garbage Disposal 
W neries 
Cheese Makers 
Dairy Products (milk producers, yogurt, Ice crean: maker) 
Speclalt'l Foods Ma:lufactur,na (a:,. olive oil maker) 
Ice Cre.wn Shcp 
Tast,ng Rooms 
Spa with Various Beauty Treatments 
Funeral Homes/ Mortuar( 

199 



c r 

BE IT RESOLVED that rates will be adjusted for inflation each year, based on the Bureau of Labor 
Statistics, Consumer Price Index for all Urban Consumers, and effective Ju ly 1 of each fiscal year. The 
month of comparison from the index shall be the preceding January; and 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that these fees and charges apply to all connections to the City of Rio Deli's 
wastewater collection and treatment system, once they are purchased from the City, without regard to 
the actual status of the connection or if the premises are occupied or unoccupied; and 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Rio Dell on February 3, 2015 by the following 
vote: 

Ayes: Wilson, Garnes, Johnson, Marks and Thompson 
Noes: None 
Abstain: 
Absent: 

ATIEST: 

None 
None 

Frank Wilson, Mayor 

I, Karen Dunham, City Clerk for the City of Rio Dell, State of California, hereby certify the above to be a 

full, true and correct copy of Resolution No. 1253·2015 adopted by the City Council of the City of Rio 

Dell on February 3, 2015. 

200 



,JA:'ITARY 20, 2015 :\I!:\TTES 
Page 6 

ORDI:'\"A:-';CES/SPECIAL RESOLl TJO:'\"SIPL'BLIC HEARI:'\"GS 

Adopt Resolution 1\0. 1250-2015 Authorizinc th~ L'pdate of Si!!ners on all US Bank Accounts 
Finance Dir~ctor Woodcox pro\'ided a staft'report and said the City's signature cards on the US 
Bank accounts need to be updated to include the current City i\lana(!er. Ma\'or :md i\1~\'or Pro 
Tem as \1 ell as updating the Finance Director as the authori~ed repr~sentati-\'e allowed io access 
the accounts and to make transfers between the three US Bank accounts including the General 
checking account. the Pa)TolI account and the CDBG account. 

Councilmember Thompson noted that Couneilmember Garnes and i\larks \1'Cre not included on 
. '. , I: . ~. ~ . . t , _. : • • .: . : _ " , . _ 
' ., . I, ••• ,_. _ •• • • .- .... "' : ' .. 

Fin~nce Director Woodcox explained in 10 I L the Council authorized tllO addition~1 signers to 
the accounts for a total of six because of difficulties encountered in acquiring the two required 
si!!natures on checks but staff felt that six si!!ner5 is sufticient and as nell council members. the\ - - . 
may not \\ ant to ha\'e that responsibility. 

Councilmember Johnson asked if the update I\ill require nell' signers going to the bank. 

City Clerk Dunham indicated the torm was in the oftice and ready for signatures. 

~Iotion was made by Garnes~larks to appro\'e Resolution :\'0. 1115-::!O 15 AII/llOri:illg Ih" 
Uri/me o/Siglla/llre C({rds 011 a/l [ :s. BUllk ..1" (,0 111111'. i\lotion carried 5-0. 

. .... ".. .. . ... . . - . ,. . 
!".lU ... L ... ~1\Ji1 ........ " u .l . " .... ~ .... u,_ , ......... .. ..... ... .. . \,.· . _ .. 1 . . .. ..... . ' •• _; _ ••• \01 ... . ... : ... _ 'H .. 

Definition of In opera tin! \'ehicle. Section 8.15.020 of the Rio Dell ~lunicipal Code (RD~IC 
Cit~ ~Ianager Knopp stated that ~tarfhad requ~sted this item bl! remllled from the agenda to 
allo\\ for minor r~\'ision before introduction and tirs( r~ading. 

Introduction and First Readin!! (b\ title onh') of Ordinance 1'10. 332-1015 amend in!! Section 
13.IO."~O and Addin!! Section 1310. 2~1 (() th~ Rio Dell ~Iunicipal Code (RD~IC) Related to 
Delinquent S~\\er Accounts 
Finance Director Woodcox pro\'ided a staff r~port and stated that an amendment is needed to 
assist stafr in managing the collection of delinquent sel\er account,; that do not subscribe to 
\Iater Sen ice since the City lacks an~ k\wage to collect on these account as they become pJst 
due. She said the amended language II ill alloll' past due se\ler accollnts and prospecti\ e 
amounts to be turned O\'er to the County Assessor to place as a lien against (he prop~rty and 
collected \\ ith municipal taxes. She noted that the am~ndment \I i II allow collection of sem;!r 
charl!es 12 months in ad\'ance in addition to past du~ chJrges and \Iill also mJke it possible to 
colk-ct on accounts when there is ~ change in O\\l1ership as the lien amounts will be prorated to 
the responsible party prior to the sale of the propert~. 

201 



JA:\TARY 20, 201S :'III.\TTES 
Page 7 

Sh~ indicaled Ih:lt Ihere are cum:ntl~ about 20 delinquent se\\er accounts: file of\\hich are on 
homes in foreclosure. 

Councilmember Thompson asked ifsraffwill hale to go to court to file the liens. 

Finance Director Woodcox explained th~t she spoke to Joe i\lellett from the Auditor"s oflice \\ho 
informed her that the delinquent accounts can be submitted with a letter from the City citing the 
California GO\'emment Code section that authorins the action. the assessor parcel number and 
amount and they will be placed as a lien on the property. She noted that the aceolmts can be 
submitted once a year for a \-ery minimal cost and if they are submitted during other times of the 
:. : _. :>.~~.::. :~ : : ' _~ '!~.r' #; ? : :' .~ _' _ ~ .:~.: 5= •. .? .• . ! ! : _ " : ~ ! ~ _' :'.:': ' : " --, ; . , . .. ~- . ::: ,~ :;." ' .~ ~~ :'-: 
.-\ss~ssor at the bl!ginning of each tJX ~ ear. 

Councilmember Johnson questioned the fees and penJlties assessed on delinquent account,. 

Finance Director Woodco.\ said currentl~ pa>t due utility accounts are assessed a I 0' 0 p.:nalt~ 
per month and the maximum penal ty that can he assessed is 12%. 

:-'Ia~ or \\'ilson asked if the 12 month adnlOce billing for se\\er account is proposed tor all se\ler 
only accounts or just on delinquent accounts. 

Finance Director Woodco:-. staled il \\oldd appl~ lo all delinquent accounts past 3 monlhs. 

Councilmember Games asked if the re.lson fix th~ ddinquenc~ is hccau,e no one is IiI ing in the 
... :t . ..J .... .. _. 

Finance Director \rood<:o~: said thJl gencrall~ lh~ ddinquencie,; arc rdateJ to I aeant pmpcni6. 

Counei lmember Gam.:s then asked if cu"tomcrs are required to pay t"r a se\\cr cr>nnection \\hen 
lh~~ purchase a home. 

Finance Dir~ctor \\'oodcox explained th.H the connection fees are paid at the time of 
Clll1s1ruction. 

Councilmember Garnes question~d wh~ Sllmeonc l\'Quld be required to pay for a sewer sen ice if 
Ihe~ are not using it. 

Finan.:.; Dire.:tl1r \\ 'oodcox explained that \\ hen the \\a5lewat~r rate study was done. the rate; 
\\ere based on total lIaste\\ater connections to the collec'lilln and treatment system \1 ilhout 
rel!ard to Ihe a.:tual status of the cl)nnection or if th~ pr~mises were o.:.:upi.:d or unoccupied. 
She noted th.!l the rates \\'ere established to meet a certain dollar amount to maintain the se\\er 
s~stem. 

202 



.JA:\l'ARY 20, 2015 ;,IL\TTES 
Page S 

Councilmember Thomp:;on referred to the 1978 Se\\ er Bond Assessment that \\ illt~rm i nate in 
1018 end said each ind i\'idual connect ion at the ti me of the assessment includin2 sen ices to a 
garage or guest home n'ere assessed and those residents are p3)ing for a second-connection e\'en 

tholl2h it ma\' no lon2er be acti\ ated, 1 he same theon' was used in determinin o the number of 
conn~ctions tor the n':"aste\\ater rate studY" '" 

A public hearing was opened to recei\ e public comment on the proposed ordinance amendment. 

:\ick Angeloff asked if it will become an issue when the water rate stud) is done so customers 
~ :n , 1 ,~~ : .:".::;:_! .. _:.: ~ ~. __ r' , r ... . ~ .. !.: _: :_: :_ . r • • ,: :_. _ ~._ .' .: 

City \[anager Knopp stated that it is unl-no\\'n at this time if there \\ill be an) additional fees or 
charges rdated to \\uter and \\'ater rates is an issue the Counci l hopes to make progress on o\er 
the next 6 months, 

~[ayor Wilson asked for clarification on \\ho is primarily being affected b) this action, 

He clarified that the primar) Cllstomers affected aren't those that are simply refusing to pa) 
because the) know the City can't disconnect their sewer ser\"ice but the majority of the 
delinquent accounts are related to \'acant propel1ie; \\ith no \\'ater ser\"ice so there is no incenti\e 
for them to pay for the standby se\\er charge, 

There being no fUl1her public comment, the public hearing closed, 

"Iayor Wilson asked if the lien nill be satisfied \\ith the sale orthe propel1), 

rinam;e Director \\'oodcox pointeJ out that the lien n ill shon on the proper!) t.lX bill and 
collected in the same manner the taxes ar~ colkct~d, She pointed out thm this prOCeSS nas 
initiated b) the form~r City ,,[anager and nhen he left, he passed it on to her to compkt~, 

~Iotion was made: b) Thompson Johnson to introduce and conduct tirst re,IJing (b) title only) of 
()rdilulilc<' Xo 33l-ll!l j AII/elldillg Seclioll 13, I IJ l-lO alld Addillg Seclioll 13, II) 2-1 I 10 rlr~ Rio 
D.dl .1/lIIlicil'al Code Relared 10 DdilltjlleJII Sel< t'I' AccoIIIlIs and to continue the s~cond reading, 
consideration and adoption of the proposed Ordin,mce to th~ meeting of FebrU3r) 3. 2015 , 
~ lotion carried 5-0, 

REPORTSjST AFF COMMUNICA TIO~S 

Cit) \Ianager K.nopp reported on recent acti\ ities and e\'enlS anJ reiterated that he had made 
significant progress \\ ith staff on the health insurance plan which r~presents a cost s3\'ings for 
th~ Cit~ and said he \\ ill be bringing a detaikd report back to the Council at the ne~t meeting for 
Jppro\'al. 

203 



fEBRl'ARY 3, 20/S ~ll:\TTES 
Page /2 

Second Rcadin!l (b\ titk on"-) and Adoption of Ordinance \"0_ 332·2015 Amendin!l Section 
13.10.240 and Addin!l Section 1310.24 I to the Rio Ddl ~!unicipal Code (RD~rc) Related to 
Ddinguent Sewer Accounts 
Finance Director Woodcox prO\ ided a staff report and said staff is recommending the adoption 
of Ordinance i'\o. 332·2015 amending the Rio Dell ~!unicipal Code (RD:-'!C) rdated to 
collection of delinquent seller accounts. She explained what has been happening \\ ith the new 
se\\cr rate stfllcture is that scn:ral of the se\\er customers that don't also ha\c water sen'ice (as 
man~ as 20) are letting those bills go unpaid and the City doesn't hm e an~ Ie\ eragc to colle~t on 
these accounts as they become past due. She said the amended language \\ i II allo\\ past due 
se\\cr accounts and prospecti\-e amounts to be turned mer to the County Asscssor to pl.lce as ,I 
lien against the propert~ and collected \\ith municipal t.lxes . She noted that the amendment \\ill 
allo\\ colkctinn of se\\ er charges 12 months in ad\ ance in addition to past due charges and \\'ill 
also make it possibl~ to collect on accounts \\ hen therc is a change in 0\\ nership as the lien 
amount; \\ ill be pror,lh:d to the responsible p.lrl~ prior to the sale of the propw~ . 

Councilmcmber Johnson ,,,~ed the dollar amount of the delinquent accounts. 

Finance DirectM \\ 'olJdco:\ c,;,tim.JteJ tota l delinquent sel\er account to be in the rJngc of 
S·1.000·55.000 to date . 

.-\ public hearing \\ as opened tll recei\-e public comment on the orJinam:e. Ther~ being no 
public ClJmm~nt. the punlic hearing c1useJ. 

~Iotion \\as made b) .I ohn5['n \IJrb h) conduct sccvnd reJd ing (by title onl~) and aJopt 
Ordi //i//lCl' Yo , 33:: .::1) 15 .11I1t!//di//g S,'CI iOll 13, /II.:: -III £ll1d .1 deli //,!! SCl'l iOll 131 Ii ::-11 10 IiI,' RIO 

[),:/! .lfunic l!,,,1 ( '"d, , I R {J 1f!'1 R, 'I"le.! 10 f)"li //<! 1/('1/1 Sl'w"r .·1 C('O/ll1/ \ _ ~ Illlion CJITi cd 4·1 . 

Introduction and First ReJJin~ (b\ title: on" 1 of OrJinance :'\0. 333 · 2!J 15 :\l1lend i n~ Ch,lpte r 
~ . 55 . Commissions. Committees. Boards . . ·\~encies and Tas~ Forces. anJ Section 10.05. 100. 
Tranie Committce ufthe Riu Dell \!un icipJI CoJe (RD~!C) 
Cit~ :-. IJnager Knopp prl" ided a staff report and explained thi s ordinance amend men I relJtes tl' 
Titk 2. Adl1li//isll'<llioll £111£1 f'a.wI1I1,'1 of the Rio Dell :-'Iunicipal Code (RD:-'IC I. lie said upon 
the re.:ent est,lblishmenr of the \"uisanc:e Committee. staff discO\ ered that the \"uisance 
Committee \\as nlll identifieJ as one of the committees in Chapter 2.55 oflhe RD:-'IC. In 
aJd ition to thaI ['mission. staff di sc,)\ er~J (lther inconsis tencie,; and omis,;il)ns incl uJing 
rcferen.:e tll th.: CDBCi Committee under Section 2.55 .010: inconsi,;tent pru\'isi,)f1s of the Traftie 
Committc:e Ii.Jlll1d in Chaptcr 10.5: the I\uisance Hearing Committe.: not identiti.:d : the: 
\\'iIJ\\'ood .·henLle Sculpturc Committcc not identitieJ: anJ that the CDBG PH" isi,'ns arc 1M 

Cllllsistcnt \\ ith the Ci t~ . 5 aJllPteJ guiddines. 

lie SJiJ as such. ,;talr i, recommenJing Chapler ~.55 be amendeJ tll accuratcJ~ retlect the 
comp,)sition anJ responsibi lities of the \ JrilJus cummissions. comm itte.:;. C>l)ards. agencies and 

204 



Run: 4/0312015 at 9:47 AM CITY OF RIO DELL Page: 1 

CHECK REGISTER 
General Checking· US Bank of California 

Check Date Vendor Description Check 1 Payment 

0003618 3/0212015 [2366) EEL RIVER DISPOSAL INC GARBAGE BAGS FOR FEBRUARY 2015 651.50 
0003619 3/0212015 [2757] US POSTMASTER POSTAGE FOR FEBRUARY 2015 FOR UTILITY 367.95 

BILLING 
0003620 310512015 (3108) ACCUFUND, INC. ANNUAL SUPPORT 4/1/15 - 3131/16 6,127.50 
0003621 3/0512015 [2224) AQUA BEN CORPORATION HYDROFLOC 750L 55 GAL DRUM 803.03 
0003622 3/05/2015 (2261) CALIFORNIA STATE DISB UNIT GARNISHMENT CASE #200000001183524 FOR PPE 81.69 

2/2 
0003623 3/05/2015 (5330) CAPITAL ONE COMMERCIAL COSTCO - HOT CUPS, 40 PK AA BATIERIES AND BIN 61.65 
0003624 3/05/2015 (2285) CC MARKET (1) BIRTHDAY CAKE FOR THE MONTH OF FEBRUARY 30.00 

2015 
0003625 3/0512015 (2303) COAST CENTRAL CREDIT UNION POA DUES FOR PPE 2120/15 120.00 
0003626 3/05/2015 (3148) COUNTY OF HUMBOLDT ASSESSOR PARCEL MAP UPDATES; MAP 52-22 6.50 
0003627 3/05/2015 (4382) DOCUSTATION MONTHLY MAINTENANCE & COPY CHARGES FOR 1,660.56 

FEBRUA 
0003628 3/05/2015 [2407] FORBUSCO LUMBER 12 - PIER BLOCKS; 10 - 4X4X8 PT; 50 LBS 16 V 342.42 

30- 2X4X8 PT 
10 - 2X4X8 PT 
RETURNS: 7 - 4X4X8 PT; 4 - 2X4X8 PT; 7 - 2X6X 
500 - 6" GARDEN STAPLES 

0003629 3/05/2015 [2501) HAJOCA CORPORATION 11 CHRISTY FL09D WATER FIBERL YTE LIDS 350.97 
0003630 3105/2015 (4908) MITCHELL BRISSO DELANEY &VRIEZE PROFESSIONAL SERVICES FOR FEBRUARY 2015 2,123.00 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES FOR FEBRUARY 2015 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES FOR FEBRUARY 2015 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES FOR FEBRUARY 2015 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES FOR FEBRUARY 2015 

0003631 3/05/2015 (2410) NORTH COAST CLEANING SERVICES, INC. MONTHLY CLEANING SERVICE FOR FEBRUARY 2015 471.00 
0003632 3/05/2015 (2569) NORTH COAST LABORATORIES, INC. AMMONIA NITROGEN WIO DISTILLATION; NITRATEINI 280.00 

AMMONIA NITROGEN WIO DISTILLATION; NITRATEINt 
0003633 3/0512015 (4393) NYLEX.NET MONTHLY MAINTENANCE FOR MARCH 15 THROUGH 900.00 

APR I 
0003634 3/05/2015 (2659) RIO DELL PETTY CASH PROPANE; DISH SOAP; PICTURE HANGING KIT; 29.85 

DEED 
0003635 3/05/2015 (4525) SHERLOCK RECORDS MGMT STORAGE SERVICES FOR FEBRUARY & BOX 88.60 

RETRIEVAL 
0003636 3/0512015 (4570) SHRED AWARE SHREDDING 70.00 
0003637 3/05/2015 (4699) SIERRA CHEMICAL CO CHEMICALS & CONTAINER DEPOSITS 3,175.17 
0003638 3/05/2015 [2319) SUDDENLINK COMMUNICATIONS MONTHLY BROADBAND SERVICES FOR MARCH 2015 246.32 
0003639 3/05/2015 (2481) VANTAGEPOINT TRANSFER AGENTS-304361 RETIREMENT FOR PPE 2/20/15 5,414.30 
0003640 3/05/2015 (5166) VSP-VISION SERVICE PLAN VISION INSURANCE FOR MARCH 2015 448.44 
0003641 310512015 [2772) WENDT CONSTRUCTION, INC TREE DAMAGE REPAIRS TO DINSMORE BOOSTER 14,155.00 

STATI 
0003642 3/05/2015 [5647] WHITCHURCH ENGINEERING, INC. SITE INVESTIGATIONS FOR BELLEVIEW & OGLE AVE 6,053.25 
0003643 3/05/2015 [2792) ZUMAR INDUSTRIES, INC. STREET NAME SIGNS - TOWNSEND, BELLEVIEW, 721 .62 

WILD 

N 
0 
U1 



Run: 4/03/2015 at 9:47 AM CITY OF RIO DELL Page: 2 

CHECK REGISTER 
General Checking· US Bank of California 

Check Date Vendor Description Check I Payment 

0003644 3/1312015 (0576) 101 AUTO PARTS TWO BATTERIES & CORE DEPOSITS FOR 2004 285.51 
FORDF 
80 PK TERRY RAGS; BATTERY CORE DEPOSIT 
CREDIT 

0003645 3/13/2015 (5443) AIRGAS USA, LLC CYLINDER RENTAL 20,84 
0003646 3/13/2015 (3975) AT&T· 5709 PHONE EXPENSES FOR FEBRUARY 2015 509.67 
0003647 3/13/2015 (5114) BEST BEST & KRIEGER LLP LEGAL SERVICES THROUGH FEBRUARY 28, 2015 173,02 
0003648 3/13/2015 (2293) CITY OF FORTUNA POLICE DISPATCH SERVICES FOR MARCH 2015 1,542,00 
0003649 3/13/2015 (5127) DELTA DENTAL DENTAL INSURANCE FOR APRIL 2015 2,254,66 
0003650 3113/2015 (2385) EUREKA READYMIX 4 ,11 TONS CRUSHED ROCK 48.60 
0003651 3/1312015 (5241) GE CAPITAL XEROX COPIER PAYMENT FOR MARCH 2015 475.49 
0003652 3/13/2015 [2437J HACH REAGENT SET, CHLORINE FREE CL 17 177,00 
0003653 3/13/2015 [4212J LEC CORPORATION LEAK REPAIRS ON DOUGLAS TANK #1 2,350,00 
0003654 3/13/2015 [5222J RJ , RICCIARDI, INC PROFESSIONAL SERVICES REGARDING AUDIT 3,960,00 

PERIOD 
0003655 3/13/2015 (3029) REDWOOD COFFEE SERVICE COFFEE 63.00 
0003656 3/13/2015 [2664J ROGERS MACHINERY INC REPAIRS TO GORMAN RUPP PUMP 1,921 .50 
0003657 3/1312015 [5797J SAFE RESTRAINTS, INC. THE COMPLETE WRAP RESTRAINT SYSTEM 1,239.25 

INCLUDING 
0003658 3/13/2015 [5564J SALMON, COLE CUSTOMER DEPOSIT REFUND 12,29 
0003659 311312015 [2742J SCOTIA TRUE VALUE HARDWARE THREE 1" WHITE MPT PLUGS; RETURN THREE 3/4" B 134,98 

1 OT SAE30 MOTOR OIL; 4 · 112·13X1 ·1/2 STAINL 
TRAD ANVIL PRUNER; PWR GEAR BY PRUNER 
8 · NICKEL PLATED KEYS 
THREE 3/4" BRASS PIPE PLUGS 
DURAFRAME TROWEL; EIGHT 60 LB CONCRETE MIX 

0003660 3/13/2015 [2710) STARPAGE PAGING SERVICES FOR MARCH 2015 12.95 
0003661 3/1312015 (2319) SUDDENLINK COMMUNICATIONS INTERNET SERVICE FROM 3/10/15 TO 4/9/15 134.95 
0003662 3/1312015 (2731) THOMAS & ASSOCIATES PUMP LIFT STATION PARTS: 2· WEAR PLATE ASSEM 456,61 
0003663 3/1912015 (2457) HUMBOLDT COUNTY CLERK CEOA NOTICE OF EXEMPTION FOR METROPOLITAN 50.00 

WEL 
0003664 3/2012015 [3114J 3T EOUIPMENT CO" INC, 1/2" FLYING NOZZLE 3D 392.13 
0003665 3/20/2015 (4603) CALIF. BUILDING STANDARDS COMMISSION PERMIT ASSESSMENT FEES FOR OCTOBER 13.50 

THROUGH DE 
0003666 3/20/2015 [5781J CALIFORNIA BUILDING OFFICIALS ANNUAL DUES 4/1115 TO 3/31/16 215,00 
0003667 3/20/2015 (2261) CALIFORNIA STATE DISB UNIT GARNISHMENT CASE #200000001183524 FOR PPE 81.69 

3/6 
0003668 312012015 [2303J COAST CENTRAl CREDIT UNION POA DUES FOR PPE 316/15 120,00 
0003669 3/2012015 [3461) CRIMESTAR CORPORATION RECORDS MANAGMENT SYSTEM ANNUAL SUPPORT 1,500,00 

FEEP 
0003670 3/20/2015 [0155) LINDA DAWDY CUSTOMER DEPOSIT REFUND 3,30 
0003671 3/20/2015 [2342) DEPT OF CONSERVATION DIVISION OF ADMIN, STRONG MOTION INSTRUMENTATION & SEISMIC 26.03 

HAZAR 

N 
0 

'" 



Run: 4/0312015 at 9:47 AM CITY OF RIO DELL Page: 3 

CHECK REGISTER 
General Checking - US Bank of California 

Check Date Vendor Description Check 1 Payment 

0003672 3/20/2015 [5568) DIVISION OF THE STATE ARCHITECT DISABILITY ACCESS & EDUCATION FEES FOR 5.70 
OCTO BE 

0003673 3/20/2015 [4855) FRESHWATER ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES CONSULTING SERVICES FROM 1/5/15 TO 1/30115 2,400.00 
CONSULTING SERVICES FROM 2/10/15 TO 2117/15 

0003674 3/2012015 [2458) HUMBOLDT COUNTY DIVISION OF HAZARDOUS MATERIALS FACILITY FEE: CUPA STATE 638.76 
ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH 

0003675 3/20/2015 [2603) PG&E UTILITY EXPENSES FOR FEBRUARY 2015 16,126.86 
0003676 3/20/2015 [3343) PITNEY BOWES RESERVE ACCOUNT POSTAGE PURCHASE FOR RESERVE 400.00 
0003677 3/20/2015 [2619) PITNEY BOWES, INC. (QTR Pymnt) QUARTERLY PAYMENT FOR JANUARY THROUGH 166.41 

MARCH 2 
0003678 3/2012015 [3354) SERGIO RAMIREZ CUSTOMER DEPOSIT REFUND 1.76 
0003679 3/20/2015 [5772) SACRAMENTO VALLEY ASSOCIATION OF INTERMEDIATE PERMIT TECH TRAINING COURSE 100.00 
0003680 3/20/2015 [2694) SHELL OIL CO. PD FUEL EXPENSES FOR FEBRUARY 2015 1,959.98 

PW FUEL EXPENSES FOR FEBRUARY 2015 
ADMIN CAR FUEL EXPENSES FOR FEBRUARY 2015 
PD FUEL EXPENSES FOR MARCH 2015 
PW FUEL EXPENSES FOR MARCH 2015 

0003681 3/20/2015 [2719) SWRCB OFFICE OF OPERATOR CERT GRADE 3 WATER TREATMENT OPERATOR 190.00 
CERTIFICATE 

0003682 3/20/2015 [2481) VANTAGEPOINT TRANSFER AGENTS-304361 RETIREMENT FOR PPE 3/6/15 5,410.60 
0003683 3/20/2015 [2772) WENDT CONSTRUCTION, INC VACTOR TRUCK RENTAL 150.00 
0003684 312012015 [2719) SWRCB OFFICE OF OPERATOR CERT GRADE 3 WATER DISTRIBUTION OPERATOR 90.00 

CERTIFICA 
0003685 3/2012015 [2719) SWRCB OFFICE OF OPERATOR CERT GRADE II WWTP OPERATOR CERTIFICATION 230.00 

RENEWAL 
0003686 3/20/2015 [2719) SWRCB OFFICE OF OPERATOR CERT GRADE III WWTP OPERATOR CERTIFICATE 300.00 

RENEWALF 
0003687 312712015 [2237] BANI< OF AMERICA BUSINESS CARD USPS - EVERY DOOR DIRECT MAILING OF WINTER 1,292.20 

20 
7-ELEVEN: 14.825 GAL FUEL FOR CITY CAR 
HAMPTON INN & SUITES - THIS CHARGE IS IN ERRO 
THE INN @ JACK LONDON SQUARE - LODGING & 
PARK 

0003688 312712015 [5769) BLUE SHIELD OF CALIFORNIA HEALTH INSURANCE FOR APRIL 2015 17,792.65 
0003689 3/2712015 [3605) CDWG GOVERNMENT, INC. COMPUTER FOR DATA STORAGE 1,656.70 
0003690 3/27/2015 [2291) CITY OF EUREKA HAl-MAT JPA CONTRIBUTION FY 2014-15 1,325.00 
0003691 3/27/2015 [3148) COUNTY OF HUMBOLDT ASSESSOR PARCEL MAP UPDATES: MAP 53-14 6.50 
0003692 3/27/2015 [2411) DEARBORN NATIONAL LIFE INSURANCE LIFE INSURANCE FOR APRIL 2015 248.00 

COMPANY 
0003693 312712015 [2105) KAREN L DUNHAM REIMBURSEMENT FOR LODGING & PER DIEM - 368.81 

SCORE)i.3UILDI~G, WOgK.5HDP 

N 

!:3 



Run: 410312015 at 9:47 AM 

Check 

0003694 

0003695 

0003696 

0003697 

0003698 
0003699 
0003700 
0003701 
0003702 

0003703 

0003704 

0003705 

N 
o 
00 

Date 

312712015 

312712015 

312712015 

312712015 

312712015 
312712015 
312712015 
312712015 
312712015 

312712015 

313112015 

313112015 

CITY OF RIO DELL Page: 4 

CHECK REGISTER 
General Checking - US Bank of California 

Vendor Description Check I Payment 

[3782] EUREKA-HUMBOLDT FIRE EXTINGUISHER ANNUAL FIRE EXTINGUISHER MAINTENANCE 801 .83 
CO., INC SERVICE 

ANNUAL FIRE EXTINGUISHER MAINTENANCE 
SERVICE 

[5765] GARNES, DEBRA REIMBURSEMENT FOR LODGING, MEALS & 406.93 
MILEAGEFO 

[5052] GHD, INC PROFESSIONAL SERVICES FOR WATER SYSTEM 1,272.00 
PROFESSIONAL SERVICES FOR COUNCIL 
MEETINGS 
ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR TAC MEETINGS & 
TRANS 

[2750] HD Supply Facility Maintenance DBA: USA NITRATE STANDARD, NITRATE NITROGEN 2,683.35 
BLUEBOOK STANDARD, 
[4218] MAS MODERN MARKETING DRUG TESTING POUCHES 179.83 
[2569] NORTH COAST LABORATORIES, INC . COLIFORM QUANTI-TRAY 35.00 
[5730] 0 & M INDUSTRIES TEST WALL FURNACES & RESET OPEN LIMITS 97.00 
[5724] JOHN PARKER CUSTOMER DEPOSIT REFUND 156.15 
[4338] QUILL CORPORATION SAM SUNG BLACK TONER CARTRIDGE: GEL INK 123.57 

PENS 
(2709) STAPLES DEPT. 00-04079109 XEROX BLACK, YELLOW, MAGENTA & CYAN TONER 291 .53 

CAR 
[2659] RIO DELL PETIY CASH POSTAGE; LUNCH, SNACKS & DRINKS FOR SEXUAL 142.83 

HA 
[2757] US POSTMASTER POSTAGE FOR MARCH 2015 FOR UTILITY BILLING 367.71 

Total Checks/Deposits 120,371 .95 


